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positive impact for generations

to come.
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Our results are evidence of significant
strategic, operational and financial
progress made against avolatile
macroeconomic backdrop
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WELCOME FROM OUR CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Welcome from our
Chief Executive

Overthe last two years, the new management
team and I have focused on two key objectives.
First, focusing and simplitying the business to
stabilise the core income stream and return it
to underlying growth.

Second, starting to rebuild value within our
existing portfolio and to create optionality on
how we unlock the substantial value in our
development portfolio.

We are and will continue to be disciplined
allocators of capital. We assess and select the
best returns for shareholders, mindful of our
own cost of capital and all options for capital
deployment, including further debt retirement
and distributions for shareholders.

Rita-Rose Gagné
Chief Executive
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OURASSETS AND DEVELOPMENTS

Unlocking our prime
urban multi-use

estate across 26 acres

1) Dundrum Town Centre
2) Thelronworks

3) Dundrum Village

13m

Visitors per annum (2022)

c.3,300

Jobs

26

Totalacres

97%

Occupancy (31 December 2022)

€61m

Passing rent (100% basis)




A prime urban multi-use estate across 26 acres
in principal south Dublin location.

Dundrum Town Centre is Ireland’s pre-eminent
retail destination and point of entry for new brands,
international and homegrown, by some considerable
margin. To capitalise and drive further value we

are advancing at pace ambitious plans to unlock

the complementary value of the adjacent
development land.

MAXIMISING OPPORTUNITIES

Strength of coreretail (@

— Re-anchored 18,600m? since 2020 to Brown Thomas,
Penneys & Dunnes Stores

— This created momentum to leverage ourinternational
relationships and attract firsts to Ireland brands
including Nike Live Concept and Watches of
Switzerland, as well as Ireland’s largest Lush store

Successful diversification € &

— Commencement of construction October 2022 of
The Ironworks residential development comprising
122 apartments over existing car park

— Established thriving restaurant, social, leisure
and cultural hubinthe architecturally acclaimed
Pembroke Square redevelopment anchored by
premium bowling concept

— Converted former storage to 1,000m?penthouse office
suite —occupier identified and contract in discussion

Unlocking Dundrum for generations tocome ©

— Planning decision awaited for residential led application
forc. 900 apartments across six acre site

— Design of residential scheme informed by key design
principles and based on stakeholder feedback:
inclusivity, sustainability and revitalisation of town
main street

— Create contemporary and vibrant residential location
todeliveraworld class multi-use estate

o
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We are pleased with the progress
made in 2022 as we accelerate
development to unlock furthervalue
of the Dundrum Estate and create
Dublin’s lifestyle destination of choice.
Marrying a blend of uses, including
residential, food, entertainment,
healthcare and workspace anchored
by Dundrum Town Centre, Ireland’s
premier retailand leisure destination.yy

Connor Owens
Managing Director Asset Management (Ireland & Scotland)
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OUR ASSETS AND DEVELOPMENTS

Located in Val d’Oise, Cergy, on the edge of Paris,
Les 3 Fontaines s the region’s leading urban retail and
leisure destination.

[ ] [ ) [ )
Comprisingof 25 acres Les3 Fontanes sitathe Maximising core
d |. . d , [ ] [ ] [ ]
sidents, 20,000m ofoffice space anda man retail opportunities

transport hub to the city by 2025.

Leveraging the redevelopment of the area, its ‘New a n d d ive rs i fyi n g t h e

City’ status, and public transport links, Hammerson

has reinvented Les 3 Fontaines to become a city centre O cc u p i e r m i x

initsownright.

MAXIMISING OPPORTUNITIES
Three Key Themes

Strength of coreretail

— Re-anchored since 2018 with 18 new brands and
renewals including Zara, H&M and Footlocker

— Completion of the new 34,000m? extension in March
2022 adding 72 new high profile brands including
Adidas, D Sports and Rituals, alongside store firsts
in this region for LEGO, Tommy Hilfiger and Miniso

Successful diversification

Diversified the occupier mix to reflect the emerging needs
and expectations of our visitors, customers, occupiers and
the wider community. Thisincludes:

— Introduction of education, healthcare providers and
city centre retailers

— Creation of anew dedicated food and social hub
DISTRICT, offering 14+ restaurants and dining outlets
including Vapiano and Big Fernand

Focus on sustainability and social value
Creating exceptional, sustainable destinations that deliver
a positive impact for generations to come is our goal.

Les 3 Fontaines extension was developed with
sustainability in mind. Thisincluded:

— Use of low carbon concrete alternative, 99% of the

steel used from recycled materials and operationally
75% of the waste is also recycled

— Les Fontaines de 'emploi was created to support the “
community, in partnership with the Mayor and local
associations. Offering 1,300 local job seekers We ar_e prOUd Of the LeS 3
employment workshops, recruitment companies Fontaines transformation
and interview training and have Created an

exciting destination at the
heart of the city. This sees
us becomethe new
reference for students,
families, employees and
the wider community.gy

Renaud Mollard
Managing Director France



11m

Visitors per annum (2022)

c.2,200

Jobs

25

Totalacres

91%

Occupancy (31 December 2022)

€27m

Passing rent
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OURASSETS AND DEVELOPMENTS

Birmingham is one of the youngest and
most diverse cities in Europe, which
underpins its current and future growth,
including major nationalinfrastructure
and culturalinvestment.

Birmingham showcases Hammerson’s
strategy in action as we bring together
Bullring, Grand Central and Martineau
Galleries into our Birmingham Estate.

With ownership extending to 35 acres,
equating to 15% of the city core,
Hammerson’s Birmingham Estate is at
the heart and provides social, culturaland
commercial opportunities that engages
tens of millions of people each year.

Bullring welcomes over 30m visitors each
yearand is one of the most successful retail
destinationsinthe UK.

Grand Centralis connected directly to Bullring
which sits astride the most connected railway
stationinthe UK.

Martineau Galleries completes our estate,
with seven acres positioned directly opposite
the new HS2 Curzon Station. This has outline
consent fora further 93,000m?of commercial
and residential uses.

Individually each asset has the potential to
holistically enhance the Estate. By leveraging
the halo effect we are able to capitalise and
drive value for our stakeholders, the local
economy and the city asawhole.

MAXIMISING OPPORTUNITIES
Three Key Themes

Repurposing and successful diversification

— Repositioningand repurposing of the
former Debenhams to introduce a new
M&S and TOCA Social, reflecting a
combined investment from Hammerson,
CPPInvestmentsand M&Sof £18m

— New socialand entertainment investment
of £8m creating 7,200m? of repurposed
spacetointroduce TOCA Social, Lane 7
and Sandbox VR

— Brand engagement and investment —
c.£15m inward flagship brand investment
from Nike, TAG Heuerand JD Sports

Placemaking - engaging our visitors in new,
smart and memorable ways

Atthe heart of the City, the Birmingham Estate
hosts and supports events and activations
across the year offering our visitors
entertainment, immersive moments,

food and social and retail.

Including:

— Official sponsor of the Commonwealth
Games, attracting 1.8m visitors over
theevent

— 220,000 visitors to the Birmingham
Carnival

— Birmingham Weekender, B-Side Hip-Hop
festival and Birmingham Pride

Unlocking our estate for generations
tocome

Planning submitted for ‘Drum’ the repurposing
of 18,500m? of former retail space to create
anew paradigm of city centre workplace,
incorporating the best levels of amenity and
connectivity. Allcomplementing the existing
food and social hubin Grand Centraland the
retailand entertainment brands Bullring

has to offer.

Martineau Galleries —with planning obtained,
we continue to work with our partners to
deliveraworld class commercialand
residential district. Supported by outstanding
infrastructure connections and underpinned
by open, multi-use amenity and cultural
spaces, Martineau Galleries will see us
further leverage the benefit of the wider
Birmingham estate.

Further milestones achieved with land
assembly, phasing, enabling and vacant
possession, working towards initial demolition
and site enabling.

(11
This projectisthe next stepin
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2022 has beenanincredible
year for our Birmingham Estate
with a significant increase in
leasing and Bullring occupancy
at 97%.

The rapid transformation of the
former Debenhams has senta
bolt of confidence through the
market, establishing a platform
tointroduce further diversified
usesintothe scheme.yy

Toby Tait (pictured left)
Director, Asset Management

Hammerson’s vision to transform our

Birmingham estate, creating a truly

6]

multi-use asset that thrives due to
its relevance and diversity. Drum will
be anoriginal and highly important
evolution of workplaces, built on the
principles of connectivity, amenities

and sustainability.gy

Harry Badham (pictured right, commenting
on Drum repurposing)

Chief Development and Asset Repositioning Officer
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@ Bullring
® Martineau

Galleries RepOSitioning and

© Rotunda

o (liversifying our 35 acre

prime Birmingham Estate

43m

Visitors per annum (2022)
(Bullring and Grand Central)

c.4,400

Jobs

35 O

Total Acres

97%

Occupancy (Bullring)

£54m

Passing rent (100% basis)
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CHAIR OF THE BOARD’S STATEMENT

Chair of the Board’s

Statement

Business environment

Inflation was already embedded in the supply
chain as the UK and Europe began toemerge
from Covid-19 restrictions. Then Russia’s
invasion of Ukraine in February caused
devastationto millions of Ukrainians and an
energy crisis across Europe. As governments
fought with these events, central banks
grappled with acceleratinginflation, lenders
became more cautious, borrowers became
increasingly concerned and consumers faced
acostof living crisis not seen in decades.

Althoughrrisk levels remained elevated, the
new Hammerson team has a strong grip on the
business and has built a two-year track record
of consistent operational and financial delivery.
Today, I am pleased that Hammersonis a
better, more focused and resilient business
with a strengthened balance sheet; acore
portfolio of city centre estates that continue
toattract the best occupiers; new ways of
working; a significantly reduced cost base; and
unexploited value in its unique development
opportunities. The teamis focused on
executing aclear strategy to deliver a path

to growth.

Board changes and evaluation

The retirement of Gwyn Burrand Andrew
Formicaat the conclusion of the 2022 AGM
was covered in last year’s annual report.
Having joined the Board in June 2020,

Des de Beer stepped down as a Non-Executive
Directorin October. Des helped guide the
Company through some difficult challenges
during his time on the Board and we benefitted
from his deep experience in both retail and
capital markets. He leaves with our thanks for
his positive contribution, and we wish him well.

The Board now comprises six Non-Executive
and two Executive Directors, with an average
tenure of 2.5 years. No further changes are
currently planned.

OurBoard evaluationin 2022 was an

external review carried out by Board Alchemy.
The review of the effectiveness of the Board
and its Committees included individual
interviews with all Directors and various
regular attendees, observing a Board meeting
in June and discussing the results of the
review with the Board in October.
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Robert Noel
Chairofthe Board

The review concluded that the Board is
effective. Board Alchemy made various
recommendations including the emphasis
given to certain topics. These have been
incorporated into our Board plan for 2023 and
progress against these recommendations will
be monitored during the year. The effectiveness
of Directors was also within the scope of the
evaluationand Iam pleasedtoreport that
considerable progress has been made since
the last external review was undertakenin
2019. All Directors are fully engaged in offering
awide range of perspectives and relevant
skills. More information on the review can be
found on pages 70 and 71.

The Board values its diversity. 'm pleased
toreport that 37.5% of the Board are female
and we exceed the target set outin the Parker
Review to have at least one director from
aminority ethnic group. Further details are
contained inthe Nomination and Governance
Committee Report on pages 7210 75.

Birmingham Estate,
Birmingham
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Today, I am pleased that
Hammerson is a better
and a more focused

and resilient business
executingonaclear
strategy to delivera
path to growth.

Robert Noel
Chair of the Board

ESG

Hammerson is committed to reaching

Net Zero by 2030. The Board is also fully
committed to the Group’s continuing
recognition as a sustainability leaderin the
round, ensuring the highest standards of
operational performance and corporate
governance. Toachieve ouraims we need

to maintain the support of our occupiers,
customers, partners, the communities
affected by our operations, our colleagues, and
ourequity and debtinvestors. Collectively our
stakeholders have numerous and changing
demands on the way the business conducts
itself. We endeavour to maintain the right
balance as these demands continue to evolve,
andtotreateveryonein line with our values.

Last year we set out our response to the Task
Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures
(TCFD). This year we have set out our path
tobe anetzero carbon business by 2030.
Details of our plans and our sustainability
performance are set out on pages 25t0 31,
with more detail available in our ESG Report
2022, whichis available on our website at
www.hammerson. com.

During the year, the Group provided assistance
to colleagues in response to the emerging cost
ofliving crisis. A salary supplement was
awarded to all colleagues on annual salaries

of lessthan £/€60,000. This was paid in four
equalinstalments from November to February
inthe UK and Ireland, and as a one-off for
French colleagues. The Group has also made
differentiated pay awards in March 2023
benefitting those in lower salary bands.

Hammerson plc Annual Report 2022 9

Dividend

Asexplainedin last year’sannual report, the
Board continued to satisfy our REIT and SIIC
distribution requirements through offering an
enhanced scrip dividend during the year. At the
AGM on 28 April 2022 shareholders approved
afinal 2021 cash dividend of 0.2p per share
with an enhanced scrip option of 2p per share,
entirely paid asa PID, and then ata General
Meeting on 25 October 2022 shareholders
approved aninterim 2022 cash dividend of
0.2p pershare, also with an enhanced scrip
option of 2p per share.

The payments made to date have satisfied
our REIT and SIIC distribution requirements
for 2022 and the Board will therefore not be
recommending a further paymentin respect
0f2022.

As previously announced, the Board
anticipates recommending the reinstatement
ofacashdividendfor2023. Itis expected this
will be at least the minimum required to
continue to meet our REIT/SIIC distribution
obligations. Further information will be given at
the Company’s half year results announcement.

Looking ahead

Since the year end, Hammerson has moved

its London head office to new, smaller offices.
Not only does this save significant cost and
give increased flexibility, it gives us closer
proximity to key partners. It also coincides with
arefresh of the Group’s values and new ways of
working, marking a new chapter for colleagues
who have faced up to the challenges of the last
three years with stoicism and significant effort.
Iwould like to thank them again for their
contribution and commitment.

The leadership team have achieved a great
dealin 25 months. Hammerson is a better
business today than it was in 2020. The Board
is confident the strategy is the right one —
focused oncity centre estates withan
attractive development portfolio. 2023 will be
anotherimportant yearin our transformation
with the Board and executive leadership team
remaining laser focused on delivering long
term value creation for all stakeholders.

Robert Noel
Chair of the Board
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Chief Executive’s

Statement

We have delivered another strong year

of strategic, operational, and financial
progress against a challenging economic
backdrop. At the beginning of 2022, we
could not have foreseen the extent of the
volatility of the economic and political
environment that unfolded driven by
geopolitical events in Ukraine, China’s zero
Covid policy, and political change in the UK.

We do not yet know the fullimpact of the cost
ofliving crisis, a period of higher inflation and
interest rates, and continued supply chain
disruption. Moreover, this year highlighted

the value of sustainable sources of energy.
Ourcommitment to ESG and Net Zero remains
absolute, and we finished the year with fully
costed Net Zero Asset Plans for every flagship
asset in the managed portfolio.

We setoutaclearstrategyin June 2021 and
our performance in 2022 underscores our
belief that we are strongly positioned to deliver
attractive total returns over the medium term.
Overthe last two years, the new management
team and I have focused on two key objectives:

— Simplifying the business to stabilise the
coreincome streamandtoreturnitto
underlying growth reflected in like-for-like
GRIgrowingin 2022 by 8%

— Startingtorebuild value in our existing
portfolio whilst at the same time creating
optionality on how we unlock the deep
development valuein our portfolio

We will continue to be disciplined allocators
of capital and select the best returns for
shareholders, mindful of our own cost of
capitalandall options for capital deployment
including debt retirement, and distributions
for shareholders.

Despite this uncertain and volatile backdrop,
we have been disciplined in the execution
against these objectives focusing on what
we can control. Our operational and financial
performance is proof positive that our
strategy is working:

— Weareenliveningand reinvigorating our
assets by introducing new occupiers,
uses and concepts. In recognition of the
importance of placemaking, we attracted
asenior leaderin anewly-created role who
has already brought anincreased emphasis
on commercialisation, marketing, and
advertising to create exceptional spaces
forour customers and occupiers. We are
actively repurposing our destinations and
creating a sense of place that brings people
and experiences together

Hammerson plc Annual Report 2022 10

Rita-Rose Gagné
Chief Executive

— Wesigned 317 leases representing £45m
of headlinerent (E25m at our share)
demonstrating the attractiveness of our
destinations and the continued flight to
quality by occupiers

— We havere-aligned the organisation to
be asset-centric, more agile and focused
onoccupiers and customers. The rapid
progress on the re-set of our operational
model delivered a 17% reduction in gross
administration costs. We have already
taken steps that will deliver further
efficiency gainsin 2023 and 2024

— We have continued to strategically refocus
the portfolio on city centre destinations
and to simplify our portfolio, disposing of
£628m of non-core assets since the start
of2021

— Ourresulting financial position is stable,
with net debtdown 4%to £1,732m,
headline LTV 39% and fully proportionally
consolidated LTV 47%. Our netdebt to
EBITDA improved to 10.4x from 13.4xin
2021.We have ample liquidity in cash and
undrawn committed facilities of cE1bn

— Underpinningall this progress, we are
evolving to a sustainable high-performance
culture, with increased focus on training
andtalent development



2022 HIGHLIGHTS

+8%

-17%

317 Leases, £45m of headline rent
+34% above previous passing
+2% versus ERV

926%

-12%

Bullring,
Birmingham

Les 3 Fontaines,
Cergy

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Adjusted earnings were up 60% to £105m
reflecting a strong operating performance
across the board.

Like-for-like GRI increased 8% following two
strong years of leasing performance, and
reduced vacancy resulting in some leasing
tension returningin our destinations.
Significantimprovements in collections
performance, and the growth in GRI resulted in
like-for-like NRIimproving 29% year-on-year.

In 2021 we committed to reduce our gross
administration costs by 15-20% by 2023
which we have already delivered witha17%
reduction year-onyear. There are more
efficiencies to come from the digjtalisation
of our business.

Deleveraging remains an important priority
andin 2022, we generated gross proceeds of
£195m from the disposal of non-core assets,
resulting in reduced finance costs. There was,
however, alack of liquidity in investment
markets in the second half of the year. We have
refinanced RCFs and redeemed the remaining
2023 eurobonds.

Ourfinancial position is stable. Net debt was
£67m lower, reflecting disposals completed
duringthe year. Headline LTV was unchanged
at 39%, while fully proportionally consolidated
LTV, including the Group’s proportionate share
of Value Retail debt was 47% (2021: 46%).
Net debt to EBITDA was 10.4x down from
13.4xin 2021, reflecting both lower debt

and the improved earnings performance.

EPRANTAwas £2,634m at 31 December
2022 (2021:£2,840m), adecline of 7%
year-on-year, predominantly due to the
impact of market wide yield expansion and
ERV decline on property valuations, reflecting
higher base interest rates in the second half.

Overall, the Group recorded an IFRS loss
of £164m (2021: £429m loss), largely due
toa £282m revaluation deficit, of which
96% wasin Q4.

Sales and footfall

The quality of our destinations and our
stronger asset-centric focus means that
footfalland sales in our destinations continue
toexceed national averages.
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During 2022 we saw a sustained recovery
infootfall and sales performance. Footfall for
the whole of 2022 was 39% up year-on-year
(UK+41%, France +36% and Ireland +35%),
and finished the year at around 90% of 2019
levels. Footfall recovered steadily throughout
the yearwith the Group seeingan 11% point
improvement between January and
December. Onthe ground activity remains
robust with strong footfall, sales and leasing
trends continuing into the first few months
0f2023.

Sales recovered strongly as consumers are
shopping less frequently but visiting our
destinations with more purpose, also avoiding
increasingly expensive delivery and return
costs charged by online retailers. The
improvement in store like-for-like performance
alsoillustrates fewer better performing
retailers reflective of our shift away from
reliance on legacy fashion to a broader mix

of best-in-class retail, food and social, services
and leisure. Overall, like-for-like turnover
rents for 2022 were up 111% year-on-year,
total like-for-like sales were up double digit
year-on-year,and +3%yvs. 2019.

Occupancy

Our core portfolio is well positioned to benefit
from the increasing polarisation in the market
and the flight to quality. Vacancy levels remain
low across our assets with the UK and France
at4% and Ireland atonly 2%. We are
beginningto see leasing tension returninthe
core portfolio. Having some vacant space
allows us to trial new concepts as well as
initiate our longer term strategic plans to make
our destinations more relevant to evolving
customer behaviourand spend.

Collections

Rent collections, both in terms of overall
proportion collected and pace after the due
date have continued toimprove as trading
normalised post the pandemic. As at February
2023, 2022 Group collections were 95%,
withthe UK and Ireland largely back to
pre-pandemic norms and France slightly
behind. For Q1 2023, Group rent collections
were 90%. This compares with 90% for 2021
and 83% for Q1 2022 at this time last year.

Value Retail

Value Retail saw the performance of the
Villages recover close to pre-pandemic levels.
Brand sales increased by 34% year-on-year
and were only 5% lowerthan 2019 levels.
Footfall across the Villages was resilient;
downonly 9% on 2019. Spend per visit
increased by 5% on 2019 following improved
digital marketing of domestic high net worth
customers. Value Retail expects to benefit
from the return of the international traveller
in 2023. These trends continue into 2023.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT continued
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We setoutaclear
strategy in June 2021
and our performance in
2022 underscores our
beliefthat we are strongly
positioned to deliver
attractive total returns
overthe medium term.q

Rita-Rose Gagné
Chief Executive

Bullring,
Birmingham

Overall, Value Retail signed 332 leases during
the year, showcasing the attractiveness of the
premium outlet sector. Occupancy forthe
year was at 94%. There have been 96 new
openingsin 2022; Dolce & Gabbana opened
their fifth Value Retail store in Las Rozas,
Christian Louboutin opened a new store at
LaVallée and Cecconi’s opened at Bicester.

The Group’s share of adjusted earnings were
£27.4m,up72% on 2021. GRI hasincreased
duetotherecovery of turnover rents from

12 months of full trading. At 31 December
2022, the Group’sinterestin Value Retail’s
property portfolio was c£1.9bn and the net
assets were £1.2bn; the differenceis
principally dueto £0.7bn of net secured debt
within the Villages which is non-recourse to
the Group. Value Retail also successfully
refinanced over £1bn of debt facilities
principally in relation to La Vallée and Bicester.
The average LTV across the Villages is 36%.

Outlook

Near term

Whilst we remain very mindful of the uncertain
macroeconomic outlook, we have a strong
operational grip onthe business and are
targetingafurther 20% reduction in gross
administration costs by the end of 2024, and
to complete the £500m disposal programme
by the end of the year. We have strong
momentum and are well placed to deliver
anotheryear of robust underlying earnings
and cashflow and anticipate a returnto cash
dividends during the year.

The Oracle,
Reading
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Medium term

Best-in-class occupiers recognise the
importance of city centre locations and the
symbiotic nature of their physicaland online
channels, and we are working in partnership
todeliver our proposition to this new reality.
Thisintegrated experience is the Hammerson
offering and will continue to attract the very
best occupiers during the ongoing flight to
quality. We are well placed to benefit from
these trends. Rents and rates have been
largely re-based, vacancy is tight, and we have
long term certainty in our lease expiry, and
attractive yields in our managed portfolio,
that offer the potential to deliver attractive
total returns.

Our unique development opportunities provide
adistinctive opportunity to create further value
by bringing a broader mix of uses to the existing
estate through integraland complementary
repurposing and development which will
enhance the proposition of the whole estate.
Meanwhile, we will also create option value

on stand alone projects.

We have a strong platform and over the
medium term we see multiple opportunities
to continue to unlock deep value.




STRATEGIC AND BUSINESS REVIEW

We own city centre flagship destinations and
adjacent land around which we can reshape
entire neighbourhoods. Our strategy
recognises the unique position that we have
inour urban locations and the opportunities
to leverage our experience and capabilities
to create and manage exceptional city centre
destinations that realise value forall our
stakeholders, connects our communities
and delivers a positive impact for generations
tocome.

Ouraimissimple and clear —to charta path
to growth that delivers total returns for
shareholders through consistent execution
against our strategic goals:

— Reinvigorate our assets
— Accelerate development
— Createanagile platform

— Deliverasustainable and resilient
capital structure

Underpinning our strategy is our commitment
to ESG. We refreshed our strategy in the first
half of 2022 to demonstrate our commitment
to Net Zero by 2030 to deliver benefits to our
stakeholders, including comprehensive asset
by asset plans to achieve our commitments.

We have made significant progress towards
allour goals as follows:

Reinvigorate our assets

The quality and location of our assetsis a

key source of competitive advantage for
Hammerson. We have some of the best assets
inthe very best prime city centre catchments
and transportation hubs, and, due to the strong
ties we have inthe communities in which we
operate, supportive local authorities.

There are both nearand medium term
opportunities to grow income through the
repositioning of our assets. For example we
see opportunities to re-purpose department
stores for both retail, experience and multi-use
such as residential or office use which willin
turn benefit the whole destination. Under-
utilised space can also be re-purposed for
alternative uses with new income streams
such as creating new and engaging spaces,
with a greater focus on placemaking and a
fresh approach to marketing and reach into
social media channels, and attracting new
occupiers and services. Our city centre
locations are also attractive focal points for
clickand collect and last mile logistics.

In 2022, it was important to build on the
momentum from the strong performance in
2021 and it was gratifying to see the strategy
inaction with 317 leases signedin 2022,

2% more than 2021 excluding disposals.
Invalue terms, we secured £45m by value
(£25matourshare) up 10% on a like-for-like
basis and our strongest leasing performance
since 2018.

For principal deals, headline rent was 34%
above previous passing rent, equating to
additional passing rent of £5.5m. Net effective
rent deals were 2% above ERV.

We continue to pursue a leasing policy to
diversify our mix, with non-fashionand
services accounting for 32%, and restaurant,
food and social 21%. Best-in-class and
exciting new concepts in fashion remains core
toour offerand demanded by customers,
accounting for the balance, a high proportion
of which were renewals including new
concepts and experiences.

Short term leasing of less than one year
(2022:74 deals) remainsimportant to maintain
vibrancy, trial new concepts, mitigate annual
void costs of £2mand allow time to secure
longer term deals with the best occupier for
agivenunit.

Placemaking not only continues to enliven
space and enhance the experience for
customers and occupiers, but also contributes
meaningfully inits own right. Our resulting
commercialisationincomeisup 13%ona
like-for-like basis. Indeed, as we look forward
toan occupational market with a greater
technological and social mediaintegration
inour spaces, we are moving from a stage

of stabilisation and initial reinvigoration

ofthe assets to one where the focus switches
toagreater emphasis on experience,

more focused and sophisticated marketing
and advertising, and completing our

planned repurposing.

We have continued to engage with major
occupiers ataportfolio level, resetting and
growing key relationships with those we see
as key for the future of our destinations.
Forexample:

— We have re-geared four Apple stores across
the portfolio, bringing in new concepts, with
afurthertwo under discussion

— We have secured new deals, renewals and
expansions with Inditexand H&M, and key
upsizes with IJD Sports

— We have signed two new Nike concepts into
Bullring (Rise) and Dundrum (Live)

— We have secured renewals with key footfall
and income drivers such as Indigoand
Monoprixin Les Terrasses du Port
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We continue to bring other new occupiers and
the newest concepts into the portfolio, such as
Lane 7 bowling at Bullring, Reserved at Brent
Cross, the first Watches of Switzerland in
Ireland at Dundrum, and VR Sandbox on the
Birmingham Estate, driving vibrancy, footfall
and new revenue streams.

Atthe same time, we incubated digitally native
brands into white-boxed and permanent units
across the portfolio, including further openings
for Gym & Coffee inIreland, La Coque
Francaise in our Colab project in France, and
Kick Game taking permanent space at Bullring.

Commercialisation and placemaking often
go hand in hand boosting footfalland revenues
foroccupiers, and enhancing the customer
experience. Itis worth highlightingin particular:

— Pop-ups across the portfolio with key
brands from diverse sub-sectorsincluding:
Barclays, Costa, Polestar, Dyson and Armani

— The Commonwealth Games with events
and pop-ups across the Birmingham Estate
which attracted an estimated television
audience in the hundreds of millionsand
footfall overthe 11 weeks of the games
of1.8m

— Oursupercar weekend in Dundrum
attracting more than 30% additional footfall

— Les Cabanons des Terrasses during the
summerin Marseille

— Ourusualstellar roster of seasonal outdoor
bars and restaurants

We shifted our approach to marketing,
switching agencies and using our spendina
more focused and higher-returning manner,
generating a significantimprovementin
impressions and engagement from our
customers, specifically:

— Agreaterfocus on digital marketing over
traditional channels (75% of spend in Q4),
including trials with TikTok and Snap Chat
forthefirsttime

— Shifting our marketing away from general
brand awareness to leveraging our data to
target more catchment specific marketing

— Bringing awareness of the local offer at
ourassets

— Working with localinfluencers and
celebrities to build and enhance our
brand equity



STRATEGIC REPORT

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT continued

Interms of the repurposing of department
stores, we successfully completed the
repurposing of the former House of Fraser unit
in Dundrum to Brown Thomas and Penneys,
with the backfill of the latter affording the
opportunity to bring Dunnes Stores into
Dundrum for the first time. In the UK, we have
completed the feasibility studies and submitted
aplanning application fora major repurposing
of former retail space, predominantly
department store, at New Street Station,
Birmingham, to create an amenity rich
workspace-led proposal, ‘Drum’, directly
served by the UK’s most connected rail station.

At Bullring, work continues onthe repurposing
ofthe former Debenhams unitand we are
excited to hand over to our new occupiers —
TOCA Socialand Marks & Spencer — later this
year. Moreover, this project kickstarted the
regeneration of this end of the scheme and
underpinned aflurry of leasing demand
in2022.

In Reading, we have worked with the local
councilto submita planning application forthe
major regeneration of the eastern quarter of
The Oracle; to demolish obsolete department
store space, and develop around 450 rental
apartments alongside renewed landscaping
and commercial uses. At the same time, this
will densify the core retail, restaurant, food
and social pitch along the riverside into our
existing scheme.

In France, we completed the 34,000m?
extensionin Les 3 Fontaines, with new units
foraselection of majorinternational brands
including Lego, Lacoste, Rituals, Inditexand
H&M. As part of the broader repositioning of
the asset, we broughtin aflorist, bakery and
improved restaurant and food options to the
adjacent Rue des Galeries, elevating the tone
ofthisimportant thoroughfare into our asset.
We continue to investigate the potential to
complete afinal phase of the redevelopment
and bring ina major new retail offer.

Finally in Dundrum, we have broughtin
alternative uses with the construction of
TheIronworks,a 122 unit residential
development, the first of its kind on the
Dundrum Estate and a major proof of concept
forthe future of the wider Dundrum Estate.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE

Toacknowledge the breadth of the
sustainability agenda, we have realigned

our strategy to Environmental, Socialand
Governance. Interms of the Environmental,
ourcommitment to Net Zero by 2030is
absolute, and we achieved a 12% reduction
in like-for-like emissions in 2022. During the
year we invested in an independent
assessment of our assets to align to the Paris
agreement. We developed detailed asset-level
plans with a clearly defined pathway to Net
Zero, withaninterim stage at 2025, aligned
with the targets for our sustainability-linked
bondissuedin 2021. These plans are fully
costed as part of the Group’s annual business
planning process, with total expenditure over
the period to 2028 of under £40mon the
current asset base. During 2022 we also
delivered arange of projects from EV charging,
upgraded lighting and property management
systemsto PV arrays on our assets.

To match our asset-centric operating model,
we revised our approach to Social witha new
Board-approved strategy that determined that
all social value activities would deliver for our
local communities, acknowledging that each
community in which we operate and support
has diverse and specific needs. During the
year, the Group provided assistance to
colleaguesinresponse to the emerging cost of
living crisis. A salary supplement was awarded
toall colleagues on annual salaries of less than
£/€60,000. The Group has also made
differentiated pay awardsin March 2023
benefitting those in lower salary bands. As well
asrealising savings, the move of the head office
to Marble Arch House aligned with a refresh of
the Group’s values and approach to ways of
working, which was well received by colleagues.

({1

Diversity, Equality and
Inclusionis more than
aboxticking exercise.yy

Rita-Rose Gagné
Chief Executive
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Interms of Governance, we revised our
structures with the ambition to operateina
more diligent way, with all elements of ESG
embedded across the business. A central part
of thisis recognition that Diversity, Equality and
Inclusion is more than a box ticking exercise,
but rather encourages ways of working that
foster better decision-making processes
through inclusion and open dialogue. Valuing
this, itis pleasing to report that our senior-
management sponsored Affinity Groups
continue to attract broad engagement across
the Group. We recognise that evolving and
improving our Governance structures will
remain a focus for Hammerson.

ACCELERATE DEVELOPMENT

Our strategy is to accelerate the development
of the land and opportunities we ownin the
centre of some of Europe’s highest growth and
most exciting cities, particularly inand around
London, Birmingham, Bristoland Dublin.

Overthe last 12 months, we have further
segmented our development opportunities
between those that are integral to our existing
assets such as department store repurposing;
those that are complementary to our existing
destinations and the development of which
will benefit the whole estate; and those that
stand-alone.

Ourimmediate focus has been on progressing
ourintegral opportunities such as The Ironworks
in Dundrum and Grand Central repurposing in
Birmingham. In addition, we have a broad
pipeline of complementary opportunities;
which are projects adjacent orin close
proximity to our existing assets and which have
potential to increase our scale and critical
mass and unlock development returns, as well
as further halo and diversification effect on the
retained estate.

Finally, we own valuable development
opportunities in key cities that are stand-alone
from our current estates, but which have the
strength of location and potential scale to
create critical mass and returns of their own.
Inthe nearterm we remain focused on capital
lightinitiatives to unlock value and generate
optionality to take developments forward,

to potentially bringin relevant partners with
sectoral expertise or aligned capital, or to
seek liquidity and focus on those projects

with the highest returns and impact on our
retained estate.



At Dublin Central, we have received further
planning consents, which endorse our
proposals to regenerate thisimportant site
and have begun discussions with potential
operators and occupiers as part of plans to
commence the first phases of development.
We have also continued to work with Transport
for Ireland tointegrate a new metro station
within the site.

At Martineau Galleries, part of the wider
Birmingham Estate, we have continued to
work with Birmingham City Counciland the
West Midlands Combined Authority to finalise
details forthe scheme and prepare for the
first phases of demolition and development
adjacent to the new Curzon Street HS2 station
and the new tram connections.

AtBrent Cross, we are working with the London
Borough of Barnet to develop a holistic brief for
long term regeneration, whichincludes in the
short term reactivating the surrounding land
forcomplementary uses that support the asset
and local customer and will integrate with local
infrastructure and the development of Brent
Cross Town.

In Dundrum Phase II, we have submitted a
planning application for nearly 900 residential
apartments alongside other new town centre
uses and transport connections.

In Bristol, we have been engaged with the City
Councilas they develop their post Covid city
centre development strategy and we have
started to explore the potential uses and
phasing of development on our land holdings,
potentially toinclude residential, student,
office and life science uses alongside
additional customer facing city centre uses.

Turning to our stand alone projects, in the UK
we signed the s106 agreement for Bishopsgate
Goodsyard, which has allowed us to commence
the next stages of design, enabling and
marketing for this development working with
our partner Ballymore to set up the project
managementand delivery. In Leeds we are
progressing the master planning process for
ourremaining c.10 acres of land and
considering our next steps.

CREATE AN AGILE PLATFORM

Improvingand right sizing our platform, and
creating more agile, responsive and efficient
ways of working remains a priority. We took
early actionin 2021 and in the first half of
2022, shifting from a top-heavy, geographically
oriented and siloed organisationtoa
simplified, asset-centric operating model.

Asaresult, we achieved a 17% year-on-year
reduction in gross administration costs in
2022, achievingourinitial target ofa 15-20%
reduction by 2023.

We have taken further steps including more
efficient ways of working, increasing speed of
leasing, collections and prompt payments to
our suppliers, and the consolidation of our
property management suppliersinthe UK,
which formally started in February 2023. At
the same time, we continue toimplement
more integrated, connected, and automated
systems to drive further efficiency.

Necessarily, the actions we have taken over the
last two years have resulted in a reduction of
headcount, down 42% since 2019, and 25%
year-on-year. We have not beenimmune to the
challenges of navigating hybrid working, the
‘Great Resign’and pressures fromanincrease
in cost of living, and indeed we saw higher
voluntary colleague turnover during the year.
We continue toinvest inand promote key
talent for the future, however, most notably this
yearin leasing, asset management, ESG and
placemaking and marketing. Overall, we are
targeting afurther 20% reductionin gross
administration costs by the end of 2024.

We have also made some progress in
simplifying our asset structures. For example,
we were delighted to expand our partnership
in Birmingham with CPPIB, forming a new
50/50joint venture at Bullring in the second
half of the year, following their acquisition of
Nuveen’s one third stake. There is more to do.

DELIVER ASUSTAINABLE AND RESILIENT
CAPITALSTRUCTURE

We have continued to re-align our portfolio
through a disciplined programme of disposals
of non-core assets, re-focusing the Group on
acore portfolio of prime city centre estates,
reducing indebtedness and generating
capital for redeployment into core assets

and developments.

Generating total gross proceeds of £195m,
we completed the sale of Victoriafor £120m
and our 50% share of Silverburn for £70m,
plus other non-core land. Net debt reduced by
4%to £1.7bn. The Group remains committed
tototal disposal proceeds of c.£500m over
2022 and 2023. Ourtrack record of executing
£628m of salesinthelasttwoyearsin
challenging conditions and the attractiveness
of ourassets gives us confidence we will
deliverthistarget.
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Cabot Circus,
Bristol

We refinanced £820m of expiring RCFsin late
Aprilintoanew £463m facilityona 3+1+1
maturity with a smaller group of banks reducing
cost. In December, we redeemed the remaining
€236m ofthe 2023 eurobond at par.

Inaddition, we completed the triennial review
ofthe defined benefit pension plan and moved
toafull buy-in basis completed on 9 December
2022 with £nil contribution from the Company,
af£2msurplus, and the reduction of the
£120m Hammerson plc guarantee, to £10m.

We remain committed to an IG credit rating.
Tam pleased to report that Fitch reaffirmed
ourratingand revised our outlook to stable in
May, as did Moody’s also with a stable outlook
in December.

At 31 December 2022, the Group had liquidity
of £1.0bnin the form of cash balances
(£0.3bn) and undrawn committed RCFs of
£0.7bn, and had no significant unsecured
refinancing requirements until 2025 not
covered by existing cash.

CONCLUSION

As evidenced above, a significant amount of
change has taken place over the last two years,
but there is more to do. Delivering that change
whilst progressing our strategic, operational
and financial KPIs against a challenging
backdropis atestamentto the strength of the
management team, the Board and the support
of all our stakeholders.Iamsincerely grateful.

Inearly January, we moved to a new head
officein Marble Arch, marking areset. Itisa
more efficient and collaborative space, and
more reflective of who we are today. We are
well positioned to continue to deliveranother
year of progress, and more agile to tackle
challenges and capture opportunities that
times like these offer.

Rita-Rose Gagné
Chief Executive
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Market Overview

ECONOMY CONSUMER

Hammerson is well placed in affluent
cities with young, fast-growing
populations. These cities are all major
nationaland international transport
hubs with leading universities.

Fast growing cities
AllHammerson development
locations are expected to see their
GDP grow by ¢.15% in the next
decade, with London, Dublin and
Reading set to grow their GDP

by c.20%.

London, Dublin, Bristol, Birmingham
and Southampton are expected to
see large population growth by 2032:
London 8%, Dublin 7% and 5% for

Bristol, Birmingham and Southampton.

Bristol, Birmingham and
Southampton all have more than
50% of their population under

34 yearsold, with all our other cities
over40%.

London, Paris and Dublin are the top
3 major cities forinward investment
in Europe, with Bristoland Reading
featuring as leading small towns and
cities for attracting inward
investment.

We continue to benefit from major
infrastructure and inward investment
projects into cities:

— Birmingham: HS2
— Marseille: Medusa Project
(superfast data interconnection)

— Bristol: Brabazon Park
Neighbourhood

— Dublin: City Edge urban expansion

Allourassets are graded B+and
above by the investment market. The
Bullring, Dundrumand Les Terrasses
du Port being notable as A+ centres.

Ourflagship destinations are easily
accessible to 25m people.

People are visiting city centres fora multitude of reasons including business, leisure, shopping and socialising.
We are well positioned to capitalise on the following trends:

Flexibility

Consumers are increasingly looking for a convenient and frictionless experience as the lines between work, life and

leisure become blurred:

— 72% of office workers anticipate their future being hybrid. Workers are now visiting the office less frequently but
use the space for collaboration and will combine a visit with social activities. When workers do come to the office,
spendisupby15%vs. pre Covid-19*

— 64% of shoppers say they enjoy hybrid shopping, where they can buy products online as well as instore?

— F&Band leisure is becominga larger part of discretionary spend as people prioritise socialising and experiences
over owning things —accounting for 15% of monthly spend in late 20223

— Flexible rentingisincreasingly popularas young professionals follow a digitally nomadic career path, with the
number of completed BTR units tripling over the last five years and 50% of GenZ planning to move in the next
two years*

Connectivity and Hybrid
Office, retail, hospitality and residential formats are all evolving in line with changing consumer demands and
technologicalinnovations:

— Offices are blending with social spaces (WeWork, Greenspace), Retail is blending with leisure (Southside),
Hospitality is blending with meeting spaces (Brewdog), and Residential is blending with lifestyle & wellness
(Quintain)

— City centres bring together people and the latest technology to create smart, seamless and more sustainable
environmentse.g. 5Gand HS2

ESG
Energy generation and sustainable building practices will become more important as we strive towards net zero.
Occupiers willwant to be in locations that reflect their ethics and help them meet their ESG targets:

— 65% of occupiers say that demand for sustainable buildings has risen since 2021°
— Globally, 34% of occupiers have green leases, with a further 40% planning to sign by 2025°¢
— 64% of consumers are more likely post-pandemic to choose a brand based on their ethics and sustainability*

— 61% of people consider travel, sustainability and environmental factors when shopping, and two thirds of people
are likely to seek local brands*

— 60% of GenZ say using independent shops and restaurants makes them feel part of their community”

Convenience and Logistics
By 2020, up to 50% of clothing bought online was being returned, costing businesses around £7bn every year®.
Asaresult, brands like Zara, Uniglo and Next now all charge for online returns, unless a customer returns to a store.

Robots and drones are set to improve logistics and operations. The European delivery robot market is estimated
to grow more than 20% CAGR from 2023 t0 2032°.

Leisure and Wellness

Leisure spend continues to grow as we move to prioritising physical and mental wellbeing. 59% of people in Britain

agree that a leisure activity helps them escape from their daily routine™®.

— Retailenvironments have animportant role to play in the discovery and advice around wellness products
(health, fitness, sleep, appearance, nutrition, mindfulness)

— Thewellnessindustry s currently growing at c.5-10% p.a. 79% of people believe that wellness isimportant,
and 42% consider it atop priority**

— When purchasing a product or a service 66% of consumers are influenced by how a product or service impacts
their health and wellbeing, more so than ease and affordability*?

— Over40% of consumers feel they become more loyal to brands after attending their events and experiences®

— Over450,000m? has been lost from department stores since 2017 in the UK?, creating opportunities for
repurposing towards leisure and wellness

Sources:
Oxford Economics, GreenStreet
Properties Mall rankings 2022

Sources:
1 CACI, % BazaarVoice, * Savills, * Knight Frank, ° RICS, ¢ JLL, ” The Property Marketing Strategists
8KPMG, ? Yahoo Finance, *° Mintel, **McKinsey, *2 Global Data, ** Event Track
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REAL ESTATE MARKET

General

Asset prices are expected to stabilise in 2023, inflation and interest
rates are forecast to ease helping to drive investment into the
market. Economically, low unemployment with corporate lending
remaining disciplined should also support investment.

Bullring,
Birmingham

Assets in prime locations, with strong ESG credentials will continue
to be the most attractive with the best retail locations also
benefiting from this flight to quality. Increased investor demand
combined with easier lending against prime assets mean that the
spread between prime and secondary yields is likely toincrease,
with secondary assets potentially repricing to levels which become
economical to be upgraded or converted.

Clear long term megatrends around ESG, demographics and
technology should mean investors stay focused

UK

Inthe short term emerging sectors with strong demand such as
studentaccommodation, residential build to rent, life sciences,
healthcare and data centres are expected to perform strongly.
The UK real estate outlook is underpinned by currency benefits,
relatively attractive yields and its safe haven reputation.

France Dundrum Estate,
The French market is expected to remain resilient especially in the Dublin
Paris region. A combination of relative economic stability and a

strong domestic investor base who understand the market well
means that France enjoys a stable real-estate market.

Ireland
Ireland’s position as a global corporate headquarters means that
strong demand remains for prime office, industrial and residential.

Technology driving efficiency
Digital transformation of the property industry —top proptech
trends for the next year:

— Real-time, granular data easily accessed by owners and
occupiers through Internet of Things

— ESG practices: sensors to monitor air quality, auto-dim lights,
energy-usage monitoring
— Predictive maintenance: intelligent buildings that can use
datatoimprove energy efficiency, detect water leaks and
improve security
Cabot Circus,
Bristol

Sources:
JLL, Knight Frank, CBRE
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Our Business Model

Our purpose

We create outstanding experiences

in unique city locations.

Inputs

Expertise in asset management,
placemaking, investment, and
development through our people
and platform

Our unique assets are situated in some of
the largest city centres in the UK, France
andIreland

Attract and delight high footfall across
affluent, growing urban catchments

Support and protect our local
communities and our planet

Strong and diverse customer base with
some of Europe’s largest brands

Deep understanding of our occupiers and
what they need to succeed

Access to a broad range of capital providers
Unique development opportunities with

value creation opportunities in enviable
city centre locations

How we create value

Optimising use of space
by delivering exceptional
placemaking, tenant
line up and integral
repurposing projects

Disposal of
non-core assets for
reinvesting in highest
return opportunities

Bringing new uses and
revenue streams through
developments which
3 also enhance overall
estate quality

Unlocking the value of our
stand-alone development
opportunities through
underwriting
and de-risking




Our output

Growing top line
Cost management
Increased underlying earnings
High cash conversion

De-risking
Underwriting
Unlocking value
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The value we create for our stakeholders

We deliver best-in-class destinations through vibrant and
exciting placemaking and industry leading data and analytics
that attract high footfall and allows our occupiers to be successful

We create outstanding experiences in unique city locations
that exceed the changing needs of our customers

We promote an environment where colleagues can realise their
full potential

We create better places for our communities in which we
operate through improved infrastructure, sustainable buildings,
exemplary placemaking, local employment and events

We create partnerships with our debt investors, suppliers,
local authorities and communities based on collaboration where
each partner benefits from the relationship

We aim to generate attractive returns for our investors over
the long term. We ensure a sustainable capital structure,
maintaining our investment grade credit rating

19
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OURSTRATEGY AND KPIS

Our Strategy and KPIs

Our clearly defined strategy is focused
ondelivering a path to growth, from
repositioning our assets, delivering
exceptional placemaking and unlocking
value by accelerating development.

Ourstrategy is executed through a strong set
of values, clear KPIs and accountability, an
optimised asset-centric operating model and
talented people, with a clear commitment to
grow in the right way for our communities and
our planet. We will continue to invest in our
digital capabilities to leverage technology to
predict and meet the business needs for now

andthefuture. Creage
: : an agile
Overthe longterm, with disciplined execution, platform

we can unlock value by accelerating
development opportunities within our portfolio.
This will drive sustained growth in cash flows
and total returns, which can be crystallised and
reinvested in our business, starting the cycle
again. This canonly be delivered through an
agile, collaborative, high performance culture
that retains and attracts the best people and
embraces opportunities to positively impact
the communities in which we operate.

4e,
Cel Crate deve\O\"“

R




PILLAR

®

Reinvigorate
our assets

2022 HIGHLIGHTS

Adjusted earnings increased by 60% to £105m

— Improved occupancy across portfolio (UK 96%, France 96%,

Ireland 98%)

— Sustained footfall recovery to around 90% of 2019 levels

Collection rates back to 95%

Leasing highlights:

— Strong leasing volumes with 317 deals signed
— £25.4m leasing by value (at our share)

— Improved mixthrough leasing with 53% of 2022 leases
non-fashion

— Revised leasing policy and delegation of authority and
simplified leasing process

— Secured key occupiers with portfolio deals e.g. Watches of
Switzerland, H&M and Apple

— Introduced new brands e.g. signed leisure operators Lane 7
at Birmingham Estate, signed new Rise Nike concept into
Bullring, Reserved at Brent Cross and EL&N at Bullring

— Secured key tenantse.g. Zara at Westquay, H&M at
Cabot Circus

— Launched partnership with SOOK in Westquay and
Bullring providing a turnkey flexible pop-up space to bring
innew brands

Redevelopmentand repurposing:

— Department store repurposing e.g. Penneys, Brown Thomas
and Dunnes in Dundrum

— Progressed big box repurposing e.g. final stages of works to
bring M&S and TOCA into former Debenhams in Bullring

— Completed recladding works of external fascia of Selfridges at
Bullring, and Eclipse at Cabot Circus

— Majorextension of Les 3 Fontaines opened in March, creating
amulti-use destinationin the heart of Cergy

— Engaged with architects to develop Quakers Friars in Bristol
intoan exciting F&B led quarter

Sustainability:

— Progressed projects in line with our corporate ESG agenda
e.g. LED lightinstallation at Brent Cross car park, EV charging
inBullring

— NetZeroPlans developed forall destinations and integrated
intothe 2023 business plans to transition to Net Zero by 2030

— Trialled ESGinnovations toimprove operational and energy
efficiency through building management software

— Retained EPRA Gold Standard

— Community engagement activity at all assets engaging 8,641
individuals through a range of projects and initiatives

— Cross portfolio partnerships with charities and organisations
such as LandAid, Crisis, Mind and Movember

Placemaking;

— Curated new content, working with influencers and celebrities
to build brand equity. Launched channels on TikTok and
Snapchat for the first time.

— Elevated events programme e.g. Official provider for
Birmingham 2022 Commonwealth games, Skate Park
and Jobs Fairat Cabot Circus, Supercar event at Dundrum,
Ice Rink at Westquay
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2023+ FOCUS

Shift focus from stabilisation and reinvigoration to
placemaking and repurposing

High leasing momentum to further reduce low vacancy
levels, renew key occupiers and bring in new and

relevant brands

Continue to attract and develop new occupiers through
long term deals and pop-ups

Complete repurposing of former Debenhams unitin
Bullring with M&S and opening of new leisure offer TOCA
Further leverage SOOK partnership to bringin new brands
Monetising previously non-income generating space

e.g. Garden Centre and Tesla customer collection hubin
Brent Cross

Furtherimprovements to Brent Cross placemaking via
landscaping projects

Deliver calendar of super events to delight visitors and
leverage partnerships

Deliver Net Zero Asset Plans to contribute to energy
reduction and continue our transition to Net Zero by 2030
New revenue streams from use of dataand innovation
Build on social value programme to deliver initiatives
which support the local communities in which we operate
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OURSTRATEGY AND KPIS continued

PILLARS 2022 PROGRESS 2023 PRIORITIES
@ — Repurposing: — Planning permission to transform Grand Centralinto

— Completed feasibility studies and developed plans for major Drum’, an amenity rich, workplace led proposal, directly
Accelerate repurposingat Grand Central served by the UK’s most connected rail station submitted
development — Submitted planning application for the major regeneration of January 2023

The Oracle in Reading including 449 rental apartments and
8,700 m? of reconfigured retail, entertainment and workspace

— Construction started on The Ironworks, Dundrum, with 122
homes, co-working space and on site gym

— Successful opening of Les 3 Fontaines (Phase II) extension
inMarch 2022

Land promotion:

— Planning applications approved and further planning
applications submitted as part of 5.5 acre regeneration
oflandmark O’Connell Street site in Dublin Central

— Planning application submitted for c.900 homes, public
square, retail, F&B and creche at Dundrum Village across
6 acresite

— Marketengagement process for 1,100 + homes for Leeds
Eastgate launched in September

— Bishopsgate Goodsyard section 106 agreement, which
enabled next stages of design, enabling and marketing

Progress integral opportunities through residential
developments in Reading and The Ironworks in Dundrum

Bishopsgate Goodsyard progressing design, enabling
works and marketing, working with our partner Ballymore

Discuss with potential operators and occupiers as part of
plans tocommence the first phases of development at
Dublin Central

With planning consent obtained will continue working
closely with all partners to deliver aworld class
commercial and residential district to enhance the

city centre at Martineau Galleries

Continue to assess the potential for the final phase

of redevelopment at Les 3 Fontaines

Working with the local councilto develop along term
holistic regeneration at Brent Cross which willintegrate
with the development of Brent Cross village

Progress master planning process for c.10 acres of land
in Leeds city centre

®

Createan
agile platform

Investment in people management, development and talent
attraction

Simplified property management supply chain into consolidation
of suppliers

Increased colleague engagement with GEC sponsored affinity
groups established to support diversity and inclusion

New asset-centric team structures and authorities, combined
with better use of dataand analytics

Delivered 17% cost reduction year-on-year since 2019 and
have taken further steps that will provide further efficiency gains
in2023

Brought in new talent, teams, ways of working, with focus on
placemaking and marketing, asset management and leasing

New Chief People Officer appointed in February
New General Counseland Company Secretary appointed in May

IT Transformation programme provided foundational support
to business transformation delivery

Delivered ‘Cloud First’ initiatives to support future enterprise
integrations with speed and agility

Targetingafurther 20% reduction in gross admin costs
by 2024

Drive further efficiencies through supplier consolidation
with more integrated, connected and automated systems

Deliver evolutionary IT projects to help achieve agile,
efficientand more sustainable platforms, which enables
further simplification of processes and increased leverage
oftechnology to predict and meet the business needs for
now and the future

Focus on further investmentin retaining and bringing in
new skills and talent
Encourage innovative, fail fast mindset

New Diversity, Inclusion and Engagement manger role
to support the ongoing focus on colleagues e.g. through
affinity groups activities and partnerships

®

Delivera
sustainable

and resilient
capital structure

Net debt reduced by £67m

IG Credit Rating reaffirmed —Moody’s outlook improved from
negative to stable in February 2022 and review updated in
December 2022, Fitch outlook improved from negative to stable
inMay 2022

£628m disposals of non- core assets and French minority
interests exchanged or contracted since start of 2021,
strengthening the balance sheet with £195m completedin 2022
Balance of disposals (£300m targeted by the end of 2023) for
debt reduction and new investment

Atotal of £820m maturing RCFs, maturingin 2023 and 2024,
refinanced with a new £463m RCF maturing 2025 (3+1+1 year),
resultingininterest cost savings of £0.8m p.a.

Atotal equivalent of £149m RCFs extended by one year toa new
maturity date in 2025

Redeemed remaining €236m bond maturing 2023 and repaid
£42m of private placement notes

No significant unsecured maturities until 2025 not covered by
existing cash

Deployed capital into the existing portfolio — repositioning,
consolidating, accelerating development —to balance earnings
and NTAdilution from disposals

Progress disposals plan targeting c.£300m by the end
of 2023 toreduce debtand reinvest

Start to deploy capitalinto the existing portfolio —
repositioning, consolidating, accelerating development
—tobalance earnings and NTA dilution from disposals

Extend RCFs to a new maturity in 2026
Retain IG Credit Rating

Following clearance of SIIC obligations, Board anticipates
returning to cash dividendin 2023

Prioritised capitalinvestment into key high return
development projects



@ Linked toRemuneration

® Reinvigorate ourassets

® Accelerate development

® Createanagile platform

® Deliverasustainable and resilient capital structure
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Adjustedearningst tm @@ @@

2021 5.5
2022 104.9

T 2021 and 2020 figures have been restated to reflect the IFRIC Decision on Concessions
with further information provided in notes 1B and 6 to the financial statements.

Calculation as set outin note 10A to the financial statements.

Netdebtt £m @@

2020 2,215.4
2021 1,798.8
2022 1,732.1

T 2021 and 2020 figures have been restated to reflect the IFRIC Decision on Deposits
with further information provided in note 16 to the financial statements and Tables 13
and 14 of the Additionalinformation.

Defined as the Group’s borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.

Total propertyreturnt % @@

2020 | fefE

2021 -3.9
2022

-0.7 ||

T 2021 and 2020 figures have been restated to reflect the IFRIC Decision on Concessions
with further information provided in notes 1B and 6 to the financial statements.

Calculated ona monthly time-weighted basis consistent with MSCI methodology.

EPRANTA pershare pence @@ Q@@

Calculation as setoutin note 10B to the financial statements.

Passingrent £m (D

2020
2021
2022

214.8
210.3

T 2021 and 2020 figures have been restated to reflect the IFRIC Decision on Concessions
with further information provided in notes 1B and 6 to the financial statements. Further
detail can be found in Table 2 of the Additional information.

Leasingactivity tm (@

Income secured across the flagship portfolio, including new lettings and lease renewals.

Global emissions kgCO,e/Common Parts Area (R]O)

381
40.0
37.9

2020

2021
2022

Figures for common parts area of the flagship portfolio (which generates the majority
ofthe Group’s emissions).

Like-for-like footfall % @@ Q@

New KPI introduced in 2022 reflecting continued focus as the Group
emerges from the Covid-19 pandemic

2021 -37

Adjusted for new and closed stores. All three years use 2019 as base data to exclude
Covid-19 effects.

Voluntary colleague turnover % @
2020

2021
2022

Number of colleagues who have left the business voluntarily, taken as a percentage of the
number of employees at the beginning of the year.
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Our Colleagues

At 31 December 2022, we employed 320
colleagues across the Group. 196 were
basedinthe UK, 28 inIreland, and 96in
France. Thisis a 25% reduction in colleague
numbers from 2021.

Creating an agile platform

Following the holistic organisational review
whichtook placein 2021, the Group’s
structure continued to evolve over the course
of 2022, embedding the asset-centric
operating model. The priority has beento
simplify the business, enabling colleagues
tofocus ontwo key objectives:

— Stabilising the core income stream and
returning it to underlying growth

— Startingtorebuild value in our existing
portfolio while also creating optionality on
how we unlock the substantial value in our
development pipeline

As part of the changes, overall headcount
reduced by 106 roles (25%) in 2022,
contributingtoa 17% year on year reduction
in gross administration costs.

Talent acquisition and management

The effects of Covid-19 continued to impact
the employment landscape as companies
navigated hybrid working, the ‘Great Resign’,
and pressures resulting fromanincrease in the
cost of living. While we were notimmune to
these challenges, and indeed saw anincrease
involuntary turnover, the Group was able to
successfully recruit, retain and promote top
talentin key value creation areas, e.g. asset
management, leasing, placemaking and ESG.

By prioritising talent management across the
business, we have been able to better leverage
the expertise of individuals across the Group
todeliverimproved results for stakeholders.

Performance management

The operational and financial progress made
in 2022 is underpinned by the increased
priority and focus given to effective people
management. The stretching targets set by
the Board for 2022 were translated intoa full
cascade of team and personal goals for
individuals. These were monitored during the
year with formal personal reviews undertaken
at both the mid and full year. This is reinforced
through animproved and expanded internal
communications rhythm and routine which
engages colleagues in the business strategy
and the role they play in delivering this.

Diversity, Equality & Inclusion (DE&I)

The most successful businesses from both
acolleague and value creation perspective are
those that champion diversity. It can deliver
greatinnovation, afardeeperunderstanding
of customers, and colleagues develop a more
varied range of skills and outlooks as a result.
Continuing on ourjourney to shape a more
diverse and inclusive culture at Hammerson
isa priority for both the Group Executive
Committee (GEC) and the Board. We are
committed to accelerating progress in this
important areaand our work overthe past 12
months continues to shape our colleague and
DE&I strategy.

Since theirformation, our four colleague-led
Affinity Groups: LGBTQ+, Race & Ethnicity,
Women, and Wellbeing have made great
stridesin raising awareness, creating
conversations and highlighting educational
resources, sharing personal stories and
support around these important topics.
Events during 2022 organised by the groups
were focused onincreasing awareness and
understanding of the unique challenges faced
by our diverse colleague base. These included
events focused on Resilience, Mental Health
and Wellbeing, Men’s Mental Health, Pride and
the LGBTQ+ community, Black History Month,
and Diwali.

A GEC member sponsors each Affinity Group
todrive further momentum and action on
matters of importance to our colleagues,
partners and communities.

We continue to welcome and fully consider
allemployment applications irrespective of
gender, race, ethnicity, religion, age, sexual
orientation or disability. Support also exists for
colleagues who become disabled to continue
in theiremployment or to be retrained for other
suitable roles. Training, career development
and promotion opportunities are equally
applied forall ouremployees, regardless

of disability.
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Colleague support

Inresponse to the emerging cost of living
crisis, in late 2022 the Group provided
assistance to colleagues across the Group on
annual salaries less than £/€60,000 through
the award of a salary supplement. The Group
has also made differentiated pay awards

in March 2023 benefitting those in lower
salary bands.

Gender representation

The gender representation across the Group
asat 31 December 2022 was 160 (50.0%)
female (2021:52.3%) and 160 (50.0%) male
(2021:47.7%).

Asat 31 December 2022, gender
representation at senior manager level as
defined inthe Companies Act 2006 (being,
for this purpose, the GEC excluding Executive
Directors) was 1 (16.7%) female (2021
20.0%)t05 (83.3%) male (2021:80.0%).
Information relating to the Board’s diversity
and the gender diversity of those at senior
management leveland their direct reports
as defined by the UK Corporate Governance
Code can be found on page 75.

Gender pay reporting

As an organisation we are clear on our
commitment to all aspects of equality and fair
pay, and reward is a key element of this. For
many years we have undertaken aninternal
pay audit to ensure that our reward practices
are fairtoall colleagues, particularly those
undertaking like-for-like work.

Theresults of our 2022 audit continued to
demonstrate the fair reward practicesin place,
with areductionin our gender pay gap for the
fourth yearinarow. With regard to our UK
Gender Pay Gap, the table below shows the
latest data. The mean hourly pay has reduced,
demonstrating progress has been made.
Whilst the downward trend is encouraging,
the gap remains high and we continue to

take positive steps to ensure that we further
improve female representation in our more
highly paid, senior management roles
overtime.

2020 2021 2022
Difference in mean hourly rate of pay 35.7% 34.9% 31.8%
Difference in median hourly rate of pay 31.4% 34.7% 29.9%
Difference in mean bonus pay 60.0% 38.6% 44.2%
Difference in median bonus pay 47.7% 50.1% 46.1%
Proportion of male colleagues who received bonus pay 90.1% 87.1% 92.5%
Proportion of female colleagues who received bonus pay 87.3% 91.3% 95.9%




ESG
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Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)

Carbon emissions (LFL YoY change)
(Scope 1 and 2 proportionally consolidated)

-12%

2021: +11%

Flagship destinations with NZAPs

100%

2021: 0%

Socialvalue investment

£2.7m

2021: £2.0m
Benchmarks

GRESB 3 stars/Score 75
MSCI AA
ISSESG C+
Sustainalytics Low risk

ESG underpins the Group’s strategy and we
are pleased with the progress made in this
important area during 2022 as we continue
on our pathway to being Net Zero by 2030.

Becoming Net Zero

In 2022 we reviewed and reaffirmed our target

tobe Net Zero by 2030, revising our strategy

tofocus on how we will achieve this goal, and
more closely linking our strategic goals to our
approach formanaging climate risk.

We continue to focus on energy reduction,
trying not to decouple energy and carbon.
Energy useis the greatest operational impact
we have, and by ensuring we keep our sights
on this we can better engage our onsite teams
and suppliers to operate as efficiently as
possible. This focus is demonstrated on our
Net Zero Pathway Hierarchy shown below

which ensures we are targeting true reductions
inimpacts, including the use of both onsite and

offsite renewables with true additionality. This
demonstrates our intention of taking steps to
avoid just reflecting improvements made from
grid decarbonisation and also to use offset as
asolution tothe climate crisis.

Ourkey achievement in 2022 was to produce
Net Zero Asset Plans (NZAPs) for all our
flagship assets. By targeting Scope 1 and 2
emissions, these plans provide a clear pathway
toachieving the Group targets of being Net
Zeroby 2030and also those embedded in our
Sustainability Linked Bond (SLB) in 2025.

The NZAPs contain multiple projects at each
asset overthe period to 2028. Each project
has a specific forecast emissions reduction
and the totalimplementation costis c.£40m,
aproportion of which will be funded from
service charges. Also with aview to the future
we revised our leasing policy, development
standards and tenant fit out guides. These
governance changes ensure both usand our
tenants are continuously challenged to do
better than before to drive down emissions.

Net Zero Pathway Hierarchy

Improve controls and invest
inenergy efficiency

Onsite renewables

Offsite
renewables

Understanding materialimpacts

In 2022 we undertook our three-yearly
materiality review, engaging with debt and
equity investors, and also key brand and joint
venture partners. Our SLB target ofa 50%
reduction in Scope 3 GHG emissions has been
welcomed by stakeholders who have
increasing expectations on this topic. We have
identified opportunities with a number of key
brand partners to collaborate to reduce these
emissions and hope to drive positive change
across the sector through our initiatives.

We participate in all benchmarks identified

by our stakeholders as key to their decision
making and continue to evolve our approach
toreporting, with adrive for transparency
when providinginformation to all stakeholders.
We rank as one of the top property companies
inISS ESG withascore of C+.In 2022, we
maintained our AA rating from MSCI and low
risk rating by Sustainalytics. After maintaining
GRESB 4 stars fora number of years, we were
disappointed to see our score drop to 3 stars.
Onreview, this was in the most part driven by
shortcomings in our submission. We have
made a number of changes to address this
issue and are therefore targetingareturn to
a4 starranking this year.

Managing climate risk

We continue to stay focused on identifying and
responding to both the risks and opportunities
that climate change presents. In response to
our climate risk work, ESG responsibilities
have been taken furtherintoall areas of the
business, with reporting now linked into our
asset management, leasing, insights,
placemaking and marketing teams. We are
also exploring internal carbon pricing as a way
to both drive down the carbon attached to our
developments and to direct fundinginto
carbon and energy reduction activities.

Delivering social value

Alongside carbon reduction, delivering social
value is our second key ESG strategic goal.
Ourapproach hereis also asset, and therefore,
community centric. We aimto respond to
local needs and build relationships at botha
national and local level to achieve our material
social objectives of:

— Building skillsand employment
— Supporting health and wellbeing
— Developing young people

— Encouraging and supporting local
investment and enterprise
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ENVIRONMENT

Carbon emissions (Scope 1 and 2)
(intCO.e)

Global emissions intensity, kgCO,e/m?
(Scope 1,2 and 3,100% basis)

37.9

2021:40.0

Operational waste recycled
(Proportionally consolidated)

70%

2021:63%

Water consumption (LFL YoY change)
(Proportionally consolidated)

+30%

2021: +8%

% of UK portfolio with F and G EPC ratings

2%

2021:12%

Biodiversity

Reducing carbon emissions

In 2022 we continued to reduce our carbon
emissions, which for Scope 1 and 2 emissions
ona proportionally consolidated basis, were
8,070tCO,e,a12% reduction onallike-for-like
portfolio basis. Our GHG emissions, shown

on the next page and calculated ona100%
basis, including Scope 3 emissions, were
15,642tC0,e (2021:18,195tCO,e). These
reductions are consistent with our pathway to
being Net Zero by 2030. We are also actively
pursuing opportunities for onsite and offsite
renewables which are another key step
towards achieving this target.

Renewing focus on energy reduction
Recognising that energy use is our greatest
operationalimpact, we have renewed our
focus on energy reduction. This allows usto
better engage those operating our assets

to be as efficient as possible and support the
delivery of energy saving initiatives. This
approachalsoensures we are seeingatrue
reduction inimpacts, and not just reflecting
reductions made from grid decarbonisation.

In 2022, we undertook a number of projects
to reduce our operational footprint. These
included a new Al system for our Brent Cross
car park lighting which addresses safety needs
alongside an expected 40% energy saving.
We also extended our Grid Edge Al partnership.
This willincrease the data we receive and the
learning capability of the existing system at
Bullring and Grand Centraland introduce the
technology at Dundrum Town Centre. We also
continue to targetimproved EPC ratings and
only 2% of units at our UK assets have F or G
ratings compared with 12%in 2021.

Net Zero Asset Plans (NZAPs)

In 2022 we undertook a deep dive into how
our Net Zero ambitions could be delivered on
anasset by asset basis. We have developed
NZAPs for all our flagship assets. These factor
inthe lifecycle and needs of both the property
and the community, and use climate change
risks and opportunities as the foundation for
addressing wider carbon scopes.

Together with Reading Abbey Quarter Business Improvement District and the Canal and River
Trust, The Oracle team planted a series of floating beds along the Kennet Canal. The 94m? of
bedding were quickly established with 1,300 reeds, sedges and other flowering plants, planted
into ‘Biomatrix’, a 100% recyclable, non-toxic material. The newly installed beds lay a short

distance from the Delphi Bridge, outside the restaurants and bars at The Oracle Riverside. The
onsite team enlisted the help of 31 students from Redlands Primary School to assist with planting,
and the project linked extremely well into their national curriculum learning on photosynthesis.
The floating beds will soon be attracting birds and insects, provide wonderful shelter for fish and
other species in the canal, and will greatly enhance the wider Reading River network.

We have used the creation of these plans to
grow our knowledge of how the regulatory
landscape is changing and how we can best
respond. For example, our Dundrum Town
Centre planidentifies and addresses needs
as perthe incoming EU taxonomy regulations,
andin France we are able to ensure our assets
can meet more demanding energy legislation.

Tackling Scope 3 emissions

Our materiality review demonstrated a
significant increase in expectations around
Scope 3 emissions and the need for solid plans
toreduce these. Our stakeholders have also
highlighted the need for industry leaders to
build solid examples of how to tackle these
emissions. Through our stretching Scope 3
SLB 50% reduction target we have already
shown ourcommitment to driving down our
emissions.In 2022 we launched an engagement
campaign to reach out to our key brand
partners to collaborate to tackle Scope 3
emissions such as travel to our destinations
and tenant sourced/managed goods.

Reducing water and waste impacts

We remain committed to reducing our
water use and diverting waste from landfill.
For 2022 we increased our recyclingto 70%
of operational waste while our water
consumption rose by 30%, largely due to
increased footfall across the portfolio. We
continue toimprove our ability to monitor
water use and implement projects to reduce
usage, and during 2022 we installed smart
flow metering at Dundrum Town Centre. We
established anew waste contract with Mitie,
with aview to revising our national waste
strategy in 2023, particularly concerning the
management of food waste at our assets.

Progressive development standards

As part of our revised ESG strategy we updated
our development standards to ensure they
coverallthree ESG pillars. We have also

begun to explore internal carbon pricing as
amechanism for driving down emissions at
ourdevelopments and as away to ring-fence
funding for carbon reduction projects.
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OURREPORTING

Voluntary non-financial data

Our ESG reporting complies with both GRI
Core Standards and the EPRA Sustainability
Best Practice Reporting Gold Standard. Key
metrics reported underthese standards are
included in our non-financial disclosures in our
separate 2022 ESG Report and Databook
available on the Group’s website
www.hammerson.com. Section 1 of the
Databook contains our basis of reporting. The
2022 ESGreportalso discusses ourapproach
to ESG, our performance, and shares examples
of our delivery model during the year.

Mandatory Greenhouse Gas data

Inline with requirements set outinthe
Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report) Regulations 2013, and in
accordance with the Streamlined Energy and
Carbon Reporting (SECR), this statement
reports the Company’s GHG emissions for
2022, including the previous year’s data to
provide a year-on-year comparison. Our GHG
emissions reporting period is the same as the
financial reporting year, in accordance with
the DEFRA Environmental Reporting Guidance.

Emissions disaggregated by country (tCO,e)

Basis of reporting — Mandatory Greenhouse Gas data

Standards

Calculated and recorded in accordance with the Greenhouse Gas
(GHG) Protocol and ISO 14064, this guidance codifies using both
market and location-based methods for Scope 2 accounting

Baseline year

2019

Boundary summary

All assets and facilities under Hammerson’s direct operational
control are included, where we have authority to introduce and
implement operating policies; this includes properties held with
third-parties where both Hammerson and partner approval is
required. We have reported 100% of GHG emissions data for these
assets. The reporting excludes the Value Retail portfolio where we
do not have authority to introduce orimplement operating policies

Consistency with financial
statements

Consistency and reporting period are as set out above

Emissions factor data source

2022 DEFRA GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporting and
reporting sources including, but not limited to, International Energy
Agency and Equans

Assessment methodology

GHG Protocoland ISO 14064 (2006)

Materiality threshold

Selected activities generating emissions of <5% relative to total
Group emissions have been excluded. This principally relates to
Scope 3 categories where emissions are deemed immaterial

Intensity ratio

Denominator is common parts area of 412,579m? (2021
455,097m?)

2022 2021
Global Global
intensity intensity
Source UK France Ireland Global (kgCO,e/m?) UK France  Ireland Global  (kgCO,e/m?)
Total GHG emissions tonnes (market based) 3,909 2,352 935 7,196 17.4 5,029 3,458 348 8,835 19.4
Total GHG emissions tonnes 10,487 2,353 2,802 15,642 37.9 11,862 3,367 2,966 18,195 40.0
a. Stationary operations 2,442 502 188 3,132 7.6 2,317 872 247 3,436 7.6
b. Mobile combustion 5 25 - 30 0.1 - 3 - 3 -
c. Fugitive sources 73 - - 73 0.2 854 - - 854 1.9
Total 2,520 527 188 3,235 79 3171 875 247 4,293 9.5
a. Electricity (market based) 295 1,133 623 2,051 49 1,076 1,132 13 2,221 4.9
a. Electricity 6,873 1,134 2,490 10,497 254 7,909 1,041 2,631 11,581 255
b.Steam - - - - - - - - - -
C.Heating 227 277 - 504 1.2 257 1,274 - 15631 3.3
d. Cooling 38 241 - 279 0.7 49 49 - 98 0.2
Total (market based) 560 1,651 623 2,834 6.8 1,382 2,455 13 3,850 8.4
Total 7,138 1,652 2,490 11,280 27.3 8,215 2,364 2,631 13,210 29.0
Businesstravel 174 33 10 217 0.5 43 21 2 66 0.1
Waste 588 102 86 776 1.9 369 78 64 511 1.1
Water 68 38 28 134 0.3 64 29 22 115 0.3
Total 830 173 124 1,127 2.7 476 128 88 692 1.5

SECR Energy consumption (MWh) 49,282 30,838 9,357 89,477 52,406 32,701 10,257 95,364
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DELIVERING SOCIAL VALUE

Social value investment
(Em)

2019
2020
2021

Charities, organisations and groups that
benefitted from the Group’s direct and
indirect contributions

152

2021:194

Number of individuals engaged in Group
organised or supported activities

8,641

2021:22,283

Charitable cash donations (£000’s)

107

2021:129

Material social impacts
We focus our social value work on four
key areas:

— Employmentand skills

— Healthand wellbeing

— Developing young people

— Localinvestment and enterprise

These provide the Group with the greatest
potential to support positive change through
partnerships and collaboration, and those that
have beenidentified as most relevant to the
communities in which our assets are located.
During 2022 we partnered with 152 charities,
organisations and groups and positively
engaged with 8,641 individuals.

Oursocial value investment in 2022 was
£2.7m, 35% higherthanin 2021. Some
examples of our work in 2022 are shown later
inthis section.

Charity partnerships and donations

We remain committed to charitable activity,
supporting our corporate and employee
charity partners across the Group. During
2022, we provided a charity bursary to support
relevant charity partners, that engage and
inspire our people, and respond to needs ata
local level. In total, during the year we donated
£107,000(2021:£129,000).

Inthe UK, we have a continuous corporate
charity partnership with LandAid, the property
industry charity working to end youth
homelessness. Throughout the year,
colleagues have supported a number of
fundraising events for the charity including the
LandAid 10k run, Tour de LandAid and a Sleep
Out raising over £6,000. Our employee charity
partnership with The Outward Bound Trust has
continued with five colleagues volunteeringa
week to support the Ambassador Programme.
This programme is for young people from
deprived urban environments across the UK
toincrease their skills, confidence and
aspirations. Over one week, our colleagues
acted as positive role models for young people,
helping the group bond as ateam, identifying
strengths and weaknesses in order to
overcome a series of mental and physical
challenges in the remote Scottish Highlands.

Across the UK, Ireland and France, our asset
charity bursaries continue to provide valuable
financial support to charities operating in the
communities adjacent to our destinations. In
addition to receiving a cash donation, our asset
teams collaborate with the selected charities
to maximise the partnership through colleague
volunteering, fundraising, providing unit, mall
and advertising space.
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Helping our colleagues support the

local community

We continue to deliver arange of innovative
volunteering opportunities that positively
engage and benefit local communities, whilst
providing supplementary benefits to both
colleagues and the Group. During 2022,128
colleagues across the Group volunteered with
arange of charities, groups and organisations
throughout the year to support some of the
most disadvantaged members and groups

of society.

Through collaboration with Opening Doors
London, a LGBTQ+ charity, colleagues
organised and hosted at our London head
officealunch event for socially isolated
older members of the LGBTQ+ community.
InIreland, ourcolleaguesvolunteered with
Sonas, adomestic violence support charity
totransform external areas atawomen’s
refuge intoa welcoming environment.

Following the implementation of arevised
internal volunteering policy, there willbe a
push to encourage all colleagues to donate
theirtime forvolunteeringin 2023. Also, our
Community Day event which hasin recent
years been affected by Covid-19 and associated
restrictions will be revived, with all colleagues
across the Group participating in a series of
highimpact volunteering activities.

Furtherinformation on colleaguesisinthe
Our Colleagues section on page 24.
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We focus our social value work on four key areas where we have the greatest potential to support positive change
through partnerships and collaboration, and those that have been identified as most relevant to the communities
inwhich our assets are located.

Our key areas and some examples of our work in 2022 are provided below:

Employment and skills
Throughout 2022, we continued to collaborate with our occupiers and local
authorities to support individuals furthest from the jobs market into employment.

We have partnerships with Job Centre Plus in Barnet, Croydon and Bristol to

help local people to access employment opportunities presented by our assets.
In Croydon we ran a ‘speed dating service’ to link disadvantaged young people
with work positions available. While in Bristol we ran a joint Jobs Fair with the
counciland engaged over 700 people seeking employment. Our ‘Let’s Talk Shop’
project at Brent Cross has successfully run fora number of years andin 2022
placed 70 local residents into work. Our ‘Fountains of Employment” initiative in
France was repeated to support local people into roles created by the major
extension works at Les 3 Fontaines.

Health and wellbeing

In May, we collaborated with mental health charity Birmingham Mind during
Mental Health Awareness Week to deliver a large scale ‘No Bull’ campaign
encouraging meaningful conversations in relation to mental health and highlight
supportavailable.

The campaign resulted in a significant amount of media coverage with 18 pieces
of press coverage, a 24.8m PR reach and 385 local residents engaged to discuss
their mental health or that of a friend or family member.

Developing young people

We continued the delivery of the Lion/Brave/CuchulainnHeart business and
enterprise challenge across our UK and Irish assets. This included engaging six
secondary schools and benefitting 462 pupils and received positive feedback from
allinvolved including:

“As afatherIwas keento learn more about the specialist programmes shaping the
minds of our future generation. The Challenge not only took the pupils out of their
comfortzones, but it also presented real life working issues such as working to
tight deadlines and working with new people to overcome potential animosity.”
—Hammerson volunteer

Localinvestment and enterprise

In 2022, we collaborated with Middlesex University and partnered with Barnet
Council to support a business start-up competition for local residents and
university students to apply for £6,000 seed funding to start or develop their
business idea. Following the competition’s application process, 30 entrepreneurs
attended a series of workshops, masterclasses, tailored one-to-one mentoring
sessions and pitching challenges before finalists were selected to present their
business ideas. Shortlisted finalists were invited to deliver a five minute Dragons’
Den style presentation pitch explaining the concept of their business idea, the
problem it sets out to solve, marketing strategy and financial modelling to a panel
of renowned entrepreneurs and business leaders including the Group’s Chief
Financial Officer.
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GOVERNANCE INCLUDING TASK FORCE ON CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES (TCFD)

Managing climate risk

Our climate risk approach has been guided by
the TCFD recommendations since 2018,
reporting publicly in line with them since 2020.
In 2021 we built on our approach with climate
scenario work that helped us toidentify 12 key
risks and 13 key opportunities for our business.
We also invested in bespoke training for our
Executive and Non-Executive Directors, ensuring
those leading our business both understand
the risks and opportunities presented by
climate change and are able torespond to
climate-related disclosure requirements.

Inthefirst half of 2022 we reassessed the
key climate-related risks and opportunities
identified in 2021, using our revised impact/
likelihood matrix. We focused on climate
scenarios 1 and 2 of the three modelled
climate scenarios and identified existing
mitigations or planned actions for those risks.
Four new actions have been planned because
of our recent risk review, and these have been
added into our Transition Plan. These include:

— Update operationaland induction training
modules

— Mobilisation of a strategic partnership
across our UK portfolio to ensure best in
class ESG operations

— Review and update public disclosure within
the Annual Report, ESG Report and
Databook to enhance transparency

— Review and enhance scope of ESG activities
toensure alignment to social value,
governance and wider sustainability
components (e.g. CSR)

We planto review the risks twice ayearinline
with our Group risk methodology with the
output presented to the Audit Committee.

Requirement Progress

Asset specific planning

Our historic work towards reducing our energy
use and carbon footprint, with investmentsin
onsite renewables and energy-efficient
technologies, has positioned our assets wellin
terms of responding to net zero transition risks
identified. We have delivered a 31% reduction
inthe energy intensity for our portfolioon
alike-for-like asset basis in 2022 compared
t02019.

In 2022 we focused further on the application
of ourapproach at an asset level, undertaking
an audit of each asset to identify historicand
current performance, opportunities for energy
reductions and onsite renewables. The
findings of our earlier physical climate risk
assessments were also taken into account,
although these confirmed our portfolio to have
alow exposure, aview supported by our low
risk Sustainalytics rating. We identified three
different scenarios for each asset, aligned with
CRREM pathways, and selected the most
impactfulinterventions to determine a
decarbonisation pathway for each. These
findings informed our new flagship destination
NZAPs and the transition actions identified
above will help embed the outputs of these
across our operations.

The design teams working on our
development opportunities are targeting net
zero carbon, looking closely at embodied
carbon and adopting Passivhaus principles

inall their work. Our design standards were
reviewed in 2022, and we continue to strive
for BREEAM Excellent. We will continue to
increase the challenges we set ourselves as
our knowledge and material options broaden.
Alive exampleinthis areais at The Ironworks
project at Dundrum Town Centre which is one
of the first Irish residential schemes to have

been designed to achieve BREEAM Excellent.
The scheme incorporates a number of
environmental features including PV,
greenroofs, rainwater harvesting, heat pumps
and EV charging.

Ourresponse to Task Force on Climate-
Related Financial Disclosures

We have considered our ‘comply or explain’
obligation under the UK’s Financial Conduct
Authority’s (FCA) Listing Rules, and confirm
that we have made disclosures consistent with
the TCFD recommended disclosures. We will
continueto refine ourapproachin line with the
FCA's requirements.

Inourassessment of the risks underthe
TCFD requirements, we did not identify any
material financialimpacts on the Group’s 2022
financial statements. We will continue to
review the risks for new impacts each year
as part of our standard ESG governance.

The Board can therefore confirm that it has
considered the relevance of climate and
transition risks associated with the transition
tonetzero as part of the preparation of the
Annual Report 2022.

The table below provides an overview of
headline points in response to the TCFD
recommendations and provides links to
furtherinformationin the Annual Report 2022
andalsoinour separate 2022 ESG Report and
Databook whichis available on the Group’s
website www.hammerson.com.

Further information

1 Describe the Board’s oversight
of climate-related risks and
opportunities.

The Board collectively has overall accountability for climate risk and
wider ESG matters which are also addressed by the Group Executive
Committee (GEC). The GEC responsibility for climate-related risk
resides with the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) who is responsible for

delivering the strategy.

Risks and Uncertainties (page 50)
Corporate Governance Report
(Page 71)

Audit Committee Report (page 76)

Section 1 of our 2022 ESG Report

2 Describe management’srolein
assessingand managing
climate-related risks and
opportunities.

The delivery of ESG initiatives and the monitoring of risks and targets is
undertaken by the GEC. Thereis also ESG representation on the Group
Management Committee and the Group Investment Committee to

ensure that ESG is embedded across the Group’s activities.

ESG Review (page 30)
Risks and Uncertainties (page 52)

Section 1 of our 2022 ESG Report

In line with our Group risk methodology, climate risks and opportunities,
including transition risks, are reviewed by the Audit Committee twice
ayear. Thereviews inform our transition plans at both a Group and

asset level.




Requirement

Progress
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Further information

3 Describe the climate-related
risks and opportunities the
organisation has identified
overthe short, medium and
long term.

The Group performed a detailed review in 2021 to assess and plan for
climate change risks and identified 12 key risks and 13 key opportunities.
These were across three key areas: the identification of specific physical
and transition risks; a physical risk deep dive; and a stranding risk
assessment. These were reassessed in 2022.

ESG Report (page 30)

Section 1 of our 2022 ESG Report

4  Describe theimpact of
climate-related risks and
opportunities onthe
organisation’s businesses,
strategy and financial planning.

A commitment to mitigate or manage climate risks which threaten
strategic objectives underpins the Group’s strategy. Following our work in
2021 toidentify risks and opportunities, in 2022 we enhanced our focus
on climate risks and the application of the energy hierarchy across our
assets to ensure we minimise energy use, our greatest carbon impact.
Our half-yearly review of climate risks and opportunities will inform
continuous review of our Group level and asset level transition plans.

ESG Report (page 30)

Risks and Uncertainties (page 54)
Non-financial Information Statement
(page 62)

Section 1 of our 2022 ESG Report

5 Describetheresilience ofthe
organisation’s strategy, taking
into consideration different
climate-related scenarios,
includinga 2°C or lower scenario.

The Group has reviewed its climate risk for three separate scenarios:
1.59C, 2°C and 4°C increase, the first two of which are relevant to TCFD.
Forthe first scenario (Steady Path to Sustainability), risks are assessed
as materialising steadily through the 2020s with a generally slow onset,
such that the Group can adapt its strategy accordingly. For the second
scenario (Late Policy Action), risks are assessed as crystallising in quick
succession in the early to mid-2030s. Almost all the risks have a higher
impact and likelihood under this scenario.

Section 1 of our 2022 ESG Report

Full climate change scenario report
available onrequest

6 Describe the organisation’s
processes foridentifying and
assessing climate-related risks.

The Group has an overall risk management framework for all
operational, financial, reputational and regulatory risks, which allows
the Board toidentify, assess and manage the Group’s key risks including
climate-related risks. Short, medium and long term risks are also
identified using our ESG risk framework, taking into account economic,
regulatory and scientific changes. Regular reviews are undertaken
throughout the year of all risks, including climate-related risks.

Risks and Uncertainties (page 50)
Audit Committee Report (page 77)

Section 1 of our 2022 ESG Report

7 Describe the organisation’s
process for managing
climate-related risks.

The GEC and Board, supported by the Audit Committee, have oversight
ofthe Group’s risks including climate-related risks. The ESG team
provide regular ESG updates to these committees including twice yearly
reviews of climate risks and opportunities, including transition risks.

Risks and Uncertainties (page 50)
Audit Committee Report (page 77)

Section 1 of our 2022 ESG Report

8 Describe how processes for
identifying, assessing, and
managing climate-related
risks are integrated into
the organisation’s overall
risk management.

Our climate-related risks are fed into the Group’s Risk Framework,
reviewed half yearly, and our response is managed by our senior-level
governance structure for climate-related risks.

Risks and Uncertainties (page 50)
Audit Committee Report (page 77)

Section 1 of our 2022 ESG Report

9 Disclose the metrics used
by the organisation to assess
climate-related risks and
opportunitiesin line with its
strategy and risk management.

The Group uses arange of metrics to assess exposure to short term
climate-related risks and opportunities including energy consumption
and Scope 1, 2 and 3 carbon emissions in line with market practice.
We regularly assess and seek feedback on our disclosures and strive
toenhance transparency for all our stakeholders.

ESG Review (pages 25-27)

Sections 1 and 2 of our 2022
ESG Report

10 Disclose Scope 1, Scope 2,
and if appropriate, Scope 3
greenhouse gas (GHG)
emissions, and the

related risks.

We report extensively on our Scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions and to provide
greater prominence we have incorporated the GHG emissions table
within the ESG section of this Annual Report 2022.

ESG Review (pages 25-27)

Section 2 of our 2022 ESG Report
and supporting Databook

11 Describe the targets used by
the organisation to manage
climate-related risks and
opportunities and performance

against targets.

We are targeting to be Net Zero by 2030 and have emissions targets in
our 2021 sustainability-linked bond. At a Group level we also set annual
targets which are underpinned by individual asset level targets. The
Group leveltargetisincluded in the Group’s annualincentive plan.

Directors’ Remuneration Report
(page 83)

Note 18tothe financial statements
(page 167)

Section 1 of our 2022 ESG Report
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OUR STAKEHOLDERS

Our Stakeholders

STAKEHOLDER KEY AREAS OF INTEREST

Occupiers We create a platform that fosters success foradiverseand ~ — Shared commercial objectives; attracting
evolving mix of occupiers to deliver unrivalled customer consumers
experiences and thrive. — Vibrantand well-operated destinations
— ESG
— Occupancy cost
Customers We create vibrant destinations through continually evolving — Vibrant destinations with engaging occupier
the mix of brands and experiences through placemaking mix
and events that appeal to a broad range of consumers. — Futurewinningbrands

— Continuous improvement to enhance
consumer engagement and experience

— ESG
COIIeagues Our colleagues are fundamental to achieve our strategic — Strategy
goals. We support our people and empower ouroperations  _ colleague engagement
teams to deliver best-in-class customer service, _ PewEd

championingadiverse culture where everyone can thrive. o ) i i
— Diversity, equality and inclusion

— Trainingand development
— Healthand wellbeing

— ESG

— High performance

Communities We continually strive to make a positive difference to the — Measurable positive impact in socio-
communities in which we operate. economic issues relevant to the communities
inwhich we operate
— ESG

— Community projects focus on four areas:
— Employmentand skills
— Localinvestmentand enterprise
— Developing young people
— Healthand wellbeing

Partners We strive to be aresponsible partner with awide range — Current and future financial performance
of partners that enable us to deliver our strategy. — Operational excellence
— Corporate governance
— Innovation
— Consumertrends and insight
— ESG
Investors We have a broad range of institutional investors and private — Currentand future financial performance
shareholders. We actively engage with them throughout — Strategy

the yearand undertake regular communication to ensure

they understand the performance of the business. = Loipeiate qovernence

— ESG

— Regularand transparent communication
and reporting
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— Ourdedicated leasing team has a leasing strategy for each asset, underpinned by the Group’s strategic objectives

— We hold regular executive management meetings with our occupiers

— The Board receives reports from the senior management team on the performance of our occupiers, which are discussed at its meetings

— We have atargeted programme of engagement for future occupiers and partners

— Werunabrand feedback study with our occupiers to gather input on their satisfaction to help drive stronger, mutually beneficial relationships

— We undertake both quantitative and qualitative insight to understand consumer needs
— Ourmarketing, leasing and asset management strategies are focused on ensuring that we curate vibrant destinations for multi-use estates
— Weinvestin optimising space and occupier mix and improving customer facilities

— TheBoard receive regular reports on consumer behaviours and associated needs which provides usefulinsights into emerging trends at
alocaland national level and will inform investment decisions and identify future revenue drivers

— We held regular briefings of colleagues by the Chief Executive and other members of the senior management team
— Updates on current business is delivered via town hall ‘squad” meetings
— The Colleague Forum was established in May 2019 and we have a designated Non-Executive Director for colleague engagement

— Affinity Groups, which champion diversity, equality and inclusion, cover Race and Ethnicity, LGBTQ+, Women’s and Wellbeing. These groups
drive our diversity, equality and inclusion calendar of colleague engagement activations.

— Ourcomprehensive programme for new joiners includes an online training programme
— Established a new Diversity, Inclusion and Engagement Manager role to embed best practices across the business

— Our local community impacts are positive, and our business activities attract significant additionalinvestment into local economies

— Weestablishaclear placemaking strategy for each asset, that reflects the needs of our local communities, delivered through our asset
management programme

— We set community engagement plans that address issues identified as relevant to local communities
— Wedevelop long-term partnerships with organisations that share our focus areas
— The Directors received a report of the progress against socio-economic targets as part of the Group’s sustainability strategy

— OurESG group considers donations to suitable charities in line with our four focus areas, including charities local to our assets,
complementing our sustainability goals

— We hold quarterly joint venture board meetings to approve asset business plans annually, setting parameters for the next yearand over
the longerterm

— Ad hoc meetings with partners are organised to highlight key areas of focus, including ESG, customer experience and innovation
— Weare signatories to the Prompt Payment Code, to support our partners, suppliers, local authorities and debt investors

— Wetake a proactive approach to investor relations and hold numerous meetings with shareholders and analysts. Meetings were held
throughout the year with institutional shareholders to discuss progress on our strategy, rent collections and operational updates, as well as
questions of governance. The Chair of the Remuneration Committee took part in consultations with major institutional shareholders as part
ofthe Committee’s review of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy.

— Key shareholder publications including the annual report, the full year and half year results announcements, operational updates,
sustainability report and press releases and the information for investors are available on the Company’s website

— The AGM provides the opportunity to engage with shareholders and allows all shareholders to attend and vote on resolutions. Shareholders
were able to ask questions at the meeting and were ask given the opportunity to submit questions to the Board in advance of the meeting.
In October 2022 a general meeting was held to approve special resolutions for the Enhanced Scrip Dividend Alternative and to cancel the
Company’s capital redemption reserve.
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Stakeholder engagement

We seek to deliver value forall our
stakeholders. The Boardis also aware that its
actions and decisions impact our stakeholders
including the communities in which we
operate. Effective engagement with
stakeholders isimportant to the Board as it
strengthens the business and helps to deliver
apositive result forall our stakeholder groups.

In orderto comply with Section 172 of the
Companies Act 2006, the Board is required
totakeinto consideration the interests of
stakeholders and include a statement setting
out the way in which Directors have discharged
this duty during the year.

The Board seeks to understand the needs and
the key areas of interest of each stakeholder
group and consider them during deliberations
and as part of the decision-making process.
It reviews the long-term consequences of
decisions on each stakeholder group by
ensuring that the Group builds and nurtures
strong working relationships with our
shareholders, occupiers, suppliers, joint
venture partners, debt capital providers,
consumers, and the wider community and
government agencies which are important
tothe success of the Group. It does this

by overseeing the work undertaken by
management to maintain and seek toenhance
these relationships. The Board receives
detailed reports and when relevant these
include assessments of the impact ofa
proposal or project on stakeholders, and if
required, the Directors receive appropriate
input from the senior management team.

Section 172(1) statement
The Directors of the Company have acted in
away that they considered, in good faith, to be
most likely to promote the success of the
Company for the benefit of its members as a
whole and, in doing so, had regard, amongst
other matters, to those matters setoutin
section 172(1)(a) to (f) of the Companies Act
2006, being:
— Thelikely consequences of any decisionin
the longterm

— Theinterests of the Company’s colleagues

— The need tofoster the Company’s business
relationships with partners, consumers
and others

— Theimpact of the Company’s operations on
the community and the environment

— Thedesirability of the Company
maintaining a reputation for high standards
of business conduct

— Theneedtoact fairly as between members
of the Company

The Board has identified its key stakeholders
as being its: occupiers; customers; colleagues;
communities; partners; and investors. Building
and nurturing these relationships based on
professionalism, fair dealing and integrity is
critical to our success.

Our extensive engagement efforts help to
ensure that the Board can understand,
consider and balance broad stakeholder
interests when making decisions to deliver
long-term sustainable success.

While the Board will engage directly with
stakeholders on certainissues, stakeholder
engagement will often take place atan
operational level with the Board receiving
regular updates on stakeholder views from
the Executive Directors and the senior
management team. Directors receive a
briefing regarding their duties unders172(1).
Board papers forall key decisions are required
toinclude a specific section reviewing the
impact of the proposal on relevant stakeholder
groups as well as other s172(1) considerations.
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The Board is responsible for establishing and
overseeing the Company’s values, strategy
and purpose, all of which centre around the
interests of key stakeholders and other factors
sectionoutins172(1). The Directors remain
conscious that their decisions and actions
have animpact on stakeholders, including
occupiers, customers, colleagues,
communities, partners, and investors, and
they have had regard to stakeholder
considerations and other factorsins172(1)
duringthe year.

Whilst the Board acknowledges that,
sometimes, it may have to take decisions
that affect one or more stakeholder groups
differently, it seeks to treat impacted groups
fairly and with regard toits duty toactinaway
that it considers would be most likely to
promote the success of the Company for the
benefit of its members as awhole, having
regard to the balance of factors set outin
s172(1). Considerations relatingto s172(1)
factors are animportant part of governance
processes and decision-making both at Board
and management level, and more widely
throughout the Company. Necessarilyina
large group, some decisions are taken by
management. These decisions are taken
within parameters set by the Board and there
is arobust framework that ensures ongoing
oversightand monitoring.



FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial
Review

OVERVIEW

Overthe last two years, the Group has made
significant financial progress in re-basing its
gross rentalincome, reducing costs and in
strengthening the balance sheet.

IFRS reported losses decreased to £164m
compared withaloss of £429min 2021,
predominantly due to the impact of market-
wide yield and ERV expansion on property
valuations, reflecting higher base interest
rates inthe second half.

Adjusted earnings for the yearended

31 December 2022 increased by 60% to
£105masaresult ofimproved performance
across the business. On a like-for-like basis,
gross rentalincome increased by 8% and
like-for-like net rental income improved by
29%. Our gross administration costs reduced
17% year-on-year with more efficiencies to
come from continuing to refine our operating

modeland from automation and digitalisation.

We also reduced finance costs as a result of
the continued deleveraging of the balance
sheet, and we saw an improved recovery from
Value Retail.

EPRANTAwas £2,634m at 31 December
2022, adecline of 7% year-on-year
(2021:£2,840m), and EPRANTA per
sharewas 53p (2021:64p).

Himanshu Raja
Chief Financial Officer

Net debtreduced by 4%to £1,732m at

31 December2022 (2021:£1,799m)
benefitting from £166m of cash generated
from operations and gross disposal proceeds
of £195m bringing total disposals since the
beginning of 2021 to £628m. These were
partially offset by capital expenditure of £76m
and adverse foreign exchange movements

of £131m.

Headline LTV was 39% and LTV on afully
proportional consolidation basis was 47%.
Ournetdebt: EBITDA improved to 10.4x
from 13.4xin 2021. The Group hasample
liquidity in cash and undrawn committed
facilitiesof c. £1bn.

Duringthe year, Moody’s and Fitch’s senior
unsecured investment grade credit ratings
were re-affirmed as Baa3 and BBB+,
respectively and outlooks from both rating
agencies were changed from negative to
stable reflecting the significantimprovements
inthe business, debt reduction and the
recovery from the Covid-19 pandemic.
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£(164)m

£105m

£(1,732)m

39%

47%

£2,586m

53p

KPI Alternative Performance Measure

2021 income statement figures have been restated to
reflect the IFRIC Decision on Concessions and balance
sheet figures have been restated to reflect the IFRIC
Decision on Deposits with further information on both
IFRIC decisions setout in note 1B.

35




STRATEGIC REPORT
FINANCIAL REVIEW continued

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Group’s investment in Value Retail is

not proportionally consolidated because it

is not under the Group’s management, is
independently financed and has differing
operating metrics to the Group’s managed
portfolio. Accordingly, itis accounted for
separately as share of results of associates as

The Group’s property portfolio comprises
properties that are either wholly owned or
co-owned with third parties.

Whilst the Group prepares its financial
statements under IFRS (the ‘Reported Group’),
the Group evaluates the performance of its
portfolio forinternal management reporting
by aggregating its wholly owned businesses
together with its share of joint ventures and
associates which are under the Group’s
management (‘Share of Property interests’)
onaproportionally consolidated basis, line by
ling, including, where applicable, discontinued
operations (in total described as the Group’s
‘Managed portfolio’).

the Group’s proportionally consolidated key
metrics such as net debt or like-for-like net
rentalincome growth.

Performance Measures (APMs), for enhanced
transparency, we do disclose metrics
combining both the managed portfolioand

Value Retail. These include property valuations

Both the IFRS and Management reporting and returns and certain credit metrics.

bases are presented in the financial
statements.
Management reporting and IFRS accounting treatment

Comprising properties which are

reported under IFRS and is also excluded from

However, for certain of the Group’s Alternative
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Following the fullimpairment of our sharein
the Highcross joint venture as at 31 December
2021, the Group has ceased to recognise the
results of this joint venture in the income
statement, however, the Group’s share of

its assets and liabilities continue to be
incorporated in note 13 to the financial
statements. Since the yearend, it was agreed
that it was in the best interests of the lenders
inthe longer term to appoint a receiver to
administer the asset for the benefit of the
creditors. Accordingly, owing to control being
inthe hands of the receiver, going forward,
Highcross will cease to be incorporated into
the Group’s financial statements.

Accounting treatment

Management reporting

Managed portfolio — Wholly owned and Share of Property interests

Proportionally consolidated

Value Retail —Held as an associate Single line —results/investment in associates
IFRS

Managed portfolio:

— Reported Group — Wholly owned Fully consolidated

—Jointly owned
—Heldinjointventures
—Held inassociates

— UKretail parks portfolio
—Held asanassociate

— Share of Property interests

— Discontinued operations*®
Value Retail

Consolidation of Group’s share

Single line —results/investmentin joint ventures
Single line —results/investment in associates
Single line —discontinued operations

Single line —results/investment in associates

* Onlyapplicable for 2021, whereby proportionally consolidated figures include results up to the date of disposal.



New accounting pronouncements resulting
inrestatements of 2021

During the year, the following agenda decisions
were issued which have been considered
asfollows:

— InApril2022, the IFRICissued an agenda
decisioninrespect of the presentation of
‘Demand deposits with restrictions on use
arising from a contract with a third party’
(‘the IFRIC Decision on Deposits’) with
further information provided in note 1B
tothe financial statements. The impact
is to change the classification of certain
amounts held by third party managing
agentsin respect of tenant deposits and
service charges such that they have been
reclassified from restricted monetary
assetsto cash and cash equivalents.

The effects of the restatement are set out
in note 16 tothe financial statements.

— InOctober2022,the IFRICissued an
agenda decision in respect of ‘Lessor
forgiveness of lease payments (IFRS 9 and
IFRS 16)’ (‘the IFRIC Decision on
Concessions’). This concluded that losses
incurred on granting retrospective rent
concessions should be charged to the
income statement on the date that the legal
rights toincome are conceded (i.e.
immediate recognition in full). Historically,
the Group’s treatment of such concessions,
which arose as a result of the Covid-19
pandemic, was to recognise these as lease
modifications such that the impact was
initially held on the balance sheetand then
spread forward into the income statement
overthe lease term or period to first break.
Theimpactis that 2021 figures have been
restated whereby Reported Group revenue,
gross rentalincome, net rentalincome and
revaluation losses are affected although
operating profitand income statement
figures below are unaffected The equivalent
Adjusted figures are also affected including
those down to Adjusted earnings. A more
detailed analysis of the effects is set out in
note 6 to the financial statements.

Where figures in this Financial Review have
been restated, these are marked 1.

Alternative Performance Measures (APMs)
The Group uses a number of APMs, being
financial measures not specified under IFRS,
to monitor the performance of the business.
Many of these measures are based onthe
EPRA Best Practice Recommendations (BPR)
reporting framework which aims toimprove
the transparency, comparability and relevance
ofthe published results of listed European real
estate companies. Details onthe EPRABPR
can be found on www.epra.com and the Group’s
key EPRA metrics are shownin Table 1 of the
Additionalinformation.

We present the Group’s results on an IFRS basis
butalsoonan EPRA, Headline and Adjusted
basis as explained in note 1B to the financial
statements. The Adjusted basis enables us

to monitor the underlying operations of the
business on a proportionally consolidated
basis as described inthe basis of preparation
and excludes capitaland non-recurring items
such as revaluation movements, gains or
losses on the disposal of properties or
investments, as well as other items which the
Directors and management do not consider
to be part of the day-to-day operations of the
business. Such excluded items are in the main
reflective of those excluded for EPRA earnings,
but additionally exclude certain cash and
non-cash items which we believe are not
reflective of the normal routine operating
activities of the Group. We believe that
disclosing such non-IFRS measures enables
evaluation of the impact of such items on
results to facilitate a fuller understanding of
performance from period to period. These
items, together with EPRA and Headline
adjustments are set outin more detail in

note 10Ato the financial statements.
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For 2022, adjusting items additional to EPRA
adjustingitems comprised:

— Exclusionofachargeof £5.1m
(2021: £8.6m) in respect of business
transformation as the Group continues its
implementation of strategic change and
comprises mainly non-capitalisable costs
associated with digital transformation as
well as severance costs following the
reorganisation which occurred mainly
inthe second halfof 2021.

— Acreditof £2.4m (2021: creditof £8.1m)
toreverse expected credit losses charged
tothe income statement but where the
related income is deferred on the balance
sheet such that the exclusion of this
removes the distortive mismatch
this causes.

— Income of £1.6m from assets held for
sale which relates to the Group’s 50%
jointventure investment in Silverburn
soldinMarch 2022. The IFRS and EPRA
accounting treatment is to offset the
operatingincome until disposal against the
lossonsale, therefore it is excluded from
Adjusted earnings. As a result we have
added theincome backin order to reflect
the fact that the property remained under
the Group’s joint ownership and
management up untilcompletion of the
disposaland is considered to still be part
ofunderlying earnings.
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INCOME STATEMENT

Summary income statement

Reported Group

The Group’s IFRS reported loss was £164.2m (2021: £429.1m loss). The most significant elements of the reduction were reduced valuation
losses of £82.7m (2021: £169.6m), where the key factors influencing this were the market driven yield shift in the second half of the year of £68m,
areductionin the share of losses in joint ventures to £41.5m (2021: losses of £171.3m) where again a reduced valuation deficit of £138.3m
(2021: £274.5m) was a key contributor and an adverse swingin the Group’s share of Value Retail of £25.3m again driven by valuation losses.

Proportionally consolidated

The Group evaluates the performance of its portfolio for internal management reporting by aggregating its wholly owned businesses together with
its share of joint ventures and associates which are under the Group’s management (‘Share of Property interests’) on a proportionally consolidated
basis, line by line, including, where applicable, discontinued operations. A detailed reconciliation from Reported Group to the proportionally
consolidated basis is set out in note 2 to the financial statements and a summary reconciling to Adjusted earnings is set out below:

2022 2021
a Proportionally consolidated Proportionally consolidated
Before Before

adjustments Adjustments Adjusted adjustments Adjustments Adjusted

Summary income statement £m £m £m £m £m £m
Netrentalincome T 177.2 (2.4) 174.8 182.5 8.1) 174.4
Net administration expenses (47.9) 5.1 (42.8) (60.0) 8.6 (51.4)

Profit from operating activities T 129.3 2.7 132.0 122.5 0.5 123.0
Revaluation losses — Managed portfolio T (221.0) 221.0 - (444.1) 444.1 -
Disposals and assets held for sale (1.0 1.0 - (10.3) 10.3 -
Fairvalue changes and otherimpairments (0.1) 0.1 - 0.3 0.3 -
Other net (losses)/gains (1.2) 1.1 - (10.6) 10.6 -
Jointventure impairment - - - (11.5) 11.5 -

Share of results of associates (Value Retail) (5.3) 32.7 27.4 20.0 (4.2 15.9

Operating (loss)/profit T (98.1) 257.5 159.4 (323.7) 462.6 138.9
Net finance costs (65.6) 11.6 (54.0) (103.6) 31.8 (71.8)
Taxcharge (0.5) - (0.5) (1.8) 0.2 (1.6)

(Loss)/profit for the period T (164.2) 269.1 104.9 (429.2) 494.6 65.5

Reported Adjusted Reported Adjusted

(Loss)/earnings per share pence pence pence pence

Basic b 3.3)p 8.7)p
Adjusted T b 2.1p 1.3p

T 2021 figures have been restated to reflect the IFRIC Decision on Concessions with further information provided in notes 1B and 6 to the financial statements.
a Proportionally consolidated figures are set out in more detail in note 2 and adjustments are described in more detail in note 10A to the financial statements.

b Inadditiontothe IFRIC Decision on Concessions, comparative figures for 2021 have also been restated to take account of the bonus element of scrip dividends
as explained furtherin note 11B to the financial statements. Previously reported figures were: Reported Group: (9.8)p; Adjusted: 1.8p.
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The table below bridges Adjusted earnings between the two periods.

Reconciliation of movementsin Adjusted earnings

* Adjusted

earnings

£m

31 December2021 T 65.5

Increase in net rentalincome excluding disposals 20.7

Decrease in netfinance costs 17.8

Decrease in gross administration costs 11.9

Decrease intax charge 1.1

Increase in Value Retail earnings 11.5
Decrease in net rentalincome arising from disposals (20.3)
Decrease in property fee income and management fees receivable 3.3)

31 December 2022 104.9

T 2021 figures have been restated to reflect the IFRIC Decision on Concessions with further information provided in notes 1B and 6 to the financial statements.
* Decreases and increases are all on an Adjusted basis and therefore exclude adjusting items as set out in note 10A to the financial statements.

Rentalincome
Analysis of rentalincome

2022
Share of Property interests
Reported Joint Discontinued

Group ventures  Associates Subtotal operations Total

Proportionally consolidated £m £m £m £m £m £m

Grossrentalincome 90.2 119.4 5.6 125.0 - 215.2
Net service charge expenses and cost of sales (12.9) (23.9) 1.2) (25.1) - (38.0)

Netrentalincome 77.3 95.5 4.4 99.9 - 177.2
Change in provision foramounts not yet recognised in the income statement (2.4)

Adjusted netrentalincome 174.8

2021

Share of Property interests
Reported Joint Discontinued

Group ventures Associates Subtotal operations Total

Proportionally consolidated £m £m £m £m £m £m

Gross rentalincome T 90.3 143.1 6.0 149.1 11.0 250.4
Net service charge expenses and cost of sales (23.1) (42.3) (1.3) (43.6) 1.2) (67.9)

Netrentalincome T 67.2 100.8 4.7 105.5 9.8 182.5
Change in provision foramounts not yet recognised in the income statement (8.1)

Adjusted netrentalincome T 174.4

T 2021 figures have been restated to reflect the IFRIC Decision on Concessions with furtherinformation is provided in notes 1B and 6 to the financial statements.

Gross Rental Income (GRI)
GRIdecreasedto £215.2m from £250.4m, reflecting the impact of disposals and lower surrender premiums thanin 2021. These were partly
offset by increased turnoverand car parkincome, lower concessions and income from completion of the extension at Les 3 Fontaines.

2022 2021 Changein

Proportionally consolidated £m £m  like-for-like
Like-for-like managed portfolio: *

—UK T 86.8 78.4 10.8%

—France T 41.2 38.8 6.1%

—Ireland i 37.1 353 5.1%

165.1 152.5 8.3%

T 2021 figures have been restated to reflect the IFRIC Decision on Concessions with further information provided in notes 1B and 6 to the financial statements.

* Like-for-like GRI for the managed portfolio is calculated based on properties owned throughout both current and prior periods, calculated on a constant currency
basis such that the comparatives have been restated accordingly.
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Net RentalIncome (NRI)

NRIdecreasedto £177.2mfrom £182.5m. Adjusted NRI was broadly unchanged at £174.8m (2021: £174.4m). In addition to the GRI
movements highlighted above, NRI benefited from a significantimprovement in collections enabling release of provisions for bad debts and
tenantincentive impairments together with growth invariable income streams. This resulted in animprovement of the Adjusted NRI:GRI
(after ground rents payable) ratio to 81.2% (2021: 69.6%).

2022 2021 Changein

Proportionally consolidated £m £m  like-for-like
Like-for-like managed portfolio: a
—UK t 70.8 54.0 31.3%
—France T 36.3 26.8 35.4%
—Ireland T 33.6 28.2 19.3%

140.7 109.0 _ 29.2%
Disposals 3.5 23.8
Developments and other T 30.6 41.8
Foreign exchange - 0.2
Adjusted netrentalincome T 174.8 174.4
Change in provision foramounts not yet recognised in the income statement b 24 81
Netrentalincome T 177.2 182.5

T 2021 figures have been restated to reflect the IFRIC Decision on Concessions with further information provided in notes 1B and 6 to the financial statements.

a Like-for-like NRI for the managed portfolio is calculated based on properties owned throughout both current and prior periods, calculated on a constant currency
basis such that the comparatives have been restated accordingly.

b Relatestothe changein provision foramounts not yet recognised in the income statement for expected credit losses whereby the related income is deferred on
the balance sheet. The amount has been excluded from Adjusted net rental income to eradicate the distortion of cost being recognised in one accounting period
and the related revenue being recognised in a different accounting period as further described in note 10A to the financial statements.

Like-for-like NRIincreased by £31.7m (29%) against 2021 reflecting strong leasing performance, improved collections, increased variable
turnover rentand netincome from car parks and commercialisation.

Thedrivers of the like-for-like increase were consistent across all of the Group’s geographies, offset by the loss of NRI from disposals in the UK in
2021 and 2022 being £20.3m, of which £20.5m came from the sale of Victoria and Silverburnin the first half of 2022 and £8.4m from the 2021
sale of UK retail parks.

Furtheranalysis of net rentalincome by segment is provided in Table 6 of the Additional information.

Administration expenses

2022 2021
Proportionally consolidated £m £m
Employee costs —excluding variable costs 29.2 375
Variable employee costs 9.6 9.6
Other corporate costs 21.0 24.6
Gross administration costs 59.8 717
Property fee income (11.5) (13.2)
Joint venture and associate management fee income (5.5) (7.0
Otherincome (27.0) (20.3)
Adjusted net administration expenses 42.8 51.4
Business transformation costs 5.1 8.6
Net administration expenses 47.9 60.0

During 2022, Adjusted net administration expenses decreased by £8.6m against 2021. The decrease, reflecting the Group’s focus on cost

reduction, principally relates to:

— Employee costs following the reset of the organisation to an asset-centric structure which occurred in the second half of 20221. Average
headcount during the year reduced from 494 to 370 with headcount at 31 December 2022 being 320.

— Othercorporate costs (comprising mainly professional fees, office rent and software licenses), where the most significant element was a
decrease of £2.7min Directors and Officers insurance premiums reflecting the strengthening of the Group’s financial position. The remainder
of the decrease was predominantly in professional fees.
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Business transformation costs comprised mainly fees for contractors and consultants from the Group’s digitalisation programme, which were
not eligible for capitalisation, and severance costs relating to the ongoing strategic re-organisation initiated in the second half of 2021 (2021:
comprised mainly consultancy fees and severance costs).

Disposals and assets held for sale
During 2022, we raised gross proceeds of £195m, relating mainly to the disposals of Silverburn and Victoria. Taken together with other smaller
disposals and adjustments to historical disposals, an overall profit from disposals of £0.7m was generated.

Share of results of joint ventures and associates, including Value Retail

Reported Group

Afulllisting of ourinterests in joint ventures and associates is set out in Table 22 of the Additional information. Our Reported share of results under
IFRS was a combined loss of £48.6m (2021: loss of £155.7m). This year-on-year change was due to lower revaluation losses in 2022 compared
with 2021.

Proportionally consolidated

Onan Adjusted basis, because the Group’s managed portfolio of joint ventures and associates is proportionally consolidated, the Group’s share
of results of joint ventures and associates comprises solely the Group’s investment in Value Retail which generated Adjusted earnings of £27.4m
(2021:£15.9m). The year-on-yearimprovement principally reflects higher GRI from increased sales resulting from the easing of Covid-19
restrictions where lockdowns in 2021 meant that Villages were closed for part of the year.

Net finance costs

Reported Group

Reported Group net finance costs were £63.0m, a decrease of £34.9m compared with 2021 attributable to higher interest income and lower debt
and loan facility cancellation costs.

2022 2021
Proportionally consolidated £m £m
Adjusted finance income 26.1 15.1
Finance costs
Gross interest costs (81.3) (92.2)
Interest capitalised 1.2 5.3
Adjusted finance costs (80.1) (86.9)
Adjusted net finance costs (54.0) (71.8)
Debt and loan facility cancellation costs 1.3) (22.0)
Change in fair value of derivatives (20.3) (9.8)
Net finance costs (65.6) (103.6)

Adjusted net finance costs were £54.0m, adecrease of £17.8m compared with 2021. The decrease was driven by the benefits of deleveraging
since the start of 2021, early repayment of debt utilising proceeds from disposals, the related restructuring of hedging derivatives and higher
interestincome from cash deposits. Key components comprised:

— a£6.8mreductionin finance costs driven by a reduction in interest on cross currency swaps and a reduction as a result of repayment of private
placement notes and eurobonds

— £11.0mhigherinterest income resulting from both increased cash balances in the year following disposals and a sharp rise in prevailing
interest rates in the second half of the year

Proportionally consolidated net finance costs decreased by £38.0m to £65.6m compared to 2021, with £20.7m of the decrease relating to lower
debt and loan facility cancellation costs partly offset by changes in the fair value of derivatives, both of which are treated as adjusting items and
are described furtherin note 10A to the financial statements. The debt and loan facility cancellations costs relate to unamortised facility fees in
respect of revolving credit facilities which were extinguished and replaced with a new £463m facility as set out in the cash flow and net debt
section below.

Tax

The Group’s tax charge on a proportionally consolidated basis was £0.5m which compares to £1.8m for 2021, with the reduction being due to
certain changes in the Irish capital structure. The tax charge remains low as the Group benefits from being a UK REIT and French SIIC and its Irish
assets are held ina QIAIF. The Group is committed to remaining in these tax exempt regimes and further details on these regimes are given in note
8tothefinancial statements.

Inorderto satisfy the REIT conditions, the Company is required, on an annual basis, to pass certain business tests. The Group has metall
requirements for maintaining its REIT status for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Dividends

The payments of cash and enhanced scrip dividends approved by shareholders and made in 2022 have satisfied our REIT and SIIC distribution
requirements. The Board is not recommending a further payment in respect of 2022 but continues to anticipate re-instating a cash dividend for
2023, expected to be at least the minimum required to continue to meet our REIT/SIIC distribution obligations.

Theinterim cash and enhanced scrip dividend alternative were paid as a non-Property Income Distribution (Non-PID) and treated as an ordinary
UK company dividend. As set out in note 22 to the financial statements, the interim dividend of £77.1m was settled during the year, of which
£1.4m was settled in cash.

NETASSETS

Adetailed analysis of the balance sheet on a proportionally consolidated basis is set out in Table 12 of the Additionalinformation with a summary
reconcilingto EPRANTA set out in the table below:

2022 2021
Share of Share of
Reported Property EPRA Reported Property EPRA

Group interests adjustments EPRANTA Group interests  adjustments EPRANTA

Summary netassets £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Investment and trading properties 1,497 1,723 - 3,220 1,595 1,883 - 3,478
Investmentin joint ventures 1,342 (1,342) - - 1,452 (1,452) - -
Investment in associates — Value Retail 1,189 - 52 1,241 1,141 - 95 1,236
—Italie Deux 108 (208) - - 106 (106) - -

Assets held for sale - - - - 71 (72) - -
Net trade receivables 24 20 - 44 27 19 - 46
Net debt T a (1,458) (274) @ (1,733) (1,559) (240) 8 1,792)
Other net liabilities T (116) (29) 3 (138) 87) (33) ) (129)
Netassets 2,586 - 438 2,634 2,746 - 94 2,840
EPRA NTA per share b 53p 64p

T 2021 figures have been restated to reflect the IFRIC Decision on Deposits with further information provided in note 16 to the financial statements and Tables 13
and 14 of the Additionalinformation.

a Comprises cash and cash equivalents, loans, fair value of currency swaps and cash and cash equivalent held within assets held for sale.
b EPRAadjustmentsinaccordance with EPRA best practice, principally in relation to deferred tax, as shown in note 10B to the financial statements.

During 2022, net assets decreased 6% to £2,586m (2021: £2,746m). Net assets, calculated on an EPRA Net Tangible Assets (NTA) basis, were
£2,634m, or 53 pence per share, areduction of 11 pence compared to 31 December 2021 principally due to revaluation losses of £282m, partly
offset by Adjusted earnings of £105m, together with dilution from the scrip dividends of 7.5p. This is equivalent to a total accounting return of
—6.8%. The key components of the movement in Reported Group net assets and EPRANTA are as follows:

Movementin netassets
Reported EPRA

Group adjustments EPRANTA
Proportionally consolidated including Value Retail £m £m £m

1 January 2022 2,746 94 2,840
Property revaluation —Managed portfolio (221) - (221)
—Value Retail (61) - (61)
Adjusted earnings 105 - 105
Change in deferred tax (C)) 5 @
Dividends (13) - (13)
Foreign exchange and other movements 39 (51) (12)

31 December 2022 2,586 48 2,634




Hammerson plc Annual Report 2022 43

PROPERTY PORTFOLIO ANALYSIS

Investment markets
The improvementinthe investment market seenin the first half of 2022 stalled in the second half due to rising interest rates, continuing high
inflation, soaring energy prices and the ongoing war in Ukraine.

Inthe UK, there were 58 shopping centre transactions totalling £1.9bn, the majority of which were agreed in the first half of the year including
transactions involving non-managed stakes in prime shopping centres and larger lot sizes, for example, CPP Investments’ acquisition of Nuveen’s
one third stake in Bullring. Investment volumes slowed in the second half of the year with a number of larger schemes failing to transact due to lack
of debt finance. Second half investment activity was primarily at the discount/convenience end with lot sizes between £10-£30m (Source: JLL).
Prime shopping centre yields moved out by 50 basis points in the last quarter of 2022.

In France, retail investment activity reached €4.5bn with over 207 transactions and strong volume growth in large transactions with 13 deals
above €100m (Source: JLL). Prime shopping centre yields increased slightly towards the end of the year.

InIreland, there was limited retailinvestment activity with retail representing just 8% (€0.4m) of total transactions and no transactions of
significance (Source: C&W).

Portfolio valuation

The Group’s external valuations continue to be conducted by CBRE Limited (CBRE), Cushman & Wakefield (C&W) and Jones Lang LaSalle Limited
(JLL), providing diversification of valuation expertise across the Group. At 31 December 2022 the majority of our UK flagship destinations have
beenvalued by JLL and CBRE, the French portfolio by JLL, and the Irish portfolio, Value Retail and Brent Cross have been valued by C&W. Thisis
unchanged from 31 December 2021.

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s portfolio was valued at £5,107m, a decline of £265m (4.9%) since 31 December 2021. This movement was
primarily due to revaluation losses of £282m and net disposals totalling £194m comprising mainly Silverburn and Victoria, being partly offset by
capital expenditure of £79m and favourable foreign exchange gains of £157m. Movements in the portfolio valuation are shown in the table below.

Movements in property valuation

Develop-

ments and Managed Value Group

Flagships other portfolio Retail portfolio

Proportionally consolidated including Value Retail £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2022 2,784 694 3,478 1,894 5,372
Revaluation losses a (168) (53) (221) (62) (282)
Revaluation losses of impaired joint venture b - (26) (26) - (26)

Capital expenditure 51 22 73 6 79

Reclassifications 206 (206) - - -

Capitalised interest - 1 1 - 1
Disposals as7) (7) (194) - (194)

Foreign exchange 102 7 109 48 157

At 31 December 2022 a 2,788 432 3,220 1,887 5,107

a Valuations and revaluation losses are further analysed in Table 9 of the Additional information.

b TheHighcross joint venture is excluded owing to the Group’s share of net losses after revaluation being restricted to £nilas described in note 13 tothe
financial statements.

During the year, capital expenditure on the managed portfolio was £73m and related mainly to the Les 3 Fontaines extension at Cergy, which
opened in March 2022, cladding works at Bullring and works to repurpose the former House of Fraser anchor unit at Dundrum, in additionto £15m
spent at Whitgift on acquiring the long leasehold and freehold interests. Table 11 of the Additionalinformation analyses the spend between the
creation of additional area and that relating to the enhancement of existing space.

The Les 3 Fontaines extension expenditure was recorded in the Developments and other portfolio prior to the extension being reclassified to the
Flagship portfolio upon opening.
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Revaluation losses

Excluding Highcross, we recognised a total net revaluation loss of £282m across the Group portfolio, comprising £221m in respect of the
managed portfolioand £61min Value Retail. £272m of the revaluation loss occurred in the second half of the year, the majority of which came
from a market driven yield shift of £154m in the second half of the year as aresult of higher interest rates which mostly occurred in the last quarter
0f 2022. The balance was principally due to the valuers reducing selective ERVs across the portfolio.

UK flagship destinations reported a revaluation deficit of £90m where half was due to an outward yield shift averaging 50 basis points with
the remainder due to selected ERV reductions. In France, yields were more stable with a 10 basis point outward movement, equivalent to
arevaluation deficit of £12m with the balance of £45m mainly due to ERV reductions. Ireland saw a positive movement in ERV most notably
at Dundrum, however this was more than offset by a 20 basis point outward yield shift which resulted in a net revaluation deficit of £20m.

Adeficit of £53m was recognised on the Developments and other portfolio of which £11m related to Croydon associated with lowerincome and
£13m related to the future development schemes in Dublin due to inflationary concerns over development costs.

Despite a continued strong post pandemic recovery in trading at Value Retailin the year, the portfolio recorded an overall revaluation loss of £61m,
of which £53m related to Bicester Village, driven by outward yield shifts.

Further valuation analysisis included in Table 9 of the Additional information.

Like-for-like ERV*

2022 2021
Flagship destinations % %
UK (3.8) (10.6)
France (1.6) (1.5)
Ireland 0.3 (3.0

(2.2) (6.7)

* Calculated onaconstant currency basis for properties owned throughout the relevant reporting period.

Like-for-like ERVs fell 2.2% during 2022 with most of the decrease occurring in the second half of the year following a broadly flat performance
in H1 where the decrease was only 0.3%.

UK ERVs were 3.8% lower, reflecting the investment to attract ‘best in class’ occupiers in certain of our managed portfolio, while ERVsin France
were marked down less at 1.6%.

InIreland, ERVs were up 0.3%, with Dundrum Town Centre reporting a 0.4% increase driven by the opening of Brown Thomas in the former
House of Fraser unitin February, with Penneys relocating into the remaining space in the first half of 2023, offset by small decreases at the
otherdestinations.
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Property returns analysis

The Group’s managed property portfolio generated a total property return of —2.3%, comprising an income return of +5.4% offset by a capital
return of =7.3%. Incorporating the income and capital returns from the Value Retail portfolio, this brought the Group’s income returnto +5.3% and
the capital return to—5.8%, to generate a total return of —=0.7% (2021: —3.9%).

2022
Develop-
Flagship mentsand Managed Value Group
UK France Ireland destinations other portfolio Retail portfolio
Proportionally consolidated % % % % % % % %
Incomereturn 7.9 4.8 5.2 6.0 2.3 5.4 5.3 5.3
Capital return (9.49) (4.6) (3.0) (5.9) (14.8) (7.3) 3.2 (5.8)
Totalreturn (2.3) - 21 (0.2) (12.8) (2.3) 2.0 0.7)
2021
Develop-
Flagship mentsand Managed Value Group
UK France Ireland  destinations other portfolio Retail portfolio
Proportionally consolidated % % % % % % % %
Incomereturn T 6.5 3.6 4.2 5.0 2.9 4.7 2.7 4.0
Capitalreturn T (16.3) (6.4) (7.8) (11.2) 9.1) (10.9) (0.6) (7.7)
Totalreturn T (10.8) (3.0 (3.9 (6.8) (6.6) 6.7) 21 (3.9

T 2021 figures have been restated to reflect the IFRIC Decision on Deposits with furtherinformation provided in note 16 to the financial statements and Tables 13
and 14 of the Additional information.

Shareholder returns analysis

Total Total
shareholder shareholder
return return
Cashbasis  Scrip basis Benchmarlg
a a
Return perannum over % % %
Oneyear (26.2) (15.1) (34.3)
Three years (44.0) 37.7) (12.4)
Five years (35.2) (30.8) (6.7)

a Cashand scrip bases represent the return assuming investors opted for either cash or scrip dividends with the assumption that those opting for scrip dividends

continued to hold the additional shares issued.
b Benchmarkisthe FTSE EPRA/NAREIT UK index.

Hammerson’s total shareholder return over one year for 2022 was -15.1% on a scrip basis (-26.2% on a cash basis), outperforming the FTSE

EPRA/NAREIT UK index of -34.3%. Over five years however the Group underperformed compared to the benchmark of -6.7% with shareholder

returns of -35.2% and -30.8% on a cash and scrip basis, respectively.

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

Details of the Group’s joint ventures and associates are shown in notes 13 and 14, respectively to the financial statements.

Reported Group
Joint ventures

During the year, ourinvestmentin joint ventures decreased to £1,342m (2021: £1,452m) where the most significant movements were the
Group’s share of net rental income of £96m offset by revaluation losses of £132m and cash distributions to the Group of £63m.

Associates

Ourinvestmentin associates increased to £1,297m (2021: £1,247m) of which the Group’s investment in Value Retail was £1,189m. Key
movements were in Value Retail where the Group’s share of earnings were offset by revaluation losses of £61m together with foreign exchange

gainsof £35m.
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TRADE RECEIVABLES

During 2020 and 2021, the intermittent closures of the majority of non-essential retail across all regions as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic,
coupled with the UK government’s restrictions on landlords’ ability to enforce collections, impacted collection rates and consequently, the level
oftrade receivables was high. To address these challenges, the Group put in place more rigorous procedures and clearer tracking of our trade
receivables combining involvement of our asset management, leasing and finance teams to maintain clear focus on collections.

Overthe course of the year, the underlying environment improved. This included the lifting of UK government restrictions on collections (in two
phases in March and September 2022) and although restrictions differed in France and Ireland, similarimprovements were also seen. The
combination of these changes together with management’s focus has meant that we have been able to reduce the provisioning rates for some
ageing categories of receivable. However, with the backdrop of macroeconomic uncertainties, we consider it premature to be extrapolating this
asatrend across all categories and accordingly our approach to provisioning remains cautious and prudent.

Gross trade (tenant) receivables on a proportionally consolidated basis totalled £74.1m (2021: £99.5m) against which a provision of £32.3m
(2021: £53.3m) has been applied. This provision represents 60% (2021: 76%) of trade receivables of £53.9m (2021: £70.5m) after excluding
tenant deposits, guarantees and VAT, although this also includes a provision of £1.6m (2021: £4.0m) in respect of income not yet recognised in
theincome statement owing to a technicalinterpretation of IFRS 9 as explained in note 10A to the financial statements. Further analysis is set out
below and in note 15 to the financial statements.

2022 2021

Trade Trade

receivables receivables

net of net of

deposits, deposits,
Grosstrade | guarantees Nettrade Grosstrade | guarantees Nettrade
receivables and VAT Provision receivables receivables and VAT Provision  receivables
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
UK 29.1 25.0 (12.5) 16.6 46.3 38.4 (27.2) 19.1
France 40.0 24.6 (17.2) 22.8 452 25.6 (21.7) 23.5
Ireland 5.0 4.3 (2.6) 2.4 8.0 6.5 4.4) 3.6
Managed portfolio 74.1 53.9 (32.3) 41.8 99.5 70.5 (53.3) 46.2

Share of Property interests (33.2) (27.3) 14.7 (18.4) (44.6) (36.8) 25.9 (18.7)

Reported Group 41.0 26.6 (17.6) 23.4 549 337 (27.4) 275

PENSIONS

On 8 December 2022, the Company and the Trustees of the Group’s principal defined benefit pension scheme (‘the Scheme’) entered into a bulk
purchase annuity policy (‘buy-in’) contract with Just Retirement Limited fora premium of £87.3m in respect of insuring all future payments to
existing pensioners of the Scheme at 9 December 2022. The pension buy-in transaction was funded through the existing investment assets held
by the Trustees on behalf of the pension scheme and the impact of this transaction is reflected in the IAS 19 valuation.

This material balance sheet de-risking exercise is in line with the Group’s long term strategy to reduce future volatility of the Group’s balance sheet.

FINANCING AND CASH FLOW

Financing strategy

Ourfinancing strategy is to borrow predominantly on an unsecured basis to maintain flexibility. Secured borrowings are occasionally used,
mainly in conjunction with joint venture partners. Value Retail also uses predominantly secured debt inits financing strategy. All secured debt
is non-recourse to the rest of the Group.

The Group’s borrowings are arranged to maintain access to short term liquidity and long term financing. Short term funding is principally

through syndicated revolving credit facilities. Long term debt comprises the Group’s fixed rate unsecured bonds and private placement notes.

At 31 December 2022, the Group also had secured borrowings in Value Retail and three of the Group’s joint ventures, although following the
placing of Highcross into receivership in February 2023, this has since reduced to two. Acquisitions may initially be financed using short term funds
before being refinanced with longer term funding depending on the Group’s financing position in terms of maturities, future commitments or
disposals, and market conditions.

Derivative financial instruments are used to manage exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates but are not
employed for speculative purposes.
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The Board reviews regularly the Group’s financing strategy and approves financing guidelines against which it monitors the Group’s financial
structure. Where there is any non-compliance with the guidelines, this should not be for an extended period but the Group always strives to

maintain an investment grade credit rating. The key financing metrics are set out below.

Key financial metrics

Calculation

(References

to Additional
Proportionally consolidated unless otherwise stated information) 2022 2021
Net debt T Table13 £1,732m £1,799m
Liquidity T £996m £1,478m
Weighted average interest rate 2.4% 3.0%
Weighted average maturity of debt 3.4years 4.lyears
FXhedging 91% 89%
Net debt: EBITDA T Table 16 10.4x 13.4x
Loan tovalue —Headline Table 18 39% 39%
Loan to value —Full proportional consolidation of Value Retail T Table 18 47% 46%

Metrics with associated financial covenants Covenant

Interest cover T >1.25x Table 17 3.24x 2.30x
Gearing—Selected bonds T <175% Table 19 68% 66%
—Other borrowings and facilities T <150% Table 19 68% 66%
Unencumbered asset ratio T >1.5x Table 20 1.74x 1.84x
Secured borrowings/equity shareholders’ funds <50% 15% 14%
Fixed rate debt as a proportion of total debt n/a 84% 85%

T 2021 figures have been restated to reflect the IFRIC Decision on Deposits with further information provided in notes 1B and 16 to the financial statements and

Tables 13 and 14 of the Additional information.

a Headline: Loan excludes Value Retail net debt and Value includes Value Retail net assets.
b Full proportional consolidation of VR: Loan includes Value Retail net debt and Value includes Value Retail property values.
¢ Applicable to bonds maturingin 2023, 2025 and 2027 (as set out in note 18 to the financial statements).

Credit ratings

Inrecognition of the Group’s strengthened financial position, Moody’s and Fitch’s senior unsecured investment grade credit ratings were

re-affirmed during the year as Baa3 and BBB+ respectively and outlooks from both rating agencies were changed from negative to stable.

Leverage

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s gearing was 68% (2021: 66%) and Headline loan to value ratio was 39% (2021: 39%).

The Group’s share of net debt in Value Retail totalled £675m (2021: £680m). Fully proportionally consolidating Value Retail’s net debt, the Group’s

loantovalue ratiowas 47% (2021: 46%).

Calculations for loan to value and gearing are set out in Tables 18 and 19 of the Additionalinformation, respectively.

Borrowings and covenants

The terms of the Group’s unsecured borrowings contain a number of covenants which provide protection to the lenders and bondholders as set
out inthe Key financial metrics table above. At 31 December 2022, the Group had significant headroom against these metrics.

Inaddition, some joint ventures and associates have secured debt facilities which include covenants specific to those properties, including
covenants for loan to value and interest cover, however, there is no recourse to the Group. At 31 December 2021, certain covenants on the secured

loan at the Highcross joint venture were in breach and an impairment of the full equity value was recognised at that time with the position

remainingat 31 December 2022, but as described in the overview above, going forward, Highcross will cease to be incorporated into the financial

statements following the appointment of a receiver on 9 February 2023.

Managing foreign exchange exposure

The Group’s exposure to foreign exchange translation differences on euro-denominated assets is managed through a combination of euro
borrowings and derivatives. At 31 December 2022, the value of euro-denominated liabilities as a proportion of the value of euro-denominated

assets was 91% compared with 89% at the beginning of the year. Interest on euro-denominated debt also acts as a partial hedge against

exchange differences arising on netincome from our overseas operations. Sterling weakened against the euro during the year by 5%.



STRATEGIC REPORT Hammerson plc Annual Report 2022 48
FINANCIALREVIEW continued

CASHFLOW AND NET DEBT
Proportionally consolidated net debt

Movement in proportionally consolidated net debt £m

1,900

1,800

1,700

1,600

1,500

1,400

1,300

Opening netdebt Disposals Cash generated Exchange Dividends Interest Capital Closing net debt
1 January 2022 from operations  and other (incl. redemption expenditure 31 December
costs) 2022

T Netdebtat1 January 2022 has been restated to reflect the IFRIC Decision on Deposits with further information provided in notes 1B and 16 to the financial
statements as wellas in Tables 13 and 14 of the Additionalinformation.

Ona proportionally consolidated basis, net debt decreased by 4% to £1,732m (2021: £1,799m). This comprised loans of £2,038m and the fair
value of currency swaps of £31m, less cash and cash equivalents of £336m, of which £219mis held by the Reported Group. Disposals during the
year generated net cash proceeds of £192m. Cash generated from operations of £166m comprised profit from operating activities of £129mand
£37m of movements in working capital and other non-cash items.

Refinancing

The Group completed significant refinancing during 2021, reinforcing the Group’s capital structure, including the refinancing of E1bn near term
bond maturities with a new €700m sustainability-linked bond and proceeds from disposals. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had anumber
of Revolving Credit Facilities (RCFs) in place with a total of £1,030m commitments expiring between April 2022 and April 2024. During 2022,
the following activities were undertaken to refinance and extend these facilities:

— £820m of facilities, comprising a £420m RCF with commitments expiring in 2023 and a £400m RCF with commitments expiring between
2023 t0 2024 were refinanced with anew £463m RCF expiring in April 2025, which may be extended to April 2027 at the latest, subject to
both lenderand borrower consent. A further £10m of commitments expired in April 2022

— £100mand JPY7.7bn (£49m) of RCF commitments expiring in June 2024 were extended to a new expiry in June 2025. The remaining £50m
of commitments with an expiry of June 2024 remain unchanged

— €235.5meurobonds due 2023 were repaid on 16 December 2022 using available cash

Following these changes, committed facilities were reduced by £368m from £1,030m at 31 December 2021 to £662m at 31 December 2022
with £2m utilised to support ancillary facilities. This will result in an interest cost saving of £0.8m per annum in undrawn commitment fees whilst
maintaining a strong balance sheet and extending the maturities of remaining commitments.

Inaddition, further to the £297m of private placement notes repaid in 2021, notes totalling £42m were repaid early at parin April 2022, saving
£0.9m of interest on an annualised basis.

Liquidity

The Group’s liquidity at 31 December 2022, calculated on a proportionally consolidated basis comprising cash of £336m and unutilised committed
facilities of £660m, was £996m, £482m lower than at the beginning of the year. This was primarily due to the £368m reduction in RCF committed
facilities, the €236m early repayment of the Group’s 2023 eurobond being partially offset by the retention of cash proceeds from disposals.
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Debt and facility profile
Maturity profile of loans and facilities

Proportionally consolidated £m

1,200
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2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031

M Euro bonds M Sterling bonds Senior notes M Secured debt ! Unutilised facilities

The Group’s weighted average maturity is 3.4 years (2021: 4.1 years). The maturity of 2024 private placements are covered by existing cash with
the Group having no further unsecured debt maturities until 2025.

Maturity analysis of loans and reconciliation to net debt

2022 2021
Loan Maturity £m £m
Sterling bonds 2025-2028 846.4 845.4
Sustainability linked eurobond 2027 612.3 578.3
Eurobonds 2023 a - 197.4
Bank loans and overdrafts 2023 b 3.2 (2.7)
Senior notes (US Private Placements) 2024-2031 190.8 216.4
Total loans — Reported Group 1,646.4 1,834.8
Share of Property interests 2023-2024 391.6 374.3
Total loans — proportionally consolidated 2,038.0 2,209.1
Cash and cash equivalents (336.5) (454.4)
Fairvalue of currency swaps 30.6 441
Net debt 1,732.1 1,798.8

a Redeemedin December 2022 using available cash resources, following the exercise of an early redemption option.
b Debit balance comprises unamortised fees for RCFs against which no funds had been drawn at the year ends.
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Risks and Uncertainties

Risk overview

2022 was amixed year from arisk perspective.
The post pandemic period resulted in a steady
recovery in footfall and collections, and the
Group’s strong leasing performance has
reduced vacancy levels. These positive trends
contrast with the heightened level of
macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty,
primarily related to the ongoing war in Ukraine,
and the associated economic challenges on
both consumers and businesses from high
inflation, rising interest rates and supply

chain pressures.

Throughout the year, the Board maintained its
focus on ensuring the Group was effectively
managing its risks. Thisincluded a thorough
review exercise involving the Audit Committee
and senior management, coveringthe Group’s
risks and the associated mitigations. This
resulted ina number of changes to the Group’s
principal risks to better reflect how the Group’s
strategy and markets are evolving. It also
involved splitting some existing principal risks
into separately identifiable new risks where it
was deemed that each risk was significantly
material to the Group on a stand-alone basis.
The outcome of the exercise was subsequently
reviewed and approved by the Board.

Given the changing risk environment, the
residual risk level of each principal risk was
alsore-assessed. This resulted in anincreased
residual risk assessment for three principal
risks and a reduction for three risks. Work was
also undertaken to develop a stronger
assurance programme aligned to the principal
risks. The programme will be expanded in
2023 along with greater efforts to promote
risk awareness across the Group.

The Board confirms that during 2022 it has
carried out arobust assessment of the Group’s
emerging and principal risks, including
mitigations, which are presented in this section
ofthe Annual Report.

Governance

The Group’s approach to risk management is
designed to enable the business to deliver its
strategic objectives while effectively managing
differing levels of uncertainty which directly
impact the Group’s activities.

The Group adopts atop-down and bottom-up
approach to ensure comprehensive risk
identification and risk appetite is clearly
defined. This allows the Group to respond
quickly to changes inits risk profile and
ensures risk management is factored into

strategic decision making whilstembedding
astrong risk management culture amongst
colleagues with clear roles and accountability.

Top-down

The key roles and responsibilities for the
Group’s risk management are shown in the
Risk governance structure chart.

The Board has overall responsibility for risk
oversightand determining the Group’s
approach to managing financial, regulatory,
operational and reputational risk. Itensures
that effective risk management is integrated
throughout the business and embedded
withinthe Group’s policies, processes, culture
andvalues.

The Board also sets the Group’s risk appetite
toensure that risks are managed within certain
parameters with efficient use of resource.
Where controllable risks are outside the
Group’s risk appetite, the Board seeks to
manage these down by implementing
appropriate mitigations wherever possible.
The Board ensures each year that its risk
appetiteis consistent with its strategy.

The Audit Committee supports the Board in
the oversight of risk and is responsible for
reviewing the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system over
the course of the year, as well as overseeing
the Group’s Internal Audit activity.

The Group Executive Committee has overall
accountability for the management of risks
across the business.

Bottom-up

The effective day-to-day management of risk
isembedded within our operational business
teams. This aligns risk management with
operational responsibility. It also allows potential
new risks to be identified at an early stage and
escalated as appropriate, such that required
mitigating actions can be putin place.

Internal Audit acts as an independent
assurance function by evaluating the
effectiveness of our risk management and
internal control processes.

Through this approach the Group operates

a ‘three lines of defence” model of risk
management, with operational management
forming thefirst line, the Risk Management
team forming the second line, and finally
Internal Audit as the third line of defence.
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Risk review process

The Group’s key risks are derived from a
systematic review of the Group’s strategic
priorities, and recurring work with senior
management and business teams to identify
and quantify key risks. These are reviewed
and monitored during the year by the Group
Executive Committee, the Audit Committee
and approved annually by the Board.

The Group’s principalrisks are defined as
those likely to significantly affect the Group’s
strategic objectives, operations, or financial
performance if not effectively managed.
Therisks are classed as either ‘external’ risks,
where market factors are the main influence
on change, or ‘operational’ risks which, while
subject to externalinfluence, are moreinthe
controlof management. The level of residual
risk for each principal risk is assessed taking
account of the likelihood of occurrence and
potentialimpact on the Group, and also
applicable mitigating actions. The assessment
ofthe Group’s principal risks at the date of this
reportis shown on the Residual Risk heat map.

To support the assessment process, the Group
produces a quarterly Risk Dashboard which
comprises several key risk indicators, both
historic and forward-looking, for each principal
risk. Therisk indicators help identify whether
those risks are changing and hence whether
mitigating actions need to be amended.

In 2022, the annual exercise to formalise the
Board’s risk appetite found that the Board and
senior management were aligned in their risk
appetite for each principal risk. It is noted that
there are two principal risks where the current
residualrisk rating is deemed ‘high’ as shown
onthe Residual Risk Heat Map. This assessment
is largely due to external factors beyond
management’s control, although there are
clear mitigating actions to complete which
will reduce the current risk assessment.

New and emerging risks

New and emerging risks are a particular area of
focus, and are explicitly considered as part of
theregular risk review process explained above.
Furtheridentification work is undertaken by
the Risk team by reviewing internal activities
and externalinsights, covering both the real
estate and wider commercial sectors. During
the yeara number of potential emerging risks
were highlighted including catastrophic
events, the development planning process,
political risk, the ongoing war in Ukraine and
financial crime compliance.



Risk governance structure

Risk
Governance

Top-down
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Management
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identification,
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prioritisation
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risksatan
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level Risk
Ownership

Onreview, it was determined that these were
appropriately captured by the Group’s existing
principal risks, or were not significant enough
tobe deemeda new principal risk.

As part of the annual risk review, the Board
therefore concluded that no significant
emerging risks have beenidentified in 2022.

Assurance activity

As explained in the Audit Committee Report,
the Audit Committee approves the annual
Internal Audit plan. The planis designed to
coveranumber of the Group’s principal risks,
with afocus onthose with an elevated
residual risk relative to risk appetite or where
activities are undergoing significant change.
Inadditionitincludes cyclical reviews of key
financial controls.

The scope and finalised audit reports are
reviewed by the Group Executive Committee
and Audit Committee, and agreed actions are
monitored to completion.

Audit
Committee

Group
Executive
Committee

Risk
Management

Internal
Audit

Teamsand
colleagues

—Setsrisk culture and appetite

—1stline of defence

—Embeds risk appetite
—Reviews risk mitigation activities

—2ndline of defence

and emerging risks

—3rd line of defence

Changes to principal risks during the year
As explained above, following a detailed
review it was decided that three of the existing
principal risks should be separated out into six
individual risks. This was because each new
risk was deemed to be significantly material to
the Group on astand-alone basis to warrant
being separately identified. The changes were
asfollows:

— The ‘Retail market and valuations’ risk was
splitinto: ‘Retail market’ and ‘Investment
market and valuations’

— The ‘Catastrophic event’ risk was split into:
‘Health and safety’ and ‘Cyber security’

— The ‘Taxand regulatory’ risk was splitinto:
‘Tax’ and ‘Legal and regulatory compliance’

Otherchanges in the residual risk assessment

forthe Group’s principal risks during 2022 were:

Increaseinrisk

Macroeconomic (risk A): The nearterm
macroeconomic outlook worsened during
2022 due to geopoliticalissues, primarily
related to the ongoing warin Ukraine.

This resulted in rising inflation and interest
rates and supply chain pressures, which
had an adverse impact on both consumers
and businesses.
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—Overall responsibility for risk management
—Sets overall risk framework for the Group

— Considers and approves risk and controls work undertaken by Audit Committee

— Reviews effectiveness of risk management frameworks
—Oversight of system of internal control

— Approves 3rd line assurance activity by Internal Audit
—Reviews going concern and viability

— Reviews climate risk and TCFD compliance

—Manages risk day-to-day through policy, process and people

—Works with management to identify principal risks, considering current

—Monitors and reports on key risk indicators
—Monitors risks and mitigations against risk appetite

—Designs and delivers the internal audit plan
— Provide assurance on effectiveness of the risk programme, testing key controls
—Tracks and verifies completion of agreed audit actions

—Identifies, evaluates and mitigates operational risks
—Responsible for operating effectiveness of key controls
—Monitors risks assigned to each team, including escalation of emerging risks

Non-retail/multi-use markets (risk G): Higher
costs, interest rates and softer valuation yields
have adversely impacted non-retail sectors,
which are targeted as key components of a
number of the Group’s future developments/
asset repurposing plans.

Capital structure (risk J): The macroeconomic
challenges explained above and UK political
issues resulted in financial market instability,
particularly inthe second half of 2022. This
saw increased bond spreads and restrictions
on the availability of borrowing, particularly
for retail property. These adverse changes
have been partly mitigated through refinancing
activity and disposals, and the Group has

no unsecured refinancing required until

2025 which are not covered by available

cash balances.

Decreaseinrisk

Climate (risk D): ESG remains a high area of
focus for the Group’s stakeholders. During
2022 we made significant progress to address
this risk with the key achievement being the
completion of Net Zero Asset Plans (NZAPs)
foreach of the Group’s flagship assets.

These contain a clear pathway for the Group
toachieve itscommitment to be Net Zero

by 2030.
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Residual Risk Heat Map
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Note: Arrows indicate change in risk since 2021 Annual Report.

Transformation (risk M): Substantial progress
was made in 2022 on the Group’s transformation
programme. This progress has reduced the
impact of this risk. However, the likelihood of
issues has increased as these initiatives go-live
in 2023 and will require significant effort to
transition to new ways of working.

People (risk N): 2021 saw an elevated People
risk as aresult of the Covid-19 pandemic and
significant organisational restructuring
towards the end of the year. These issues were
actively managed during 2022 with new team
structures embedded and strong progress
made towards the Group’s strategic objective
of creating an agile platform.

These changes are shown on the Residual Risk
Heat Map above.

Climaterisk

Further details on thisimportant risk area are
in the detailed risk section below, inthe ESG
sectionon page 25 and the Group’s separate
2022 ESG Report and Databook available on
the Group’s website www.hammerson.com.

Future outlook

The impact of external factors continues to be
the main concern for the Group, particularly
given the heightened levels of macroeconomic
uncertainty towards the end of 2022.

Nonetheless, the successful delivery of the
Group’s strategic objectives will act to reduce
the level of residual risk and ensure the longer
term success and viability of the Group for the
benefit of all stakeholders.
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Risk movement
® Increased
® Decreased
® No change

® New

Link to strategy

1 Reinvigorate our assets
2 Accelerate development
3 Createanagile platform
q

Deliverasustainable and
resilient capital structure

A MACROECONOMIC
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B RETAILMARKET (NEW)

Residual risk: High

Linktostrategy: 1,2,4

Adverse changes to the macroeconomic environment in which we
operate have the potential to hinder our financial performance and our
ability to deliver our strategy.

Risk Mitigations
— Diversified portfolio (sectors, geography and occupiers)
— Flagship destinations in the heart of major European cities

— Nearterm debt maturities fully covered by existing cash reserves
with limited capital commitments

— Balance sheet strengthened over recent years with strategy and
track record of divesting of non-core assets

— Value Retail Villages in affluent areas with strong tourist appeal
— Monitoring of macroeconomic research and forecasts
— Economic outlook incorporated into annual Business Plan

— Continue strategic divestment and development programme
to decrease market and sector risk as well as increase balance
sheetstrength

— Ongoing transformation programme to enhance organisational
agility, and process efficiency and automation to minimise fixed
cost base

Changeinyear @

Despiteinitial positive signs of recovery post pandemicin 2022,
adeterioration in the macroeconomic environment during the year
caused primarily by rising inflation, higher interest rates, supply chain
constraints, and geopolitical uncertainty significantly slowed economic
growth, with the UK forecast to potentially enter a recession in 2023.

This backdrop has resulted in weaker consumer confidence and falling
disposalincomes associated with the cost of living crisis and these
challenges are forecast to continue into 2023.

Residual risk: Medium Linktostrategy: 1,4

Inthe context of the ever evolving retail market place, the Group fails
toanticipate and address structural market changes. This will impair
leasing performance, result in a sub-optimal occupier mix and thus
impact our ability to attract visitors, maximise footfall/spend, and grow
income at our properties.

Risk Mitigations
— Diversified portfolio limits impact of downturn or major market
change inasingle market

— High quality, diversified tenant base with weighted average lease
termtofirst break of 4.3 years

— Disposal programme to focus core portfolio on key city centre
destinations and provide capital for repurposing space away from
challenged retail categories

— Greaterdatainsights and analytical capabilities including regular
catchmentand occupier analysis

— Improved leasing process and policy to betteralign to occupierand
visitor requirements

— Cleardelegation of authority with Group Management Committee
(GMC) scrutinising all significant leasing transactions

— Recruited new talent to accelerate initiatives around placemaking,
marketing and repositioning of our assets

— Asset-centricorganisational structure to ensure leasing team
fully aligned with asset management team with approved
property strategies

— Innovation through food and social, and services opportunities
reducing exposure to retail market

— Digitalinnovation strategy to provide detailed customerinsight and
communication with our customers

— Useof short term ‘temporary’ leases to enhance tenant mix, reduce
vacancy costs and incubate new brands

— Active engagement with key brand partners to collaborate on
reducing environmental impacts

Changeinyear @®

The physical retail market has recovered strongly from the Covid-19
pandemic over the course of 2022. Anumber of high profile online
retailers have struggled during the year, with true omni-channel
retailers increasing their market share.

2022 has seen avery strong leasing performance, with £25m of rent
secured and over half of leases signed with non-fashion brands.

While the macroeconomic backdrop is adversely impacting consumers,
the UK business rates revaluation has been favourable for the vast
majority of our tenants who continue to seek the optimal trading
locations. Overall, our strong leasing pipeline and prime flagship
portfolio gives us confidence in the future of physical retail.
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C INVESTMENT MARKET AND VALUATIONS (NEW)
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D CLIMATE

Residual risk: Medium Linktostrategy: 1,2,4

Investor appetite for retail assets is reduced due to macroeconomic or
retail market factors including increased borrowing costs, economic
downturn, and consumer and occupier confidence. This will adversely
impact property valuations and also risk hindering the Group’sin flight
disposal plans. This in turn would reduce the availability of funds for
reinvestmentin our core assets and/or refinancing debt.

Risk Mitigations
— Diversified portfolio limits impact of downturn in a single market

— Portfolio focuses on high quality flagship destinations in the heart
of major European cities

— Value Retail operate best-in-class premium outlets across Western
Europe with high tourist appeal

— In-flight disposals programme of non-core assets

— Strong leasing performance and pipeline to maintain security
ofincome

— Asset level ESG plansin place with future improvement initiatives
planned to ensure alignment with investors’ environmental
expectations

— Maintenance of solid capital structure prevents forced sales

Changeinyear ()

The value of the Group’s property portfolio was broadly unchanged
inthefirst half of the year. However, in the second half of the year the
heightened level of macroeconomic uncertainty and the associated
increase in interest rates and rising costs for consumerand
business adversely impacted the Group’s valuations. This adverse
macroeconomic backdrop is forecast to hamper investor sentiment
and hence nearterm property valuation performance. Therefore,
the level of residual risk for this newly created stand-alone risk
remains elevated.

Residual risk: Medium

Linktostrategy: 1,2,4

Climate risks, particularly the reduction in carbon emissions and
compliance with ESG regulations, are not appropriately managed
and communicated. This is likely to adversely impact valuations and
investor sentiment and may result in an increased final year bond
coupon ifthe Group’s sustainability linked bond targets are not met.
Also, extreme weather events may impact our properties.

Risk Mitigations

— Clearaction planand quarterly updates provided to Group Executive
Committee and regular updates provided to Audit Committee
and Board

— NetZero Asset Plans in place for all flagship assets

— Established sustainability governance structure, from asset to
Board level, monitoring of key sustainability metrics, including
performance and management of climate-related legislative and
regulatory risk

— Senior management and Board provided with TCFD training

— Experienced sustainability team designs and implements our
sustainability strategy in collaboration with the wider business

— Regularengagement with investors and across the wider property
industry on ESG matters

— IS0 accredited Energy and Environment Management System
implemented across the Group (ISO 14000 everywhere and
I1SO 50001 inthe UKand Ireland)

— Insurancein place to cover property damage

Changeinyear ©

ESG remains a high area of focus for the Group’s stakeholders and
significant progress was made during 2022 to enhance the execution
ofthe Group’s ESG strategy. The key improvement was the completion
of Net Zero Asset Plans (NZAPs) for each of the Group’s flagship
destinations which contain a clear pathway to net zero for each asset
and have beenincludedin the 2023 Business Plans.

Our climate risk approach has been guided by the Task Force on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) recommendations since
2018, reporting publicly in line with them since 2020.

During 2022, the Group’s physical and transitional climate risks and
mitigations were reviewed against three different climate scenarios
aligned with CRREM pathways for future global temperature increases
0f 1.5°C, 2°C and 4°C. The review focused primarily on the 1.5°C and
2°C scenarios with updated mitigations including four new risks added
tothe Group’s transition plans.
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E TAX(NEW)
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F LEGAL AND REGULATORY COMPLIANCE (NEW)

Residual risk: Medium

Link to strategy: 4

The Group suffers financial loss and reputational damage froma new or
increased tax levy or due to non-compliance with local tax legislation.

Risk Mitigations
— Focus on maintenance of the Group’s low risk tax status

— Regular meetings with key officials and local tax authorities,
including from HMRC and government

— Regulartax compliance reviews and audits across the Group
— Monitoring and advanced planning for future tax changes

— Potentialamendments or re-interpretations to tax laws and their
application to the Group are regularly monitored and, if relevant,
appropriately reflected in the financial statements. Any necessary
actions are taken to ensure ongoing efficiency while remaining fully
incompliance with regulations

— Participationin policy consultations and in industry led dialogue with
policy makers through bodies such as REVO, BPF, EPRA

Changeinyear

This risk was previously included with “Taxand regulation” and judged
tobe aMedium riskand the new ‘Tax’ risk has also been judged at this
risk level.

Tax laws that apply to the Group’s businesses continue to be subject to
amendment or change by the relevant authorities and in 2022 the UK
Government introduced business rates changes which benefits the
majority of the Group’s UK tenants.

Residual risk: Medium Linktostrategy: 1,2,4

The failure to comply with existing laws and regulations relevant to the
Group, orto adapt to changes in these requirements in atimely fashion,
could result in the Group suffering reputational damage and/or financial
penalties. These laws and regulations cover the Group’s role as a
multi-jurisdiction listed company; an owner and operator of property;
anemployer; and as adeveloper.

Risk Mitigations

— Specialistinternal functional support and external advisors engaged
toassist and provide advice on the ongoing managementand
assessment of legal and regulatory risk

— Implementing appropriate and proportionate policies and
procedures designed to capture relevant regulatory and legal
requirements

— Internal systems and processes for the monitoring of compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements and for the escalation of
relevantitems

— Maintaining constructive and positive relationships and dialogue
with regulatory bodies and authorities

— Advanced warning of regulatory changes likely to impact the Group
together with ongoing engagement with external advisers on the
relevant regulatory horizon

— Advanced monitoringand planning for future regulatory changes
and responding inarisk-based and proportionate mannerto any
changes tothe legal and regulatory environment as well as those
driven by strategic orcommercial initiatives

— Where appropriate, participation in policy consultations and in
industry led dialogue with policy makers through bodies such as
REVO, BPF, EPRA

— Delivering relevant training to colleagues, including anti-bribery
and corruption, data protection and information security. This is
augmented by tailored training to relevant individuals in key areas.

Changeinyear @®

This risk was previously included within ‘Tax and regulation’ and judged
tobe aMediumriskand the new ‘Legal and regulatory compliance’ risk
hasalso been judged at this risk level.

The legal and regulatory landscape has remained broadly stable
throughout the year. We continue to closely monitor the regulatory
environment and respond to new requirements to ensure compliance.



STRATEGIC REPORT
RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES continued

G NON-RETAIL/MULTI-USE MARKETS
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H CYBERSECURITY (NEW)

Residual risk: Medium Linktostrategy: 1,2,4

The Group fails to target the optimal (non-retail) property sectors
forfuture developments or repurposing, or has insufficient access
to capital and the skills required to deliver its urban estates vision.
Occupier or investor demand for non-retail sectors weakens or
evolves such that the Group’s development and repurposing plans
are sub-optimal.

Risk Mitigations

— Engagement with experts and/or advisors to gain a deeper
understanding of alternative sectors and systematically identify
which developments will result in the greatest returnand alignment
with the assets

— Asset-centric visions developed for key urban estates to ensure new
development complements existing flagship assets and enhances
local communities

— The Board approves all major commitments and performs formal
development reviews twice-yearly

— Development plans include monitoring of macro and local economic
research and trends

— Operational activities, talent and systems aligned with the delivery
ofthe Group’s future strategic objectives and a diversified portfolio

— Hiring of experienced leaders and managers with multi-use and city
centre development experience and backgrounds

Changeinyear &

The residual risk profile is judged to have increased to a Medium level
of risk during 2022 due to the adverse macroeconomic environment,
particularly the increased cost of borrowing. This has seen anincrease
invaluation yields and to a lesser extent a decrease in occupier demand
inthe office, logistics and residential sectors.

Nonetheless, we remain confident that we have clear steps to realise
value from the Group’s development pipeline and existing properties
through both development and repurposing activity and in the longer
termthrough integration across the broader urban estates.

Residual risk: Medium

Linktostrategy: 3

The Group’s information technology systems fail or are subject toan
attack which breaches theirtechnological defences. A failure could
lead to operational disruption, financial demands or reputational
damage due to assets being brought down and/or loss of commercially
sensitive data.

Risk Mitigations

— Cyber controls framework and cyber strategy implemented and
validated by EY

— IS0 27001 aligned cyber policies setting out standards for
penetration testing, vulnerability testing, patch management,
access controland data loss prevention

— Implementation of Cisco Umbrella software to enable same level
of security in remote working locations

— Cybertraining forall colleagues and advanced training for higher
riskindividuals, as well as periodic cyber awareness campaigns

— Cyberincident response plansin place
— Extensive use of multiple cloud-based systems

— Cyberdashboard reviewed quarterly by the Group Executive
Committee with updates also provided to the Audit Committee
and Board

Changeinyear

Cyber security is a new stand-alone risk in the year, having previously
been captured in ‘Catastrophic event’ risk. The residual risk has been
determined to be Medium.

This assessment recognises the multiple mitigations the Group has

in place to detect and prevent cyber attacks. Nonetheless it is reflective
ofthe high level of cyber attacks occurring globally as a result of the
rapidly evolving technological landscape and uncertainty in the
geopolitical sphere.



Risk movement
® Increased
® Decreased
® No change

® New

Link to strategy

1 Reinvigorate our assets
2 Accelerate development
3 Createanagile platform
q

Deliverasustainable and
resilient capital structure

I HEALTHAND SAFETY (NEW)
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J CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Residual risk: Medium

Link tostrategy: 1,2

Thereis aserious work related injury, death and/or ill health to our
colleagues, customers or contractors, and anyone else who visits our
properties or premises. This may be due to the Group’s actions or
activities, or from external threats such as terrorism. In addition an
incident or public health issue, such as a pandemic, is likely to have an
adverse operationalimpact. Also, there is insufficient insight into health
and safety risks and mitigations with a failure to embed a strong safety
culture whichincreases the Group’s exposure to reputational damage,
fines and sanctions.

Risk Mitigations
— Health and safety ISO 45001 management system with annual
external compliance audits

— Physical security measures implemented and regularly reviewed

— Dialogue with security agencies to assess local and national threat
levels and best practice

— Onlineincidentand risk management tool for UK and Ireland and
incident management in France

— Online CAFM and ePermit system to manage contractors, planned
maintenance and statutory compliance

— Formalised hierarchy of health and safety roles and responsibilities
forallassets and offices including core crisis group for dealing with
majorincidents

— Legal, regulatory and other updates are captured by the Health and
Safety Manager

— Health and safety training programme in place for all onsite and
corporate new starters

— Onsite quarterly health and safety meetings. Monthly operational
meetings with weekly reports to senior management and anannual
update to the Board

— Appropriate insurance cover, including for terrorism and
property damage

Changeinyear

Health and safety is a new risk in the year having previously been
captured in ‘Catastrophic event’ risk. The Group has a continued focus
on operational safety and in 2022 we retained our strong safety record
with only three RIDDOR incidents (2021: two) and had no ‘intolerable’
risks at yearend.

Whilst we remain confident that we have appropriate mitigation actions
in place to effectively manage this risk, the residual risk has been
determined to be Medium. This reflects the potential seriousness that
amajor health and safety incident occurring at one of our properties
could have for the Group.

Residual risk: Medium Linktostrategy: 1,2,4

Lack of access to capital on attractive terms could lead to the Group
having insufficient liquidity to enable the delivery of the Group’s
strategic objectives.

Risk Mitigations
— Board approves and monitors key financing guidelines and metrics
and all major investment approvals supported by a financing plan

— Proactive treasury planning to monitor covenant compliance;
where necessary, negotiate waivers and amendments; access debt
markets when available prior to debt maturities to facilitate early
refinancing; and ensure adequate liquidity is maintained relative
todebt maturities

— Proactive engagement with ratings agency to support maintenance
of Investment grade rating

— Annual Business Plan includes a financing plan, scenario modelling
and covenant stress tests

— Ability to access green/sustainability financing markets, as
evidenced by 2021 €700m sustainability-linked bond

— Continueto pursue disposals of non-core properties and tightly
control new cost commitments to reduce net debt and lower LTV

— Interest rate and currency hedging programmes used to mitigate
market volatility

Changeinyear @

Theresidual risk assessment has increased during 2022, although
remains ata Medium level. This movement reflects the heightened
volatility infinancial markets with higher bond spreads and interest
rates, particularly in the second half of the year.

These adverse external factors have been partly offset by actions taken
duringthe yearincluding the renewal of the Group’s revolving credit
facilitiesand £195m of disposals. This has resulted ina £67m, or 4%
reduction in net debt overthe course of 2022 and the Group has no
unsecured refinancing required until 2025 which is not covered by
existing cash balances.



STRATEGIC REPORT
RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES continued

K PARTNERSHIPS

Residual risk: High

Linktostrategy: 1,2,3,4

Asignificant proportion of the Group’s properties are held in conjunction
with third parties which has the potential to limit our ability to
implement the Group’s strategy and reduces our control and therefore
liquidity if partners are not strategically aligned.

Risk Mitigations
— Track record of working effectively with diverse range of partners

— Agreements provide liquidity for partners while protecting the
Group’sinterests including pre-emption rights and provisions

— Annualjointventure business plans ensure operationaland
strategic alignment

— Regularreporting and meetings with joint venture partners to track
performance and maintain alignment

— Proactive covenant monitoring and negotiations with secured
lenders to manage covenant stress and breaches

— The Group operates significantinfluence through governance rights
and Board representation for its Value Retail investments

— Value Retailis subject to local external audit and valuations, with
oversight by the Audit Committee and the Group’s External Auditor

— Value Retail provide prescribed reporting to the Group ona monthly
and quarterly basis

Changeinyear @

While the Group sold its 50% interest in Silverburn during the year,
the proportion of the Group’s jointly held assets by value remained
unchanged at 74%.

This position is contrary to the Group’s strategy of simplification and
creating an agile operating platform focused on a select number of core
urban estates and development opportunities. The overall residual risk
assessment remains as High given the high concentration of jointly held
assets, and the size of the Group’s holding in Value Retail.
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L PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT
Residual risk: Medium

Linktostrategy: 1,2,4

Property development is inherently risky due to its complexity,
management intensity and uncertain outcomes, particularly for major
schemes with multiple phases and long delivery timescales. Unsuccessful
projects result in adverse financial and reputational outcomes.

Risk Mitigations
— Utilise expertise and track record of developing iconic destinations

— Development plans and exposure included inannual business
planning process

— Group’s development pipeline provides flexible future delivery
options, such as phasing, and requires limited near term
expenditure to progress to the next decision stages

— Board approves all major commitments and performs formal
development reviews twice-yearly

— Capital expenditure is subject to a strict appraisal process which
defines the key investment criteria, the risk assessment process,
key stakeholders, and appropriate delegations of authority

Changeinyear @

While cost inflation and ongoing supply chain issues have adversely
impacted the broader property development market, we remain
confident overthe Group’s ability to realise future value from our
numerous development opportunities.

In 2022, we commenced works on The Ironworks, a122-unit
residential scheme directly adjacent to Dundrum. We also achieved
key milestones at schemes in Dublin, Reading and Birmingham.



Risk movement
® Increased

Link to strategy
1 Reinvigorate our assets

2 Accelerate development ® Decreased
3 Createanagile platform @ Nochange
4 Deliverasustainable and ® New

resilient capital structure

M TRANSFORMATION
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N PEOPLE

Residual risk: Medium

Link to strategy: 3

The Groupfails to deliver its strategic objective of creating an agjle platform
due to sub-optimal transformation projects. Other issues could arise due
totransformation initiatives being delivered late, overbudget or causing
significant disruption to business-as-usual activity.

Risk Mitigations
— Strong governance by Board and senior management to oversee
transformation programme including scope, timings and costs

— Implementation of a strong change management programme

— Fullmanagement and communications engagement to motivate
colleagues to drive transformation agenda

— Use of external expertise to leverage best practise and support
existing teams to deliver various initiatives

— Use of standard project delivery methodologjes
— Prioritisation of solutions to avoid stress and conflicts

— Engagement with process and business owners to scope and deliver
optimal solutions

Changeinyear ©

Substantial progress on the transformation programme has been made
in 2022. Key achievements included the consolidation of UK property
management services to a single supplier and the planning and
selection of anumber of IT projects which will go-live in 2023. This
progress has reduced the impact of this risk.

However, as key projects commence or go-live, change management
becomes a critical element of the transformation programme to ensure
success and the likelihood of transition issues increases.

Residual risk: Medium Link to strategy: 3

Afailure to retain or recruit key management and other colleagues to
build skilled and diverse teams could adversely impact operationaland
corporate performance, culture and ultimately the delivery of the
Group’s strategy. As the Group evolves its strategy it must continue

to motivate and retain people, ensure it offers the right colleague
proposition and attract new skills ina changing market.

Risk Mitigations
— Recent refresh of the Group’s purpose, vision and values

— Annual business planning process includes people plans covering
team structures, training, and talent management initiatives

— Succession planning undertaken across the senior management
team and direct reports

— Trainingand development programmes and twice-yearly formal
colleague appraisal process

— Active colleague forum to enable formal Board engagement with
feedback incorporated in management plans

— Affinity groups established to promote diversity, equality and inclusion
— Regulartailored colleague surveys to gain feedback

Changeinyear

2021 saw an elevated People risk as a result of the impact of the
Covid-19 pandemic and significant organisational restructuring
towards the end of the year. The effects of the restructuring have been
actively managed during 2022 with enhanced activity on colleague
engagement and communications.

This has led to adecrease in the level of residual risk, although the risk
remains as Medium reflecting the elevated level of voluntary colleague
turnover and risks associated with the Group’s transformation agenda
with the continuing focus on cost reduction.



STRATEGIC REPORT
VIABILITY STATEMENT

Overview
The Directors have assessed the future viability
ofthe Group.

The assessment factors in the latest economic,
trading and market outlook, including
geopolitical uncertainty, primarily related to
the ongoing war in Ukraine, and the associated
economic challenges facing both consumers
and businesses from high inflation, rising
interest rates and supply chain pressures.

The Group has a clear strategy, announced in
August 2021, with four strategic pillars:

— Reinvigorate our assets
— Accelerate development
— Createan agile platform

— Deliverasustainable and resilient capital
structure

These pillars are underpinned by the Group’s
commitment to ESG and the Group has made
progressin all these areas during 2022. Details
of this progress, including details of 2023
strategic priorities and outlook, are explained
inthe Chief Executive’s Statementandin the
Our strategy and KPIs section.

Assessment of prospects

Toassess the Group’s viability the Directors
have considered the strong operationaland
financial performance in 2022, the Group’s
current capital structure, strategy and future
prospects, and principal risks.

2022 financial and operational
performance

The Group increased its year-on-year adjusted
earnings by 60%, through improved revenue,
lower property costs boosted by the reversal of
credit losses from stronger collections. Footfall
also steadily improved over the course of the
year, and tenant sales were back at pre-
pandemic levels.

Administration and net financing costs were
alsolower by 17% and 25% respectively.
Reducing administration costs continues to
be a key area of focus with costs reduced due
to lower headcount, IT, insurance and
professional fees. Finance costs were lower
dueto recent refinancing activity, reduced net
debtand higherinterestincome from cash
deposits and derivatives.

Value Retail has achieved a strong operational
recoveryin 2022, with the Group’s share of
adjusted earnings being £27m, 72% higher
than 2021.

Capitalstructure

From a balance sheet perspective the Group
completed £195m of disposals, £463m of
new revolving credit facilities and Value Retail
refinanced over £1bn of loans, including those
secured against La Vallée and Bicester Villages.

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s net debt,
excluding Value Retail, was £1,732m, £67m or
4% lowerthan at the start of the year, withan
average debt maturity profile of 3.4 years. The
Group has liquidity of £996m, reflecting cash
of £336m and unutilised committed revolving
credit facilities (RCFs) of £660m meaning that
the Group has no unsecured debt maturities
not covered by available cash balances until
2025. The RCFs currently mature over the
period to June 2025 and contain options,
subjectto lender consent, which could extend
theminto 2026 and 2027.

Inaddition, the Group’s share of net debt held
by Value Retail was £675m. This comprised
secured borrowings of £762m less cash of
£87m. The borrowings have an average
maturity of 3.2 years, with £291m of secured
loans maturing by the end of 2025.

Strategy and prospects

The Board annually reviews the strategy and
alsoin December of each year considers and
approvesarolling five-year Business Plan
(‘the Plan’). The Plan sets out how the Group
willachieve its strategjc objectives and contains
financial forecasts, financing strategies and
portfolio plans, including disposals, asset
management initiatives and development
projects. It alsoincludes forecasts of financing
and debt covenant metrics including reverse
stress headroom calculations.

Anotherimportant factor to considerin

the viability assessment is the diversity

and security of the Group’s income.

At 31 December 2022, only 17% of passing
rentis derived from the top ten tenants.
Also, 40% of the Group’s passing rent is
subjecttoatenant break or expiry over the
nextthree years and the corresponding
average unexpired lease term was 4.3 years.
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Principalrisks and Viability period
conclusion

The Group’s performance and financial
position continues to significantly improve
compared with 2020 and 2021. However,
levels of uncertainty remain high, particularly
those associated with the macroeconomy, and
two of the Group’s principal risks are currently
judged as having high levels of residual risk.

Having considered all of the above factors,
the Directors have concluded not to change
the three yeartimescale for the Group’s
viability assessment. This means that for the
yearended 31 December 2022, the Group’s
‘Viability period’ covers the period to

31 December2025.

Assessment of viability

To enable the Board to understand the Group’s
projected resilience to adverse changes to the
Group’s principal risks, a downside ‘Viability’
scenario has been derived from the Plan based
onweaker consumer, occupier and investment
market conditions.

Adverse assumptions have been adopted for
areas which mostly impact the Group’s capital
structure and debt covenants and hence
viability. These include changes to rental
income and property values with mitigating
actions to preserve liquidity, although no
non-contracted disposals have been
assumed. These adverse assumptions, which
are outlined inthe table on the following page,
are consistent with those adopted inthe
Severe but plausible scenario inthe Group’s
going concern assessment explained in note
1Dtothe financial statements.

The Directors also considered climate-related
risks as part of the Viability assessment. The
Group’s climate riskis currently judged to have
amedium level of residual risk and during
2022 the Group has developed asset level
project plans which provide a clear pathway
tothe Group achieving Net Zero by 2030. The
total expenditure to deliver these asset level
plans over the three year Viability period is
¢.£30m, and there remains optionality over
the phasing of this expenditure if market and
operating conditions are worse than expected.

Overall, given the longer term nature of climate
risk, the Directors have concluded that this

risk does not have a significantimpact onthe
Viability assessment over the three year
Viability period.



Key adverse ‘Viability’ assumptions
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KEY AREA AND EXPLANATION VIABILITY SCENARIO ASSUMPTION

Income: NRI and Value Retail earnings
Weaker occupier and consumer demand
resulting in lower sales and footfall, weaker
leasing demand, reduced collections and
increased tenant failure.

This backdrop alsoimpacts Value Retail sales,
which are further hindered by a slower than
expected recovery of foreign tourists.

Link to principalrisks: oe@

NRI more than 25% lower than 2022 over Viability period due to higher vacancy; lower
variable rent (turnover rent, car park and commercialisation income); and increased credit

loss provisions.

The Group’s share of Adjusted earnings from Value Retail are an average of 25% lower than
2022 overthe Viability period. Value Retail management decide to retain cash to support
future refinancing requirements and therefore no distributions have been assumed.

Property valuations

Lack of investor demand associated with the
adverse macroeconomic outlook and weaker
operational performance results in lower ERVs

The Group’s property portfolio, including Value Retail, is assumed to suffera capital return

of -16% over the three year Viability period.

and higheryields reducing property values across

the Group.

Link to principalrisks: oeoe@@

Liquidity and refinancing
Limited lender appetite for retail properties

results in maturing loans being refinanced on less

attractive terms (higher borrowing costs, lower
LTVs forsecured loans).

Link to principalrisks: QG@@

Refinancingis undertaken in the ordinary course of business, with the options to extend the
Group’s RCFs assumed to be exercised moving the maturities beyond the Viability period.
Itisalsoassumed that the £350m 3.5% bond due in October 2025 is refinanced with a new

£350mbondissue at 5.5% in mid-2025.

Maturing secured loans on O’Parinor, Dundrum and those held by Value Retail are assumed
toberefinanced at 40% LTV and a 5% all-in interest cost. The lenders on the secured loan on
Highcross enforced their security on the property in February 2023.

Toavoid the risk of a breach of the Group’s unsecured unencumbered asset covenant caused
by the forecast lower property values, it is assumed that the outstanding £191m of private

placement notes are redeemed in 2023.

To preserve Group liquidity, capital expenditure is reduced to c.£140m over the three year
Viability period and dividends are limited to the minimum REIT requirements.

Scenario outcome

Based onthe above Viability assumptions, the
Group s forecast to retain significant liquidity
and is able to meet its obligations as they fall
due overthe three year Viability period. Itis
also forecast to remain compliant with the two
remaining key unsecured debt covenants,
gearing and interest cover.

The strength of the Group’s forecast viability is
showninthe adjacent table which sets out the
currentand minimum forecast unsecured
borrowing covenant stress tests over the
Viability period:

Level of reductionin key variable until

covenantbreach
31Dec Viability
Covenant Variable 2022 period
Gearing Group property  28% 17%
value
Interestcover Netrentalincome 61% 38%

Other mitigating actions

While the Viability scenario does not assume
any future disposals, the Group remains
focused onits disciplined disposal programme
of non-core assets.

Evenin challenging markets, the Group has
completed disposals with gross proceeds of
£628m since the beginning of 2021, and the
diversity of the Group’s portfolio, in terms of
location and sector, provides access to arange
of investment markets. Disposals would be
expected toimprove the financial forecasts,
however their precise impact on the financial
projections and Group’s debt covenantsiis
dependentonthe timing of a sale; the level of
proceeds relative to book value; the ownership
structure; and whetherany debt is secured
against the properties sold. In addition,
disposal proceeds would provide additional
liquidity to support the refinancing
requirements over the Viability period.

Conclusion

Based ontheir detailed assessment of the
Viability scenario, the Directors confirm that
they have areasonable expectation that the
Group will be able to continue in operationand
meet its liabilities as they fall due overthe three
year period to 31 December 2025.



STRATEGIC REPORT Hammerson plc Annual Report 2022 62

NON-FINANCIALINFORMATION STATEMENT

Non-financial
Information Statement

The Companies Act 2006 requires the
Company to disclose certain non-financial
information within this Annual Report.

Index of non-financial reporting
disclosures

The Group also applies arange of policies
and procedures relating to colleagues,
environmental and social matters, human

This information can be found in the following Non-financialinformation Pages rights and anti-bribery and corruption.

locations within the Strategic Report (orare Business model 18-19 Adescription of these polices, the due

incorporated into the Strategic Report by Principal risks 50-59 diligence measures we undertake toimplement

reference for these purposes): Non-financial key performance themandthe Aresults of applying these policies,
indicators 53 areallsetoutinthe table below.

Policy

Description

Policy application and outcomes

Associated
reporting
requirement

Energy policy

Sets out the Group’s commitment to
endeavour to use best practice in the
design and operation of the Group’s
assets to minimise energy demand across
multiple time horizons and procure energy
inaresponsible manner

Inthe UKand Ireland, the Group procured 100% renewable electricity in 2022, as well
as undertaking audits and compliance reviews within the ISO 50001 compliant energy
management system. To transition the Group to Net Zero by 2030 we completed Net
Zero Asset Plans for each destination. These plans address each asset’s significant
energy users by identifying projects to address building controls, energy efficiency and
onsite renewable through the application of the energy hierarchy. Also see the
Environmental section of the Group’s ESG Report 2022.

— Environmental
matters

Environmental
policy

Includes the Group’s overarching
commitment to design and build
properties using sustainable materials
and practices, and to manage assets
underthe Group’s control efficiently
toensure compliance and continually
improve environmentally

In 2022, we maintained our ISO 14001 and ISO 50001 accreditation across the UK
and Ireland. To ensure we continue toimprove and embed proactive environmental
management we have alsoimplemented an ISO 14001 compliant management
system in Chateaudun (our principal office in France), O'Parinor and Les Terrasses du
Portin France. Also see the Environmental section of the Group’s ESG Report 2022.

— Environmental
matters

Climate change
policy

Sets out the Group’s commitment to
develop and implement climate change
management and mitigation strategies
at business and asset level. Recognising
three climatic scenarios and the risks
and opportunities that arise from

these scenarios

The Group identified colleagues in core roles within the business to participate ina
Climate Scenarios workshop in 2021. To build on this throughout 2022, we reviewed
risks and opportunities and mapped these across the assets to confirm deliverables
to positively manage the areas identified. To support this we have revised our
development standards with a view to ensuring that they address climate risks and
opportunities by addressing climate change within the design process. Also see the
Environmental and Governance sections of the Group’s ESG Report 2022.

— Environmental
matters

Biodiversity Aims to ensure that opportunities In 2022, we acknowledged that in order to address our operational impacts we need — Environmental
policy to protect, enhance and restore tonot only focus on climate change but more robustly work on biodiversity net gain matters
biodiversity are maximised while to ensure we minimise our contribution to the global biodiversity crisis. We continue
ensuring that any negative impacts toinstall bee hives, pollinator planting regimes and deliver education programmes to
resulting from the Group’s business position our assets as supporters of local biodiversity in the areas in which we operate.
operations are minimised Inadditiontothis, Italie Deux was awarded the BiodiversCity Life labeland in The
Oracle we planted 1,300 aquatic plants on floating river banks on the River Kennet and
Avon Canalin partnership with the Canal & River Trust and the Reading Abbey Quarter
BID. Also see the Environmental section of the Group’s ESG Report 2022.
Code of conduct Sets out expectations for colleagues’ The Code of conduct is issued to all colleagues across the Group and supported by —Employees
personal behaviourincluding treating training during new colleague induction, as well as being reinforced by the Board’s and .
} h > ) e ) o - —Social matters
others with respect, acting fairly in senior leadership’s actions and communications. No material breaches were alleged
dealing with stakeholders, complying oridentified during 2022. Also see page 24 for more information on our colleagues. — Anti-bribery and
with laws and maintaining integrity in corruption
financial reporting
Equal Confirms the Group’s commitment to The policy is available to all colleagues and applied in relation to all hiring and —Human rights

opportunities
policy

equal opportunities and diversity and
the Group’s opposition to all forms of
unlawful discrimination

promotion decisions at all levels. No breaches of the policy were alleged or identified
during 2022. The ethos of the policy is supported by four colleague led affinity groups
(LGBTQ+, Race and Ethnicity, Women and Wellbeing), each of which has a sponsor
on the Group Executive Committee and partners with Group Communications and
HR to deliver relevant news, events and initiatives to colleagues across the Group.
Also see page 24 for more information on our colleagues and affinity groups.

—Employees

— Social matters



Policy

Description
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Policy application and outcomes

Associated
reporting
requirement

Health, safety
and security
statement of
intent

Sets out measures designed to ensure a
culture of health and safety best practice
that leads to the elimination or reduction
inrisks to health, safety and security of all
associated with the Group

The policy is applied through our robust management system across the UK and
Ireland, which enabled us to gain re-accreditation to ISO 45001 standard in October
2022. The Group undertook a full review of all the centre assessments over the last
three years, and the entire Health, Safety, and Security Management System. As at

31 December 2022, there were nointolerable risks outstanding and no Environmental
Health Officer notices were received during the year. By integrating the non-core
portfolio into the management system, we saw a reduction in the number of open risks.
Acontinued improvement in health and safety culture was reflected in internal audit
scores with the entire portfolio scoring above 95%. Also see page 57 for more
information on health, safety and security matters.

—Employees

— Social matters

Modern slavery

Sets out the approach taken by the Group

Modern slavery awareness is maintained across the Group’s operational teams and

—Humanrights

and human to understand the potential modern specific trainingis provided to colleagues through the Group’s online training system. _ Social matters
trafficking slavery risks associated with the Group’s Key risk areas identified are within the Group’s supply chain and relate to construction
statement business and explains the actionstakento  activities and low skilled support services — both areas remained low as part of the
prevent slavery and human trafficking Group’s overall risk assessmentin 2022. By incorporating modern slavery declarations
within the Group’s operations and supply ~ inour Source to Contract activities, we have increased compliance and reduced the
chains risks of using supplier and third-party suppliers who do not comply with this legislation.
Noincidents of modern slavery or human trafficking were identified or alleged during
2022.The Company’s 2022 Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement was
approved by the Board in June 2022.
Responsible Sets out the Group’s objectives to promote  The policy was applied to procurement activities undertaken across both operational —Humanrights
procurement responsible procurement through the and development activities in 2022. Supplier adherence to this policy is monitored and .
) : : : . : —Social matters
policy purchase of environmentally and socially enforced at the Request for Information stage of procurement with the most compliant
sustainable goods and services and suppliers being progressed to the next stages of the procurement process. The policy — Anti-bribery and
engage with key suppliers to encourage is also linked to the due diligence process necessary to approve third party consultants, corruption
better performance and effective contractors and suppliers. No material breaches were alleged oridentified during 2022. EY I ——
management of environmental and social
) A , X matters
risks within the Group’s supply chain
Supply chain Outlines a set of best practice standards Thisis fully embedded in the new procurement process —each new supplier to the —Human rights
code of conduct that apply to all Group suppliers (covering  Group must subscribe to the code of conduct and complete the accompanying

and procurement

legal requirements, labour standards,
health and safety and environmental
responsibility) and explains how the
Group measures and monitors supplier
adherence to such standards

questionnaire in order to gain Approved Supplier status. Suppliers must be fully
compliant with health and safety, ESG regulations and must be fully insured. RIDDOR
(Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations) issued by
the Health and Safety Executive must be fully resolved and disclosed before we can
use such suppliers. This has resulted in only the most compliant suppliers being

— Social matters

— Anti-bribery and
corruption

— Environmental

selected to reduce risk exposure and associated costs. This is also linked to the due matters
diligence process necessary to approve third party consultants, contractors and
suppliers. No material breaches were alleged or identified during 2022.
Anti-bribery and Sets out the Group’s zero tolerance policy  The policy isissued to all colleagues across the Group alongside the Gifts and —Employees
corruption policy* inrelationto bribery and corruption, Entertainment Policy and supported by training delivered during the colleague _ Anti-briberyand
including prohibitions onimproper and induction programme. The Company has also made available to all colleagues an corruption
facilitation payments, and penalties for Anti-Bribery and Corruption Risk Assessment, which provides guidance on carrying
breach of policy out due diligence when appointing third party consultants, contractors and suppliers.
Noincidents of bribery or corruption were alleged or identified during 2022.
Whistleblowing Encourages colleagues to report any The policy isissued to all colleagues across the Group and supported by trainingduring ~ —Employees
policy* concerns they may have in relation to new colleague inductions. No whistleblowing concerns were raised by colleagues _ Anti-bribery and
health and safety matters, the environment,  during2022. :
orany other unethical, unfair, dangerous corruption
orillegal behaviour, sets out the process
for doing so and confirms that
whistleblowers will not be victimised
Giftsand Explains the forms of, and circumstances ~ The policy isissued to all colleagues across the Group and supported by trainingas part —Employees
entertfinment inwhich, gifts or entertainment might be of new colleague inductions. _ Anti-bribery and
peliey siepiElal sl e i e dpip el Gifts and entertainment regjsters are maintained across the Group and reviewed corruption

procedures to follow where colleagues
wish to offer, or receive, hospitality

periodically. No breaches were alleged or identified during 2022.

All policies are available on the Company’s website at www.hammerson.com save for those marked with a * which are available to all colleagues
through the Company’sintranet.

2022 Strategic Report
Pages 1 to 63 of this Annual Report constitute the Strategic Report which was approved and signed on behalf of the Board on 8 March 2023.

Rita-Rose Gagné

Director

Himanshu Raja
Director
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® Nomination and Governance
Committee

® Remuneration Committee
‘ Committee Chair

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Rita-Rose Gagné
Chief Executive

Himanshu Raja
Chief Financial Officer

Appointed to the Board
2 November 2020

Appointed to the Board
26 April2021

Rita-Rose has a wealth of experience in global real estate investment,
asset management, M&A and strategy. She has worked in property
markets across the world and her expertise spans across various asset
classes and multi-use assets, including residential, retail, office and
logistics. Priorto Hammerson, she held various executive roles at the
global real estate company, Ivanhoé Cambridge. Most recently,
Rita-Rose was President of Growth Markets, where she managed

over $7.6bn of real estate assets plus development projects across
markets in Asiaand Latin America. She is a Non-Executive Director

of Value Retail plc.

Himanshu brings to the Board strong financial, strategic and leadership
qualities as well as extensive experience of debt and equity markets
and in business transformation. Himanshu has served as CFO of listed
companiesinthe FTSE 100 and FTSE 250 for over 12 years as CFO of
Logica plc, G4S plc, Countrywide plc, and served as CFO of Misys under
private equity ownership. Himanshu has previously held senior roles
covering finance, IT, procurement and capital and cost transformation
largely in the telecoms sector. Himanshu qualified as a Chartered
Accountant with Arthur Andersen.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Habib Annous
Independent Non-Executive Director

ee0

Méka Brunel
Independent Non-Executive Director

01G)

Appointed to the Board
5May 2021

Appointed to the Board
1 December2019

Habib brings to the Board 30 years’ experience in investment
management across a range of sectors. Most recently, he was a partner
at Capital Group, from 2002 to 2020, where he was responsible for the
European Real Estate sector as well as a number of other industries.

He started his career as an equity analyst in 1988 with responsibility
for UK Real Estate. He became a Fund Managerin 1989 at Lazard
Investors and then moved to Barclays Global Investors and
subsequently to Merrill Lynch Investment Managers. Habib is an
adviser to the Investor Forum.

Méka has broad experience in the European real estate sector which,
together with her knowledge and skills in property outside of retail,
strengthens the Board’s expertise. Her previous roles include Director
of Strategic Development at Gecinain 2003 and CEO of Eurosicin
2006.1In 2009, she joined Ivanhoé Cambridge as European President
before returning to Gecina in 2014 as a Non-Executive Director and
was CEO from 2017 to 2022. Méka is Chair of the European Public Real
Estate Association and a member of the supervisory board at CDC
Habitat. She also chairs University of the City of Tomorrow (UVD)
achapter of Palladio Foundation, a non-profit organisation.




Full biographical details foreach

Directorand full details of external
appointments can be found on our
website at www.hammerson.com

You can view details of our Group
Executive Committee members on our
website at www.hammerson.com
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Robert Noel Mike Butterworth

Chair of the Board Senior Independent Director (A Q)
Appointed to the Board Appointed to the Board

1 September 2020 and appointed as Chairon 7 September 2020 1 January 2021

Robert brings extensive property industry knowledge and experience
tothe Board having built along and successful career spanning over
30yearsinthereal estate sector, including at other listed companies.
Most notably, Robert was Chief Executive at Land Securities Group Plc
(Landsec) from 2012 until March 2020. Prior to joining Landsecin
2010, Robert was Property Director at Great Portland Estates Plc from
2002102009 and from 1992 to 2002 he was a Director of Nelson
Bakewell, the property services group. Robert is a past president of the
British Property Federation. He will become Chair of Taylor Wimpey plc
atthe conclusion of its AGM in April 2023.

External Listed Directorships
Senior Independent Director at Taylor Wimpey plc.

Mike brings to the Board 25 years’ experience in senior finance
roles in businesses across a range of sectors including technology,
manufacturing, communications, healthcare and beverages.
Previously he was CFO of Incepta Group plc and Cookson Group plc,
as wellas Non-Executive Director at Johnston Press plc, Kinand
Carta Group plc, Stock Spirits Group plc and Cambian Group plc.

External Listed Directorships
Non-Executive Director of Pressure Technologies plc and Focusrite plc.

Adam Metz
Independent Non-Executive Director

e0

CarolWelch
Independent Non-Executive Director

®e®

Appointed to the Board
22 July 2019

Appointed to the Board
1 March 2019

Adam brings to the Board wide-ranging knowledge in retail and
commercial real estate, and extensive investment experience gained at
Blackstone Group, TPG Capital and the Carlyle Group. His comprehensive
experience in real estate investment and strategy in the US, Europe and
Asia, through listed companies and private equity, enables him to make
avaluable contribution to our Board. Adam sits on the boards of a
number of Morgan Stanley fund entities.

External Listed Directorships
Chair of Seritage Growth Properties and Non-Executive Director
of Galata Acquisition Corp.

Carol brings deep experience in commercial, marketing, innovation
and digital gained while working in senior roles at global businesses,
such as PepsiCo, Cadbury Schweppes and Associated British Foods.
She also brings insightful operations and tenant experience from the
leisure, retail and hospitality sectors gained through her previous roles
as Chief Marketing Officer at Costa Coffee and Managing Director UK &
Ireland and European Commercial Officerat ODEON. From 17 April
2023, Carolwillbecome CEO of A.F. Blakemore & Son Ltd. Carolis our
Designated Non-Executive Director for Colleague Engagement.
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

ITam pleased to present the Corporate
Governance Report for 2022. The Company is
subject to the UK Corporate Governance Code
2018 (the Code), which is available onthe
website of the Financial Reporting Council at
www.frc.org.uk. The purpose of the Code is to
promote the highest ethical and governance
standards for UK premium listed businesses
to contribute to long term sustainable success.
The Board considers that the Company has
applied all of the principles and complied with
all of the provisions of the Code during 2022
with the exception that Habib Annous had
served on the Remuneration Committee for
aweek short of 12 months when he became
Chair of the Committee on 28 April 2022
(having been appointed as a member of the
Committee on 5 May 2021) rather thanthe

12 months required by the Code. However,
the Board was satisfied that Habib had
appropriate skills and experience to serve

as Chair given his time as amember of the
Committee and other relevant experience.
The Company’s compliance with the Code is
reported against each of the five main sections
of the Code: Board leadership and Company
purpose; division of responsibilities;
composition, succession and evaluation; audit,
risk and internal control; and remuneration.

The Company’s disclosures on the way it has
applied the principles of the Code can be
found throughout this Annual Report on the
following pages:

Code section Page
Board leadership and Company

purpose
Therole of the Board 66
Purpose and strategy 66
Culture and values 66
Stakeholder and workforce engagement 67
Division of responsibilities
Theroles of the Directors 68
Director commitment 69
Board Committees 70
Board support 70
Composition, succession and

evaluation
Composition and succession 70
Board effectiveness review 70
Nomination and Governance Committee

Report 72
Audit, risk and internal control
Risk management and internal controls 71
Fair, balanced and understandable

assessment 71
Audit Committee Report 76

Remuneration
Directors’ Remuneration Report 82

BOARD LEADERSHIP AND COMPANY
PURPOSE

Therole of the Board

The primary duty of the Board is to promote
the long term success of the Company through
settinga clear purpose and strategy which
creates long term value for its shareholders
and other stakeholders. It aligns the Group’s
culture with its strategy, purpose and values
and sets the strategic direction and governance
ofthe Group. The Board has ultimate
responsibility for the Group’s management,
strategic direction and performance and
ensuring that sufficient resources are available
toenable management to meet the strategic
objectives set.

The Company has a Schedule of Matters
Reserved for the Board (Matters Reserved),
which was reviewed and updated in
December 2022, andis available to view at
www.hammerson.com. The Board undertakes
various duties in accordance with the Matters
Reserved, including approving major
acquisitions, disposals, capital expenditure
and financing. The Board also oversees the
system of internal controls and risk
management, including climate-related
risks and opportunities, and approves and
monitors performance against the annual
Business Plan.

Details of the Board of Directors of the
Company as at the date of this report are set
outon pages 64 to 65 and furtherinformation
oneach Director can be found on the
Company’s website at www.hammerson.com.
Details of the various Director roles are set out
inthe ‘Division of responsibilities’ section on
page 68 and details of Board and Committee
changes during the year can be foundin the
Nomination and Governance Committee
Reporton pages 7210 75.

Key activities of the Board in 2022
During 2022, among other things, the Board
spenttime on:

— Strategicaimsand the financial and
operating performance of the Company

— Externaleconomic developments and
othertrends relevant to the Company

— Stakeholder matters, including
consideration of developments relevant
to colleagues, shareholders, partners and
other stakeholders

— Investmentand disposal proposals and
planning

— The Company’s annualand halfyear
reporting, including considerations relating
todividends

— Strategic projects and initiatives affecting
the Company
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— Thereview and approval of the Company’s
business plan

— The Company’s purpose, vision and values
— Sustainability and the wider ESG agenda

— Mattersrelating torisk and the internal
control framework together with IT and
cyber matters

— Theexternal Board and Committee
effectiveness evaluation.

Purpose and strategy

The Board discharged its responsibilities in
relation to strategy and purpose through a
number of activities in the year. These included
the annual Board strategy session held in
October 2022, which covered a wide range
of strategic issues with input from senior
management from across the business.
Inaddition, the Board considers strategic
matters as part of regular meetings through
the year. At each scheduled meeting,
management provide updates on
performance against strategic goals and
initiatives, together with relevant updates
on external developments.

During 2022, the Company has evolved its
purpose and strategic objectives. The Group
has aclear purpose: we create outstanding
experiences in unique city locations. The Board
spenttime discussing and approving the
purpose statement, including consideration

of feedback provided by colleagues.

Throughout 2022, the Board focused on
providing leadershipand supporttothe
Executive team as well as an objective,
independent and constructive view on the
Company’s strategy and business model,
toensure they adequately reflect the core
capabilities of the business and the changing
external environment, particularly during

a period of challenging macroeconomic
conditions. Thisincludes the refresh of the
Company’s sustainability strategy which was
launched during the first half of the year.
Further detail on how the Company generates
and preserves value over the long termis set
outinthe Chief Executive’s statement on
pages 10to 15 and Our business model on
pages18t019.

Culture and values

The Board recognises the importance that
culture and values play inthe long term
success and sustainability of the Company,
and therole of the Board in establishing,
monitoring and assessing culture. During
2022, the contribution of culture and values
has been animportant focus for the Board.



Following the strategic review and the
organisational changes during 2021,

the senior leadership team worked with
colleaguesin 2022 to review and refine
Hammerson’s values to reflect our new
strategy, with appropriate oversight and input
fromthe Board. The new values are Ambitious,
Connected and Respect.

The Group is committed to fully complying with
allapplicable laws and regulations and has
high standards of governance and compliance.
The Code of Conduct has been prepared to
help colleagues and Directors to fulfil their
personal responsibilities to investors and

wider stakeholders. The Code of Conduct
covers the following areas:

— Compliance and accountability

— Therequired standards of personal
behaviour

— The Group’s dealings with stakeholders

— Measures to prevent fraud, bribery and
corruption

— Sharedealing
Security of information

The colleague induction programme includes
compulsory modules on health and safety,
anti-bribery, cyber security, sustainability,
protection of confidential and inside
information and data protection, which are
delivered inthe UK, France and Ireland via the
Group’s online Learning Management System.
The content for these modules was reviewed
andrefreshedin 2022 in advance of a planned
relaunch with colleagues during 2023.

The Directors remain committed to zero
tolerance of bribery and corruption by
colleagues and the Group’s suppliers. The
Audit Committee receives annual Anti-Bribery
and Corruption, Fraud and Whistleblowing
Reports and reviews the arrangementsin
place forindividuals to raise concerns. The
Board reviewed and, on the Committee’s
recommendation, approved updates to the
Company’s Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy,
Anti-Fraud Policy and Response Plan and
Whistleblowing Policy. There were no
allegations of fraud detected or reported
duringthe year.

The Group’s Modern Slavery and Human
Trafficking Statement is submitted to the
Board forapproval each year,and the
statement is published on the Company’s
website at www.hammerson.com.

Engagement with stakeholders
Stakeholder engagement remains a priority for
the Board. In order to comply with Section 172
ofthe Companies Act 2006 (the Act), the
Board takes into consideration the interests

of stakeholders when making decisions and
includes a statement setting out the way in
which Directors have discharged this duty
during the year. Furtherinformation on the
actions carried outin 2022 by the Board to
comply with its obligations to the Group’s
stakeholders is detailed on pages 32 to 33 and
the statement of compliance with Section 172
ofthe Actis setouton page 34.The
identification of our key stakeholders and the
continuing engagement efforts help toensure
that the Board can understand, considerand
balance broad stakeholder interests when
making decisions to deliver long term
sustainable success. While the Board will
engage directly with stakeholders on certain
issues, stakeholder engagement will often
take place at an operational level with the
Board receiving regular updates on
stakeholder views from the Executive
Directors and the senior management team.
Board papers requesting a decision fromthe
Board are required to include a specific section
reviewing the impact of the proposal on
relevant stakeholder groups.

Engagement with colleagues

Our colleagues are central to the business and
their performance is critical toits long term
sustainable success. Colleague engagement
inour business is therefore high on our agenda
atboth Board and senior management levels.

The Colleague Forum (the Forum) enhances
two-way dialogue between the Board and
colleagues, offering a structured environment
forthe Board to listen to feedback from our
colleagues, allowing issues to be highlighted
and informs future Board decision making.
CarolWelchis our Designated Non-Executive
Director for Colleague Engagement. The
purpose of the role is to:

— Actasthe Board’s eyes and earsto
understand colleagues’ views on Company
culture, and the degree to which behaviours
and valuesinthe business are aligned with
culture and values agreed by the Board

— Provide guidance and feedback, with
insight gained from the Forum and from
separate sessions held with colleagues, on
achieving effective internal communication

— Provide independent advice and guidance
tothe Chief Executive, Chief People Officer
and other Group Executive Committee
(GEC) members on matters of colleague
engagement
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— Speakon behalf of the Board at the
Forum’s events

— Assist the Board inunderstanding
colleagues’ views based on insight from the
Forum and colleague sessions, and provide
guidance to the Board on how their
decisions may impact colleagues

Carol attends quarterly meetings with the
Forum in addition to separate discussions with
its Chair and the Chief People Officer, and
monthly sessions with the Chief People Officer.
In October 2022, Caroland Habib Annous,
Chair of the Remuneration Committee, carried
outan engagement session with the Forum
specifically to explain the proposed changes
tothe Company’s Remuneration Policy and
how the proposals aligned with colleague pay.
The Forum was supportive of the proposed
changes and comments raised were shared
with the Remuneration Committee. During the
year, Carol also held engagement sessions
with colleagues based at asset locations.
Carol'sannual report on colleague engagement
in 2022 included an assessment of progress
made against 2022 objectives and her
recommendations for engagement priorities
for 2023, which were reviewed by the
Nomination and Governance Committee and
discussed by the Board in December 2022.

In 2022, the Forum’s focus has beento listen
toand support colleagues throughout the
organisational review process, increasing
communications and engagement, and to
facilitate positive change aligned to the
Company’s strategy. The Company also has
four colleague affinity groups (LGBTQ+,
Women, Race & Ethnicity, Wellbeing) which
areintegrated with the Forum to support
colleague engagement and diversity and
inclusion activities throughout the year. Each of
the groups has a designated GEC sponsor to
provide senior leadership support for its work.
Tofurthersupport a culture of diversity and
inclusion throughout the business, the
Company established a new Diversity, Inclusion
and Engagement Manager role in February
2023. Finally, the Forum provided colleague
feedback on workplace culture and other
developments during the year to the GEC.

Further details on colleagues, including
ourapproach toinvestingin and rewarding
our workforce as well as the policies and
procedures applicable to colleagues, can be
found on pages 24 and 6210 63.
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Engagement with shareholders

The Company undertakes investor relations
(IR) activity to ensure that current and
potential shareholders, as well as financial
analysts, are kept informed of performance
and have appropriate access to management
to understand the Company’s business and
strategy. The Board is regularly updated on
IR matters and feedback received from
shareholders. The Board believes itis
important to maintain open and constructive
relationships with shareholders and forthem
to have opportunities to share their views with
the Board. The Chief Executive and Chief
Financial Officer engage with the Company’s
major institutional shareholders onaregular
basis. As Chair of the Board, I meet with
shareholders to discuss matters such as
corporate governance and succession
planning. Separately the Senior Independent
Director is available to shareholders. The Chair
ofthe Remuneration Committee takes part

in consultations with major institutional
shareholders on remuneration issues from
timetotime, including an extensive
consultationin recent months as part of

the Committee’s review of the Directors’
Remuneration Policy. The Board also regards
the Company’s AGM as animportant
opportunity for shareholders to engage
directly with Directors.

Conflicts of interest and concerns

The Board has a well-established and detailed
process for the management of conflicts of
interest. The Directors are required to avoid
asituation where they have, or could have,
adirect orindirect conflict with the interests of
the Company. Prior to appointment and during
theirtermin office, Directors are required to
disclose any conflicts or potential conflicts

to me, as Chair, and the General Counseland
Company Secretary. At each scheduled
meeting of the Board, a governance reportis
reviewed, containing details of conflicts of
interest for each Director noting any changes
or matters for authorisation. As part of the year
end reporting, each Director reviews the
Conflict of Interest Register in respect of their
disclosed conflicts and confirms its accuracy to
the General Counseland Company Secretary.

Thereis regular dialogue between Directors
outside Board meetings on any important
issues that require discussion and resolution.
If necessary, any unresolved matters that are
raised with the Chair of the Board, the Senior
Independent Director and the General
Counseland Company Secretary would be
recorded in the minutes of the next Board
meeting. As Chair of the Board, I encourage a
culture of openand inclusive debate, challenge
and discussion at meetings and outside of the
formal environment. This helps to ensure that
any concerns can be considered and resolved.

Board and Committee meetings attendance - 2022
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DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

Role of the Chair of the Board and the

Chief Executive

The Chair of the Board and the Chief Executive
have separate roles and responsibilities which
are clearly defined, set out in writing and
available on the Company’s website.

As Chair of the Board, Iam responsible for the
overall effectiveness of the Board in directing
the Company and for ensuring that the Board
receives accurate, timely and clear information.
The conclusion of the 2022 Board effectiveness
review was that Board meetings were chaired
well, that the views of all Directors are sought
and that all members of the Board participated
inand contributed to Board discussions
equally. The results and actions arising from
the Board effectiveness review carried out in
2022 are summarised on pages 70to0 71.

The Chief Executive leads and manages the
businessin line with the strategy, policies and
parameters set by the Board. Toensure the
effective day-to-day running of the business,
authority for operational management of the
Group has been delegated to the Chief
Executive and some powers are further
delegated by herto senior managers across
the Group.

Investmentand
Additional, Nomination Remuneration Disposal
ScheduledBoard  unscheduled Board  Audit Committee Committee Committee Committee

Note meetings meetings meetings meetings (note ) meetings meetings (note g)
Robert Noel 717 1/1 N/A 2/2 N/A 7]7
Rita-Rose Gagné 7/7 1/1 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Himanshu Raja h 6/7 1/1 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Habib Annous e 7/7 1/1 5/5 2/2 5/5 1/1
Méka Brunel h 6/7 0/1 N/A 2/2 4/5 5/7
Gwyn Burr C 2/2 N/A N/A N/A 2/2 N/A
Mike Butterworth 7]7 1/1 5/5 2/2 N/A N/A
Des de Beer a,b,d 4/4 N/A N/A 1/1 N/A 4/4
Alan Olivier a,b,d 1/1 N/A N/A N/A N/A 1/1
Andrew Formica C 2/2 N/A 2/2 N/A N/A N/A
Adam Metz 717 1/1 5/5 1/2 N/A 7]7
CarolWelch 7]7 1/1 N/A 2/2 5/5 N/A
a AlanOlivier was appointed as an alternate to Des de Beeron 22 February 2022.
b ForMarch Board and Committee meetings, Alan Olivier attended in place of Des de Beer.
¢ GwynBurrand Andrew Formica resigned from the Board on 28 April 2022.
d DesdeBeer (and his alternate Alan Olivier) resigned from the Board on 11 October 2022.
e Habib Annous became amember of the Investment and Disposal Committee starting on 19 October 2022.
f The Nomination Committee was reconstituted as the Nomination and Governance Committee on 8 December 2022.
g The Investmentand Disposal Committee was disbanded on 8 December 2022.
h Where Directors are indicated as not having attended Board or Committee meetings, this is attributable to pre-existing and unavoidable commitments or due to

illness. Ineach case, the Director was provided with all Board papers and the opportunity to provide comments to the Chair of the Board or Committee, as appropriate.



For further detail of the division of
responsibilities amongst Board Committees
see page 68.

Role of the Non-Executive Directors and
the Senior Independent Director

The Non-Executive Directors are identified in
their biographies on pages 64 to 65 and play a
key role in providing constructive challenge to
management and offering strategic guidance
through their participation at Board and
Committee meetings. The Non-Executive
Directors hold a meeting without me present
annually, led by the Senior Independent
Director, to discuss my performance, in
addition to playing a key role in appointing and
removing Executive Directors and scrutinising
management performance against objectives.
Talso hold meetings with the Non-Executive
Directors as part of every Board meeting
without the Executive Directors present.

AllNon-Executive Directors are considered to
be independent as at the date of this Report,

in accordance with the provisions of the Code.
Iwasindependent on appointment to the
Board in September 2020 for the purpose of
the Code. The Company has therefore complied
with the Code provision that at least half of the
Board, excluding the Chair, should comprise
independent Non-Executive Directors.

Mike Butterworth succeeded Gwyn Burr as
Senior Independent Directorin April 2022 and
is available to discuss shareholders’ concerns
on governance and other matters. He can
deputise as Chair of the Board in my absence,
actasasounding board and serve asan
intermediary for other Board members. His full
role is clearly defined in writing and available
onthe Company’s website.

Directors’ time commitment and additional
appointments

All Directors are thoroughly engaged with the
work of the Group, as evidenced by their
attendance at Board and Board Committee
meetings during the year, which is disclosed
inthe Board and Committee meetings
attendance table, set out on page 68.
Inaddition to Board and Board Committee
meeting attendance, anumber of the
Non-Executive Directors also visited the
Company’s assets during the year.

As part of the selection process forany
potential new Directors, any significant
external time commitments are considered
before an appointmentis agreed. In 2020,
the Board adopted a Directors’ Overboarding
Policy (Overboarding Policy) to set limits on the
number of external appointments which can
be held by Directorsin line with the guidelines
published by Institutional Shareholder
Services (ISS). The Overboarding Policy was
reviewed and updated in December 2022 to
reflect best practice requirements inthe Code
and latest guidance issued by ISS. Directors
are required to consult with the Chair of the
Board and obtain the approval of the Board,
before taking on additional appointments.
Executive Directors are not permitted to take
on more than one external appointment as a
directorofa FTSE 100 listed company orany
other significant appointment.

The Overboarding Policy states that Non-
Executive Directors may hold up to five
mandates on publicly-listed companies
(including theirrole as a Director of the
Company). Forthe purpose of calculating
this limit:

Board and Committee Governance Structure as at 31 December 2022

Audit
Committee

Board

Nomination and Governance
Committee

Group Executive Committee
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— Anon-executive directorship counts
asone mandate

— Anon-executive chair counts as
two mandates

— Aposition as executive director
(orcomparablerole) is counted as
three mandates

None of the Directors’ external directorships

exceed the limitin the Overboarding Policy. The
Overboarding Policy is available to view on the
Company’s website at www.hammerson.com.

Inline with the Code, during the year the Board
considered significant external appointments
proposed to be undertaken by certain Directors.
These were (i) Adam Metz’s appointment as
anon-executive director, and subsequently

as chair, of Seritage Growth Properties and (ii)
my proposed appointment as chair of Taylor
Wimpey plc with effect from its AGM to be held
in April 2023. For each appointment, the Board
considered (among otherthings) the time
commitment and whether it presented a
conflict ofinterest. In each case, the Board
approved the proposed appointments and
was satisfied that none of them would restrict
the relevant Director from carrying out their
duties as a Director of the Company. The
relevant Director did not participatein the
decision or discussion with respect to their
own proposed appointments.

Remuneration
Committee
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Board Committees

The Board has delegated certain
responsibilities to its Audit, Remuneration,
and Nomination and Governance Committees,
each of which reports regularly to the Board.
Each of these Committees’ terms of reference
is available onthe Company’s website at
www.hammerson.com. During the year, the
Board undertook a review of its Committee
structure following feedback received during
the Board effectiveness review process.
InDecember 2022 it resolved to disband the
Investmentand Disposal Committee and to
transfer its responsibilities to the Board.
Prior to the disbanding of the Investment and
Disposal Committee, the Committee was
responsible for overseeing the Group’s
acquisitions, capital expenditure and
disposals, and assisted the Board in fulfilling
its oversight responsibilities to deliver the
strategy. The Committee met seven times
duringthe year and the agenda for each
meeting reflected the status of investment
and disposal projects under consideration by
management. The Committee also reviewed
progress by receiving update reports and
received regular updates on market
conditions. Both of these responsibilities
now reside with the Board, which will be
responsible for scrutinising proposals and
recommendations to proceed with
transactions valued over £30m.

In December 2022, the existing Nomination
Committee was reconstituted as the
Nomination and Governance Committee with
abroadened remitincluding certain additional
governance related responsibilities, previously
the responsibility of the full Board. This change
willenable enhanced focus on corporate
governance matters whilst ensuring that
relevant items are escalated to the full Board
where appropriate.

Further detail on the work of each of the Audit,
Nomination and Governance, and Remuneration
Committees can be found on pages 76, 72 and
82, respectively.

The Board is also supported by three further
committees, the principal of which is the GEC,
which provides executive management of the
Group withinthe agreed strategy and Business
Plan. The GECis chaired by the Chief Executive
and comprises the senior leadership team.
The members of the GEC and their biographies
are available to view on the Group’s website at
www.hammerson.com. The GEC manages the
operation of the business on a day-to-day
basis, sets financial and operational targets,
oversees the Group’s risk management and
has responsibility for the Company’s

sustainability objectives. The GEC is supported
inturn by the Group Investment Committee,
which supports the GEC and the Board inthe
execution of their respective capital allocation
responsibilities, and by the Group Management
Committee which supports the GECinthe
execution of its operational duties.

Board support

On9May 2022, Alex Dunnwas appointed as
General Counseland Company Secretary.
The General Counseland Company Secretary,
whose appointment or removal is decided by
all Directors, provides independent advice to
the Board on legal and governance matters
and ensures that the Board has the policies,
process, information, time and resources it
needs in order to function effectively. This
includes ensuring that the Board regularly
receives training and updates on relevant legal
and governance developments as well as
assisting with the induction of new Directors.

COMPOSITION, SUCCESSION AND
EVALUATION

Composition and succession

Appointments to the Board are subjecttoa
formal, rigorous and transparent procedure
based on merit and objective criteria, which
isoverseen by the Board’s Nomination and
Governance Committee. The Nomination and
Governance Committee also oversees the
effective succession planning of the Directors
and the process for succession planning to the
senior management team.

Following a review of the composition of the
Board and its Committees, it was determined
that the Board and its Committees have an
appropriate and diverse combination of skills,
experience and knowledge that are relevant to
the Group in its operating context. For further
detail of each Director’s skills, experience and
knowledgeg, see the Board Skills Matrix on page
73.The Nominationand Governance Committee
also promotes diversity on the Board and
throughout the Group.

The Board has confirmed that each Director
continues to be effective and demonstrate
commitment to their role. Onthe
recommendation of the Nominationand
Governance Committee, the Board will
therefore be recommending thatall serving
Directors be reappointed by shareholders
atthe 2023 AGM.

Furtherinformation on composition,
succession and the work of the Nomination
and Governance Committee can be foundin
the Nomination and Governance Committee
Reporton pages 7210 75.
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The Board acknowledges the benefits that
diversity and inclusion can bring to the Board
andtoall levels of the Company’s operations.
As such, the Board is committed to the
promotion of diversity and inclusion across
the Company and ensuring that allemployees
are treated fairly. Further information on the
Board’s approach to diversity and inclusion,
and the consideration of relevant matters
during 2022 can be found in the Nomination
and Governance Committee Report.

Board and Committee effectiveness review
The process

The Board undertakes a formal and rigorous
evaluation of its effectiveness and the
performance of the whole Board, its individual
Directors and its Committees annually.

The Board’s policy, in line with the Code,

is to carry out an externally facilitated Board
effectiveness review every three years and
this year, the Board appointed an external
evaluator to carry out an independent review
of its effectiveness and performance.

The Board considered a shortlist of potential
external evaluators following a selection
process led by the Chair. It appointed Hanif
Barma of Board Alchemy to undertake the
effectiveness review. Board Alchemy has no
other connection with the Company. The
Board discussed the scope and timing of the
review, and the Chair and the General Counsel
and Company Secretary then agreed the
process to be followed with Board Alchemy.

Each of the Directors, the General Counsel and
Company Secretary, and the Chief Operating
Officer held confidential one-to-one interviews
with Board Alchemy. In advance of these
sessions, Board Alchemy was provided witha
wide range of documentation and information
in response to an information request they
submitted. Mr Barma also observed a Board
meetingin June 2022.

The scope of the evaluation was broad and
focused on arange of different areas relevant
to Board and Committee effectiveness, and
corporate governance, having regard to the
FRC’s guidance on board effectiveness,
including:

— Board composition, skills and diversity

— Board behaviours and dynamics

— Oversight of business performance
and strategy

— Boardresponsibilities and independence
— Board meetings and information

— The operation and contribution of
Committees

— Stakeholderengagement



Board Alchemy presented a detailed report
setting out the results of their review for
discussion at the Board’s meetingin October
2022. Following that initial discussion,

the Chairand the General Counseland
Company Secretary subsequently presented,
fordiscussion and approval by the Board,
afollow-up report at the Board’s meeting

in December 2022 setting out proposed
actions and timelinesin response to the
recommendations in Board Alchemy’s report.

The overall conclusion of the evaluation

was that the Board and its Committees are
effective. The report identified many strengths,
including clear remits for the Board and its
Committees with Directors possessing a good
understanding of the distinction between the
role of the Board and that of management.
Board Alchemy found that a good range of
relevant skills and experiences are
represented on the Board, and that the
composition demonstrates good diversity
interms of genderand ethnicity.

Interms of the operation of the Board, the
evaluation concluded that the Chair leads the
Board well with aninclusive style, and that
non-executive members have constructive
relationships with the executives whilst
maintaining an appropriate level of challenge.
Board Alchemy found that independence and
management of conflicts of interest are taken
seriously by the Board. The evaluation also
found that the Board shows positive dynamics,
operatinginan open and transparent manner
with contributions to discussion from around
the board table.

Board Alchemy concluded that Board
meetings operate well with high-quality
discussion facilitated by thorough planning,
good papers and comprehensive
management presentations.

The Board welcomes the positive conclusions
of the evaluation and will focus during 2023
onthe recommendations made by Board
Alchemy with the aim of furtherimproving the
effectiveness of the Board and its Committees.
The recommendations made in this year’s
evaluation include: following the pandemic,
continuing to create opportunities forinformal
interaction between Board members; creating
additional opportunities for Directors to meet
awider range of management and staffin
astructured way; holding private sessions of
the Non-Executive Directors before a board
meeting rather than at its conclusion;
continuing to focus on the Company’s long
term strategy including inrelation to ESG
matters; and enabling ongoing Board oversight
oftechnology and systems changesinthe
years ahead.

The Board considers thatimprovements
have been made in the areas identified for
improvementin the internal evaluations
undertakeninthe previous two years,
including in relation to Board and senior
management succession planning, the
Board’s involvement in culture and values,
and the Board’s ongoing consideration of
the evolving retail environment.

Director performance

During the year, as Chair, I hold meetings
with individual Directors at which, among
otherthings, theirindividual performance
is discussed. Informed by my ongoing
observation of individual Directors, these
discussions form part of the basis for
recommending the reappointment of
Directors atthe AGM.

Chair performance

Asin previous years, the Senior Independent
Director led anannual assessment process in
respect of my performance as Chair. This
involved meeting with other members of the
Board and the Company Secretary without me
being present and consideration of relevant
findings from the external Board Effectiveness
Evaluation. The Senior Independent Director
subsequently provided feedback to me.

AUDIT, RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Financial statements and audit

The Board has established formal and
transparent policies and procedures in relation
tothe production of the financial statements
and the audit functions. The Audit Committee
oversees the Group’s financial reporting and
monitors the independence and effectiveness
oftheinternaland external audits. The
Committee oversees the valuation of the
property portfolio and is responsible for

the relationship with the External Auditor.
Further information can be found in the Audit
Committee Report on pages 76 to 81.

Fair, balanced and understandable
assessment

The Board is responsible for presenting a fair,
balanced and understandable assessment of
the Company’s position and prospects. The full
statement confirming this can be foundin the
Statement of Directors’ responsibilities on
page 116. Additionally, the Group’s Viability
Statement can be found on pages 60to 61 and
the going concern statement can be found on
page 133.
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Risk management and internal controls
The Board recognises that it has overall
responsibility for monitoring risk management
and internal control systems so as to protect
the assets of the Group and ensure risks are
appropriately managed. Further information
onthe Group’s approach torisk can be found
on pages 5010 59 and in the Audit Committee
Reportonpages 76to 81.

REMUNERATION

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is responsible
forestablishing a remuneration policy whichis
designed to support the Company’s strategy
and promote its long term sustainable success.
The Committee sets the remuneration for the
Chair of the Board, Executive Directors and
members of the GEC. It also oversees
remuneration policies and practices across the
Group. The Committee is responsible for the
alignment of reward, incentives and culture
and approves bonus plans and longterm
incentive plans for the Executive Directors

and members of the GEC. A key focus of the
Committee in 2022 was the triennial review of
the Company’s Remuneration Policy, which
will be presented to shareholders for approval
atthe 2023 AGM. This included extensive
consideration of feedback received during the
Committee Chair’s consultation with major
shareholders and institutional shareholder
bodies. Furtherinformation can be foundinthe
Remuneration Committee Report on pages
82t0113.

Robert Noel
Chair of the Board
8March 2023
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NOMINATION AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

Nomination and Governance
Committee Report

Robert Noel
Chairof the Nomination and Governance
Committee

Overseeing matters related to corporate
governance and ensuring the Board and
its Committees have the right combination
of skills, experience and knowledge -
with engaged Directors and suitable
succession planning.

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

Iam pleased to present the Report of the
Nomination and Governance Committee
(the Committee) covering the work of the
Committee during 2022.

In December 2022, the existing Nomination
Committee was reconstituted as the
Nomination and Governance Committee with
a broadened remit, which now includes certain
additional corporate governance related
responsibilities, previously the responsibility
of the full Board. This change will enable
enhanced focus on corporate governance
matters whilst ensuring that relevantitems are
escalated to the full Board where appropriate.

The Committee comprises all our Non-
Executive Directors and its terms of reference
can be found onthe Company’s website at
www.hammerson.com. The Chief Executive
and Chief People Officer attend meetings

by invitation, together with the General
Counseland Company Secretary, who acts as
Secretary to the Committee. The Committeeis
responsible for recommending appointments
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Robert Noel (Chair)

Habib Annous

Méka Brunel

Mike Butterworth
Adam Metz
Carol Welch

tothe Board and its Committees and ensures
that plans have been putin place forthe
orderly succession to the Board, its
Committees and the senior management
team. Thisincludes the development ofa
pipeline of potential candidates to the Board
and the senior management teamwith the
necessary skills and experience, while also
taking into account diversity and inclusion.
The Committee is now also responsible for
overseeing the Board effectiveness review and
monitoring developments relating to corporate
governance, bringing any issues to the
attention of the Board.

Key activities in 2022
During the year the Committee met twice and
its activities included:

— Considering Board composition and
succession

— Assessing the composition of the Board’s
Committees

— Reviewing talent and executive
management succession planning

— Theannualreview of the Board’s Diversity &
Inclusion Policy and Overboarding Policy
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Board Skills Matrix

Rita-Rose Himanshu  Robert Habib Mike Méka Adam Carol

Gagné Raja Noel Annous Butterworth  Brunel Metz Welch

Risk Management; Audit E N N N
Finance, Banking; Financial Services; Fund Management E N N N
Investment; Mergers & Acquisitions E E N N N N N
Asset and Property Management, Regeneration & Development E N N N
Business Transformation; Strategy E E N N N
Retail E N N N
Media; Marketing N
Digital; Customer Service & Customer Behaviours E E N
International Business & Markets E N N N
Environmental, Social & Governance E E N N N N

E — Executive Director
N —Non-Executive Director

— Assessing the Directors’ skill sets,
knowledge and experience to ensure that
an appropriate balance of skills, knowledge
and experience has been maintained

— Reviewing the Non-Executive Directors’
independence

Board balance, composition and skills

The Board currently comprises eight Directors:
the Chair of the Board, two Executive Directors
and five Non-Executive Directors. During the
yearand inaccordance with its usual practice,
the Committee reviewed the composition and
balance of the Board and its Committees,
having regard to requirements under the UK
Corporate Governance Code (the Code).

The review considered: each Director’s skills,
experience and knowledge; the membership
ofthe Committees of the Board; the balance
onthe Board between Executive and Non-
Executive Directors; the tenure of individual
Directors and the Board as a whole; multiple
forms of diversity on the Board; and the
independence of the Non-Executive Directors.

As demonstrated by the skills and experience
summarised in the biographies of the Directors
on pages 64 and 65, and the Board Skills
Matrix above, the Board members have a wide
range of relevant skills gained in diverse
business environments and different sectors
and geographies. This gives the Board varying
perspectives during discussions and enhances
its decision-making and oversight of
management. The Committee is satisfied that
the Board has the necessary mix of skills and
experience tofulfilits role effectively (as
confirmed by the externally facilitated Board
effectiveness review conducted in 2022 -

see pages 70and 71).

The Committee is also satisfied that the Board
is comprised of an appropriate combination of
Executive and Non-Executive Directors, and
that the overall size of the Board remains

appropriate given the complexity and scale of
the Company’s operations. AllNon-Executive
Directors are currently considered to be
independent for the purposes of the Code as at
the date of this Report. On appointment to the
Board, I was considered to be independentin
accordance with the terms of the Code.

On 28 April 2022, Gwyn Burrand Andrew
Formica stepped down following the conclusion
ofthe 2022 AGM. Habib Annous, Non-
Executive Director, succeeded Gwyn as Chair
ofthe Remuneration Committee and Mike
Butterworth, Non-Executive Director,
succeeded Gwyn as Senior Independent
Director. On 11 October 2022, Des de Beer,
Non-Executive Director, stepped down from
the Board. The appointment of Alan Olivier as
alternate directorto Des de Beer also ceased
with effect from that date. Once again, I would
like to thank Gwyn, Andrew, Des and Alan for
their positive contributions to the Board over
anumber of years.

All Directors are subject to annual re-election
by shareholders at the AGM. Prior to the
Company’s AGM each year, the Committee
considers, and makes recommendations to
the Board concerning, the reappointment of
Directors having regard to their performance,
suitability, time commitment and ability to
continue to contribute to the Board. Following
thisyear’s review in advance of the 2023 AGM,
the Committee has recommended to the Board
that all Directors be reappointed at the AGM.

The biographies of the Directors, set out on
pages 64 and 65, contain more information on
the reasons why the Board recommends the
re-election of each Director. Directors are
expected to devote sufficient time to the
Company’s affairs to enable them to fulfil their
duties as Directors effectively. The attendance
atthe meetings for each Director during 2022
is shown inthe Board and Committee

Meetings Attendance on page 68. Details
ofthe Company’s Overboarding Policy and
decisions made during the yearin relationto
Directors’ additional external appointments
are setouton page 69. The Committee
remains satisfied that each Director continues
to devote an appropriate amount of time to
the Company and to their responsibilities as
aDirector.

Board Diversity & Inclusion Policy

and objectives

Diversity and inclusion remain a key focus of
the Committee. In December 2022, the Board
Diversity and Inclusion Policy was reviewed by
the Committee and subsequently approved by
the Board. It sets out the Company’s approach
todiversity and inclusion in respect of the
Board and senior management team.

The Board recognises the benefits of diversity
andinclusionintheir broadest senseinthe
boardroom and that the skills, knowledge

and backgrounds collectively represented on
the Board should reflect the environmentin
which the business operates. The policy can
be read in full on the Group’s website at
www.hammerson.com.

The Board continues to make progressin
achieving the objectives of its Diversity and
Inclusion Policy as set out in the table below.
The Directors believe that the benefits of
adiverse andinclusive Board, and wider
workforce, will bring different perspectives and
build a broad range of capabilities necessary
forthe Company to achieve its strategic
objectives. Atthe end of 2022, three of the
Board’s eight members were women (37.5%)
and the Board exceeded the Parker Review
target of having at least one Director from
aminority ethnic group.
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BOARD DIVERSITY &INCLUSION POLICY OBJECTIVE PROGRESS UPDATE

Consider diversity and inclusion, including gender and ethnicity,
when reviewing the composition and balance of the Board and when
conducting the annual Board effectiveness review.

Diversity and inclusion is carefully considered as part of the Board’s
annual review of both Board and Committee composition. Diversity and
inclusion on the Board was an area of consideration for the externally
facilitated Board effectiveness review during the year, which concluded
thatthereis good diversity represented on the Board.

Aim to maintain female representation on the Board of at least 33%
and, overtime as opportunities arise, seek to achieve female
representation of at least 40%. Specifically, the Board willaim to
maintain the current position where at least one of the Chair of the
Board, the Senior Independent Director, CEO or CFO is female.

Atthe date of this report, the Board comprises 37.5% women Directors
and the Chief Executive Officer is female. The composition of the Board
inthis regard is in line with the requirements of the policy.

Aim at all times to have at least one non-white director on the Board.

At the date of this report, the composition of the Board exceeds the
requirement of the policy and the Parker Review. The Company
responded to the BEIS “Parker Review — FTSE 350 Ethnic Diversity
Survey” in December 2022 and continues to monitor wider
developmentsinthisarea.

Encourage and monitor the development of internal employees to help
support the internal talent pipeline for succession at both Board and
senior management level.

This continued to be a key focus for the Committee and Board in 2022
with detailed updates on the Company’s plans presented for discussion.
Colleagues below management level attend and present at Board and
Committee meetings and meet the Directors during visits to assets.
Internal successors for GEC members have been identified.

Oversee succession plans to ensure that they meet currentand future
needs of the business having due regard to diversity and inclusion.

The Committee will continue to review Board and management
succession plansin 2023, ensuring consideration of relevant matters
relating to diversity and inclusion.

Oversee plans for diversity and inclusion and assess progress annually
by monitoring gender and ethnic diversity of the members of the
Company’s GEC and direct reports to GEC (excluding executive
assistants).

With additionalinput from the Designated Non-Executive Director for
Colleague Engagement, the Committee has reviewed plans to further
improve diversity and inclusion in 2023. This has included updates on
initiatives across the Company in this area, including the work of the
Company’s Affinity Groups.

For Board appointments, only engage executive search firms who
have signed up to the Voluntary Code of Conduct on gender diversity
and best practice.

The Board only uses accredited executive search firms and will
continue to do so for future appointments.

Ensure that candidate lists for Board positions are compiled by drawing
from abroad and diverse range of candidates (including for Non-
Executive Director positions, candidates who may not have previous
listed company board experience but who possess suitable skills,
experience or qualities).

The Committee will continue to ensure candidate lists for future Board
positions meet the criteria, as it did so when compiling the candidate list
forthe most recent appointments of Mike Butterworth, Habib Annous
and Himanshu Raja.

Intheirdiscussions on Board composition and appointments, continue
to have regard to relevant best practice and the recommendations of
relevantindustry reviews inthe areas of diversity and inclusion.

The Committee has received updates on developing market practice
and regulatory requirements in this area from the General Counsel and
Company Secretary, and the Chief People Officer. These will continue
in2023.




Board: Gender diversity
%

H Male 62.5 (5
BFemale 375 (3)
Senior management and direct
reports*: Gender diversity %
HMale 69.8 (30)
B Female 30.2 (13)

Alldataasat 31 December2022

*

as definedin the UK Corporate Governance Code
(excluding executive assistants)

Other Committee work: Workforce
diversity, colleague engagement, and
succession planning

Inits December 2022 meeting, the
Committee considered the Company’s Annual
HR Report, including a report on progress with
diversity and inclusion objectives across the
Group, the UK gender pay gap and wider HR
initiatives for 2023. The Committee takes
seriously its role in overseeing the development
ofadiverse pipeline for senior management
positions and the link between diversity and
inclusion, and delivery of the Company’s
purpose, values and strategicaims. It received
updates during the year on diversity and
inclusion initiatives across the Company,
including management’s work with diversity
and inclusion campaign groups, and the
activities of the Company’s Affinity network.

Inline with the Code, the Committee discloses
that the gender balance of those in senior
management (being the members of the GEC)
and their direct reports (excluding executive
assistants) at 31 December 2022 was 30.2%
(13) female (2021:32.4% (12)) and 69.8%
(30) male (2021: 67.6% (25)). Further details
of gender diversity at senior manager level

(as defined inthe Companies Act 2006) and
across the workforce can be found on page 24.
The above chartsillustrate the gender diversity
at Board level and with respect to senior
management and their direct reports level (as
definedinthe Code) as at 31 December 2022.

The Committee continues to be involved in
overseeing colleague engagement activities.
InJune 2022, the Company gathered
feedback from colleagues, which was shared
with the Committee for discussion. In July and
December 2022, Carol Welch, as Designated
Non-Executive Director for Colleague
Engagement, also reported to the Committee
on her activities during 2022 and on her
engagement with colleagues and in particular
with the Colleague Forum (the Forum). In July
2022, the Chair of the Forum presented an
update on the work of the Forum, including its
focus areas for 2022 and priorities for the
period ahead. You can read further details on
thison page 67.

During the year, the Committee considered the
impact of, and the Company’s response to, the
cost of living crisis foremployees. It received
input from Carol Welch, as Designated
Non-Executive Director for Colleague
Engagement, and management, informed
(amongst other things) by engagement with
members of the Forum.

Governance

With effect from December 2022, the
Committee’s remit was broadened toinclude
certain governance related responsibilities
(which were previously the responsibility of the
full Board). Additional responsibilities of the
Committee now include:

— Monitoring the Board’s corporate
governance arrangements to ensure that
both the Company and the Board operate
inamanner consistent with corporate
governance best practice

— Monitoring director conflicts of interest

— Reviewing and approving the process for
the annual effectiveness review of the
Board and its Committees, including
approval of the appointment of any external
evaluator and monitoring progress against
any relevant recommendations arising from
any such effectiveness review

— Monitoring training and development
needs of the Board and individual Directors

— Reviewingthe Company’s delegation of
authority policy and making such
recommendations as required to the Board
forapproval

— Considering the process to be followed for
the annual appraisal of the Chair
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During 2023, the Committee will monitor
external governance developments, including
relevant aspects of the UK Government’s audit
and corporate governance reforms, and new
diversity reporting requirements under

the Listing Rules which will first apply to the
Companyinits 2023 Annual Report.

Committee effectiveness

As described in more detail on pages 70 and
71, an external evaluation of the effectiveness
ofthe Board and its Committees was
undertaken during the yearin line with the
requirements of the Code. The Committee
considers that during the year it continued to
have access to sufficient resources to enable
it to carry out its duties and has continued to
perform effectively. In 2022, the Committee
reviewed its terms of reference to ensure that
they remain appropriate.

Robert Noel

Chair of the Nomination and Governance
Committee

8March 2023
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Audit Committee Report

Mike Butterworth
Chairofthe Audit Committee

Supporting the Board and actingin the
long-term interests of stakeholders by
thoroughly reviewing and monitoring the
integrity and accuracy of the Group’s
financial and narrative reporting; its
compliance with laws and regulations,
the internal control and risk management
systems; and managing the externaland
internal audit processes

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

As Chair of the Audit Committee (the
Committee), Lam pleased to present my
report for the year ended 31 December 2022.

This report sets out the activities undertaken
by the Committee during the year and offers
insight into how the Committee has discharged
the responsibilities delegated to it by the Board
and the key areas of focus it has considered
indoing so.

COMMITTEE GOVERNANCE

The Committee plays a key governance role for
the Group and in meeting its responsibilities,
the Committee continues to consider the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Code (the Code) and the FRC Guidance on
Audit Committees. The Committee’s terms

of reference are available to view at
www.hammerson.com.

Membership and meetings

The Committee continues to be comprised
exclusively of independent Non-Executive
Directors. There were no changes in the
membership of the Committee during the year,
other than the retirement from the Board

and the Committee of Andrew Formicaon

28 April 2022.
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Mike Butterworth (Chair)

Habib Annous

Adam Metz

The Committee met five times during the year.
The agenda for each meetingis planned
around the Group’s annual reporting cycle and
includes particular matters for the Committee’s
consideration. Following each meeting,

the Board is appraised of matters arising from
the Committee.

The Chair of the Board, the Chief Executive, the
Chief Financial Officer and other members of
the senior finance team, together with senior
representatives of the Company’s External
Auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC),
areinvited toattend all or part of meetings as
appropriate. Inorderto fulfilits duties as set out
inits terms of reference, the Audit Committee
receives presentations and reviews reports
from the Group’s senior management and from
the Group’sindependent valuers, consulting as
necessary with PwC.

The Committee meets, with no Company
management present, at least once ayear with
PwC, and at least once with the Group’s
member of management responsible for
internal audit, enterprise risk and ESG.



The valuers (CBRE, Cushman & Wakefield and
JLL) and PwC have full access to one another,
and I personally spoke with the valuers and
PwC separately to discuss the halfyearand
year end valuation process and ensured each
is satisfied that there has been afulland open
exchange of information and views.

Independence and experience

The Board continues to be satisfied that the
Committee members provide an appropriate
depth of financial reporting, risk management
and commercial experience across different
industries including commercial real estate
andin listed companies. This combined
knowledge and experience enables the
Committee to undertake its duties properly
and actindependently of management. The
Board has also confirmed that it is satisfied
that being a chartered accountant and having
held other senior finance appointments,
Imeetthe Code requirement that at least
one member has recentand relevant
financial experience.

More information about the Committee
members’ skills and experience are set outin
the Board of Directors and Nomination and
Governance Committee Report sections of this
Annual Report.

Annualreview of effectiveness

For2022, the review of the Audit Committee’s
effectiveness was carried out by an external
organisation, Board Alchemy. I can confirm
that this review concluded that the Committee
continues to performiits role effectively with no
significant concerns. The private sessions of the
Committee also provide further opportunities
todiscuss matters in connection with its
effectiveness and to highlight any areas for
improvement or change.

External advice

The Board makes funds available to the
Committee to enable it to take independent
legal, accounting or other advice if or when the
Committee believes it necessary to do so.

KEY COMMITTEE ACTIVITIES IN 2022

Core duties

The Committee assists the Board in fulfilling
its oversight responsibilities by acting
independently from the Executive Directors.
Thereisanannual schedule of items which
are allocated to the meetings across the year
toensure that those items within the
Committee’s terms of reference are covered
fully. These items are supplemented
throughout the year as key matters arise.
The principal duties of the Committee are to:

Accounting and financial reporting matters

— Monitor the integrity of the Annual Report
and Accounts, the Interim Statement and
any formalannouncements relating to
financial performance, to ensure clarity and
completeness of disclosures, including
those relating to alternative performance
measures

— Review matters of accounting significance
including financial reportingissues,
restatements, judgements and estimates

— Review the Group’s valuation process and
valuations of the Group’s property portfolio

— Advise the Board on whether, asawhole,
the Annual Report and Accounts are fair,
balanced and understandable

— Considerand review the basis for the going
concernand longer term viability
statements in light of financial plans and
reasonably possible scenarios

Risk management and internal control

— Reviewthe Group’s financial controls and
internal control effectiveness and maturity

— Review and monitor the Group’s risk
management systems, processes and risk
appetite, including those to identify
emerging risks, to ensure the Group has an
effective internal controls environment and
complies with laws and regulations

— Ensure that management has systems and
procedures in place to ensure the integrity
and accuracy of financial information

— Debate and agree any changeto
principal risks

— Reviewed the impact of climate risk on
the financial statements and the Group’s
TCFDdisclosures

Internalaudit

— Monitorand review the effectiveness and
independence of the Internal Audit and
Risk functions

— Consider whistleblowing arrangements by
which employees may raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial
reporting or other matters

— Consider the major findings of internal
auditinvestigations

External audit

— Consider recommendations of the External
Auditor’s appointment and approving
their remuneration

— Review and monitoring the relationship
with the External Auditor, including their
independence, objectivity, effectiveness,
terms of engagement and level of fees

— Review the results and conclusions of work
performed by the External Auditor
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General matters

— Refer matters to the Board which, inits
opinion, should be addressed ata meeting
ofthe Board

RISKMANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

Risk management

The Audit Committee continued to review the
heightened risks and challenges to the Group
arising from market conditions and the macro
economy. The Committee uses a number of
tools to review the Group’s risk management
processes including the Group’s Risk
Management Framework, Residual Risk Heat
Map and Risk Dashboard. These tools are
reviewed regularly by the senior management
team to ensure that risks, both existing and
emerging, are properly identified and managed
and the potential impact on the Group
assessed. The Committee also supported

the Board inits annual review of the Group’s
risk appetite.

Internal control

The Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities relating to the adequacy and
effectiveness of the control environment and
compliance systemsinthe Group.

Throughout the year, the Committee received
regular updates on the Group’s internal control
systems, including material financial,
operationaland compliance controls. The
Group’sinternal controls provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The review of the controls
involves analysis and evaluation of the key risks
tothe Group, including areview of all the
material controls. This includes the plans for
the continuity of the Group and its operations
inthe event of unforeseen interruption.

Inaddition, the Committee reviewed the
Group’s approach to compliance with
legislation and the prevention of fraud,
anti-bribery and corruption. During 2021, one
allegation of fraud was raised, which following
further detailed investigation during the
currentyear, included areview by an
independent firm of accountants, was not
substantiated. There were no allegations of
fraud raised in 2022.

The Committee confirms that its review
was able to demonstrate that the Group
continues to operate an effective internal
controlenvironment.
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Significantissues, judgements and estimates
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The Committee received reports from management and the External Auditor setting out the significant accounting and financial reporting matters
and judgements in respect of the financial statements as well as how these matters were addressed. The following sets out the main areas of
judgement considered by the Committee. For each area, the Committee was satisfied with the accounting and disclosures in the Annual Report

and Accounts.

MATTER CONSIDERED

Valuation of the Group’s property portfolio
The valuation of the Group’s property portfolio
isakey recurring judgement due toits
significance inthe context of the Group’s net
assetvalue.

Valuations are inherently subjective due to the
assumptions and judgements made by the
valuers and these include those relating to
capitalisationyields, market rentalincome
(ERV) and otherfactors including the location,
physical attributes of the property, and
environmental and structural conditions.

Valuations are undertaken by the Group’s
three external valuers and are thoroughly
reviewed by management.

THE COMMITTEE’S REVIEW AND CONCLUSION

The external valuers each presented their year end valuations to the Committee in January
2023. These were scrutinised, challenged and debated with a focus on the key judgements
adopted, recognising that while lower than long term averages, the leasing evidence on which
tobase the valuation compared with 2020 and 2021 was greater, although offset in part by
reduced reliance on transactional evidence given macroeconomic volatility experienced in the
second halfofthe year.

The Committee also discussed the RICS Guidance Note, Sustainability and ESG in Commercial
Property Valuation, which took effect from 31 January 2022, and the recommendations in the
RICS Independent Review of Real Estate Investment Valuations. The latter recommendations
have been accepted in full by RICS and an Implementation Roadmap was published in

August 2022 which indicated that the recommendations would be adopted by the second
quarterof 2024.

The Committee Chair also held private meetings with each valuer to discuss and challenge the
valuation process and asked the valuers to highlight any disagreements with management
during the valuation process. This allowed the Committee to satisfy itself that the valuation
process was independent and objective.

The Committee was satisfied that the valuations had been carried out in an appropriate manner
with reference to the widest range of available evidence and was therefore suitable forinclusion
inthe Group’s financial statements.

Impairment of trade receivables

In 2021, the intermittent closures of the
majority of non-essential retail as a result of
the Covid-19 pandemic, coupled with the UK
government’s restrictions on landlords’ ability
to enforce collection, adversely impacted
collection rates.

Overthe course of 2022, conditions improved
across all regions and in the UK were further
aided by government restrictions on
collections being lifted. The resulting improved
collection rates have led to a reappraisal of
provisioning rates.

The estimation of provisions against arrears
and capitalised tenant incentives requires
estimation about future events and is therefore
inherently subjective, particularly against the
current backdrop of macroeconomic
uncertainties.

The Committee reviewed management’s approach to the impairment of trade receivables
based on the expected credit loss method to assess the appropriate level of provisioning.

Management’s approach is to use a provisioning matrix which groups receivables dependent
onrisk level, taking into account a number of factors consistent with prior periods and which
are explained further in note 19D to the financial statements. The most recent collections
experience was a key factor in reassessing the provisioning rates, in particular the rates applied
tomore recently aged receivables.

Applying the assessment criteria set out above, the Group has reduced its provisioning rates
toreflect the improvements in recent collections experience but has maintained a degree of
prudence to reflect ongoing macroeconomic uncertainties.

The Committee was satisfied with the approach and concluded that the resulting provision
is appropriate.
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MATTER CONSIDERED THE COMMITTEE’S REVIEW AND CONCLUSION

Accounting for property transactions

The accounting treatment of property
transactionsis a recurring judgement for the
Group because of the financial significance
and potential complexity of such transactions.

For property transactions, judgement can be
required to determine the point at which
assets are held for sale and subsequently
when asale should be recognised.

The Committee reviewed management’s accounting treatment and disclosures for the two
property disposals completed during 2022 as well as ongoing property transactions. The
principal areas of discussion included the sales which completed during the yearand an
assessment as to whether there were any further potential transactions requiring disclosure,
forinstance, whether any of the Group’s properties fell under the definitions of assets held for
sale atyearend or required disclosure as a post balance sheet event.

The Committee reviewed and challenged management’s proposed accounting treatments
and was satisfied that the treatment and disclosures adopted in the financial statements
were appropriate.

Going concern and longer term viability
Assumptions underlying going concern and
the longer termviability statements are based
onthe Group’s budget and five year plan.
These include appropriate scenario analysis

and take account of the Groups’ principal risks.

The work undertaken then affects the Group’s
related disclosures.

The Committee, in conjunction with the Board, reviewed the plans, scenarios and other key
assessment factors and was satisfied that in respect of the longer term viability statement,
aperiod of three years was suitable. The Committee reviewed and challenged the financial
forecasts and their underlying assumptions, considering the Group’s current position,
strategy, future prospects and risk assessment including a separate paper on climate risks.
Thisincluded the Group’s liquidity position and projected financial covenants within the
Group’s borrowing facilities.

The Committee was satisfied that management had conducted a robust assessment and
concurred with management’s conclusions that the viability statement as set out in the Annual
Report was appropriate. The Committee further concluded that the evaluation and related
disclosuresinthe Annual Report in respect of going concern were appropriate.

Fair, balanced and understandable

The Group uses a number of Alternative
Performance Measures (APMs), being
financial measures not specified under IFRS,
to monitor the performance of the business.
Management principally reviews the Group on
aproportionally consolidated basis, except for
Value Retail.

Judgement is required to ensure disclosures
and associated commentary explain clearly
the performance of the business and provide
reconciliations to IFRS.

During the year, management undertook an exercise to redesign and simplify its Annual Report
and financial statements with the objective of enhancing clarity and users’ understanding. The
Committee reviewed the revised presentation and considered whether the report remained fair,
balanced and understandable, but also remained focused on the relevant disclosures and
reconciliations inthe accounts, including ensuring that APMs:

— arenot given more prominence than measures under IFRS

— are properly explained, including the rationale for their use

— whererelevant, are reconciled to IFRS

The Committee noted that the material adjustments are not cash items, and that, as a REIT,
there were no material tax impacts.

Following its review, the Committee was satisfied that the Annual Report and financial
statements was fair, balanced and understandable and recommended the same to the Board.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The Internal Audit function provides
independent and objective assurance over
the design and operating effectiveness of the
system of internal control though a risk-
focused approach. The function reports into
the Deputy CFO, but has an independent
reporting line directly into the Committee.

Foranumber of years, the internal audit
function and its activities have been carried
outinternally, but with assorted co-source
providers for specialist assurance activities.
During the year, a new co-sourcing
arrangement with BDO was entered into to
ensure that the function hasaccess toa
dedicated resource pool and specialist skills.

Priorto the start of each financial year, the
Committee reviews and approves the annual
internalaudit plan. A further review occurs
during the yearto take account of any need to
refocus. The plan takes account of the Group’s
Risk Management Framework and in particular
any heightened principal risks affecting the
Group with audits split between a cyclical
annual planand arisk based audits. Other key
factorsfor consideration are key areas of change
for the Group which have not been subject to
recent audit. Internal audits completed during
theyearincluded, but were not limited to:
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Cyclical

Territory
Accounts receivable UK
Capital expenditure controls France
Controls on supplier selection and ongoing management UK
Monitoring of controls for work undertaken by outsourcers Ireland
Risk based

Territory
Suicide deterrence UK
Business continuity planning France
Cyber security UK
Lease management Ireland

Recommendations forimprovement are
agreed with management with clear timelines
and responsibilities forimplementation.
Progress updates on actions arising from
currentand prior reports are and have been
provided at each Committee meeting. The
Committeeis satisfied that the internal audit
programme remains risk focused, is
functioning satisfactorily across the Group,
that managementis open to reviews and takes
action on recommendations on a timely basis.

Accordingly, it has been concluded that the
Group’sinternal audit arrangements provide
effective assurance over the Group’s risk and
controlenvironment. The Committee
continues to review how the internal audit
function will need to evolve in future years.



EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Independence and objectivity

Both the Board and the External Auditor (PwC)
have safeguards in place to protect the
independence and objectivity of the External
Auditor. The Committee receives details of
any relationships between the Company and
PwC that may have a bearing on their
independence. These were reviewed by the
Committee during the yearand remain
satisfactory. In accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK), PwC formally
confirmed to the Board its independence as
auditor of the Company.

Auditor effectiveness

The effectiveness of the audit process is subject
toongoing monitoring and the Committee has
considered this as part of the 2022 yearend
process. The Committee considered a number
offactors, including the quality and scope of
the audit plan and reporting.

The Committee also sought the views of key
members of the finance team, senior
management and the Directors regarding the
audit process and the quality and experience
ofthe audit partnerengaged in the audit.
Their overall feedback was positive and that
the External Auditor provides an appropriate
level of challenge to management. It was
agreed that the audit team had continued to
be responsive and cooperative and had
demonstrated flexibility and adaptability in
working with management day-to-day to
address anyissues arising during the year.
Confirmation was also sought that the fee
payable for the annual audit is sufficient to
enable PwC to performits obligationsin
accordance with the scope of the audit.

The Committee has concluded that taken as
awhole, PwC has carried out its audit for 2022
effectively and efficiently.

The FRC’s review of audit quality

The FRC’s Audit Quality Review Team (AQRT)
routinely monitors the quality of the audit work
of certain UK audit firms through inspections

of sample audits and related quality processes.

The AQRT carried out a review of the audit
ofthe Group for the financial year ended
31 December2021.

As Chair of the Committee, I held discussions
with the FRC prior to the review commencing.
The reportissued onthe quality of the audit
by the AQRT was circulated to the Committee
and an update on the process and review of
the outcome was communicated to the
Committee by PwC.

Tam pleased toreport that there were no
significant recommendations made by the
FRC but certain limited improvements were
suggested to the audit process and these have
already beenimplemented.

Auditor appointment

PwC has served as the Group’s External
Auditor since being appointed at the AGMin
April 2017 after afull tender process was
undertakenin 2016. The current audit
partner, Sonia Copeland, has served forthree
years. The external audit contract will be put
outtotenderat least every 10 years and the
Committee considers that it would be
appropriate to conduct an external audit
tender by no laterthan 2026. There are no
contractual obligations that restrict the
Committee’s choice of External Auditor.

PwC’s objectivity, independence and
performance remain strong and accordingly,
the Committee has recommended to the
Board that PwC be re-appointed as External
Auditor for the 2023 financial year, subject to
approval atthe AGMto be held on 4 May 2023.

The Committee is in compliance with The
Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies
Market Investigation (Mandatory Use of
Competitive Processes and Audit Committee
Responsibilities) Order 2014, published by the
Competition and Markets Authority.

Non-audit services

The Committee has putin place a robust
auditorengagement policy to ensure that

the External Auditor remains objective and
independent. It considers how such objectivity
might be, or appear to be, compromised
through the provision of non-audit services

by the External Auditor.

The Group’s non-audit services policy

can be found on the Company’s website at
www.hammerson.com and reflects the
requirements of the Financial Reporting
Council’s (FRC) Revised Ethical Standard 2019
suchthat:

— The External Auditor may only provide
services which areincluded onthe FRC'’s
‘whitelist’ of services

— Non-audit services with fees up to £50,000
are assessed and, as appropriate,
authorised by the Chair of the Committee.
Services with fees above this level are
considered by the Committee as awhole.

— The provision of non-audit services is
monitored closely to ensure compliance
with the 70% non-audit services cap
calculated as the average of the fees paid
foraudit servicesin the last three
consecutive financial years.
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During the year, PwC received insignificant
amountsin relation to non-audit services
(2021:£0.1m), representing 1% of the
Group’s audit fee for the year (2021: 7%)
and furtheranalysis of fees paid to the
External Auditoris set outin note 5E tothe
financial statements.

CONCLUSIONS

The Committee’s oversight of financial
reporting, externaland internal audit, and the
further development of the risk and control
environments have continued to be key areas
offocus. These are likely to remain so for the
2023 financial year as the Group developsin
line withits strategy.

The Committee remains focused on ensuring
that finance and risk capability is appropriate
to the scale of the business, whilst also
acknowledging an increasingly regulated
environment. As the UK’s regulatory landscape
continues to evolve, the Committee will
continue to monitor developments fromthe
review led by the Department for Business and
Trade (previously part of the Department for
Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy
(BEIS)) into restoring trust in audit and
corporate governance, and the impact the
recommendations may have on the Group.
While at the time of writing, the degree and
structure of these changes is becoming
somewhat clearer, itis still not yet certain what
exact form the regulations will ultimately take
nor the precise timing of their mandatory
implementation compliance (although certain
elements could potentially become effective
in 2024 with others no earlierthan 2025).

The Committee and management are
committed to ensuring that we respond
positively to these changes in the regulatory
environment, particularly in the context of the
Group’s digital transformation programme.

Mike Butterworth
Chairofthe Audit Committee
8March 2023
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Habib Annous
Chairofthe Remuneration Committee

Aligning remuneration with our
strategy and stakeholder interests

Ensuring our remuneration reflects
market conditions and supports the
ongoing focus on transforming and
strengthening our business

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

Thisis my first report as the Chair of the
Remuneration Committee (the Committee)
andIam pleasedto present our Directors’
Remuneration Report (the Report) for the
yearended 31 December2022.

Context for the Committee’s decisions
Atthe end of 2021 as we planned for 2022,
the macroeconomic debate focused onthe
impacts of transitory inflation and how we
would emerge from the Omicron variant
increase in Covid-19 cases. Inearly 2022,
the war in Ukraine increased macroeconomic
headwinds, with the accompanyingrisein
energy and food costs contributing to

inflationary pressures and a subsequent cost
ofliving crisis. The second half of the year saw
UK politicalinstability add to the volatile
economic landscape and the Central Banks
have raised interest rates much higher than
previously expected in response to the
entrenched inflationary pressures.

Notwithstanding extreme volatility and
uncertainty, management continued to make
significant operationaland financial progress
towards achieving the strategic goals outlined
in 2021, focused on our four key pillars:

— Reinvigorate our assets
— Accelerate development
— Createanagile platform

— Deliverasustainable and resilient
capital structure

These goals are underpinned by our
commitment to sustainability which continued
tobeapriority for the management team.

Habib Annous (Chair)

Méka Brunel

CarolWelch

Remuneration Policy and stakeholder
engagement

The current Remuneration Policy was
approved at the AGM on 28 April 2020 with
91.3% of shares voted infavour. The last
Report, which explained how we applied that
policyin 2021 and intendedtodosoin 2022,
was also approved with 92.7% of shares voted
infavour.

As required under the regulations, the policy

is subject to renewal at the 2023 AGM.

The Committee reviewed the operation and
impact of the policy, actively engaging with
approximately 60% of the share regjisterand
the principal proxy advisory firms. We appreciate
the time shareholders took to consider and
provide feedback onthe proposals. Asis often
the case, shareholder perspective onthe
policy and its implementation was varied. In
addition to the written responses we received,
we also had the opportunity to meet with our
largest shareholders. All the feedback received
was reviewed and discussed extensively at our
Remuneration Committee meetings.



The Committee took account of the current
economic uncertainty and the need to
continue to transform the business alongside
shareholder feedback. Given all the factors,
the Committee has concluded that the current
AIP performance measures continue to
provide the right framework for the business
atthis stage. However, these will stay under
active review to ensure they remain
appropriate to Hammerson'’s evolution.

Having listened to shareholders and considered
allthe feedback received, we have decided to
make some changes to how we propose to
implement the policy in the future. There was
aconsensus to focus on ‘per share” metrics
and therefore we have moved to Adjusted
Earnings Per Share for 2023 targets. There
was also a strong demand foran increased
emphasis in ESG related measures and as
aresult, we have increased the proportion of
environmental factors inthe annual bonus
calculation and added social and stakeholder
related measures to the personal/ strategic
objectives. Additionally, we committed toan
increased level of transparency and enhanced
disclosures associated to these objectives.

Shareholders approved the introduction of
aRestricted Share Scheme (RSS) in 2020.
Although the current trend across UK listed
companies is towards restricted share
schemes, versus LTIPs, some of our
shareholders expressed a preference for more
traditional LTIPs. These views were notin the
majority, with differing perspectives among
shareholders. On balance, the Committee
resolved to retain the existing RSS at this stage.
Asaresult, the proposed new Policy is largely
unchanged, with minor updating of the share
ownership guidelines to ensure they operate
asintended along with slightly updated malus
and clawback provisions. However, rather than
necessarily waiting a further three years before
reviewing the Policy again, the Committee

will continue to engage with our shareholders
on the development of the Policy. We are
committed to ensuring the Policy reflects the
evolution of the new Hammerson to ensure it
supports the development of the strategy
agreed by the Board and remains aligned to
stakeholderinterests.

Furtherinformation on the application of the
policy during 2022 is detailed on pages 109
t0113.The Policy is shaped by the following
underlying principles thataim to achieve:

— Alignment of remuneration with strategy
and stakeholderinterests

— Thelong-term, sustainable success of
the Company

— Consistency and transparency

— Thereward of performance with
competitive remuneration

— Support forthe Company’s values

— Amixture of fixed remuneration, short-term
and long-term performance-related
incentives

We communicate with, and receive feedback
from, the Company’s colleagues through a
variety of channels, notably through The
Colleague Forum (the Forum) which you can
read about on page 67. Carol Welch,amember
ofthe Committee and Designated Non-
Executive Director for Colleague Engagement,
and I met the Forumin October 2022 to
discuss executive remuneration and explain
how it aligns with the wider Company pay
policy. Colleagues, in particular, supported the
more explicit inclusion of Sustainability and
Social ESG based measures in the Executive
Directors’ Personal/Strategic Objectives.

Long term incentive arrangements
Consistent with the policy, Rita-Rose Gagné
and Himanshu Raja received annual RSS
awards equivalentto 100% and 75% of base
salary respectively on 22 March 2022.

Short term incentive arrangement

The Strategy and Business Plan for 2022

was approved by the Board in late 2021.

The Annual Incentive Plan (AIP) is made up of
acombination of financialand non-financial
performance measures based on the Strategy
and Business Plan. The financial performance
measuresin 2022 remained focused on
Adjusted Earnings, Group net debt and Gross
administration costs (22.3% of AIP each).

Adjusted Earnings performance was fully
achieved with performance significantly
ahead of the target range. This was a result of
improvements across many elements of the
group’s operations. Net rental income was up
£21m), supported by a successful year forour
leasing and animprovement in occupancy.
Net interest costs were lower, benefitting from
the proactive management of our debt and
higher interest rates on the Group’s cash
balances. Additionally, we saw animproved
contribution from Value Retail. These factors
combined, culminated ina 60% growthin
adjusted earnings and a 100% pay-out.

Interms of the net debt target, the Group
committed to complete £500m of disposals
in 2022 and 2023. The disposal of Silverburn,
and Victoria Gate were achieved in Q1 2022
with proceeds of £195m but liquidity in
investment markets dried up for the rest of the
year. Whilst net debt reduced by 4%to £1.7bn,
the management team were not able to fully
achieve theambitious targets set by the
Remuneration Committee and the resulting
pay-out was 29.1% against this measure.

Hammerson plc Annual Report 2022 83

Finally, for financial measures, the Committee
set targets formanagement to address the
cost base whilst maintaining operational
excellence. The Group committed to areduction
in gross administration costs of 15-20%
compared with the 2019 base by 2023. The
2022 element of this was for a cost reduction
0f 11%. Management delivered the two year
target ayear early with gross administration
costs reduced to £59.8m,a 17% year-on-year
reduction and 18% against 2019. The target
was, therefore, achieved in full, after absorbing
inflation on pay, and an additional cost of living
allowance granted to lower-paid colleagues.

The reductionin CO,emissions of 12%
resulted ina100% outturn underthe
Environmental performance measure. The
strong performance is due to the delivery of
energy efficiency works at several assets
andanincreased focus on energy saving
actions and controls in the light of the volatile
energy market.

Personal/Strategic Objectives were based
onthe Business Plan and Strategy with
substantial progress made across the

four strategic pillars as detailed on Page 99.

Particularachievements included updating
and resetting of a clear value add strategy,
filling key skilland capability gaps at the GEC
and across the value creation teams,
organisational restructure and consolidation
of our property management services whilst
maintaining operational excellence, digital
transformation and improved automation,
demonstrable progress on net zero asset
plans, renewal and extension of the Group’s
RCFfacilities, credit collections and debt
management, and de-risking of the Defined
Benefit Pension Scheme.

Performance against the Personal/Strategic
Objectives was assessed at 90% for the Chief
Executive and 85% for the Chief Financial
Officer, reflecting the significant progress
achievedin 2022 against the Strategy and
Business Plan, approved by the Board. As
detailed above, this progress was focused on
the four key strategic pillars which support the
building of along-term sustainable, high
performing business.

No LTIP or RSS award was due to vest orto have
its underpin assessed forany Executive Director
in 2022. Thefirst such RSS assessmentis due
inNovember 2023 and will be reported in the
next Annual Report.
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Remuneration alignment to strategy

All aspects of remuneration are regularly
considered by the Committee to ensure they
supportand are aligned to strategy.

To support the continued focus on
transforming and strengthening the business,
the Committee has determined that the 2023
AIP financial performance measures continue
to be based on an equal weighting of Adjusted
Earnings Per Share, reduction of net debt, and
reduction in the cost base. The non-financial
componentwillinclude anincreased 10%
weighting on carbon reduction alongside the
25% for Personal/Strategic objectives.

Adjusted earnings per share 21.67%
Net debt 21.67%
Gross administration costs 21.67%
Carbon reduction 10%
Personal/Strategic

(inclusive of sustainability) 25%

As discussed elsewhere, the Committee has
sought to explain the achievement of the
Personal/Strategic objectives for 2022 more
fully. The Committee also plans toinclude
more focus on all stakeholders alongside our

Salary and benefits

strategic business priorities and greater
objectivity to the assessment for 2023. Inline
with shareholder feedback, for 2023, the
personal/ strategic objectives will include
distinct and measurable objectives forthe
CEOand CFOthatare aligned to the new
Board-approved Business Plan, delivering long
term shareholder and social value. Further
information on the 2023 AIP performance
measures and targets is on page 84.

2023 pay approach

The Committee approved a 4% salary increase
for each of the Executive Directors, noting that
thisis below the average (5.5%) to be awarded
to colleagues generally.

Exercise of discretion and judgement

The Remuneration Committee considered the
AIP outturn to be appropriate and to reflect
astrong performance against the majority of
objectives despite the challenging backdrop.
As such, the Remuneration Committee did not
exercise its discretion to override formulaic
variable pay outturnsin the year.
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Conclusion

Hammerson is a materially stronger business
thanthis time last year and thisis reflectedin
the remuneration outcomes. In summary:

— The AIP delivered between 80.4% and
81.7% of the maximum for the executive
directors, with 40% of this deferred in
shares fortwo years

— The CEOand CFO received RSS awards
over shares worth 100% and 75% of salary
respectively

— Recognising the need to balance the impact
of high inflation with the continuing focus on
cost control, a4% salary increase has been
awarded to the Executive Directors which is
below the average awarded to colleagues
more generally.

Atthe 2023 AGM, both the Remuneration
Policy and the Remuneration Report will be
submitted to shareholders. Tam grateful for
the engagement and support provided by
shareholders during the yearand I look
forward to receiving your continued support
atthe AGM.

Habib Annous
Chairofthe Remuneration Committee

ACTIVITIES AND DECISIONS OF THE COMMITTEE IN 2022

— 2022 review of Executive Directors’ pay and the fee for the Chair of the Board

— 2022 review of GEC members’ salaries

AnnualIncentive Plan
and Long Term Incentive
Schemes

— Consideration of AIP 2021 outturn

— Reviewand approval of 2022 AIP structure, performance targets and personal objectives

— Consideration of 2019 LTIP performance outturn and approval of vesting outcomes
— Review of likely 2022 AIP outturn and potential targets for 2023

— Review and approval of the RSS award levels

— Review of RSP awards for GEC members
— Review of AIP for GEC members

Policy renewal

— Consideration of the policy against developments in market and best practice

— Consideration of changes to the policy

— Engagement with shareholders and proxy agencies on proposed changes to the policy and

extensive discussion of feedback received

Governance — Review of AGM season remuneration report results, and shareholders’ and proxy agencies’
views on remuneration.
— Review of the Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference
Other — Review of Directors’ Remuneration Report

— Employee share plan award activity

— Review of remuneration consultant costs and re-appointment

— Review of emerging remuneration practice

— Consideration of the treatment of share awards to reflect the Enhanced Scrip Dividend in line

with the previously established practice

— Inconsultation with the Designated Non-Executive Director for Colleague Engagement,
engagement with the wider workforce on how executive pay aligns with pay for the

wider workforce




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy as set
out below (Policy) will take effect from the
conclusion of the AGMto be held on 4 May
2023, subject to approval by the shareholders
atthat meeting. This Policy would remain
applicable for the following three years.
However, the Committee will keep a watching
briefto ensure that it remains appropriate for
the best interests of the business at each
stage inits evolution and in the broader
remuneration landscape and may revisit the
Policy earlier. The Committee consulted
extensively with shareholders and took into
account their varying views when making
adjustments to the Policy. Further details of
the consultation process are set out inthe
Chair’s letter on pages 82 and 83.

Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors

The Committee has received clear advice that
formal limits are required in the Policy and has
retained sufficient flexibility toenable it to
continue toact inthe interests of the Company
and its shareholders. The limits will not lead to
pressure on reward levels and the Committee
is satisfied that it has adopted a suitably
conservative approach to date and will
continuetodoso.
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No significant changes to the Policy are
proposed and, other than minor updating to
remove legacy items, the only changes are
tothe malus and clawback provisions to add
insolvency and to limit reputational damage

to malus (and not clawback) consistent with
developmentsin practice over the last three
years, and to ensure that the share ownership
guidelines refertothe RSSin addition to legacy
LTIP grants.

SALARY

Purpose and link to strategy

— Tocontinue to retain and attract quality leaders.
— Torecognise accountabilities, skills, experience and value.

Operation

— Paid monthly in cash.

— Reviewed but not necessarily increased annually by the Committee.

— Inundertaking reviews, the Committee will take into account a variety of factors, including
Company and individual performance, market conditions, the level of salary increases
awarded to otheremployees of the Group, and a comparison against both arelevant property
peer group and a group of entities of comparable size selected by the Committee (currently
the larger REITs and an appropriate pan-sector group of companies with a comparable

market capitalisation and/or portfolio size).

— The Committee is aware of the limitations of benchmarking and of the need to avoid
inflationary upward trends. However, benchmarking is considered at both base salary and
total remuneration level, and the Committee generally considers that pay will be withina
range of +/- 10% of a median benchmark but also takes into account such other factors as
it considers appropriate and is not constrained by this default.

Maximum potential value

— The base salary forany existing Executive Director shall not exceed £850,000 (or the
equivalent if denominated in a different currency), with this limit increasing annually at the

rate of UK CPI from the date of the 2017 AGM.

Performance measures

— Notapplicable.
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BENEFITS

Purpose and link to strategy — Provide arange of benefits in line with market practice.
— Tocontinue toretain and attract quality leaders.

Operation — Executive Directors may receive such contractual and non-contractual benefits as the
Committee considers to be appropriate and consistent with market practice in the relevant
market in which the Executive Director is based.

— These benefits currently include a car allowance, enhanced sick pay, private medical
insurance (forthe Executive Director and their spouse/life partner), permanent health
insurance and life assurance.

— Whilst the Committee does not consider it to form part of benefits in the normal sense,
Executive Directors can participate in corporate hospitality (including traveland, where
appropriate, with a family member), whether paid for by the Company or another, withinits
agreed policies with any tax liability met on the Executive Directors’ behalf.

— Inaddition, Executive Directors will be paid any statutory entitlements.

Maximum potential value — The aggregate value of such benefits received by each Executive Director (based on the value
included inthe individual’s annual P11D tax calculation or a broadly equivalent basis for a
non-UK based Executive Director) shall not exceed £100,000 or the equivalent if
denominated in a different currency (with this maximum increasing annually at the rate of UK
CPIfromthe date of the 2017 AGM).

— Inadditiontothe benefits outlined, where Executive Directors are relocated toworkina
different country, the Company may pay global relocation support (up to a maximum of
£400,000) or the equivalent if denominated in a different currency; and/or provide tax
equalisation arrangements in relation to all elements of remuneration.

Performance measures — Notapplicable.

Purpose and link to strategy — Provide market competitive retirement benefits.
— Tocontinuetoretainand attract quality leaders.

Operation — Inlinewith all UKemployees, where either annual or lifetime pension allowances are
exceeded Executive Directors may receive a cash allowance (Pension Choice) to be paid as,
oras acombination of: (i) an employer contribution to the Company’s defined contribution
pension plan; (i) a payment to a personal pension plan; or (jii) a salary supplement.

— Thelevel of contribution will not exceed the average level paid to staff in the relevant country
(currently 10% in the UK).

Maximum potential value — Seeabove, currently 10% but this may change if the all-employee level changes.

Performance measures — Notapplicable.
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ANNUAL BONUS (ANNUAL INCENTIVE PLAN OR AIP)

Purpose and link to strategy

— Align Executive Director remuneration with annual financialand Company strategic targets

as determined by the Company’s Business Plan for the relevant financial year.
Todifferentiate appropriately, in the view of the Committee, on the basis of performance.
Partialaward in shares aligns interests with shareholders and supports retention.

Operation

Awards are subject to continued employment, save in the leaver circumstances described in
the Payment for loss of office section of this Policy.

Awards are paid ina mix of cash and deferred shares, with the deferred shares element being
at least 40% of the total award.

The Committee reserves discretion to reduce any formulaic outcome if itis not considered
appropriatein all the circumstances.

Subject to clawback and malus provisions in situations of personal misconduct and/or where
accounts orinformation relevant to performance are shown to be materially wrong and the
bonus paid was higher than should have been the case and/or, in the case of malus, where the
individual’s actions contributed to a significant adverse impact on the reputation of the
Company or Group or a group insolvency.

The recovery and withholding provisions also apply to the deferred element of the AIP
delivered under the Deferred Bonus Share Scheme (DBSS).

Maximum potential value

The maximum bonus opportunity is 200% of base salary (CEO) and 150% (CFO).

Performance measures

The annual bonus operates by reference to financial and personal performance measures set
and assessed over one year. The weighting of the financial measures will be at least 60% of
the total opportunity. It is expected that the financial performance measures may include
some orall of the following:

— Absolute netdebt
— Administrative expenses
— Adjusted Earnings Per Share

These measures are aligned to the Company’s financial KPIs, as explained in the Company’s
Strategic Report, and reflect effective delivery of the business model. The Committee
reserves the right to change, remove or include these or such other measures as it considers
tobe an appropriate means of assessing the performance of the Executive Directors.

The level of vesting at entry/threshold performance for each performance measure is set
annually, but will be between 0% and 25% of maximum (with vesting normally then being on
astraight-line or stepped basis from the threshold to the stretch level set for full vesting).
On-target and maximum performance levels will also be set. See page 96 of the
implementation report.

The Committee retains discretion to amend the vesting level (up or down) where it considers
itto be appropriate, but not so as to exceed the maximum bonus potential and will fully
disclose the exercise of any discretion in the Annual Remuneration Report that follows such
exercise of discretion.

Once set, performance measures and targets will generally remain unchanged for the year,
except targets may be adjusted by the Committee to take account of significant transactions
such as acquisitions and/or disposals, changes in accounting standards, or in other exceptional
circumstances such as timing of transactions that have a materialimpact on the Business Plan.
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ANNUAL BONUS (DEFERRED SHARE ELEMENT)

Purpose and link to strategy — The AIP award is split between cash and a substantial deferred award of shares which aligns
interests with shareholders and supports retention.

Operation — Thedeferred shares element is currently awarded under the Deferred Bonus Share Scheme
(DBSS) (but may be delivered under a different plan with equivalent terms).

— Thedeferral period s currently two years, and may not be shorter.

— Thedeferred shares are subject to the leaver conditions as set out in the Payment for loss of
office section of this Policy.

— Theawards are typically structured as nil-cost share options, but can take other forms such
asaconditional award of shares.

— Participants are entitled to a dividend equivalent for the period from grant until the vesting
date, delivered as additional shares when the shares are transferred to the participant.

— Subject to clawback and malus provisions in situations of personal misconduct and/or where
performance in the year to which the bonus relates is shown to be materially different from

that assumed and, in the case of malus, where there has would otherwise be material
reputational damage and/ ora group insolvency.

Maximum potential value — Awards under the DBSS are granted to deliver the deferred element of the annual bonus,
and so no separate maximum applies.

Performance measures — Nofurther performance targets apply to the deferred shares element of the AIP as these
represent previously earned bonuses.

RESTRICTED SHARE SCHEME (RSS)

Purpose and link to Strategy — Incentivise the creation of long term returns for shareholders.
— Aligninterests of Executive Directors with shareholders and support retention.
— Tocreate alignment with the workforce.

Executive Directors are eligible to participate in an annual award under the RSS.
— Awards are subject toathree-year underpin period.

— Awards are subject to continued employment for three to five years from grant (with
one-third of awards contingent on employment to each such anniversary) and only released
onthefifthanniversary of grant), save as set out in the Payment for loss of office section of
this Policy.

— Participants are entitled to a dividend equivalent for the period from grant until the date
of release of the shares or, where a holding period applies, to the end of the holding period,
delivered as additional shares when the shares are transferred to the participant.

— The Committee has discretion to settle awards as a cash payment in place of the transfer
of shares.

— The Committee reserves discretion to reduce any formulaic outcome if itis not considered
appropriate in all the circumstances.

— Subject to clawback and malus provisions in situations of personal misconduct and/or where
performance in the year prior to grant is shown to be materially different from that assumed
and/or, in the case of malus, where there has would otherwise be material reputational
damage and/ ora group insolvency.

Operation

Maximum potential value — Adiscretionary annual award up to a value of 100% of base salary.

— The Committee reserves the discretion to increase the maximum award to 150% of base
salary in exceptional circumstances.
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Performance measures — Awards will normally vest in full, subject to the following underpin:

— thatthe Group’s underlying performance and delivery against its strategy and plans (which
may change in response to structural and cyclical changes over time) is sufficient to justify
the level of vesting having regard to such factors as the Committee considers to be
appropriatein the round.

— innormal circumstances, such factors will include consideration of absolute and relative
TSR, net debt and Total Property Return (TPR).

— when considering these factors, the Committee will assess overall performance in the
round, with a default to full vesting unless there has been material underperformance.
— The Committee retains the discretion prior to making the award to amend the underpin.
— Once set, the Committee may only amend the underpin in respect of outstanding awards
inthe event that exceptional circumstances occur which make it appropriate to do so,

provided that the amended underpinis not, in the view of the Committee, materially less
difficult to satisfy.

COLLEAGUE ARRANGEMENTS

Purpose and link to strategy — Inordertobe able to offer participation in these plans to employees generally, the Company
is required by the relevant UK legislation to allow Executive Directors to participate on the
same terms, or chooses soto do.

Operation — Executive Directors are eligible to participate in all-employee incentive arrangements on the
same terms as other employees. This currently comprises the following arrangements:

— Eligible UKemployees may participate in the Sharesave and Share Incentive Plan (SIP).

— Allemployees of Hammerson France are eligible to participate in a profit share plan,
which rewards performance against such measures as the Committee considers to

be appropriate.
Maximum potential value — Maximum participation levels for Executive Directors are the same as apply to allemployees.
Performance measures — Not generally applicable. An award of free shares under the SIP can be made toall

participants and may be subject toa Company performance target.

For details regarding remuneration of other Company employees, please refer to the Employee pay and conditions elsewhere in the Group section
of this Policy.

The Payment for loss of office section of this Policy contains details of the impact of a change of control on awards made under AIP, the DBSS and
the RSS.

The Committee will determine components of remuneration for new Executive Directors, as outlined in the Recruitment section of this Policy.

Performance measures forthe AIP and RSS are set by the Committee taking into consideration a number of factors, including alignment to
strategy, the Business Plan, need for consistency between years, changes to the Group’s portfolio, market conditions, and need to ensure that
targets are sufficiently challenging but also provide motivation to succeed.

Itisaprovision of this Policy that all pre-existing obligations and commitments that were entered into prior to this Policy taking effect and/or prior
toanindividualjoining the Board will continue and can be honoured on their existing terms. In particular, these may include continued participation
in legacy defined benefit pension arrangements together with other obligations and commitments under service contracts, incentive schemes,
pension and benefit plans. This includes payments from any outstanding awards otherincentive plans provided they were consistent with the
Policy at the time they were awarded.

Asummary of key changes to the Policy is included in the Committee Chair’s letter.
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Share ownership guidelines

All Executive Directors are expected to
accumulate and maintain a holding in ordinary
shares inthe Company equivalentto noless
than 250% of base salary.

Executive Directors are normally required
toachieve the minimum shareholding
requirement within seven years of the date
ofappointment.

Shares to be included inthe calculation are:

— Shares held beneficially by the Executive
Director and the Executive Director’s
spouse/life partner.

— Shares held underthe DBSS (on anet of
tax/ NI basis),

— Shares held underthe RSS to the extent
that they have satisfied the performance
underpin but are subject to a holding period
(onanetoftax/NI basis).

— Shares held by the Executive Director under
the Share Incentive Plan.

Anannual calculation as a percentage of salary
is made against the guidelines for each
Executive Director as at 31 December each
year based on the closing middle market
quotation of ashare price on the last business
day in December. The closing exchange rate as
at 31 Decemberis used for Executive Directors
whose salary is denominated ina currency
otherthan sterling. No formal sanctions exist
fornon-compliance.

Post-cessation share ownership

On cessation of employment, Executive
Directors are expected to maintaina
shareholding equivalent to 250% of base
salary fora period of two years. The Committee
has discretion to reduce this guideline if it is

no longer appropriate. Shares will be valued
atthe higher of the value on cessation and
subsequently. Vesting of RSS grants and DBSS
awards will be lodged in escrow to provide an
enforcement mechanism.

Recruitment

Statement of Principles

The Company will pay total remuneration for
new Executive Directors that enables the
Company to attract appropriately skilled and
experienced individuals, but is not, inthe
opinion of the Committee, excessive.

The Company will not pay new Executive
Directors any inducements tojoin the
Company over and above buy-outs of existing
forfeited awards, as outlined in this section of
the Policy.

The Company will disclose to the market on
its website in a timely mannerthe basis ofa
package agreed with anew Executive Director.

Approach and limits

Annual salary, pension, contractual and
non-contractual benefits, annual bonus and
long term incentive arrangements (including
performance measures and/or conditions and
maximum award levels), as described in the
Remuneration Policy Table, will be the starting
point for the structure of any package. The level
of variable remuneration that may be awarded
toanew Executive Director will not exceed the
maximum AIP and RSS limits that can be
awarded inline with the principles set outin
the Remuneration Policy Table, with the
exception of any compensation for variable
remuneration forfeited. Consistent with the
regulations; the limits contained within the
Remuneration Policy Table for base salary or
any otherelement of fixed pay doapply toa
new Executive Director either onjoining or for
any subsequent salary review within the period
of this Policy unless the Committee considers
there are exceptional circumstances. However,
the Committee would seek to avoid exceeding
those limitsin practice.

The Company may provide a new Executive
Director with global relocation support and/or
tax equalisation arrangements as set outin the
Remuneration Policy Table.

Foranew Executive Director whois aninternal
appointment, the Company may also continue
to honour commitments made priortothe
appointment as Executive Director even if
those commitments are otherwise inconsistent
with the Policy in force when the commitments
are honoured. Any relevant existing incentive
plan participation may either continue on its
original terms or the performance conditions
and/or measures may be amended to reflect
theindividual’'s new role, as the Committee
considers appropriate.
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Compensation for variable remuneration
forfeited by anew Executive Director

The Company may, where appropriate,
compensate a new Executive Director for
variable remuneration that has been forfeited
asaresult of accepting the appointment

with the Company. Where the Company
compensates a new Executive Directorinthis
way, it will seek to do so under the terms of the
Company’s existing variable remuneration
arrangements as set out in the Remuneration
Policy Table.

The Company may compensate onterms

that are more bespoke than the existing
arrangements where the Committee considers
that to be appropriate.

The Committee may also make awards under
alongterm incentive scheme that does not
require shareholder approval if it falls within
Listing Rule 9.4.2 (an arrangement established
foradirector specifically to facilitate, in
unusual circumstances, the recruitment ofan
individual). In such instances, the Company
will disclose a full explanation of the detail and
rationale for such recruitment-related
compensation.

In making such awards, the Committee will
seek to take into account the nature (including
whetherawards are cash or share-based),
vesting period and performance measures
and/or conditions for any remuneration
forfeited by the individual when leaving
aprevious employer. Where such awards
had outstanding performance or service
conditions (which are not substantially
completed), the Company will generally
impose equivalent conditions.

Inexceptional cases, the Committee may relax
those requirements where it considers this to
beintheinterests of shareholders, forexample
through a significant discount to the face value
ofthe replacement awards.

Service agreements foranew

Executive Director

The Committee’s approach is for the service
agreements of new Executive Directors to have
due regard to market practice at the date of
appointment, the Company’s current Policy
and the service agreementsin place for
existing Executive Directors.
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The key termination provisions for service agreements for newly appointed Executive Directors will be:

Notice period No greaterthan 12 months’ notice (either notice to or from the Executive Director) for UK-based Directors.

For non UK-based Directors, contracts are designed to meet local laws and have a similar overall effectin
terms of the potential cost to the Group.

Alonger period of notice from the Company may apply to new appointments for a limited time if the
Committee considers this is appropriate, but would then reduce to no more than 12 months.

Post-termination restrictions Compensation in respect of restrictive covenants will be paid as required for enforceability reasons under
applicable local statutory (or collective bargaining) requirements. Appropriate post-termination
restrictions to protect the Group’s confidential information, its customer and supplier connections and/or
to prevent poaching of its senior workforce will be included.

Paymentin lieu of notice (PILON) Employment can be terminated by the Company with immediate effect (for any reason) by making a
payment in lieu of the outstanding period of notice (PILON). The PILON comprises base pay, and the
value of employer’s pension contributions, private medical insurance and car allowance.

The Company will have discretion to make any PILON on a phased basis, subject to mitigation. No PILON
will be made in the event of gross misconduct.

Expiry date There will be no fixed expiry date. The appointment of new Executive Directors will be terminablein
accordance with the notice period.

Change of control and liquidated damages ~ The Executive Director will not have aright to liquidated damages, whether triggered by a change of
control of the Company or otherwise.

The terms summarised above will be subject to any local statutory (or collective bargaining) requirements where applicable. For treatment
of incentive awards in connection with termination please see the Payment for loss of office section of this Policy.

Payment for loss of office

Committee considerations on leaving office

The Committee considers the circumstances under which an Executive Director is leaving the Company’s employment. In circumstances where
aDirectoris terminated for cause, the Committee typically has limited discretion in connection with remuneration payments. In other
circumstances, arange of discretions is available to the Committee.

The following tables set out a summary of obligations contained in the Executive Directors’ service agreements which could give rise to, orimpact
on, remuneration payments for loss of office.

Service agreements and notice periods for current Executive Directors

Rita-Rose Gagné Himanshu Raja
Date of service contract 29 September 2020 19 April 2021
Notice period 12 months’ notice (both from and to the Executive Director).
Paymentin lieu of notice (PILON) Employment can be terminated by the Company with immediate effect by makinga PILON in respect

ofthe outstanding notice period comprising base salary and the value of benefits in respect of pension,
private medical insurance and car allowance.

No PILONin event of gross misconduct.

The Company has the discretion to make any PILON on a phased basis, subject to mitigation.

Rita-Rose Gagné and Himanshu Raja will be eligible to be considered at the Committee’s discretion for payment of an award under the AIP even
ifthe Company or Director has served notice of termination provided that the Director is employed as at the bonus award date. The treatment of
leavers underthe AIP, DBSS and RSS arrangements is in accordance with the relevant plan’s rules. The Company will pay any additional statutory
entitlements where applicable.
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Annual bonus and long termincentives
The following table describes the provisions which apply to leavers who are Executive Directors and the discretions available under the AIP, DBSS
and RSS. Further detail as to the potential exercise of discretion by the Committee is set out in the Use of discretion section of this Policy.

Leavingreason

Redundancy,
sale of
Ill-health, Company or
injury, business Termination
disability Death resignation  Retirement Voluntaryresignation forcause ghange of control
AIP a Remainseligiblefor Remains eligible for full Norightto receive Nobonus Bonuses may be
Inallcases, any bonus bonus. Any bonus payment of the bonusfor  anybonus. payable. awarded underthe AIP
payableis subject to payable will be time acompleted performance atthetime ofthe
the normal deferral pro-rated unlessthe  period. Inaddition, the Committee has change of control.
arrangements, unless the Committee decides Committee has discretion  discretion to pay
Committee determines otherwise. to make pro-rated abonus provided the Unless the Committee
otherwise payments forany Executive Directoris determines otherwise,
performance periodnot  inemploymentat the abonus will betime
completed. bonus payment date. pro-rated.
DBSS Fullvesting on normal vesting date. Committee Awards lapse, save Awards lapse.  Awardsvestin full.
(Deferred share element may accelerate vesting. that the Committee
of AIP) has discretiontoallow
uptofullvestingonthe
normal vesting date or
the Committee may
accelerate vesting.
RSS Awards remain capable of vesting, subject to Awards lapse, save Awards lapse.  Awards vest, subject
the underpin. thatthe Committee tothe underpinand,
has discretion for unless the Committee
Awards will vest on the normal vesting date subject awards to remain determines otherwise,
tothe underpin, save that the Committee may capable of vesting will be time pro-rated.
accelerate vesting. (subjecttothe
underpin) onatime
Unless the Committee determines otherwise, pro-rated basis and
vesting will be time pro-rated. may accelerate
vesting.

a Where the date of notice and the date of cessation fallin different performance periods, the provisions relating to AIP as stated above apply in respect of the AIP
award for each performance period separately.

b Onacorporate event affecting the Company, bonuses and awards under the AIP, DBSS and RSS will be governed by the rules of these plans. The information given
hereis for summary purposes.

Inrespect of all-employee plans, including the Company’s HMRC-approved, all-employee share plans, the Sharesave and the SIP, and the profit
share plan foremployees of Hammerson France, the Executive Directors are subject to the same leaver provisions as all other participants.



Use of discretion

The Committee can exercise discretion in
various areas of the Policy as set out in this
Report. In addition, the Committee has
discretion to amend the Policy with regard
tominoror administrative matters where it
would be, in the opinion of the Committee,
disproportionate to seek orawait shareholder
approval. The Committee retains the
discretion to override the formulaic outcomes
ofiincentive schemes. In exercising discretion
inrespect of the AIP or RSS, the Committee will
take into account all factors it determines to be
appropriate at the relevant time, including but
not limited to the duration of the Executive
Director’s service and its assessment of the
contributiontowards the success of the
Company during that period; whetherthe
Executive Director has worked any notice
period or whether (and if so, the extent that)
aPILON is being made; the need to ensure an
orderly handover of duties and continuity in the
business operations of the Company; and the
need to settle any claims which the Executive
Director may have. In exercising any discretion,
the members of the Committee will take
account of their duties as Directors.

Other

Ifthe Company terminates an Executive
Director’s employment by reason of
redundancy, the Company will make
aredundancy payment to the Executive
Director in line with any applicable Company
redundancy policy (which includes any
entitlement to statutory redundancy pay) and
any applicable collective bargaining agreement.

Payment to a departing Executive Director may
be made in respect of accrued benefits and
accrued untaken holiday.

In connection with an Executive Director
ceasing employment, the Company may,

if the Committee determinesiitis inthe best
interests of the Company, enter into new
contractual arrangements with the departing
Executive Director including (but not limited to)
settlement, confidentiality, restrictive
covenants and/or consultancy arrangements
onsuchtermsas it considers appropriate. In
such case, the Company will make appropriate
disclosures of such terms. If a settlement
agreement is entered into with the Executive
Director, the Company may make payments
thatit considers reasonable in settlement of
potential legal claims, for example unfair
dismissal, or where agreed under the
settlement agreement. This may include any
entitlementto compensation in respect of
statutory rights under employment protection
legislationinthe UK orin other jurisdictions.

Adeparting gift may be provided (and any tax
liability met on the Executive Director’s behalf)
uptoavalue of £5,000 (plus the related taxes)
per Executive Director on termination of office.
The Company may agree to provide other
ancillary or non-material benefitsin
connection with (including in a defined period
following) termination, not exceeding a value
of £5,000in aggregate.

Legalfees

Consistent with market practice, the Company
may pay reasonable legal fees (and any
associated tax costs) on behalf of the
Executive Director for entering into a statutory
settlement agreement and may pay a
contribution of upto £50,000, plus VAT,
towards fees for outplacement services as
part of a negotiated settlement.
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Inthe case of a corporate transaction, the
Company may agree to pay reasonable legal
fees (and any associated tax costs) on behalf of
the Executive Director for advice on the effect
of the corporate transaction on the Executive
Director’s personal position as a director
(including, where appropriate, astothe terms
of theiremployment).

The Company may agree to pay reasonable
legal fees (and any associated tax costs) on
behalf of the Executive Director for advice
related to any proposed changes to their terms
and conditions of employment during their
period of employment.

On recruitment of an Executive Director,
the Company may make a contribution
towards legal fees in connection with
agreeing employment terms and drawing
upaservice contract.

Other appointments: new and existing
Executive Directors

Executive Directors are able to accept, with the
consent of the Company’s Board of Directors,
non-executive appointments outside the
Company (provided that such appointments
donotlead toaconflict of interests) on the
basis that such external appointments can
enhance their experience and skills and add
value tothe Company.

Any fees received by an Executive Director for
such external appointments can be retained
by the individual (except where the Executive
Directoris appointed as the Company’s
representative).
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Chair and Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration
Remuneration Policy for Non-Executive Directors

Purpose and link to strategy
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Ensure the Company continues to attract and retain high-quality Chair
and Non-Executive Directors by offering market-competitive fees.

Current fees (perannum) as at April 2023 are:

£
Chair 300,000
Non-Executive Director 61,500
Senior Independent Director 10,000
Chair of Audit Committee 15,000
Audit Committee member 5,000
Chair of Remuneration Committee 15,000
Remuneration Committee member 5,000
Designated Non-Executive Director for Colleague Engagement 8,000

Operation

The Chair’s fee is determined by the Committee. Other Non-Executive
Directors’ fees are determined by the Board on the recommendation of
the Executive Directors.

Fee levels are reviewed periodically taking into account independent
advice and the time commitment required of Non-Executive Directors.

Fees paid aim to be competitive with other listed companies which
the Committee (in the case of the Chair) and the Board (in respect of
Non-Executive Directors) consider to be of equivalent size and
complexity but are not set by reference to a prescribed benchmark.
Feesare paid monthlyinarrears.

The Chair does not receive any additional fee in respect of membership
ofany of the Committees.

Other Non-Executive Directors may receive additional fees for
membership and/or chairmanship of the Remuneration and Audit
Committees. No additional fee is currently paid to the Chair or members
of the Nomination and Governance Committee. Thereis alsoan
additional fee for the Senior Independent Director and the Designated
Non-Executive Director for Colleague Engagement. The level of
additional feesis set to reflect the responsibilities of the role.

Maximum limit

Aggregate total fees payable annually to all Non-Executive Directors are subject
tothe limit as stated in the Company’s Articles of Association (currently
£1,000,000). The Committee reserves the right to provide additional fees within
the stated limit, including for membership of any additional Committee the
Board may establish.

Other benefits

There are no other benefits currently available to any of the

Non- Executive Directors. Whilst the Company does not consider that
reimbursing travel and accommodation expense (including to the
Company’s London office) is a benefit in the normal sense, should
any assessment to tax be made on such reimbursement, the
Company reserves the ability to settle such liability on behalf of the
Non- Executive Director.

Non-Executive Directors are not eligible for performance-related
bonuses or participation in the Company’s share plans, nordo
Non-Executive Directors receive any pension benefits.

Whilst the Company does not consider it to form part of benefits in the normal
sense, Non-Executive Directors can participate in corporate hospitality
(including travel and, where appropriate, with a family member), whether
paid for by the Company or another, within its agreed policies.

Adeparting gift may be provided (and any tax liability met on the Non-Executive
Director’s behalf) up to avalue of £5,000 (plus the related taxes) per
Non-Executive Director on termination of office.

The Chairand the Non-Executive Directors do not have service agreements with the Company. Their appointments are governed by letters of
appointment, which are available forinspection on request. The letters of appointment of Non-Executive Directors are reviewed by the Chairand

the Executive Directors every three years.

Appointments of Non-Executive Directors are for a term of three years, subject to the right of either party to terminate the appointment on not
less than three months’ notice orimmediately should a conflict of interest arise. If any Non-Executive Director is not re-elected at the Company’s

Annual General Meeting, the appointment will cease automatically.

On termination of an appointment, a Non-Executive Director is only entitled to such fees as may have accrued to the date of termination,
together with the reimbursement in the normal way of any expenses properly incurred prior to that date.
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The dates of the appointments of the Non-Executive Directors in office as at 31 December 2022 are set out below.

Dateoforiginal  Commencementdate Unexpired term as at

appointment to Board of currentterm April2023
Robert Noel 1September2020 1 September 2020 5months
Habib Annous 5May 2021 5May2021  1year,1months
Méka Brunel 1December2019 1 December2022 2years, 8 months
Mike Butterworth 1 January 2021 1 January 2021 9 months
Adam Metz 22 July2019 22 July2022 2 years, 3 months
CarolWelch 1 March 2019 1March2022 1year,11 months

Employee pay and conditions elsewhere in the Group

Consideration of the remuneration of the wider workforce forms animportant part of the policy review. Set out below is a summary of employee
pay and conditions. Remuneration packages for all Group employees may comprise both fixed and variable elements. Generally, the more senior
theindividual, the greater the variable pay offer as a proportion of overall pay due to the ability of senior managers to impact more directly upon the
Group’s performance. As well as assessing the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors, the Committee reviews the remuneration of the
senior management team and is kept informed of remuneration developments across the Group, including the salary increases and employee

benefits of the wider employee population.

The Committee has regard to market data and to internal relativities when considering the appropriateness of pay levels for its Executive Directors
and members of the Committee bring their own experience and knowledge in considering any proposals.

In 2022, Habib Annous (as Chair of the Committee) and Carol Welch (as Designated Non-Executive Director for Colleague Engagement) met with
the employee forum to discuss executive remuneration and explain how it aligns with the wider Company pay policy. The consultation was
supportive, in particular, of the increased weighting on sustainability from 8% to 10%. The forum requested that the Committee consider including
an element on Social withinthe 25% attributable to personal performance for the AIP. The Committee has welcomed the feedback and intends to

incorporate this forthe 2023 AIP targets.

Summary of 2023 remuneration structure for employees below Board level

Element

Approach/Policy

Base salary

Anassessment is made each year on pay increases across the Group. The assessment may include
benchmarking exercises for different roles. Other factors taken into consideration are the Group’s
performance, competition in the marketplace and general economic climate, specifically rates of
inflation and wage growth. Pay increases are expected to be in line with market rate and any increase
awarded to an individual will reflect competence and experience. Exceptional pay increases are
sometimes awarded to bring pay in line with market practice or recognition of an individual’s
development within a role or on promotion. More usually exceptional personal performance is
recognised through variable pay.

Annual bonus

Anannual cash bonus scheme is operated throughout the Group. Although there are some minor
differences in application of the scheme according to jurisdiction of employment, the same principle
applies to allemployees in that there is an opportunity to receive a bonus based on personal, team or
Group performance ora mixture of both. Generally, the more senior the employee the more the
weighting is towards Company performance. The maximum cash bonus opportunity varies according to
seniority. In addition to Executive Directors, Group Executive Committee members have a proportion of
theiraward deferred into shares.

Pension

The pension offering forms an important part of the reward package across the Group. Allemployees
may participate in one of a number of defined contribution pension arrangements across the UK and
Ireland. Employee and employer contribution structures vary depending on the scheme.

Share schemes

Avariety of all-employee and discretionary share schemes are in operation across the Group. Generally,
where local legislation allows, eligible employees, including Executive Directors, may participate inan
all-employee share scheme such as the Sharesave scheme operated in the UK and Ireland. In addition,
anumber of UK employees have the opportunity to join the UK Share Incentive Plan (SIP), with the
potential foran annual SIP Free Share Award based on Group stretch performance. Employees of
Hammerson France are eligible to participate in a profit share plan which rewards performance against
certain performance measures. Senioremployees in the UK may participate in restricted share awards
onasimilar basis to the Executive Directors and in France in the Free Shares Award Scheme.

Employee benefits

Benefits offered by the Group include life assurance, private medical care, car allowances, permanent
health insurance and health checks. The offer of a particular benefit to an employee will depend on
location within the business, their role and seniority.
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Shareholder engagement

During 2022, the Company consulted with its major shareholders together with the principal proxy advisory firms and again received feedback

on the proposals. Following that consultation, the Committee concluded that there was no significant majority view to change the current
arrangements and believes the current approach and the proposed 2023 Policy is the most appropriate at this stage in the Company’s evolution.
Positive feedback was received on the inclusion of social metrics within the personal objectives. Despite the current trend away from more
traditional LTIPs to Restricted Share Schemes (RSS) as adopted by the Company in 2020, some shareholders retain an inherent preference across
their portfolios for more traditional LTIPs. While seeking to renew the current policy at the 2023 AGM including the use of the RSS, the Committee
agrees that each form of long-term incentive has merits and plans to keep this under review for the future. Further details are set out in the Chair’s
letter at the start of this report.

Illustration of application of the Policy
Setout below is anillustration of the reward mix for the Executive Directors at minimum, on-target and maximum performance under the Policy.

Illustration of application of the Policy (£000s)

Rita-Rose Gagné

2023 fixed [E{EAELLEZ) £809

2023 on-target [EILAEIEH) 713 (32%) 713 (32%) £2,235

2023 maximum [EIACYRD) 1,426 (49%) 713 (24%) £2,947

2023 maximum [ELFACZEZ) 1,426 (43%) 713 (22%) 356(11%)  Ex Kl
+ share price growth
(based on value of award)

BFixed MAnnualvariable BELong-termincentives M 50% Share price growth

Illustration of application of the Policy (£000s)

Himanshu Raja

2023 fixed [EPyACLLE) £527

2023 on-target [EZFACLED) 342 (28%) 342 (28%) £1,211

2023 maximum [EryACTYD)) 684 (44%) 342 (22%) £1,553

2023 maximum [ErAAELES) 684 (40%) 342 (20%) 171(10%) K2 %2
+ share price growth
(based on value of award)

BFixed MAnnualvariable BLong-termincentives [150% Share price growth
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Assumptions: Executive Director remuneration scenarios 2023

Element Approach/Policy
Fixed Consists of base salary, contractual and non-contractual benefits, pension and participation in the UK
all-employee share plans.
Base salary is the salary to apply after salary increases take effect on 1 April 2023.
Benefits are as shown in the Single Figure Table for 2022 in the Annual Remuneration Report.
Pension contributions are based on salary after salary increases take effect on 1 April 2023.
Base Salary Benefits Pension Total Fixed
£000 £000 £000 £000
Rita-Rose Gagné 713 25 71 809
Himanshu Raja 456 25 46 527
On-target Based on what the Executive Director would receive if performance was in line with expectation
(excluding share price appreciation and accrual of dividend equivalent payments):
AIP: consists of on-target levels (50% of maximum bonus opportunity).
RSS: Assumes maximum vesting of awards (100% of salary for the CEO and 75% for the CFO).
Maximum Based on the maximum remuneration receivable (excluding share price appreciation and accrual of

dividend equivalent payments):

AIP: consists of the maximum bonus opportunity in 2023 (200% of base salary for CEQ, 150% of base

salary forthe CFO).

RSS: assumes maximum vesting of awards (100% of salary for the CEQ and 75% for the CFO).

Impact of share price appreciation

50% of maximum RSS award value.
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The Annual Remuneration Report (Report) sets out how the Directors’ Remuneration Policy (Policy) was put into practice in 2022 and how
we intend to implement itin 2023. Itis divided into three sections:

— Section 1: Single figure tables
— Section 2: Further information on 2022 remuneration
— Section 3: Implementation of Remuneration Policy in 2023

The Group’s External Auditors have reported on certain sections of this Report and stated whether, in their opinion, those sections have been
properly prepared.

The Policy was approved by shareholders at the AGM held on 28 April 2020 and is available to view on the investor relations section of the
Company’s website at www.hammerson.com. A summary of the key provisions for each element of the Remuneration Policy is set outin
this Report.

SECTION 1: SINGLE FIGURE TABLES

This section contains the single figure tables showing 2022 remuneration for the Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors, and
information that relates directly to the composition of these figures.

Allfigures highlighted in GREEN in the Report relate directly to a figure that is found in the Single Figure Table below.

Executive Directors’ remuneration: Single Figure Table (audited)

Restricted
Annual Share
Bonus Scheme Variable
Salary Benefits Pension  Fixed Total (AIP) (RSS) Total Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Rita-Rose Gagné a 2022 682 25 68 775 1,120 - 1,120 1,895
2021 672 421 67 1,160 946 - 946 2,106
Himanshu Raja b 2022 436 25 44 505 529 - 529 1,034
2021 295 16 30 341 311 - 311 652
Total 2022 1,118 50 112 1,280 1,649 - 1,649 2,929
2021 967 437 97 1,501 1,257 - 1,257 2,758

a Rita-Rose Gagné received a relocation allowance of £400,000in 2021 which was a one-off benefit.
b Himanshu Raja was appointed as a Director of Hammerson plc with effect from 26 April 2021.

Commentary on the Single Figure Table (audited)

Fixed Remuneration

Salary

This represents salary earned in respect of the year. From 1 April 2022, salaries increased by 2%.

Benefits
Thetaxable benefits shown in the Single Figure Table include a car allowance (£16,000), private health insurance and permanent health
insurance. In addition, the Company paid for tax advice for Rita-Rose Gagné.

Himanshu Raja’s benefits amount received in respect of his participation in the Company’s all-employee share plan arrangements (SIP and
Sharesave) in which he participated in 2022.

UK Executive Directors are eligible to participate in the Company’s all-employee share plan arrangements (SIP and Sharesave). Himanshu Raja
participated in both the SIP and Sharesave scheme in 2022.

Pension

Executive Directors receive a salary supplement in lieu of pension benefits. Rita-Rose Gagné and Himanshu Raja each received a salary
supplement of 10% of base salary which is consistent with the rate available to new joiners and below the rate for longer-serving employees.
Allsalary supplements paid to Executive Directors in lieu of pension benefits are subject to deductions required forincome tax and employees’
nationalinsurance contributions in the UK.



Variable Remuneration (audited)

Annual bonus for 2022
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The Annual Incentive Plan (AIP) is the Company’s annual bonus scheme. The bonus awards are based on performance conditions that were
approved by the Committee. For 2022, the AIP bonus was split 67% for performance against financial measures, 8% for sustainability and 25%
for performance against personal objectives. The Committee has the ability to override the indicative formulaic outturn if it considers that not to be
appropriate given the Company’s performance during the year.

The performance targets were not disclosed in advance of the year, as they were considered by the Board to be commercially sensitive
information, but full details of the conditions and performance against them are now set out below.

Financial ESG Personal AIP amount

measures measures measures Total vesting (Shownin

(Y% ofbonus (% ofbonus (% ofbonus percentage Vesting Single

achieved, achieved, achieved, (%, max amountas % Figure Table)

max 67%) max 8%) max 25%) 100%) of salary £000

Rita-Rose Gagné 51.2% 8.0% 22.5% 81.7% 163.3% 1,120

Himanshu Raja 51.2% 8.0% 21.3% 80.4% 120.6% 529
AIP outturn

Performance against targets Bonus achieved

a
Vesting  Weighting

Entry threshold On-target  Fullvesting percentage (% of max % of max

(% vesting at (50% target (100% Result against bonus bonus

threshold) vesting) vesting) achieved target available) achieved

Adjusted earnings £58.6m (0%) 65.1m £71.6m £104.9m 100.0% 22.33% 22.33%

Net debt £1.875bn(0%) £1.629bn £1.383bn  £1.732bn 29.10% 22.33% 6.50%

Gross administration costs £66.1m (0%) £63.7m £61.2m £59.8m 100.0% 22.33% 22.33%

Reductionin CO, Emissions 3% (%) 5% 7% 12% 100% 8% 8%

Personal objectives Rita-Rose Gagné See below 90% 25% 22.50%

Personal objectives Himashu Raja See below 85% 25% 21.3%

Total CEO Rita-Rose Gagné 25% 81.7%

Total CFO Himashu Raja 25% 80.4%

a Eachofthe AIP performance conditions is subject to a straight-line payment scale between threshold, on-target and full vesting points.

b Consistent with established practice, the original performance targets for Adjusted Earnings adjusted for variances in the timing of planned disposals.

¢ Netdebtisasshownin Table 13 of the Additionalinformation. Again, consistent with established practice, the original targets were adjusted to reflect changes
inforeign exchange rates in the year and the impact of a change in IFRS as explained in note 1B of the financial statements.

d Personal/Strategic Objectives for the CEO and CFO were based on the Business Plan and Strategy with substantial progress made across the four strategic pillars.
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Reinvigorating our assets — Continued to strategically refocus the portfolio on city centre destinations and to simplify the portfolio,
disposing of £195m of non-core assets in 2022

— Thesuccess of the reinvigoration of our assets and placemaking activities, resulted in the signing of
317 leases, with £45m of headline rent (£25m at our share) at 2% above ERV and an improvement
in occupancy

— Reduced flagship vacancy ratesto 3.7%

Accelerating development — Created value and optionality at each stage of the early development cycle at key assets, e.g.
Dundrum, Bullring, Grand Central, Reading and Dublin Central

— S106 signed for Bishopsgate Goodsyard

— Ironworks onsite at Dundrum

— Majority of initial planning permissions obtained for Dublin Central

— Planning submitted for Reading, Riverside and Drum, Birmingham New Street

Create an agile platform — Realignmenttoasimplified, asset-centric operating model, removing inefficiencies and leveraging the
strength of the Group’s portfolio through a consolidation of property management suppliers in the UK
to best support occupiers and customers

— Simplification of the business to stabilize the core income stream and to return it to underlying growth
reflected in like-for-like GRI growing at 8%

— Significant progress made in reducing the cost base with headcount reducing by 25% in 2022
— Gross administration costs reduced by 17% year-on-year

Deliver a sustainable and resilient — Refinanced c£80m of RCF with a new £463m facility on a 3+1+1 basis with asmaller group of lenders
capital structure anchored by Tier 1 lenders

— €236meurobonds duein 2023 were repaid in December 2022 using available cash
— Buy-in of the Group’s Defined Benefit Pension Plan resulting in the removal of significant balance
sheetrisk and liability, and a reduction of the plc guarantee from £120m to £10m

— Retained Group’s Investment Grade (IG) rating as Baa3 and BBB+ respectively with both Moody’s and
Fitch outlooks changed from negative to stable

Against this backdrop, a scorecard out-turn of 81.7% of maximum for the CEO and 80.4% of maximum for the CFO was proposed to the
Committee which, following due consideration, was approved without adjustment. 40% of the out-turn is deferred into shares for two years,
generally contingent on continued employment.

Long Term Incentive Plan
The LTIP was replaced by the Restricted Share Scheme (RSS) in April 2020 for future awards. In 2022, no RSS award was due to vest to any
Executive Director. In addition, no LTIP awards vested in respect of any former directors and all prior LTIP awards have now lapsed.

Non-Executive Directors: Single Figure Table (audited)

The table below shows the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the comparative figures for the
yearended 31 December 2021. The figures for 20221 only include directors who served for part of 2022 and, therefore, do not equate to the totals
for2021 asreported in last year’s report.
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Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2022

Committee membership and other responsibilities Fees Benefits Total

Audit Remuneration 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Committee =~ Committee  Other £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Robert Noel a Chair of the Board 300 300 3 4 303 304

Gwyn Burr b 29 88 - - 29 88

Habib Annous c Vv Vv 78 47 - - 78 47

Méka Brunel d N 67 67 2 - 69 67

Mike Butterworth e Vv Senior Independent Director 83 73 - - 83 73

Desmond de Beer f 48 62 2 1 50 63

Andrew Formica g 22 67 - - 22 67

Adam Metz h 67 67 70 2 137 69
CarolWelch N4 Designated Non-Executive Director

for Colleague Engagement 75 75 - - 75 75

Total i 769 846 77 7 846 853

a Robert Noel ceased to be amember of the Remuneration Committee on 31 December 2021.

b Gwyn Burrstepped down as a member of the Audit Committee with effect from 5 May 2021 and retired as a Director on 28 April 2022. She served as Chair of the
Remuneration Committee until 28 April 2022.

¢ Habib Annous was appointed as a Director and a member of the Remuneration, Audit and Nomination and Governance Committees on 5 May 2021 and was
appointed Chair of the Remuneration Committee on 28 April 2022.

d MékaBrunelis based in France. Thisis reflected in her benefits figure — see Benefits note below.

e Mike Butterworth was appointed as Audit Committee Chair with effect from 4 May 2021. On 29 April 2022, Mike Butterworth was appointed as Senior
Independent Director.

Desmond de Beerresigned as a Director on 11 October 2022.

Andrew Formicaretired as a Director on 28 April 2022. He served as a member of the Audit Committee until 28 April 2022.

Adam Metzis based in the USA. Thisiis reflected in his benefits figure — see Benefits note below.

AllNon-Executive Directors are members of the Nomination & Governance Committee. No fee is payable for being Chair ora member of that Committee.

o 0o

Benefits

Benefits disclosed relate to the reimbursement of travel and accommodation expenses incurred in attending Board meetings at the Company’s
head office. For those Non-Executive Directors based outside of the UK, this includes the cost of international travel and accommodation. The
grossed-up value has been disclosed. In accordance with the Policy, any tax arising is settled by the Company. Robert Noelis entitled to private
medical insurance which is taxed as a benefitin kind.

Fees payable to Non-Executive Directors (audited)

The Chair of the Board’s fee was reviewed by the Committee in January 2023 and the Non-Executive Directors’ fees were reviewed by the Board in
March 2022. Although fees are subject to periodic review, the NED fees (other than the Chair of the Board on appointment and the introduction of a
fee payable to the Designated Non-Executive Director for Colleague Engagement in 2021) have not increased since 2018. No increase was made
to Non-Executive Director fees orto the Chair’s fee in 2022. The annual fees payable to Non-Executive Directors are set out in the table below.
Thereis no fee for the Chair, or membership, of the Nomination and Governance Committee.

Chair of the Board and Non-Executive Directors’ 2022 annual fees

£
Chair of the Board 300,000
Non-Executive Director 61,500
Senior Independent Director 10,000
Audit Committee Chair 15,000
Remuneration Committee Chair 15,000
Audit/Remuneration Committee member 5,000

Designated Non-Executive Director for Colleague Engagement 8,000
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SECTION 2: FURTHER INFORMATION ON 2022 REMUNERATION

Directors’ shareholdings and share plan interests (audited)
Summary of all Directors’ shareholdings and share plan interests as at 31 December 2022 (including Persons Closely Associated)

Outstanding scheme interests at
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31 December 2022 Actual shares held
Total of all
scheme
Unvested Total shares interests
Unvested (notsubject Vested but subject to and share-
(subject to to unexercised outstanding At At holdings at
performance performance scheme scheme 1January 31December 31December
measures) measures) interests interests 2022 2022 2022
a b c de e e
Executive Directors
Rita-Rose Gagné 12,843,189 1,380,568 - 14,223,757 306,748 322,201 14,545,958
Himanshu Raja
(appointed as a Director on 26 April 2021) 2,291,310 551,364 - 2,842,674 211,060 263,357 3,106,031
Non-Executive Directors
Robert Noel - - - - 911,189 1,206,177 1,206,177
Gwyn Burr - - - - 30,646 30,646 30,646
Habib Annous - - - - 281,697 842,002 842,002
Méka Brunel - - - - 27,266 31,514 31,514
Mike Butterworth - - - - 86,422 211,317 211,317
Desmond de Beer - - - - 44,821,071 47,155,794 47,155,794
Andrew Formica - - - - 267,281 267,281 267,281
Adam Metz - - - - 975,010 1,126,950 1,126,950
CarolWelch - - - - 45,497 52,587 52,587
a RSSawards.
b DBSSand Sharesave awards.
¢ DBSSawards that have vested but remain unexercised plus any notional dividend shares.
d Orjoining dateif earlier.
e Orleavingdateifearlier.
f Gwyn Burrand Andrew Formica retired as Directors on 28 April 2022. Desmond de Beer resigned as a Director on 11 October 2022. Their interests are

accordingly shown as at the relevant leaving date.

g DBSSand RSS awards are nil cost options, satisfied through market purchase. The DBSS awards are exercisable from the second anniversary of grant until the
seventh anniversary of grant. The RSS awards are subject to an employment contingency vesting one third on each of the third, fourth and fifth anniversaries
of grant (to the extent the performance underpin is met following the third anniversary of grant). The RSS awards are exercisable on the fifth anniversary of grant
and ceases to be exercisable on the seventh anniversary of grant.

Between 1 January 2023 and 6 March 2023 (being the latest practicable date prior to publication of this document) the Executive and

Non-Executive Directors’ beneficial interests in the table above remained unchanged.
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Directors’ share ownership guidelines (audited)

The chart below shows the Executive Directors actual share ownership compared with the current share ownership guidelines. Executive
Directors are normally expected to achieve the minimum shareholding guidelines within seven years of appointment. Non-Executive Directors are
also encouraged to acquire a shareholding in the Company.

Directors’ share ownership guidelines

Rita-Rose Gagné Policy [PI{ii

Shareholding* [<y275 172% 139%

Himanshu Raja Policy [PI{it73

Shareholding* P57 23% | 100%

M Actual Shares held as at 31 Dec 2022 M Shares due to count towards the limit by 31 Dec 2023
[ Shares due to count towards the limit after 31 Dec 2023

* The shareholding as a percentage of salary is as at the share price of 23.8p on 31 December 2022. Share awards are AWARDED on a gross basis but only credited
tothe ownership requirement on a net of tax basis, as shown above.

Rita-Rose Gagné was appointed on 2 November 2020 and is required to achieve the share ownership guideline by November 2027. Himanshu
Rajawas appointed on 26 April 2021 and is required to achieve the share ownership guideline by April 2028. In practice, itis currently anticipated
that the guideline should be met earlier than this. For example, assuming no change in share price from the price as at 31 December 2022 and
with no credit for further dividends, Rita-Rose Gagné’s holding by the end of 2023 would be worth 209% of salary, reflecting the 2023 DBSS award
inrespect of the 2022 bonus out-turn and the vesting of the 2020 RSS grant in November 2023 (in each case on a net of tax basis). This suggests
that the guideline should be fully metin 2024. Himanshu Raja’s holding by the end of 2023 would be worth 50% of salary, reflecting the 2023
DBSS award inrespect of the 2022 bonus out-turn on a net of tax basis.

Rita-Rose Gagné and Himanshu Raja are both currently on track to meet the share ownership guidelines ahead of the policy timeframe,
assetoutabove.

Executive Directors’ share plan interests (including share options) (audited)
Thetable below set out the Executive Directors’ interests under the Deferred Bonus Share Scheme (DBSS) and the Restricted Share Scheme
(RSS). No Executive Director holds awards under the LTIP.

Performance conditions and form of awards (audited)

Awards underthe DBSS are not subject to any performance conditions (other than continued employment on the vesting date). The RSS awards
are subject to a material underperformance underpin. RSS awards were made on 22 March 2022 over shares worth 100% of salary to Rita-Rose
Gagné and over shares worth 75% of salary to Himanshu Raja. These awards were granted subject to a broad underpin in respect of the entire
awards so that the Remuneration Committee may reduce the level of vesting if it feels that it is not appropriate in all the circumstances and may
have regard to the various factors mentioned in the policy in so determining.

Awards to UK based Executive Directors under the RSS and DBSS are made in the form of nil-cost options.

Accrual of dividend shares
DBSS and RSS awards accrue notional dividend shares to the date of vesting (including any holding period).

Face values (audited)
Face values for the DBSS and RSS awards are calculated by multiplying the number of shares granted during 2022 by the average share price
for the five business days preceding the awards. Notional dividend shares are not included in the face value calculations.
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Dilution limits

Currentin flight DBSS awards are satisfied using market purchased shares. RSS awards are also satisfied using market purchased shares (whether
viaatrustortreasury). Itis expected that the 2023 RSS and DBSS awards will be satisfied in a similar way. SAYE grants are typically satisfied using
new issue shares. The Committee may grant awards with new issued shares and will comply with the dilution limits as set out in the rules of the
Company’s share incentive plans during the year. The Company operates within the Investment Association’s guidelines with reference to share
dilution not exceeding 10% of the issued ordinary share capital in any rolling 10-year period under all-employee plans and 5% under its
discretionary plans (counting both new issue and treasury shares).

Executive Directors’ share plan interests 2022 (audited)

Face value
Number of Number of ofawards
awards held Notional awards held granted/
at dividend at31 Grant purchased
Date of Vesting 1January  Awarded/ shares  Exercised/ December price  during2022
award date 2022 purchased accrued vested Lapsed 2022 pencg £000

Rita-Rose Gagné
RSS a 02Nov2020 02Nov2023 6,733,598 - 1,049,346 - - 7,782,944 17.710 -
RSS a 31Mar2021 31Mar2024 2,213,263 - 344,908 - - 2,558,171 33.590 -
RSS a 22Mar2022 22Mar2025 - 2,164,729 337,345 - - 2,502,074 31.660 685
DBSS b 22Mar2022 22Mar2024 - 1,194,432 186,136 - - 1,380,568 31.660 378

Himanshu Raja

RSS a 27Apr2021 27Apr2024 943,506 147,033 - - 1,090,539 37.810 -
RSS a 22Mar2022 22Mar2025 - 1,038,876 161,895 - - 1,200,771 31.660 329
DBSS b 22Mar2022 22Mar2024 - 392,354 61,142 - - 453,496 31.660 124
Sharesave C 073Jul2022 01Aug2025 - 97,868 - - - 97,868 21.894 21

a RSSawards vest as to one third on each of the third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the date of award. The performance period for the purpose of the performance
conditions is the same as the vesting period. RSS awards were made on 22 March 2022 over shares worth 100% of salary to Rita-Rose Gagné and over shares
worth 75% of salary to Himanshu Raja.

b DBSS awards vest on the second anniversary of the date of award. DBSS awards were made on 22 March 2022 over shares worth 40% of the prior year bonus
to Rita-Rose Gagné and Himanshu Raja

¢ Theexercise price forthe Sharesave award is 18.39p. The grant price refers to the average share price in the final quarter of the year ending 31 December 2022.
d The grant price refers to the average closing price over the 5 days prior to grant consistent with the general approach to determining the awards.

Executive Directors’ SIP interests (audited)
The Executive Directors’ interests in ordinary shares of the Company under the Share Incentive Plan (SIP) as at 31 December 2022 (or at their
leaving date if earlier) are shownin the table below. The shares are held in a SIP trust.

Total SIP Total SIP
shares Partnership Matching Dividend shares 31

1 January shares shares Freeshares shares December
2022 purchased awarded awarded awarded 2022

Himanshu Raja - 13,856 13,856 - - 27,712
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Total Shareholder Return

The chart below shows the Total Shareholder Return (TSR) in respect of the Company’s ordinary shares of 5p each for the 10 years ended
31 December 2022 against the return of the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT UK Index, which comprises shares of a number of the Company’s peers.
Thetotal shareholderreturnis rebased to 100 at 31 December 2012. The other points shown on the chart are the values at intervening

financial yearends.

Total Shareholder returnindex
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= Hammerson FTSE EPRA/NAREIT UK Hammerson (Enhanced Scrip Dividend Basis)

Remuneration of the Chief Executive over the last 10 years
The table below shows the remuneration of the holder of the office of Chief Executive.

Chief Executive’s remuneration history

As a % of maximum

Total
remuneration Annual LTIP
£000 bonus vesting
2022 Rita-Rose Gagné 1,895 81.7% n/a
2021 Rita-Rose Gagné 2,106 70.4% n/a
2020 (Rita-Rose Gagné) from 2 November 2020 148 0.0% n/a
2020 (David Atkins) to 2 November 2020 617 0.0% 0.0%
2019 David Atkins 1,408 37.1% 29.7%
2018 David Atkins 1,109 n/a 51.5%
2017 David Atkins 1,795 47.5% 56.4%
2016 David Atkins 2,681 65.3% 64.9%
2015 David Atkins 2,147 77.3% 0.0%
2014 David Atkins 1,568 65.3% 0.0%
2013 David Atkins 2,216 56.2% 51.6%

Relative importance of spend on pay
The table below shows the Company’s total employee costs compared with dividends paid.
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Total employee costs compared with dividends paid

2022 2021
Note* £m £m Change
Employee costs 5B 42.8 53.0 —19.2%
Dividends 22 140.3 135.7 3.4%

* Note references are to the financial statements

Remuneration for the Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors compared with UK employees of the Hammerson Group

The tables show the percentage change from 31 December 20271 to 31 December 2022 in base salary, taxable benefits and bonus for the
Executive and Non-Executive Directors compared with all other employees of the Hammerson Group in the UK. Hammerson Plc does not have
any employees. This data has been prepared using the employees of the UK subsidiaries only. The Executive Directors have been excluded from
the UKemployees’ calculation.

Giventhe number of Directors who had not served for the whole of the two years being compared, any part year has been annualised on the basis
of days served on the Board. While this is slightly simplistic, it provides a fairer overall position of the year-on-year changes than taking the
unadjusted earnings in each year.

Percentage change in the Executive Directors’ base salary, taxable benefits and bonus

Change % (2021 to 2022) Change % (2020t02021) Change % (2019 t02020)

Annual Annual Annual

Salary Benefits bonus Salary Benefits bonus Salary Benefits bonus

Rita-Rose Gagné (CEQ) 1.5% -94.1% 18.4% - 180.5% n/a n/a n/a n/a
Himanshu Raja (CFO) 1.4% 5.4% 13.4% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Total UKemployees 12.3% 15.5% 32.1% 9.5% 18.6% 324.7% 3.7% -5.3% -73.8%

Percentage change in the Non-Executive Directors’ fee and taxable benefits

Change % (2021 t0 2022) Change % (2020t02021) Change % (20190 2020)
Annual Annual Annual
Salary Benefits bonus Salary Benefits bonus Salary Benefits bonus
Robert Noel - -20.2% N/A 3.8% 19.0% n/a n/a n/a n/a
Gwyn Burr (until 28 April 2022)* -1.1% N/A N/A 1.5% n/a n/a -5.2% -50.0% n/a
Habib Annous 11.1% N/A N/A n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Méka Brunel 0.0% N/A N/A 74% —-100.0% N/A -1.9% -87.7% n/a
Mike Butterworth 13.9% N/A N/A n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Desmond de Beer (until 11 October
2022)* 0.15% 470.2% N/A 1.3% n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Andrew Formica (until28 April 2022)* -3.1% N/A N/A 5.3% n/a n/a -6.0% - n/a
Adam Metz — 3271.5% N/A 7.4% -93.7% n/a -1.7% -77.8% n/a
Carol Welch - N/A N/A 17.9% n/a n/a -4.3% - n/a
Total UKemployees 12.3% 15.5% 32.1% 9.5% 18.6% 324.7% 3.7% -5.3% -73.8%

* Date at which ceased to be adirector.
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The table below shows the ratio of Chief Executive pay to that of the UK employees whose pay is at the 25th percentile, median and
75th percentile.

Chief Executive pay ratio

25th 75th

percentile  Median pay percentile

Year Method pay ratio ratio pay ratio

2022 OptionA 41:1 26:1 15:1

2021 Option A 48:1 30:1 18:1

2020 Option A 21:1 13:1 7:1

2019 Option A 36:1 22:1 12:1
Total UK employee pay and benefits figures used to calculate the 2022 Chief Executive Pay Ratio

25th 75th

percentile percentile

pay  Median pay pay

Year £000 £000 £000

Salary 40 55 92

Total UK employee pay and benefits 46 73 124

Supporting information for the Chief Executive Pay Ratio
The Company has chosen the Option A methodology to prepare the pay ratio calculation as this is the most statistically robust method and isin line
with the general preference of institutional investors.

As ratios could be unduly impacted by joiners and leavers who may not participate in all remuneration arrangements in the year of joining and
leaving, the Committee has modified the statutory basis to exclude any employee not employed throughout the financial year.

Employee pay datais based on full-time equivalent (FTE) pay for UK employees as at 31 December 2022. For each employee, total pay is
calculatedin line with the single figure methodology (i.e. fixed pay accrued during the financial year and the value of performance-based incentive
awards vesting in relation to the performance year). Leavers and joiners are excluded. Employees on maternity or other extended leave are
included on the basis of their FTE salary and benefits and pro-rata short-term incentives. No other calculation adjustments or assumptions have
been made.

The primary reason for the decrease in the Chief Executive pay ratio from 2021 to 2022 was that Rita-Rose Gagné received a relocation allowance
of £400,000in 2021 which was a one-off benefit.

Each of the three individuals identified was a full-time employee during the year and received remuneration in line with the Policy.

Generally, the Remuneration Policy supports a greater variable pay opportunity the more senior the employee as these employees are able
toinfluence Company performance more directly. Executive Directors participate in the RSS linked to long term strategy whilst other employees
may participate in the Restricted Share Plan (RSP). The three individuals identified this year all are not participants in either the RSS or RSP but
did receive an annual bonus for 2022. The median pay ratio is consistent with the pay, reward and progression policies for the Company’s UK
employees, reflecting the Company’s policy to pay market-based levels of fixed rewards to its employees with an opportunity to benefit from the
annual bonus plan. With a significant proportion of the Executive Directors’ pay linked to performance and share price over the longer term, itis
expected that the ratio willdepend to a significant extent on RSS and RSP outcomes each year, and accordingly may fluctuate from year to year.

Payments to past Directors (audited)
No LTIP awards vested in 2022 to former Executive Directors. There were no payments to past Directors.

Payments for loss of office (audited)
There were no payments to past Directors for loss of office.
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External board appointments
Where Board approval is given for an Executive Director to accept an external non-executive directorship, the individual is entitled to retain any
fees received. Rita-Rose Gagné and Himanshu Raja do not currently hold any external non-executive directorships.

Committee process

Inordertoavoid any conflict of interest, remuneration is managed through well-defined processes ensuring no individualis involved in the
decision-making process related to their own remuneration. In particular, the remuneration of all Executive Directors is set and approved by the
Committee; none of the Executive Directors are involved in the determination of their own remuneration arrangements. The Committee also
receives support from external advisors and evaluates the support provided by those advisors annually to ensure that advice isindependent,
appropriate and cost-effective.

Committee membership and meetings

The Committee continues to be comprised exclusively of independent Non-Executive Directors and its terms of reference can be found on the
Company’s website at www.hammerson.com. Gwyn Burr stepped down as Non-Executive Director and Chair of the Committee following the
conclusion of the AGM on 28 April 2022 and Habib Annous, Non-Executive Director, succeeded Gwyn as Chair of the Committee. The members
ofthe Committee are shown at the start of this report.

The Committee met five times during the year. The agenda for each meeting is planned around the Group’s reporting cycle and includes particular
matters for the Committee’s consideration. Following each meeting, the Board is appraised of matters arising from the Committee. The Chief
Executive, Chief People Officer and external remuneration consultant attend meetings by invitation, together with the General Counseland
Company Secretary, who acts as secretary to the Committee.

Committee effectiveness

Inline withthe 2018 Code’s requirements, an external evaluation of the effectiveness of the Board and its Committees was undertaken in 2022.
The Committee considers that it continues to function effectively and in accordance with its terms of reference. In 2022, the Committee reviewed
its terms of reference to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Advisors

The Committee appointed FIT Remuneration Consultants (FIT) Augustin 2011. FIT has no other connection with the Company or its Directors.
Directors may serve on the remuneration committees of other companies for which FIT acts as remuneration consultants. The Committee is
satisfied that all advice given was objective and independent having regard to their experience of working with advisors. FIT isa member of the
Remuneration Consultants Group and subscribes to its Code of Conduct. Fees paid for services to the Committee in 2022 totalled £87,283
(2021:£67,040). FIT does not provide any other services to the Company. Terms of engagement (available on request to shareholders) specify
that FIT will only provide advice expressly authorised by or on behalf of the Remuneration Committee.

Herbert Smith Freehills LLP provides legal advice and Lane Clark & Peacock LLP provides actuarial advice to the Company. The Committee may
seek advice from both firms where it relates to matters within its remit. In addition, the Chief Executive, CFO and Chief People Officer attend
Committee meetings by invitation.

Statement of voting at Annual General Meeting
The table below shows votes cast by proxy at the AGM held on 28 April 2022 in respect of the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Statement of voting on remuneration

Votes for Votes against Votes withheld
Number Number number
2021 Remuneration Report (at the 2022 AGM) 3,206,979,255 92.73% 251,383,588 7.27% 2,934,478

2020 Remuneration Policy (at the 2020 AGM) 562,599,919 91.34% 53,325,844 8.66% 4,438,298
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SECTION 3: IMPLEMENTATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY IN 2023

This section sets out information on how the Remuneration Policy will be implemented in 2023 if approved by shareholders at the 2023 Annual
General Meeting.

Shareholder approval for the Remuneration Policy was last received at the 2020 Annual General Meeting. Following consultation with
shareholders (described in the Remuneration Committee Chair’s letter on page 82), the Company has proposed changes to the Remuneration
Policy, and will present the revised Policy (set out on pages 85 to 97) to shareholders for approval at the 2023 Annual General Meeting. If the new
Remuneration Policy is approved by shareholders, the Company intends to implement the new Policy in 2023 as shown below. If the new Policy
is not approved by shareholders, then the existing Remuneration Policy would instead remain in place and continue to operate.

Inimplementing the Remuneration Policy, the Committee will continue to take into account factors such as remuneration packages available
within comparable companies: the Group’s overall performance; internal relativities; achievement of corporate objectives; individual performance
and experience; published views of institutional investors; and general market and wider economic trends.

Summary of planned implementation of the Remuneration Policy during 2023

Salary

Policy

Purpose and link to strategy Performance measures Operation

To continue to retain and attract quality leaders Not applicable Reviewed but not necessarily increased annually by

the Committee

Torecognise accountabilities, skills, experience

andvalue The base salary for any existing Executive Director will not
exceed £850,000 (orthe equivalent if denominatedina
different currency), with this limit increasing annually at the
rate of UK CPI from the date of the 2017 AGM

Implementation
Anincrease of 4% was approved for each of the Executive Directors to take effect on 1 April 2023.

2023 Executive Directors’ salaries £000

Rita-Rose Gagné 713
Himanshu Raja 456

Benefits
Policy

Purpose and link to strategy Performance measures Operation

To provide arange of benefits in line with Not applicable The aggregate value received by each Executive Director

market practice To continue to retain and attract (based on value of P11D tax calculations or equivalent basis

quality leaders foranon-UK based Executive Director) will not exceed
£100,000, with this maximum increasing annually at the
rate of UK CPIfrom the date of the 2017 AGM

Implementation
In 2023, these benefits will continue to include a car allowance, enhanced sick pay, private medical insurance, permanent health insurance and
lifeassurance.

Pension

Policy

Purpose and link to strategy Performance measures Operation

To provide market competitive retirement Not applicable Executive Directors receive a 10% non-contributory allowance
benefits to continue to retain and attract (Pension Choice) to be paid as, or as a combination of:

quality leaders - anemployer contribution to the Group’s defined

contribution pension plan;
— apaymenttoapersonal pension plan; or
— asalary supplement.

Implementation
Executive Directors will continue to receive a 10% salary supplement by way of pension provision.
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AnnualIncentive Plan (AIP) and deferral under the Deferred Bonus Share Scheme (DBSS)

Policy

Purpose and link to strategy Performance measures Operation

Toalign Executive Director remuneration with The annual bonus operates by Awards are paid in a mix of cash and deferred shares, with
annualfinancialand Company strategic targets reference tofinancialand personal  the deferred shares element being at least 40% of the total
as determined by the Company’s Business Plan performance measures assessed award. The deferral period is at least two years. Awards are
Todifferentiate appropriately, in the view of over one year. The weighting of subject to clawback and malus provisions

the Committee, on the basis of performance. financial measures will be at least

The partialaward in shares aligns interests with 60% of the total opportunity
shareholders and supports retention

Implementation
The AIP maximum will remain at 200% of base salary for the Chief Executive and 150% of base salary for the CFO.

Performance measures for the AIP for Executive Directorsin 2023 will be subject to slightly different weightings to reflect the increased focus on
ESG metrics.

Adjusted Earnings Per Share 21.67%
Net Debt 21.67%
Gross Administration Costs 21.67%
Carbon Reduction 10%
Personal/Strategic (including Sustainability) 25%

The personal/strategic objectives will be focussed on five key areas, all of which will have demonstrably measurable targets.

— Value Creation: Delivery of non-core asset disposals and development projects in line with the Strategy and Business Plan

— Cost Management: Continued reduction of costs whilst maintaining operational excellence

— Sustainability: Increasing the focus on the full breadth of sustainability inclusive of environment and social across the business
— Organisation: Agile, high performing organisation underpinned by the Group’s Purpose, Vision & Values

— Digitisation: Technology transformation to support more effective and streamlined ways of working

The Committee designs the financial targets and personal/strategic objectives to align with the Group’s strategy, as well as to the Business Plan
and the priorities for the coming year. It is therefore felt that the specific financial targets and important personal objectives are commercially
sensitive such that, having considered this carefully, the Board is of the view that it is in the Company’s interests not to disclose this information
inadvance.

Further details of the specific targets and key personal/strategic objectives set will be disclosed in the 2023 Annual Report.

40% of the 2023 AIP vesting will be deferred by making an award of shares under the DBSS, with a deferral period of two years. No change
tocurrentarrangements is proposed for 2023.



Hammerson plc AnnualReport2022 111

Restricted Share Scheme
Policy
Purpose and link to strategy Performance measures Operation
Toincentivise the creation of long term returns Subject to underpin as described Adiscretionary annual award up to avalue of 100% of base
forshareholders infullinthe Remuneration Policy. salary. The Committee reserves the discretionto increase
The underpin requires that the the maximum award to 150% of base salary in exceptional
Toalign interests of Executive Directors with Group’s performance and delivery circumstances Awards are subject to clawback and
shareholders and support retention To create of strategy is sufficient to justify malus provisions
alignment with the workforce vesting against the consideration of
absolute and relative TSR net debt
and TPR

Implementation
Annual award of 100% of base salary for the Chief Executive and 75% of base salary for the CFO. Vesting of the award is subject to the underpin
described above.

Participation in all-employee arrangements

Policy

Purpose and link to strategy Performance measures Operation

Inordertobeable to offer participationin Not generally applicable. Anyaward  Executive Directors are eligible to participate in all-employee
all-employee plans to employees generally, of free shares under the SIP may incentive arrangements on same terms as other employees
the Company is either required by the relevant be subjecttoa Company

UKand French legislation to allow Executive performance target

Directors to participate on the same terms or

choosestodoso

Implementation
All-employee arrangements currently offered in the UK are Sharesave and SIP share awards. The opportunity to participate in all-employee
arrangements continues on the same basis as for all staffin the UK. No change to current arrangements is proposed for 2023.

Share ownership guidelines

The Company has in place a share ownership policy for the Executive Directors. Executive Directors are normally required to achieve the minimum
shareholding requirement within seven years of the date of appointment. An annual calculation as a percentage of salary is made against the
guidelines as at 31 December each year based on the middle-market value share price on the last business day in December. Executive Directors
are expected to accumulate and maintain a holding in ordinary shares in the Company equivalent to no less than 250% of base salary. The
Company has a post-cessation share ownership guideline of 250% of salary for two years after termination of employment. This includes vested
shares and shares which are unvested but have met the performance conditions or underpins on a net of tax basis.

Implementation
250% of base salary for the Chief Executive and all other Executive Directors.
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Chair of the Board and Non-Executive Directors’ Fees
Policy

Purpose and link to strategy Performance measures
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Operation

Toensure the Company continues to attract and Not applicable
retain high-quality Chairand Non-Executive
Directors by offering market competitive fees

The Chair of the Board'’s fee is determined by the Committee.
Other Non-Executive Directors’ fees are determined by the
Board on the recommendation of the Executive Directors.
Aggregate total fees payable annually to all Non-Executive
Directors are subject to the limit stated in the Company’s
Articles of Association (currently £1,000,000)

Implementation

Chairand Non-Executive Directors’ 2023 annualfees £000
Chair of the Board 300,000
Non-Executive Director 61,500
Senior Independent Director 10,000
Audit Committee Chair 15,000
Remuneration Committee Chair 15,000
Audit/Remuneration Committee Member 5,000
Designated Non-Executive Director for Colleague Engagement 8,000

These remain unchanged from 2022 levels and are expected to next be reviewed for 2024.

Remuneration for employees below Board levelin 2023

Remuneration packages for all Group employees may comprise both fixed and variable elements. Generally, the more senior the individual,

the greaterthe variable pay offer as a proportion of overall pay due to the ability of senior managers to impact more directly upon the Group’s
performance. As well as assessing the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors, the Committee reviews the remuneration of the senior
management team and is kept informed of remuneration developments and principles for pay and reward across the Group. This includes any
salary increases and benefits of the wider employee population and considers them in relation to the implementation of the Remuneration Policy
for Executive Directors, ensuring there is an appropriate degree of alignment throughout the Group. The Designated Non-Executive Director for
Colleague Engagement isa member of the Remuneration Committee and held a number of employee forums in the year, including one specifically
focused on discussing executive remuneration to explain how executive remuneration aligns with the wider company pay policy, as required by

the UK Corporate Governance Code.
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2018 UK Corporate Governance Code (Code) considerations
The Committee has considered the factors set out in provision 40 of the Code. In the Committee’s view, the Policy addresses those factors

as set out below:

Factor

How addressed

Clarity —remuneration arrangements should be
transparent and promote effective engagement
with shareholders and the workforce

Remuneration policy and arrangements are clearly disclosed each year in the Annual Report.

The Committee proactively seeks engagement with shareholders on remuneration matters

(see description of consultation on proposed Policy above), and is regularly updated on workforce
pay and benefits across the Group during the course of its activity.

Simplicity — remuneration structures should
avoid complexity and their rationale and
operation should be easy to understand

Our remuneration structure is comprised of fixed and variable remuneration, with the performance
conditions for variable elements clearly communicated to, and understood by, participants. The RSS
provides a mechanism for aligning Executive Director and shareholder interests, removes the difficult
challenge of setting robust, appropriately challenging and easily understandable performance targets
inavolatile market which could lead to potentially unintended remuneration outcomes and
significantly reduces the maximum pay available to Executive Directors.

Risk —remuneration arrangements should
ensure that reputational and other risks from
excessive rewards, and behavioural risks that can
arise from target-based incentive plans, are
identified and mitigated

The rules of the AIP and RSS provide discretion to the Committee to reduce award levels and
awards are subject to malus and clawback provisions. The Committee also has overriding discretion
toreduce awards to mitigate against any reputational or other risk from such awards being
considered excessive. The RSS reduces the risk of unintended remuneration outcomes associated
with complex performance conditions.

Predictability — the range of possible reward
valuestoindividual directors and any other limits
ordiscretions should be identified and explained
atthe time of approving the policy

The RSSincreases the predictability of reward values (removing the risk of potentially unintended
outcomes). Maximum award levels and discretions are set out in the Illustration and application
of policy chart on page 96.

Proportionality —the link between individual
awards, the delivery of strategy and the long term
performance of the Group should be clear.
Outcomes should not reward poor performance

Variable performance-related elements represent a significant proportion of the total
remuneration opportunity for the Executive Directors. The Committee considers the appropriate
financialand personal performance measures each yearto ensure that thereis a clearlink to
strategy. Discretions available to the Committee ensure that awards can be reduced if necessary
to ensure that outcomes do not reward poor performance.

Alignment to culture — incentive schemes
should drive behaviours consistent with company
purpose, values and strategy

The Committee seeks to ensure that personal performance measures under the AIP incentivise
behaviours consistent with the Group’s culture, purpose and values. The RSS clearly aligns
Executive Director interests with those of shareholders by ensuring a focus on delivering against
strategy to generate long-term value for shareholders.

By order of the Board

Habib Annous
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
8March 2023



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of the Company present their
report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended

31 December2022. This report has been
prepared in accordance with requirements
outlined within The Large and Medium-sized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and
Reports) Regulations 2008 and the Directors’
Report forms part of the management report
as required under the Disclosure Guidance
and Transparency Rules (DTR).

The Company has chosen, in accordance with
Section 414C(11) of the Companies Act 2006
(the Act), toinclude certain informationin the
Strategic Report that would otherwise be
required to be included in this Directors’
Report, as follows:

Information Pages

Likely future developmentsinthe

Company 20-22
Information about dividends 9
Employment of disabled persons 24
Engagement with colleagues 24
Engagement with customers,

suppliers and other external

stakeholders 32-34
Going concern and viability

statements 60-61

The Strategic Reportis set out on pages 1to 63
andisincorporated into this Directors’ Report
by reference. Other information, which forms
part of this Directors’ Report by reference, can
be foundin the following sections:

Information Pages
Corporate Governance 64-116
Financial instruments and risk

management 168-173

Statement of Directors’
responsibilities, including
confirmation of disclosure of

information to the Auditors 116
Subsidiaries and other related
undertakings outside the UK 184-189

Disclosures concerning greenhouse
gas emissions and energy
consumption 27

Shareholderinformation 204-205

Articles of Association

The Company’s Articles of Association
(Articles) may be amended by special
resolution inaccordance with the Actand
are available at www.hammerson.com.

2023 Annual General Meeting

The Company’s 2023 Annual General Meeting
(AGM) will be held at 9:00 am (UK time) on

4 May 2023.Theresolutions to be proposed at
the AGM will be set out in the Notice of AGM
senttothe Company’s shareholders.

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) has
indicated its willingness to remain in office
and, on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, aresolution to reappoint PwC as
the Company’s Auditor will be proposed at
the AGM.

Authority to allot shares in the Company
Atthe 2022 AGM, the Company was granted
authority by shareholders to allot shares up to
anaggregate nominalvalue of £73,529,431.
This authority will expire on the earlier of

28 July 2023 or the conclusion of the 2023
AGM, at which aresolution will be proposed for
its renewal. Under this authority, the Company
allotted atotal 0f 194,637,920 ordinary shares
on10May 2022 as part of the Company’s
enhanced scrip dividend alternative in relation
tothefinal dividend for the financial year
ended 31 December 2021, and a total of
388,170,526 ordinary shares on 3 November
2022 as part of the Company’s enhanced scrip
dividend alternativein relationto the interim
dividend for the financial year ended

31 December2022.

Colleagues

Colleagues receive regular briefings and
updates from the Board and management,
including via all-employee meetings, email
and the Group’s intranet, to inform them of the
performance of the business and opportunities
to participate in employee share schemes.
Further details of engagement with colleagues
can befound on pages 24,32 and 67.
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Corporate Governance Statement

The Directors’ Report (including the
information specified as forming part of this
Report) fulfils the requirements of the
Corporate Governance Statement for the
purposes of DTR7.2.

Directors and their share interests

Details of the Directors who served during the
yearended 31 December 2022 and continue
to serve at the date of approval of the Directors’
Report are setout on pages 64 to 65. Gwyn
Burrand Andrew Formica stepped down as
Directorson 28 April 2022. Des de Beer and
his alternate, Alan Olivier, stepped down as
Directorand alternate Director, respectively,
on 11 October2022.

Directors are appointed and replaced in
accordance with the Articles, the Actand the
UK Corporate Governance Code. The powers
ofthe Directors are set outin the Articles and
the Act.

The Directors’ interests in ordinary shares in
the Company are set outin the table on page
102 of the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Indemnification of and insurance for
Directors and officers

The Company hasin place directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance, which is reviewed
annually. The Company’s Directors and officers
are appropriately insured in accordance with
standard practice. Directors are indemnified
underthe Articles and through a Deed Poll

of Indemnity.

Political donations

Itis the Company’s policy not to make political
donations and no political donations,
contributions or political expenditure were
made inthe yearended 31 December 2022.

Post balance sheet events
Details of post balance sheet events can be
foundin note 28 to the financial statements.



Provisions on change of control

Achange of control of the Company,
following a takeover, may cause a number of
agreements to which the Company is party to
take effect, alter orterminate. These include
certaininsurance policies, financing
arrangements and employee share plans.

The Company’s share plans contain provisions
which could result in options and awards
vesting or becoming exercisable onachange
of control, inaccordance with the rules of the
plans. There are no agreements between

the Company and its Directors or employees
providing for compensation for loss of office
oremployment or otherwise that occurs
specifically because of a takeover.

The Group has a number of borrowing facilities
provided by various lenders. These facilities
generally include provisions that may require
any outstanding borrowings to be repaid or
the amendment or termination of the facilities
upon the occurrence of a change of control of
the Company.

Purchase of own shares

Atthe 2022 AGM, the Company was granted
authority by shareholders to purchase up to
441,176,591 ordinary shares of 5 pence each
(representing approximately 10% of the
Company’sissued ordinary share capital as at
14 March 2022). This authority will expire at
the conclusion of the 2023 AGM, at which a
resolution will be proposed for its renewal,

or, ifearlier,on 28 July 2023. Further details
onshare purchases can be foundin note 21A
tothe financial statements. The Company
made no purchases of its own shares into
treasury during the year pursuant to the above
authority. As at 31 December 2022, the
Company held 7,691,247 ordinary shares
intreasury.

Interests disclosed under DTR 5

Asat 31 December 2022, the following
information had beenreceived by the
Company, inaccordance with Chapter 5 of the
DTRs, from holders of notifiable interests in the
Company’sissued share capital. It should be
noted that these holdings may have changed
since they were notified to the Company.
Substantial shareholders do not have different
voting rights from those of other shareholders.

% of issued

share capital

Number of voting carrying
rights votingrights

*

Lighthouse Capital

Limited 927,628,656 22.07%
APG Asset

Management

N.V. 1,046,181,300 20.94%
BlackRock, Inc. 289,466,153 6.55%
Resilient 2

Proprietary

Limited 143,000,000 3.10%
Richmond Group 139,449,066 3.02%

* Percentage based on ordinary sharesinissue,
excluding treasury shares, as at the date the
notification was received by the Company.

On 6 March 2023 (the latest practicable date
before the publication of this Report), the
Company received an additional notification of
interests in accordance with Chapter 5 of the
DTRs from APG Asset Management N.V. of a
decrease invoting rights from 1,046,181,300
t0997,468,698 (representing 19.97% of the
Company’sissued share capital carrying voting
rights as at the date of that notification).

The Company received no other notifications
inthe period between 1 January 2023 and

6 March2023.

Research and development activities
During the normal course of business, the
Group continues to invest in new technology
and systems and to develop new products
and services to improve operating efficiency
and strengthen its proposition for occupiers,
customers and partners.

Share capital

Details of the Company’s share capital and
structure are setoutinnote 21Atothe
financial statements. The rights and
obligations attached to the Company’s shares
are setout inthe Articles, in addition to those
conferred on shareholders by law. The Articles
and applicable legislation provide that the
Company can decide to restrict the rights
attaching to shares in certain circumstances,
including where a person has failed to comply
with a notice issued by the Company under
section 793 of the Act.
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There are norestrictions on the transfer of
shares except the UK Real Estate Investment
Trust restrictions and certain restrictions
imposed by the Articles, law and the
Company’s Share Dealing Policy. The Articles
set out certain circumstances in which the
Directors of the Company can refuse to register
atransfer of shares. The Company is not aware
ofany agreements between holders of
securities that are known to the Company and
may result in restrictions on the transfer of
securities oronvoting rights. No dividends are
paid in respect of shares held in treasury.

Shares held inthe Employee Share
Ownership Plan

The Trustees of the Hammerson Employee
Share Ownership Plan hold Hammerson plc
sharesintrust to satisfy awards under the
Company’semployee share plans. The
Trustees have waived their right to receive
dividends on shares held in the Company. As
at 31 December 2022, 25,512,208 ordinary
shares were held in trust foremployee share
plans purposes.

Listing Rule 9.8.4R disclosures

The table below sets out where disclosures
required by Listing Rule 9.8.4R are located and
these disclosures are incorporated into this
Directors’ Report by reference.

LR9.8.4Rrequirement Page
Interest capitalised and tax relief 148
Details of long term incentive

schemes 145
Shareholder waivers of dividends 115
Shareholderwaivers of future

dividends 115
By order of the Board
Alex Dunn

General Counseland Company Secretary
8March 2023



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the
preparation of the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the
Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year.
Underthat law the Directors have prepared
the Group financial statementsin accordance
with UK-adopted international accounting
standards and the Company financial
statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced
Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law).
The Group has also prepared financial
statements in accordance with international
financial reporting standards adopted
pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002
asitappliesinthe European Union.

Under Company law, Directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and
Company and of the profit or loss of the Group
forthat period. In preparing the financial
statements, the Directors are required to:

— Select suitable accounting policies and
then apply them consistently

— State whetherapplicable UK-adopted
international accounting standards and
international financial reporting standards
adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No
1606/2002 asitappliesinthe European
Union have been followed for the Group
financial statements and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101
have been followed for the Company
financial statements, subject toany
material departures disclosed and
explained inthe financial statements

— Make judgements and accounting
estimates that are reasonable and prudent

— Prepare the financial statements on the
going concern basis unlessitis
inappropriate to presume that the Group
and Company will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Group and Company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

The Directors are also responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records thatare
sufficient to show and explain the Group’s and
Company’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Group and Company and enable
them to ensure that the financial statements
and the Directors’ Remuneration Report
comply with the Companies Act 2006.

The Directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the Company’s
website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination
offinancial statements may differ from
legislation in otherjurisdictions.

Directors’ confirmations

The Directors consider that the Annual Report
and financial statements, taken as awhole,

is fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group’s and
Company'’s position and performance,
business modeland strategy.

Each of the Directors, whose names and
functions are listed in the Corporate
Governance Report, confirms that to the best
oftheir knowledge:

— The Group financial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with
UK-adopted international accounting
standards and international financial
reporting standards adopted pursuant to
Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies
inthe European Union, give a true and fair
view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and loss of the Group

— The Company financial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with
United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
comprising FRS 101, give a true and fair
view of the assets, liabilities and financial
position of the Company

— The Strategic Reportincludes afair review
of the development and performance of the
business and the position of the Group and
Company, together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that it faces
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Provision of information to the Auditor
Inthe case of each Director in office at the date
the Directors Report is approved:

— Sofarasthe Directoris aware, thereis no
relevant audit information of which the
Groupand Company’s Auditors are unaware

— They have taken all the steps that they
oughtto have taken as a Directorin order
to make themselves aware of any relevant
auditinformation and to establish that the
Group’sand Company’s Auditors are aware
ofthatinformation

This confirmation is given, and should be
interpreted in accordance with, the provisions
of Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

By order of the Board

Rita-Rose Gagné
Chief Executive

Himanshu Raja
Chief Financial Officer
8March 2023



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HAMMERSON PLC

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

Inouropinion:

— Hammerson plc’s Group financial
statements and Company financial
statements (the ‘financial statements’)
give atrue and fair view of the state of the
Group’s and of the Company’s affairs as
at 31 December 2022 and of the Group’s
loss and the Group’s cash flows for the year
then ended

— the Group financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with
UK-adopted internationalaccounting
standards as applied in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

— the Company financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including FRS 101
‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’, and
applicable law)

— thefinancial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006

We have audited the financial statements,
included within the Annual Report, which
comprise: the Consolidated and Company
Balance Sheetsasat 31 December2022;

the Consolidated Income Statement and the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement, and the Consolidated and
Company Statements of Changes in Equity for
theyearthen ended; and the notes tothe
financial statements, whichinclude a description
ofthe significant accounting policies.

Our opinion s consistent with our reporting to
the Audit Committee.

Separate opinionin relation to international
financial reporting standards adopted
pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002
asit appliesinthe European Union

As explained in note 1B to the financial
statements, the Group, in addition to applying
UK-adopted international accounting
standards, has also applied international
financial reporting standards adopted
pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002
asitappliesinthe European Union.

Inouropinion, the Group financial statements
have been properly prepared in accordance
with international financial reporting standards
adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No
1606/2002 asitapplies inthe European Union.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under ISAs (UK) are further described in the
Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Groupin
accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements inthe UK, whichincludesthe FRC’s
Ethical Standard, as applicable to listed public
interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we
declare that non-audit services prohibited by
the FRC'’s Ethical Standard were not provided.

Otherthanthose disclosed in note 5E, we have
provided no non-audit services to the Company
orits controlled undertakings in the period
underaudit.

Our audit approach
Overview
Audit scope

— The UK, French, Irish and Value Retail
components were subject to a full scope
audit. Together these components account
for 100% of the Group’s total assets

Key audit matters

— Valuation of investment property, either
held directly or within joint ventures (Group)

— Accounting forthe investment in Value
Retail and valuation of investment property
held by Value Retail (Group)

— Valuation of investments in subsidiary
companies and amounts owed by
subsidiaries and other related undertakings
(Company)
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Materiality

— Overall Group materiality: £34.0m
(2021: £36.8m) based on 0.75% of
Group’s total assets

— Specific Group materiality: £5.3m
(2021: £5.7m) based on 5% of the Group’s
average adjusted earnings

— Overall Company materiality: £44.5m
(2021: £47.7m) based on 0.75% of the
Company’s total assets

— Overall performance materiality: £25.5m
(2021 £27.6m) (Group); Specific
performance materiality: £3.9m (2021.:
£4.3m) (Group) and Company performance
materiality: £33.4m (2021: £35.8m)
(Company)

The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined
materiality and assessed the risks of material
misstatement in the financial statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in
the auditors’ professional judgement, were of
most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include
the most significant assessed risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud)
identified by the auditors, including those
which had the greatest effect on: the overall
audit strategy; the allocation of resourcesin
the audit; and directing the efforts of the
engagement team. These matters, and any
comments we make on the results of our
procedures thereon, were addressed inthe
context of our audit of the financial statements
asawhole, and informing our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Thisis notacomplete list of all risks identified
by ouraudit.

Expected Credit Losses on accounts receivable
and unamortised tenant incentives, which

was a key audit matter last year, is no longer
included because collection levels have
improved and the judgement in estimating

the level of provisioning, and therefore the risk
of material misstatement, has reduced.
Otherwise, the key audit matters below are
consistent with last year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HAMMERSON PLC continued

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Valuation of investment property, either held directly or within
jointventures (Group)

Referto page 78 (Audit Committee Report), page 136 (Principal
accounting policies), pages 138 and 139 (Significant estimates —
Property valuations) and pages 156 to 162 (Notes to the consolidated
financial statements—note 12 and 13).

The Group directly owns, or owns via joint ventures or associates, a
property portfolio which includes shopping centres, developments and
premium outlets. The total value of this portfolio as at 31 December
2022 was £5,107.1m (2021: £5,372.2m) and has been impacted by
the uncertainty in the macroeconomic environment.

Ofthis portfolio £1,461.0m (2021: £1,561.4m) is held by subsidiaries
within ‘Investment properties’,and £1,620.0m (2021: £1,712.2m) is
held by joint ventures within ‘Investment in joint ventures’. Additionally
the portfolioincludes £nil (2021: £69.1m) held within ‘Assets held for
sale’,and £36.2m (2021: £34.3m) held within ‘Trading properties’.
Properties held within ‘Assets held for sale’ and “Trading properties’

do not form part of this key audit matter. Together these properties are
spread across the UK, French and Irish components.

The remainder of the portfoliois held within associates, £1,989.9m
(2021:£1,995.2m), primarily in respect of Value Retail with the balance
held in Ttalie Deux. The Group’s share of Value Retail’'s investment
propertyis £1,887.0m (2021: £1,893.5m). The valuation of Value
Retail’s property is discussed within the subsequent key audit matter.

This was identified as a key audit matter given the valuation of the
investment property portfolio is inherently subjective and complex

due to,among other factors, the individual nature of each property,

its location, and the expected future rental streams for that particular
property, together with considerations around the impact of climate
change. The wider challenges currently facing the retail real estate
occupierand investor markets, including the relative lack of comparable
transactions and macroeconomic uncertainty, has further contributed
tothe subjectivity. Asaresult significant subjectivity remains within
these valuations for the yearended 31 December 2022.

The closing valuations were carried out by CBRE, Jones Lang LaSalle
and Cushman & Wakefield (the ‘external valuers’), in accordance
with the RICS Valuation — Professional Standards and the Group
accounting policies which incorporate the requirements of
International Accounting Standard 40, ‘Investment Property’ and
IFRS 13 ‘Fairvalue measurement’.

Whilst no material valuation uncertainty clauses were included in the
external valuations of the properties in the Group’s portfolio as at

31 December 2022, the valuers continue to include wording suggested
by the RICS to describe market uncertainty and highlighting the
importance of the valuation date.

The properties’ fair value is primarily determined by their investment
value reflecting the fact that the properties are largely existing

operational properties currently generating rental income. Shopping
centres are primarily valued using the income capitalisation method.

HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

Giventhe inherent subjectivity involved in the valuation of investment
properties, the need for deep market knowledge when determining
the most appropriate assumptions and the technicalities of valuation
methodology, we engaged ourinternal valuation experts (qualified
chartered surveyors) to assist us in our audit of this matter.

Assessing the valuers’ expertise and objectivity

We assessed each of the external valuers’ qualifications and expertise
and read their terms of engagement with the Group to determine
whether there were any matters that might have affected their
objectivity or may have imposed scope limitations upon their work.

We also considered fee arrangements between the external valuers
and the Group, and other engagements which might exist between

the Group and the valuers. We found no evidence to suggest that the
objectivity of the external valuers, in their performance of the valuations,
was compromised.

Data provided to the valuers

We checked the accuracy of the underlying lease data and capital
expenditure used by the external valuers in their valuation of the
portfolio by tracing the data back to the relevant component accounting
records and signed leases on a sample basis. No exceptions were
identified from this work.

Assumptions and estimates used by the valuers

We read the external valuation reports for the properties and confirmed
that the valuation approach foreach was in accordance with RICS
standards and suitable for use in determining the final value for the
purpose of the financial statements.

We held discussions with each of the external valuers to challenge the
valuation process, the key assumptions, and the rationale behind the
more significant valuation movements during the year. It was evident
from ourinteraction with the external valuers, and from our review of
the valuation reports, that close attention had been paid to each
property’sindividual characteristics at a detailed, tenant by tenant level,
as wellas considering the property specific factors such as the latest
leasing activity, tenant mix, vacancy levels, the impact of CVAs and
administrations, geographic location and the desirability of the asset
asawhole. We also questioned the external valuers as to the extent to
which recent market transactions and expected rental values which
they made use of in deriving their valuations took into account the
impact of climate change and related ESG considerations.

In addition we performed the following procedures for each type of
property. We were able to obtain sufficient evidence to support the
valuation and did notidentify any material issues during our work.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

Valuation of investment property, either held directly or within
joint ventures (Group) continued

Those development properties that are subject to active ongoing
development are valued using the residual valuation approach. Certain
operational properties, which have development potentialand are
included in developments, are valued under the income capitalisation
method but adjusted to account for development potential. Development
land is valued on a value per acre basis.

Shopping centres

In determining the valuation of a shopping centre the valuers take into
account property specificinformation such as the current tenancy
agreements and rentalincome. They then apply judgemental
assumptions such as estimated rental value (ERV) and yield, which are
influenced by prevailing market yields and where available, comparable
market transactions and leasing evidence, to arrive at the final
valuation. Due to the unique nature of each property the judgemental
assumptions to be applied are determined having regard to the
individual property characteristics at a detailed, tenant by tenant level,
as well as considering the qualities of the property asawhole.

Developments

Indetermining the valuation of development property undera residual
valuation method the valuers take into account the property specific
information such as the development plans for the site. They then apply
anumber of judgemental assumptions including ERV and yield within
the gross development value, estimated costs to complete and
developers profit to arrive at the valuation. Due to the unique nature of
an ongoing development the judgemental assumptions to be applied
are determined having regard to the nature and risks associated with
each development.

Indetermining the valuation of operational properties with
development potential the valuers initially follow the same
methodology as described previously to arrive atanincome
capitalisation value. Having regard to the unique nature of each
property, the likelihood of the development progressing and the status
of planning consents for the development, the valuers then make
adjustments to the valuation to reflect development potential.

Indetermining the value of development land the valuers primarily
have regard for the value per acre achieved by recent comparable
land transactions.

— Shopping centres
For shopping centres we obtained details of each property and
set an expected range for yield and capital value movement,
determined by reference to published benchmarks and using our
experience and knowledge of the market. We compared the yield
and capital movement of each property with our expected range.
We also considered the reasonableness of other assumptions that
are not so readily comparable with published benchmarks, in
particular ERV where, fora sample of units, we challenged the
valuers to support how they had determined their ERV. Where
assumptions were outside the expected range or otherwise
appeared unusual we undertook further investigations and, when
necessary, obtained corroborating evidence to support explanations
received. This enabled us to assess the property specific factors that
had animpactonvalue, including recent comparable transactions
and leasing evidence where available, and to conclude on the
reasonableness of the assumptions utilised.

— Developments
For significant ongoing developments valued via the residual
valuation method we obtained the development appraisal and
assessed the reasonableness of the valuers’ key assumptions.
This included comparing the yield to comparable market
benchmarks, comparing the costs to complete estimates to
development plans and contracts, and considering the
reasonableness of other assumptions that are not so readily
comparable with published benchmarks, such as ERV, cost
contingencies and developers profit. Where assumptions appeared
unusual we undertook further investigations and, when necessary,
obtained corroborating evidence to support explanations received.

For operational properties with development potential we performed
the same procedures as described previously for shopping centres.

We also considered the reasonableness of any additional value
recognised for development potential by reviewing the stage of
progress of the proposed development including verifying any planning
consents obtained.

For development land valued on a per acre basis we obtained details of
the comparable land transactions utilised by the valuers. We verified
the value of these transactions to supporting evidence and considered
their comparability to the asset being valued.

Overall findings

We found that the assumptions used in the valuations were
predominantly consistent with our expectations and comparable
benchmarking information for the asset type, and that the assumptions
were applied appropriately and reflected available comparable market
transactions and leasing evidence. Where assumptions did not fall
within our expected range we were satisfied that variances were due to
property specific factors such as location and tenant mix. We concluded
that the assumptions used in the valuations by the external valuers
were supportable.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HAMMERSON PLC continued

KEY AUDIT MATTER HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

Accounting for the investment in Value Retail and valuation of
investment property held by Value Retail (Group)

Referto page 136 (Principal accounting policies), pages 138 and 139
(Significant estimates — Property valuations) and pages 162 and 163
(Notes to the consolidated financial statements —note 14).

The Group has an investment in Value Retail, a separate group owning
anumber of premium outlets in the United Kingdom and across Europe.
The Group equity accounts for its interest in Value Retail as an associate.
The Group’sinvestment as at 31 December 2022 was £1,189.4m
(2021:£1,140.8m).

Investment property valuation

The valuation of the Group’s investment in Value Retail is predominantly
driven by the valuation of the property assets within the Value Retail
portfolio. The total value of the properties was £5,151.0m as at

31 December 2022 (2021: £5,055.6m). The Group’s share of the Value
Retail property, whichis included within the wider Group portfolio of
£5,107.1m (2021: £5,372.2m), was £1,887.0m (2021: £1,893.5m)
and has also beenimpacted by the macroeconomic environment.

The closing valuation was carried out by Cushman & Wakefield, in
accordance with the RICS Valuation — Professional Standards and the
Group accounting policies which incorporate the requirements of
International Accounting Standard 40, ‘Investment Property’ and
IFRS 13 ‘Fair value measurement’. The premium outlets’ fair value is
determined by theirinvestment value utilising a discounted cash flow
(DCF) basis.

In determining the valuation of a premium outlet, the valuers take

into account property specificinformation such as current tenancy
agreements, rentalincome generated by the asset, as well as property
operating costs. They then apply judgmental assumptions such as
yield, discount rate and expected rental income levels and subsequent
growth rates, which are influenced by prevailing market yields and
where appropriate comparable market transactions, to arrive at the
final valuation. Due to the unique nature of each property the
judgmental assumptions to be applied are determined having regard
totheindividual property characteristics at a detailed, unit by unit level,
as wellas considering the qualities of the property asawhole.

Accounting for the investment in Value Retail

Value Retailhas a complex ownership structure whereby each investing
party owns differing proportions of each of the entities, and hence
properties, within the Value Retail group. As such this creates significant
complexity in determining the overall investment in Value Retail held
within the Group consolidated financial statements.

Therefore, onthe basis of the significant judgement and estimation
uncertainty within the investment property valuation, and the
complexity in determining the overallinvestment in Value Retail,
we identified this as a key audit matter.

Investment property valuation

As Group auditors we formally instructed the component auditors of
Value Retail to perform a full scope audit over the financial information
of Value Retail. This included audit work over the valuation of investment
property within Value Retail.

Ourcomponent auditors obtained details of each property. They
assessed the reasonableness of each property’s key assumptions
comparingits yield, discount rate and expected rental income and
subsequent growth rates to comparable market benchmarks. In doing
sothey had regard to property specific factors and knowledge of the
market, including comparable transactions and leasing evidence where
appropriate. They obtained corroborating evidence to support
explanations received from the valuers where appropriate.

The Group audit team participated in the meeting held between
Cushman & Wakefield and the component auditors. We have obtained
reporting from the component auditors and have reviewed the results
and underlying working papers over investment property valuation.

We have noissues to report and we are satisfied that we have obtained
sufficientaudit comfort over the investment property balances within
the Value Retail financial information.

Accounting for the investment in Value Retail

Inrespect of the complexity within the calculation of the Group’s
investment in Value Retail, we obtained the ownership structure for
Value Retailas at 31 December 2022. We instructed the component
auditorto verify the Group’s percentage ownership of each entity within
the Value Retail group. We have obtained reporting from the component
auditors on this procedure and have reviewed the results and their
underlying working papers.

We have tested the adjustments made within the Group consolidation
inaccordance with IAS 28 ‘Investments in associates and joint
ventures’, inarriving at the Group’s equity accounted investment in
Value Retail to determine whether they are appropriate.

We have noissues to report in respect of this work.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER HOW OUR AUDIT ADDRESSED THE KEY AUDIT MATTER

Valuation of investments in subsidiary companies and amounts
owed by subsidiaries and other related undertakings (Company)
Referto page 183 (Principal accounting policies) and pages 183 and
184 (Notes to the Company financial statements —note C3 and C4).

The Company has investments in subsidiary companies of £1,322.4m
(2021:£1,279.3m) and amounts owed by subsidiaries and other
related undertakings of £4,395.0m (2021: £4,727.5m) as at

31 December 2022. This is following the recognition ofa £42.5m
(2021:£1,136.1m loss) revaluation gain on investments in subsidiary
companies and an Expected Credit Loss provision of £595.9m (2021
£471.6m) recognised on amounts owed by subsidiaries and other
related undertakings as at year end.

The Company’s accounting policy forinvestments is to hold them at
fairvalue, while amounts owed by subsidiaries and other related
undertakings are carried at amortised cost but subject to the Expected
Credit Loss impairment requirements. Given the inherent judgement
and complexity in assessing both the fair value of a subsidiary company,
and the Expected Credit Loss of amounts owed by subsidiaries and
otherrelated undertakings, this was identified as a key audit matter for
ouraudit of the Company.

The primary determinant and key judgement within both the fair value
of each subsidiary company and the Expected Credit Loss of amounts
owed by subsidiaries and other related undertakings is the value of the
investment property held by each investee/counterparty. As such it was

We obtained the Directors’ valuation for the value of investments held
in subsidiary companies and their Expected Credit Loss assessment of
amounts owed by subsidiaries and other related undertakings as at
31 December2022.

We assessed the accounting policy for investments and amounts owed
by subsidiaries and other related undertakings to verify they were
compliant with FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’.

We verified that the methodology used by the Directors in arriving at
the fair value of each subsidiary, and the Expected Credit Loss ‘general
approach’ provision foramounts owed by subsidiaries and other
related undertakings, was compliant with FRS 101 ‘Reduced
Disclosure Framework’.

We identified the key judgement within both the valuation of
investments held in subsidiary companies and amounts owed by
subsidiaries and other related undertakings to be the valuation
ofinvestment property held by each investee/counterparty. For details
of our procedures over investment property valuations please refer to
the related Group key audit matter above.

We have noissues to report in respect of this work.

over this area that we applied the most focus and audit effort.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of ouraudit to ensure
that we performed enough work to be able to
give anopinion on the financial statements as
awhole, taking into account the structure of
the Group and the Company, the accounting
processes and controls, and the industry in
which they operate.

The Group owns and invests ina number of
shopping centres, developments and premium
outlets across the United Kingdom and
Europe. These are held within a variety of
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.

Based on our understanding of the Group we
focussed our audit work primarily on four
components being: UK, France, Ireland and
Value Retail.

Allfour components were subject toa full
scope audit given their financial significance
tothe Group.

The UK, French, Irish and Value Retail
components account for 100% (2021: UK,
French, Irish and Value Retail components
accounted for 100%) of the Group’s

total assets.

The UK and Irish components were audited
by the Group team. The French and Value
Retail components were audited by
component teams.

Detailed instructions were sent to both
componentteams. These instructions covered
the significant areas that should be addressed
by the component auditors (which included
the relevant risks of material misstatement)
and set out the information required to be
reported back to the Group audit team. In
addition, regular meetings were held with the
component audit teams, with the Group audit
team attending the clearance meeting forall
component audits. Finally the Group audit
team performed a detailed review of the
working papers of allcomponent teams to
ensure the work performed was appropriate
andin line with ourinstructions.

These procedures, together with additional
procedures performed at the Group level
(including audit procedures over the
consolidation and consolidation adjustments),
gave us the evidence we needed for our
opinion on the Group financial statements
asawhole.

Inrespect of the audit of the Company, the
Group audit team performed a full scope
statutory audit.

The impact of climate risk on our audit
The Directors have made commitments for
the Groupto be Net Zero by 2030 and have
developed Net Zero Asset Plans for each
shopping centre within the Hammerson
portfolio (excluding Value Retail).

The key areas of the financial statements
where management evaluated that climate
risk could have a potential significant impact
are: the valuation of investment properties, the
coupon rate on its €700m sustainability-linked
bond and cash flow assumptions in the going
concernassessment.

Using our knowledge of the business, we
evaluated management’s risk assessment, its
estimates as set outin note 1F of the financial
statements and resultant disclosures where
significant. We considered the following areas
to potentially be materially impacted by
climate risk and consequently we focused our
audit work on climate change in these areas:
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— Valuation of investment properties

— Thecouponrateonthe €700m
sustainability-linked bond

— Cashflowassumptionsinthe going
concern assessment

Torespond to the audit risks identified in these
areas we tailored our audit approach to
address these, in particular:

— We made enquiries of management to
understand the process management
adopted to assess the extent of the
potentialimpact of climate risk on the
Group’s financial statements and support
the disclosures made within the
financial statements;

— We challenged the completeness of
management’s climate risk assessment
by challenging the consistency of
management’s climate impact assessment
with internal climate plans (including the
Net Zero Asset Plans), and reading the
entity’s external communications for
details of climate related impacts

— Weevaluated, with assistance from
ourinternal valuation experts, how
management’s external experts had
considered the impact of ESG and climate
change within the valuations of the Group’s
investment properties (referto our key
audit matter over the valuation of
investment properties)

— We performed independent sensitivity
analysis to determine the financial impact
of not complying with the sustainability
requirements linked to the €700m bond

— We challenged whether the impact of
climate risk, and the Group’s Net Zero by
2030 commitment, had been factored
into the Directors’ assessments and
disclosures surrounding going concern
and the viability statement

We also considered the consistency of the
disclosuresin relation to climate change
(including the disclosures in the Task Force on
Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)
section) within the Annual Report with the
financial statements and our knowledge
obtained from our audit.
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Our procedures did not identify any material
impactinthe context of ouraudit of the financial
statements as awhole, or our key audit matters,
forthe yearended 31 December2022.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by

our application of materiality. We set certain
quantitative thresholds for materiality. These,
togetherwith qualitative considerations,
helped us to determine the scope of our audit
and the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures on the individual financial
statement lineitems and disclosures and in
evaluating the effect of misstatements, both
individually and in aggregate on the financial
statements asawhole.

Based on our professional judgement,
we determined materiality for the financial
statements asawhole as follows:

| M FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - COMPANY

Overall materiality

£34.0m (2021: £36.8m).

£44.5m (2021: £47.7m).

How we determined it

Based on 0.75% of Group’s total assets

Based on 0.75% of the Company’s total assets

Rationale for
benchmark applied

ofthe Group’s value.

We determined materiality based on total assets given the
valuation of investment properties, whether held directly or
through joint ventures and associates, is the key determinant

This materiality was utilised in the audit of investing and

financing activities

Given the Hammerson plcentity is primarily a holding
Company we determined total assets to be the
appropriate benchmark.

Specific materiality £5.3m (2021: £5.7m).

Not applicable.

How we determined it

Based on 5% of the Group’s FY22 adjusted earnings

(2021: 5% of the Group’s weighted average adjusted
earnings from 201810 2021).

Not applicable.

Rationale for
benchmark applied

In determining this materiality we had regard to the fact
that adjusted earnings is a secondary financial indicator of

the Group (refer to note 10A of the financial statements
which includes a reconciliation between IFRS and

adjusted earnings).

This materiality was utilised in the audit of operating activities.

Not applicable.




Foreach componentin the scope of our Group
audit, we allocated a materiality that is less
than our overall Group materiality. The range
of overall materiality allocated across
components was £18.0mto £32.0m. The
range of overall materiality allocated across
components for operating activities was
£2.4mto£4.3m.

We use performance materiality to reduce to
an appropriately low level the probability that
the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected
misstatements exceeds overall materiality.
Specifically, we use performance materiality
indetermining the scope of ourauditand the
nature and extent of our testing of account
balances, classes of transactions and
disclosures, forexample in determining sample
sizes. Our performance materiality for investing
and financing activities was 75% (2021: 75%)
of overall materiality,amounting to £25.5m
(2021:£27.6m) for the Group financial
statementsand £33.4m (2021: £35.8m)
forthe Company financial statements.

Our performance materiality for operating
activitieswas 75% (2021: 75%) of Specific
materiality, amounting to £3.9m (2021:
£4.3m) for the Group financial statements.

Indetermining the performance materiality,
we considered a number of factors —the
history of misstatements, risk assessment and
aggregation risk and the effectiveness of
controls —and concluded thatanamount at the
upper end of our normal range was appropriate.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we
would report to them misstatements identified
during our audit above £1.7m (Group audit)
(2021:£1.8m) forinvesting and financing
activities, £0.5m (Group audit) (2021: £0.6m)
for operating activities,and £2.2m (Company
audit) (2021: £2.4m) as well as misstatements
below those amounts that, in our view,
warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern
Ourevaluation of the Directors’ assessment
ofthe Group’s and the Company’s ability to
continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accountingincluded:

— We agreed the underlying cash flow
projections to Board approved forecasts
and assessed how these forecasts were
compiled. We compared the prioryear
forecasts to actual performance to assess
management’s ability to forecast accurately

— Weevaluated the key assumptions within
the projections, namely forecast property
valuations and the levels of forecast net
rentalincome, under both a base scenario
and severe but plausible scenario. We did
sowith reference to available third party
data sources, contractual rental income,
together with the most recent data on levels
of expected rental concessions/tenant
failure. We considered whether the severe
but plausible scenario included appropriate
sensitivities to factor in severe but plausible
variances from the base scenarioin respect
of both forecast property valuations and
net rentalincome. We also considered how
the Group’s Net Zero by 2030 climate
commitment had been factored into the
cash flow projections

— Weexamined the minimum committed
facility headroom under the base and
severe but plausible scenarios, and
evaluated whether the Directors’
conclusion, that sufficient liquidity
headroom existed to continue trading
operationally throughout the period to
30June 2024, was appropriate

— Wereviewed the terms of financing
agreements to determine whether forecast
covenant calculations were in line with those
agreements and to determine whether the
maturity profile of the debt included within
the projections was accurate

— We obtained and reperformed the Group’s
forecast covenant compliance calculations,
under both the base and severe but
plausible scenarios to assess the Directors’
conclusions on covenant compliance. We
reperformed the covenant compliance
modelling both excluding the impact of
refinancing challenges in the associates,
and then including the impact of these
secured debt challenges

— We obtained reporting from our component
auditorsin respect of going concernand
considered the impact of their conclusions
inour procedures. One component auditor
within their reporting to us, drew attention
toamaterial uncertainty in respect of going
concern fortheircomponent that had been
identified by the component management
team. We verified Group management
appropriately factored this conclusion into
their Group going concern assessment

— Wereviewed the disclosures relating to the
going concern basis of preparation and we
found that these provided an explanation
ofthe Directors’ assessment that was
consistent with the evidence we obtained
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Based on the work we have performed, we
have not identified any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that, individually
or collectively, may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s and the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern fora period of at
least 12 months from when the financial
statements are authorised forissue.

Inauditing the financial statements, we have
concluded that the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation
ofthe financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or
conditions can be predicted, this conclusion

is not a guarantee asto the Group’s and the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Inrelation to the Directors’ reporting on how
they have applied the UK Corporate Governance
Code, we have nothing material to add or draw
attentiontoin relation to the Directors’
statementin the financial statements about
whetherthe Directors considered it appropriate
toadopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Ourresponsibilities and the responsibilities of
the Directors with respect to going concern are
described inthe relevant sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The otherinformation comprises all of the
information in the Annual Report other than
the financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon. The Directors are responsible
forthe otherinformation. Our opinion onthe
financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion or, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report,
any form of assurance thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility isto read the
otherinformation and, in doing so, consider
whetherthe otherinformation is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements
orourknowledge obtained in the audit,
orotherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify an apparent material
inconsistency or material misstatement, we are
required to perform procedures to conclude
whetherthere is a material misstatement of
the financial statements ora material
misstatement of the otherinformation.

If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude thatthere is a material misstatement
of this otherinformation, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report
based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report, we also considered whether
the disclosures required by the UK Companies
Act 2006 have beenincluded.

Based on ourwork undertaken in the course of
the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us
alsoto report certain opinions and matters as
described below.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report
Inouropinion, based on the work undertaken
inthe course of the audit, the information given
inthe Strategic Report and Directors’ Report
forthe yearended 31 December 2022 is
consistent with the financial statements and
has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

Inlight of the knowledge and understanding
of the Group and Company and their
environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we did not identify any material
misstatements in the Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report.

Directors’ Remuneration

Inouropinion, the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006.

Corporate governance statement

The Listing Rules require us to review the
Directors’ statementsin relation to going
concern, longer-term viability and that part of
the corporate governance statement relating
tothe Company’s compliance with the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Code specified for our review. Our additional
responsibilities with respect to the corporate
governance statement as otherinformation
are described inthe Reporting on other
information section of this report.

Based on the work undertaken as part of our
audit, we have concluded that each of the
following elements of the corporate
governance statement, included within the
Corporate Governance report is materially
consistent with the financial statements and
our knowledge obtained during the audit, and
we have nothing material to add or draw
attentiontoinrelation to:

— The Directors’ confirmation that they have
carried outarobust assessment of the
emerging and principal risks

— Thedisclosuresinthe Annual Report that
describe those principal risks, what
procedures arein place to identify emerging
risks and an explanation of how these are
being managed or mitigated

— TheDirectors’ statementin the financial
statements about whether they considered
itappropriate to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing them, and
theiridentification of any material
uncertainties to the Group’s and Company’s
ability to continue to do so overa period of
atleast 12 months from the date of
approval of the financial statements

— TheDirectors’ explanation as to their
assessment of the Group’s and Company’s
prospects, the period this assessment
covers and why the period is appropriate

— The Directors’ statement as to whether
they have a reasonable expectation that
the Company will be able to continue in
operation and meet its liabilities as they fall
due overthe period of its assessment,
including any related disclosures drawing
attention to any necessary qualifications
orassumptions

Ourreview of the Directors’ statement
regarding the longer-termviability of the Group
and Company was substantially less in scope
than an auditand only consisted of making
inquiries and considering the Directors’
process supporting their statement; checking
that the statementisin alignment with the
relevant provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code; and considering whether
the statement is consistent with the financial
statements and our knowledge and
understanding of the Group and Company
and theirenvironment obtained in the course
ofthe audit.
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Inaddition, based onthe work undertaken as
part of our audit, we have concluded that each
of the following elements of the corporate
governance statement is materially consistent
with the financial statements and our
knowledge obtained during the audit:

— The Directors’ statement that they consider
the Annual Report, taken as awhole, is fair,
balanced and understandable, and provides
the information necessary for the members
toassess the Group’sand Company’s
position, performance, business model
and strategy

— Thesection of the Annual Report that
describes the review of effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems

— Thesection of the Annual Report describing
the work of the Audit Committee

We have nothing to reportin respect of our
responsibility to report when the Directors’
statement relating to the Company’s
compliance with the Code does not properly
disclose a departure from arelevant provision
ofthe Code specified under the Listing Rules
for review by the auditors.

Responsibilities for the financial
statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the
financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of
Directors’ responsibilities, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements in accordance with the applicable
framework and for being satisfied that they
give atrue and fairview. The Directors are also
responsible for such internal controlas they
determineis necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether
duetofraudorerror.

In preparing the financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the
Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue
asagoing concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group orthe Company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.



Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Ourobjectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements as awhole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud orerror,
andtoissue an auditors’ report that includes
ouropinion. Reasonable assuranceis a high
level of assurance, butis not a guarantee

that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
canarise fromfraud or errorand are considered
material if, individually orin the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis
ofthese financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances

of non-compliance with laws and regulations.
We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect
material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to
which our procedures are capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the Group and
industry, we identified that the principal risks
of non-compliance with laws and regulations
related to tax legislation including the Real
Estate Investment Trust (REIT) requirements,
UK Companies Act 2006 requirements and
listing requirements including the UK FCA
Listing Rules, and we considered the extent to
which non-compliance might have a material
effect onthe financial statements. We
evaluated management’s incentives and
opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of
the financial statements (including the risk of
override of controls), and determined that the
principal risks were related to posting
inappropriate journal entries to increase
revenue, and management bias in accounting
estimates. The Group engagement team
shared thisrisk assessment with the component
auditors so that they could include appropriate
audit procedures in response to such risks in
theirwork. Audit procedures performed by the
Group engagement team and/or component
auditorsincluded:

— Discussions with management, internal
auditand those charged with governance,
including consideration of known or
suspected instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulation and fraud

— Reviewing minutes of meetings of those
charged with governance

— Evaluation of management’s controls
designed to prevent and detect
irregularities

— Designing audit procedures toincorporate
unpredictability into our testing

— Evaluation of the Group’s compliance with
the REIT requirements

— Challenging assumptions and judgements
made by management in their significant
accounting estimates, in particularin relation
tothe valuation of investment property
(seerelated key audit matters above)

— Identifyingand testing journal entries,
in particular any journal entries posted to
revenue with unusualaccount combinations
or posted by senior management

— Reviewing financial statement disclosures
and testing to supporting documentation to
assess compliance with applicable laws
and regulations

There are inherent limitations in the audit
procedures described above. We are less
likely to become aware of instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations
that are not closely related to events and
transactions reflected in the financial
statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a
material misstatement due to fraud is higher
than the risk of not detecting one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve deliberate
concealment by, for example, forgery
orintentional misrepresentations,
orthrough collusion.

Ouraudit testing mightinclude testing
complete populations of certain transactions
and balances, possibly using data auditing
techniques. However, it typically involves
selecting alimited number of items for testing,
rather than testing complete populations.
We will often seek to target particular items
fortesting based on their size or risk
characteristics. In other cases, we will use
auditsamplingtoenable ustodrawa
conclusion about the population from which
the sampleis selected.

Afurther description of our responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements is located
on the FRC’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/
auditors responsibilities. This description
forms part of ourauditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been
prepared for and only forthe Company’s
members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 and for no other purpose. We do not,
in giving these opinions, accept orassume
responsibility for any other purpose ortoany
other person to whom this report is shown
orinto whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent
inwriting.
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Otherrequired reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Underthe Companies Act 2006 we are
required to report to you if, in our opinion:

— we have not obtained all the information and
explanations we require for our audit; or

— adequate accounting records have not
been kept by the Company, or returns
adequate for ouraudit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

— certaindisclosures of Directors’
remuneration specified by law are not
made; or

— the Company financial statements and the
part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report
tobeaudited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from
this responsibility.

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, we were appointed by the
members on 25 April 2017 to audit the
financial statements for the year ended

31 December 2017 and subsequent financial
periods. The period of total uninterrupted
engagement is six years, covering the

years ended 31 December 2017 to

31 December2022.

Other matter

Indue course, as required by the Financial
Conduct Authority Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rule 4.1.14R, these financial
statements will form part of the ESEF-
prepared annual financial report filed on the
National Storage Mechanism of the Financial
Conduct Authority in accordance with the ESEF
Regulatory Technical Standard (ESEF RTS).
This auditors’ report provides no assurance
overwhether the annual financial report will
be prepared using the single electronic format
specifiedinthe ESEFRTS.

Sonia Copeland (Senior Statutory Auditor)
forand on behalf of

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

8March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
Year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

(Restated)

Notes £m £m

Revenue T 2,4 131.4 137.2
Profit from operating activities T a 2 29.7 8.0
Revaluation loss on properties T 2 (82.7) (169.6)
Othernet gains 2 0.6 18.7
Share of results of joint ventures 13B (41.5) (171.3)
Impairment of joint ventures 10A - (11.5)
Share of results of associates 148 (7.2) 15.6
Operating loss (101.0) (310.1)
Financeincome 7 26.1 151
Finance costs 7 (89.1) (113.0)
Loss before tax (164.0) (408.0)
Taxcharge 8 (0.2 1.3)
Loss from continuing operations (164.2) (409.3)
Loss from discontinued operations 9B - (19.8)
Loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (164.2) (429.1)

Basic and diluted loss per share b

Continuing operations 11B 3.3)p 8.3)p
Discontinued operations 11B - 0.4)p
Total 3.3)p 8.7)p

T 2021 figures have been restated to reflect the IFRIC Decision on Concessions with further information provided in notes 1B and 6.

a Includesacharge of £4.0m (2021: £13.5m) and an equivalent credit of £10.7m (2021: credit of £16.6m) relating to provisions forimpairment of trade (tenant)

receivables as set outin note 15D.
b 2021 loss pershare figures have been restated to incorporate the bonus element of scrip dividends.



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year ended 31 December 2022

Hammerson plc Annual Report 2022

127

2022 2021
£m £m

Loss for the year from continuing operations (164.2) (409.3)
Loss for the year from discontinued operations - (19.8)
Loss for the year (164.2) (429.1)
Recycled through the profit or loss on disposal of overseas property interests
Exchange gain previously recognised in the translation reserve - (55.2)
Exchange loss previously recognised in the net investment hedge reserve - 44.2
Net exchange loss relating to equity shareholders a - (11.0)
Items that may subsequently be recycled through profit or loss
Foreign exchange translation differences 130.6 (139.7)
(Loss)/gain on netinvestment hedge (103.4) 112.2
Net loss on cash flow hedge (1.9) @.7)
Share of other comprehensive gain of associates 23.3 1.3

48.6 (27.9)
Items that will not subsequently be recycled through profit or loss
Net actuarial (losses)/gains on pension schemes (26.7) 18.9
Total other comprehensive income/(loss) b 21.9 (20.0)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (142.3) (449.2)

a 2021:Relatestothe sale of the Group’s 25% interest in Espace Saint-Quentin and 10% interest in Nicetoile.

b Allitems within total other comprehensive income/(loss) relate to continuing operations.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2022

2022 2021
(Restatedand
re-presented)
Note £m £m
Non-current assets
Investment properties 12 1,461.0 1,561.4
Interestsin leasehold properties 34.0 329
Right-of-use assets 9.5 3.8
Plantand equipment 14 1.4
Investmentinjoint ventures 13C 1,342.4 1,451.8
Investmentin associates 14C 1,297.1 1,247.0
Otherinvestments 9.8 9.5
Trade and other receivables 15A 3.2 19.5
Derivative financial instruments 19A 7.0 18.6
Restricted monetary assets 16A 21.4 21.4
4,186.8 4,367.3
Currentassets
Trading properties 12 36.2 34.3
Trade and other receivables 158 85.9 84.8
Derivative financialinstruments 19A 0.1 7.3
Restricted monetary assets T 16A 8.6 33.7
Cash and cash equivalents T 168 218.8 315.1
349.6 475.2
Assets held for sale 9A - 71.4
349.6 546.6
Total assets 4,536.4 4,913.9
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 (268.3) (179.4)
Obligations under head leases 20 (0.2) -
Tax (0.5) 0.6)
Derivative financialinstruments 19A (16.2) -
(185.1) (180.0)
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 (56.3) (56.6)
Obligations under head leases 20 (38.1) (36.4)
Loans 18A  (1,646.4) (1,834.8)
Deferred tax (0.49) 0.4)
Derivative financial instruments 19A (23.7) (59.7)
(1,764.9) (1,987.9)
Totalliabilities (1,950.0) (2,167.9)
Net assets 2,586.4 2,746.0
Equity
Share capital 21A 250.1 221.0
Share premium 1,563.7 1,593.2
Mergerreserve - 3741
Capital redemption reserve * - 207.6
Otherreserves * 21B 135.4 110.0
Retained earnings * 646.0 2435
Investmentin own shares (8.8) (3.5)
Equity shareholders’ funds 2,586.4 2,745.9
Non-controlling interests - 0.1
Total equity 2,586.4 2,746.0
EPRA net tangible assets value per share 11C 53p 64p

T 2021 figures have been restated to reflect the IFRIC Decision on Deposits with further information provided in notes 1Band 16.

* Certainreserves for 2021 marked * have been re-presented as set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

These financial statements were approved by the Board on 8 March 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

Rita-Rose Gagné Himanshu Raja
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer
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Capital Invest- Equity Non-
redemp- ment share- con-
Share Share  Merger tion Other Retained inown holders’ trolling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserves earnings shares funds interests equity
Note £na1‘ £m £n(: £nl?| £n(1: £m £; £m £m £m
At1January 2022 221.0 1,593.2 3741 207.6 110.0 243.5 (3.5)|2,745.9 0.1 2,746.0
Reclassification d - - - (9.49) - 9.4 - - - -
At1January 2022 —re-presented 221.0 1,593.2 37441 198.2 110.0 2529 (3.5)(2,745.9 0.1 2,746.0
Foreign exchange translation differences - - - - 130.7 - - | 130.7 (0.1) 130.6
Loss on netinvestment hedge - - - - (203.9) - - | (103.4) - (103.9)
Gain on cash flow hedge - - - - 6.3 - - 6.3 - 6.3
Gain on cash flow hedge recycled to net
finance costs - - - - (8.2) - - (8.2) - (8.2)
Share of other comprehensive gain of
associates - - - - - 23.3 - 23.3 - 23.3
Net actuarial losses on pension schemes 23C - - - - -  (26.7) - (26.7) -  (26.7)
Loss forthe year - - - - - (164.2) - | (164.2) - (164.2)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) - - - - 25.4 (167.6) - | (142.2) (0.2) (142.3)
Transfer be - - (374.2) (198.2) - 5723 - - - -
Share-based employee remuneration - - - - - 3.0 - 3.0 - 3.0
Cost of shares awarded to employees - - - - - 1.4) 1.4 - - -
Purchase of own shares - - - - - - (6.7) 6.7 - 6.7
Dividends 22 - - - - - (240.3) - | (140.3) - (240.3)
Scrip dividend related shareissue 291 (29.1) - - - 1274 - 1274 - 1274
Scrip dividend related share issue costs - (0.4) - - - - - (0.4) - (0.4)
At 31 December 2022 250.1 1,563.7 - - 1354 646.0 (8.8)[2,586.4 - 2,586.4

Share capital includes shares held in treasury and shares held in an employee share trust, which are held at cost and excluded from equity shareholders’ funds
through ‘Investment in own shares’ with further information set outin note 21A.

The capital redemption reserve comprised £14.3m relating to share buybacks which arose overa number of years upto 2019 and £183.9m resulting from the
cancellation of the Company’s shares as part of the reorganisation of share capital in 2020. Following approval by the Court on 22 November 2022, this reserve
has been reclassified as available for distribution to shareholders in accordance with ICAEW Technical Release 02/17BL section 2.8A and as aresult has been
transferred to retained earnings.

From 1 January 2022, ‘Other reserves’ now comprises Translation, Net investment hedge and Cash flow hedge reserves as set out in note 21B.

The share-based employee remuneration reserve was previously segregated separately within ‘Other reserves’ and for the purposes of presentation in this
report, for the yearended 31 December 2021 has been renamed ‘Capital and share-based reserves’. This share-based employee remuneration reserve has now
been reclassified into retained earnings to reflect that it forms part of this reserve. The remaining component of the previously named ‘Other reserves’ was the
capital redemption reserve and has accordingly been renamed as such.

The merger reserve arose in September 2014 from a placing of new shares using a structure which resulted in merger relief being taken under Section 612 of the
Companies Act 2006. Following receipt of the proceeds in 2014 and the relevant criteria enabling use of the reserve having been satisfied, the amountsin the
merger reserve are deemed distributable and accordingly the balance of this reserve has been transferred to retained earnings.
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Capital
and Invest- Equity
share- ment share- Non-con-
Share Share Merger based Other Retained inown holders’ trolling Total
capital premium  reserve reserves reserves earnings shares funds interests equity
Note £m £m £m ‘Errc11 Erﬁ £m Errawl £m £m £m
At1January 2021 2029 1,611.9 3741 2071 150.2 663.0 (0.4)|3,208.8 0.1 3,208.9
Recycled exchange gain on disposal of
overseas property interests - - - - (11.0) - - (11.0) - (11.0)
Foreign exchange translation differences - - - - (139.7) - - | (139.7) - (139.7)
Gainon netinvestment hedge - - - - 1122 - - 112.2 - 1122
Loss on cash flow hedge - - - - (1.9 - - 1.9) - 1.9)
Loss on cash flow hedge recycled to net
finance costs - - - - 0.2 - - 0.2 - 0.2
Share of other comprehensive gain of
associates - - - - - 1.3 - 1.3 - 1.3
Net actuarial gains on pension schemes 23C - - - - - 18.9 - 18.9 - 18.9
Loss forthe year - - - - - (429.1) - (429.2) - (429.1)
Total comprehensive loss - - - - (40.2) (408.9) - | (449.2) - (449.0)
Share-based employee remuneration - - - 33 - - - 3.3 - 3.3
Cost of shares awarded to employees - - - 0.9) - - 0.4 - - -
Transfer on award of own shares to employees - - - (2.4) - 2.4 - - - -
Purchase of own shares - - - - - - (3.5) (3.5 - (3.5
Dividends 22 - - - - - (135.7) — | (135.7) - (135.7)
Scrip dividend related shareissue 181  (18.1) - - - 1227 - 1227 - 1227
Scrip dividend related share issue costs - 0.6) - - - - - 0.6) - 0.6)
At 31 December 2021 221.0 1,593.2 3741 2076 110.0 2435 (3.5)|2,745.9 0.1 2,746.0
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Year ended 31 December 2022
2021
2022 (Restatedand
re-presented)
Note £m £m
Profit from operating activities T 29.7 8.0
Net movements in working capital and restricted monetary assets T 24A 2.6 43
Non-cashitems T 24A (0.8) (9.3)
Cash generated from operations T 31.5 3.0
Interest received 18.1 20.5
Interest paid (69.1) (101.4)
Redemption premiums and fees from early repayment of debt - (19.8)
Debt and loan facility issuance and extension fees (2.8) (5.2)
Premiums on hedging derivatives (3.9 (20.8)
Tax repaid/(paid) 0.3 (2.0)
Distributions and other receivables from joint ventures 89.5 457
Distributions from joint ventures reclassified as assets held for sale 6.0 -
Cash flows from operating activities T 69.6 (80.0)
Investing activities
Capital expenditure (36.4) (76.2)
Sale of properties 124.0 7.0
Sale of investmentsin joint ventures 67.9 48.5
Sale of investmentsin associates - 21.2
Advancestojoint ventures 4.0) (14.0)
Distributions and capital returns received from associates 2.6 2.1
Cash flows from investing activities 154.1 (11.4)
Financingactivities
Share issue expenses (0.5) (2.5)
Proceeds from award of own shares 0.1 0.1
Purchase of own shares 6.7 (3.5)
Proceeds from new Borrowings - 596.5
Repayment of Borrowings (302.9) (929.4)
Equity dividends paid 22 (13.2) (24.9)
Cash flows from financing activities (322.7) (363.7)
Decrease/(increase) in cash and cash equivalents
— continuing operations T (99.0) (455.1)
— discontinued operations * 9C - 354.8
T (99.0) (100.3)
Opening cash and cash equivalents T 248 315.1 417.5
Exchange translation movement 24B 2.7 2.1
Closing cash and cash equivalents T 248 218.8 315.1

T 2021 figures have been restated to reflect the IFRIC Decision on Concessions with further information provided in notes 1B and 6 and the IFRIC Decision on

Deposits with further information provided in notes 1Band 16.

* Cash flows forthe yearended 31 December 2021 were previously presented to include discontinued operations allocated into each individual line item.

The figures above have been re-presented to show only cash flows arising from continuing operations (consistent with the presentation used in the consolidated

income statement). Further detail on cash flows from discontinued operations brought in as asingle line item are set out in note 9C.
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION, CONSOLIDATION AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.GENERAL INFORMATION

Hammerson plcis a UK public company limited by shares incorporated
underthe Companies Actand is registered in England and Wales.

The address of the Company’s registered office is Marble Arch House,
66 Seymour Street, London W1H 5BX.

The Group’s principal activities are as an owner, operator and developer of
sustainable prime urban real estate whereby the Group owns and invests
in flagship destinations, developments, and premium outlets across the
United Kingdom (UK) and Europe.

B.BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CONSOLIDATION

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with both UK-adopted international accounting standards and International
Financial Reporting Standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC)

No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union, (IFRS adopted by the
European Union as at 31 December 2020), as well as SAICA Financial
Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices committee and
those parts of the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to companies
reportingunder IFRS.

New accounting standards, amendments to standards and IFRIC
interpretations which became applicable during the year or have been
published but are not yet effective, were either not relevant or had no, orno
materialimpact on the Group’s results or net assets, except for the following
IFRIC agenda decisions that were issued during the year which have
resulted inaccounting policy changes as follows:

— InApril2022, the IFRICissued an agenda decision in respect of the
presentation of ‘Demand deposits with restrictions on use arising from
acontract with athird party’ (the ‘IFRIC Decision on Deposits’). The
conclusions were that restrictions on use which arise from a contract with
athird party do not alone change the nature of amounts being classified
ascashand cash equivalents. Inlight of this, a review has been
undertaken of amounts disclosed as ‘restricted monetary assets’. It has
been determined that the use of certain tenant deposit and service
charge amounts are restricted only by a contract with a third party. As a
result, in applying the agenda decision, such amounts for 20221 have
been restated to reflect this change with analysis set out in note 16.

— InOctober 2022, the IFRIC finalised an agenda decision in respect of
‘Lessor forgiveness of lease payments (IFRS 9 and IFRS 16)’(the ‘TFRIC
Decision on Concessions’). This concluded that where forgiven amounts
are already past due and recognised as operating lease receivables,
these should be accounted for by charging to the income statement on
the date that the legal rights are conceded. Historically, the Group’s
treatment of such concessions, which arose as a result of the Covid-19
pandemic, has beento recognise these as lease modifications such that
the impact was initially held on the balance sheet and then spread
forward into the income statement over the lease term or period to first
break. Incentives classified within investment properties resulted in
movements in tenantincentives which were recognised with an equal
and opposite offset in revaluation losses. As a result of implementing
the changg, 2021 figures have been restated whereby Reported Group
revenue, gross rentalincome, net rentalincome and revaluation losses
are affected although operating profit and income statement figures
below are unaffected. The equivalent Adjusted figures are also affected
including those down to Adjusted earnings. More detailed analysis of the
financial statement effects are set outin note 6.

Where figures have been restated, these are marked 1.

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except
that investment properties, other investments and derivative financial
instruments are stated at fair value. Other than the effects of the agenda
decisions, accounting policies have been applied consistently, however,
inordertoenhance and aid the users’ understanding, certain figures have
been re-presented as described in the applicable parts of the financial
statements, together with certain other presentational changes made with
the objective of simplification.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
ofthe Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Controlis achieved where the Company has the power over the investee,
isexposed, or has rights, to variable return from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

Theresults of subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates are included in the
consolidated income statement when controlis achieved, which is usually
from the effective date of acquisition, or up to the effective date of disposal
whichis usually on completion of the transaction. All intragroup transactions,
balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies used into
line with those used by the Group.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method
where any excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value of the
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired and the resulting
deferred tax thereon is recognised as goodwill which is then reviewed
annually forimpairment. Acquisition related costs are expensed.

Joint operations, joint ventures and associates

The accounting treatment for joint operations, joint ventures and associates
requires an assessment to determine the degree of control orinfluence that
the Group may exercise over them and the form of that control.

The Group’sinterest in joint arrangements is classified as either:

— ajoint operation: not operated through an entity but by joint controlling
parties which have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities; or

— ajoint venture: whereby the joint controlling parties have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement.

The Group’sinterests in its joint arrangements are commonly driven by the
terms of partnership agreements, which ensure that control is shared
betweenthe partners.

Associates are those entities over which the Group is in a position to exercise
significant influence, but not control or jointly control.

The Group’s share of interests in joint operations is proportionally
consolidated into the Group financial statements.

Theresults, assets and liabilities of joint ventures and associates are accounted
forusing the equity method. Investments in joint ventures and associates
are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post
acquisition changes inthe Group’s share of the net assets of the joint
venture or associate, less any impairment. Loans to joint ventures and
associates are aggregated into the Group’s investment in the consolidated
balance sheet. The Group eliminates upstream and downstream transactions
with its joint ventures, including interest and management fees.
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION, CONSOLIDATION AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Any losses of joint ventures or associates are initially recognised against
the equity investment, however, if in excess of the Group’s equity interest,
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.
If the Group’s equity investment is £nil, the share of losses is recognised
against other long term interests or if such interests are not available,
losses are simply restricted to leave the Group’s equity investment
remaining at £nil.

Distributions and otherincome received from joint ventures are included

within cash flows from operating activities owing to their association with
the underlying profits of the joint venture whereas all other cash flows are
recognised as investing activities. Distributions reduce the carrying value

ofthe Group’s investments in joint ventures and associates.

C. ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES (APMs)

The Group uses a number of performance measures which are non-IFRS.
The key measures comprise the following:

— Adjusted measures: Used by the Directors and management to monitor
business performance internally and exclude the same items as for EPRA
earnings, but also certain cash and non-cash items which they believe are
not reflective of the normal day-to-day operating activities of the Group.
Furthermore, the Group evaluates the performance of its portfolio by
aggregating its share of joint ventures and associates which are under the
Group’s management (‘Share of Property interests’) on a proportionally
consolidated basis including, where applicable, discontinued operations.
The Directors believe that disclosing such non-IFRS measures enables
areadertoisolate and evaluate the impact of such items on results and
allows forafuller understanding of performance from year to year.
Adjusted performance measures may not be directly comparable with
other similarly titled measures used by other companies.

— EPRAearnings and EPRA net assets: Calculated in accordance with
guidanceissued by the European Public Real Estate Association
recommended bases.

— Headline earnings: Calculated in accordance with the requirements of
the Johannesburg Stock Exchange listing requirements.

Areconciliation between reported and the above alternative earnings and
netasset measuresis setoutinnote 10.

D.GOING CONCERN

Introduction

The Directors have undertaken a detailed going concern assessment,
considering the Group’s principal risks and current and projected financial
position over the period to 30 June 2024 (‘the going concern period’).

This period has been selected as it coincides with the first six monthly
covenant test date for the Group’s unsecured borrowing facilities falling
due afterthe minimum 12 months going concern period. The assessment
process involved the preparation of two scenarios: a ‘Base’ scenarioand a
‘Severe but plausible’ scenario. In addition the Directors reviewed covenant
reverse stress tests over the going concern period.

The two scenarios take account of the latest economic and trading outlook,
including geopolitical uncertainty, primarily related to the ongoing war

in Ukraine, and the associated economic challenges on both consumers
and businesses from high inflation, rising interest rates and supply

chain pressures.

Financing position

At 31 December 2022, all borrowings in the Reported Group were
unsecured and subject to covenants relating to the Group’s gearing, interest
cover, secured borrowings as a proportion of equity shareholders’ funds,
and unencumbered asset ratio, the latter covenant only being applicable
tothe private placement notes. As explained in the Financial Review,

there was significant headroom under each of these covenants and the
Group also had liquidity of £996m. This position results in the Group having
no unsecured refinancing required until 2025 which is not covered by
available cash.

The Group also has exposure to secured borrowings in three of its joint
ventures (Dundrum, Highcross and O’Parinor) and its associate, Value
Retail. These secured facilities are subject to covenants, principally relating
toloan tovalue and interest cover and are non-recourse to the Group.

This means that the lenders only have security over the property assets
held by the joint venture or Value Retail and the Group is not liable for any
repayment shortfall. Also, a covenant breach or acceleration of any of these
facilities would not cause a cross-default under any of the Group’s
unsecured borrowings or any of the other secured loans.

At 31 December 2022 the Group’s share of secured borrowings in its joint
ventures was £392mand in Value Retail, accounted for as an associate,
£762m. The loans secured against Highcross and O’Parinor and three loans
held by Value Retail mature over the going concern period. The Group’s
share of these loans was £234m at 31 December 2022. The loan secured
against Dundrum, Group’s share £266m, matures in September 2024, just
outside of the going concern period. During 2022, Value Retail successfully
raised over £1.0bn by refinancing three secured loans, the largest being a
£693m five year loan secured against Bicester Village which was completed
in December2022.

Scenario assumptions

Base scenario

The going concern scenarios, which exclude disposals and refinancing
assumptions, were constructed from the Group’s Business Plan (‘the Plan’),
which was approved by the Board in December 2022 and took into account
the challenges in the market outlook referred to above and risk of recession.
Nonetheless, the Plan assumed a stable near term operational performance
supported by the Group’s strong leasing pipeline and the recovery in
collections and footfall seen overthe course of 2022. Recognising the
heightened macroeconomic uncertainty and pressures, investment
markets were forecast to remain challenging with property values forecast
tofallin 2023, before growing in 2024. The assumptions and projections
inthe Plan have beenincorporated into the Base scenario.

Severe but plausible scenario

Indeveloping the Group’s Severe but plausible scenario the Board has
assumed a number of connected adverse impacts to the Group’s operating
metrics and valuations which directly effect the Group’s unsecured
borrowing covenants. The assumptionsin the Severe but plausible scenario,
have been determined using available benchmarks and external forecasts,
and are based on a more severe economic downturn than anticipated in the
Base scenario and include over the going concern period:

— A5 percentage points increase in forecast vacancy above the Base
scenario due totenant failure and a weaker leasing performance

— A10% reduction in variable income from turnover rent, car parks and
commercialisation relative to the Base scenario associated with lower
forecast footfall

— Anallowance forincreased credit loss provisions from lower collections
and tenant failure

— No cash distributions from Value Retail

— Dividends limited to match minimum REIT requirements based on the
revised earnings projections in the Severe but plausible scenario
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION, CONSOLIDATION AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

D. GOING CONCERN continued

Scenario assumptions continued

— Reductionin capital expenditure to a total of £100m over the going
concern period

— Weaker investment markets with lower valuations

These adverse assumptions, result in forecast net rental income (NRI)
overthe going concern period being c.70% of 2022 NRI and the Group’s
property portfolio reporting a capital return of -13% equivalent toa
revaluation loss of almost £700m.

Treatment of private placement notes

Due to the forecast valuation reductions in both scenarios, the headroom
underthe Group’s unencumbered asset ratio covenant is fully eroded by the
end of the going concern period in the Base scenario. This covenantis only
applicable tothe private placement notes which totalled £191m at

31 December 2022, and for going concern modelling purposes to avoid the
risk of breach, both scenarios assume that the notes are fully redeemed in
2023 using existing liquidity.

Secured borrowing refinancing risks

Inrelationtothe £234m of secured loans held by two joint ventures and
Value Retail which mature over the going concern period, since the year end
areceiver was appointed by the lenders on Highcross and refinancing
planning or lender discussions are ongoing on the other loans. However, as
atthe date of this report, no contractual refinancing agreements have been
reached. Therefore, for going concern modelling purposes, it has been
assumed that the lenders enforce security over these assets with the Group
recognising an impairment of its net investment in these assets.

Scenario outcomes and reverse stress tests

Having prepared the two scenarios on the basis of the assumptions
explained above, under both scenarios, the Group is forecast to retain
significant liquidity and is able to meet its obligations as they fall due over
the course of the going concern period. It is also forecast to remain
compliant with all the remaining unsecured debt covenants over the going
concern period, with gearing and interest cover being the most critical for
the going concern assessment.

The key variables impacting these two covenants are valuation movements
forthe gearing covenant, and changes in net rentalincome for the interest
cover covenant. Netinterest cost also impacts the interest cover ratio,
however as at 31 December 2022, 84% of the Group’s debt (included in this
covenant) is at fixed interest rates, which limits the near term volatility of this
element of the covenant. The percentage of fixed debt is forecast to remain
broadly unchanged over the going concern period.

Asat 31 December 2022, the gearing ratio could withstand a reduction in
the value of the Group’s property portfolio of 28%, and for the interest cover
covenant, areduction in NRI (relative to 2022 net rental income) of 61%.
Giventhe adverse assumptions adopted in the Severe but plausible
scenario, the level of covenant headroom is forecast to diminish over the
going concern period such that, at its lowest point, in June 2024, the
covenant headroom to further valuation falls is forecast as c. 15% for the
gearing covenantand c. 45% for lower net rentalincome under the interest
cover covenant.

The Board considers that these levels of valuation and net rental income
reductions over the going concern period, which are significantly in excess
ofthose assumed inthe Group’s Severe but plausible scenario, are remote.

Mitigating actions

The successful delivery of the Group’s strategy will continue to strengthen
the Group’s financial position. From a going concern perspective, akey
element of thisisto deliver aresilient and sustainable capital structure, and
additionalactions which have not been factored into the going concern
assessmentare:

— The completion of the Group’s disciplined disposals programme of
c.£500m over 2022 and 2023

— Refinancing of maturing loans in the ordinary course of business,
particularly by Value Retail, where following the successful refinancing
activitiesin 2022, their management remain confident of refinancing
future maturing loans

Conclusion

Having undertaken the assessment described above, over the going
concern period, under both scenarios the Group is forecast to retain
significant liquidity and is able to meet its obligations as they fall due.

The Groupis also forecast to retain significant headroom under the gearing
and interest cover covenantsin its unsecured borrowings. This includes the
impact of a fullimpairment of the net investment in relation to secured loans
maturing over the going concern period. This outcome demonstrates the
Group’s ability to withstand such an adverse outcome, even in the Severe
but plausible scenario.

The Directors are therefore able to conclude that they have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence and meet its liabilities as they fall due for at least the
next 12 months and have accordingly prepared the financial statements
onthe going concern basis.

E.PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue

Revenue comprises gross rental income (consisting of base and turnover
rents, income from car parks, lease incentive recognition and other rental
income), service charge income, property fee income and joint venture and
associate management fees. These income streams are recognised in the
period to which they relate as set out below.

Rentalincome from investment property is recognised as revenue on
astraight line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives and costs
associated with entering into tenant leases are amortised over the lease
termasareductioninrentalincome. Lease modifications are accounted for
asanew lease from the effective date of the modification, considering any
prepaid oraccrued lease payments relating to the original lease as part of
the lease payments for the new lease. On entering into a lease modification
any initial direct costs associated with the lease, including surrender premia
previously paid, are derecognised through rental expense in the year. Rent
reviews are recognised when such reviews have been agreed with tenants.

Contingent rents, being those lease payments that are not fixed at the
inception of a lease, for example increases arising on rent reviews and
turnoverrent, are variable consideration and are recorded as income using
the most reliable estimates of such consideration in the periods in which
they are earned and based on the most reliable estimates of the value of
such consideration.
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Under IFRS 15, the Group’s revenue from contracts with customers
includes service charge income, property fee income, car park income
and joint venture and associate management fees and is recognised in
accordance with the following performance obligations:

— Service charge income, property fee income and joint venture and
associate management fees are recognised over the period the
respective services are provided

— Carparkincomeis recognised at the point in time when the customer
has completed use of their car parking space

Retirement benefit costs

Defined contribution pension plans

The cost of defined contribution schemes is expensed as incurred.
The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.

Defined benefit pension plans

The Group has one funded plan where assets are held in separate trustee
administered funds. The Group also provides other unfunded pension
benefits to certain members.

The Group’s net obligation comprises the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned, discounted to determine a present value, less the
fair value of the pension plan assets. The cost of providing benefits under
defined benefit arrangements are determined separately for each plan
using the projected unit credit method, with valuations being carried out
by external actuaries.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high
quality corporate bonds that have terms to maturity approximating to the
terms of the related pension obligation. A net pension asset is only
recognised to the extent that it is expected to be recoverable in the future
and the asset is limited to the present value of any future refunds from the
plan orreduction in future contributions to the plan. In accordance with
IFRIC 14, the Group recognises a pension surplus on adefined benefit
pension plan ifit has a legal right to receive that surplus on winding up.

The netinterest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan
assets. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Share-based payments

Equity settled share-based employee remuneration is determined with
reference tothe fair value (excluding the effect of non-market-based vesting
conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of grant and is expensed
over the vesting period on a straight line basis.

The fair value of share options which are subject only to internal
performance criteria or service conditions are measured using input factors
including the exercise price, expected volatility, option life and risk-free
interest rate. For all schemes, the number of options expected to vest is
recalculated at each balance sheet date, based on expectations of leavers
prior to vesting. The fair value of the market-based element of the Restricted
Share Planis calculated using the Monte Carlo model which is dependent
onfactors including the expected volatility, vesting period and risk-free
interestrate.

Finance costs

Net finance costs

Net finance costs include interest payable on debt, derivative financial
instruments, interest on head leases and other lease obligations, debt and
loan facility cancellation costs, net of interest capitalised, interest receivable
onfunds invested and derivative financialinstruments, and changes in the
fairvalue of derivative financial instruments.

Capitalisation of interest

Interestis capitalised ifitis directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of development properties or the significant
redevelopment of investment properties. Capitalisation commences when
the activities to develop the property start on site and continues until the
property is substantially ready for its intended use, normally practical
completion. Capitalised interest is calculated with reference to the actual
rate payable on loans for development purposes or, for that part of the
development cost financed out of general funds, at the Group’s weighted
average interest rate.

Tax

Tax exempt status

The Company has elected for UK REIT, French SIIC and Irish QIAIF status.
To continue to benefit from these tax regimes, the Group is required to
comply with certain conditions as outlined in note 8A. Management intends
that the Group will continue as a UK REIT, a French SIIC and an Irish QIAIF
forthe foreseeable future.

Current and deferred tax

Taxisincludedin the consolidated income statement except to the extent
thatit relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case the related
taxis recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the non-tax exemptincome for
the period, net of allowable expenses and tax deductions, using the tax
rate(s) prevailing during the accounting period, together with any adjustment
inrespect of previous periods.

Deferred taxis provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing
fortemporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax
purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided for:

— Goodwill not deductible for tax purposes
— Theinitial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neitheraccounting
nor taxable profit

— Differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they
will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities,
using tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled orthe asset is realised.

Adeferred taxasset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised.
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1. BASIS OF PREPARATION, CONSOLIDATION AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

E.PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Foreign currency

Income statement

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at exchange
rates approximating to the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.

The operatingincome and expenses of foreign operations are translated
into sterling at the average exchange rates for the year. Significant
transactions, such as property sales, are translated at the foreign exchange
rate ruling at the date of each transaction.

Transactions with joint ventures including distributions, interest and
management fees are eliminated on a proportionate basis. The Group’s
financial performance is not materially impacted by seasonality.

Balance sheet

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
balance sheet date are translated into sterling at the exchange rate ruling
atthatdateand, unless they relate to the hedging of the net investment in
foreign operations, differences arising on translation are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair
value adjustments arising on consolidation, are translated into sterling at
the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.

Netinvestmentin foreign operations

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investmentin
foreign operations are taken to the translation reserve. They are released to
the consolidated income statement upon disposal of the foreign operation.

Exchange rates
The principal foreign currency denominated balances are in euro where the
translation exchange rates used are:

Consolidated income statement

Yearended  Yearended

31December 31 December

Average rate 2022 2021

Quarterl €1.195 €1.145

Quarter2 €1.179 €1.160

Quarter3 €1.168 €1.169

Quarter4 €1.150 €1.179
Consolidated balance sheet

31December 31 December

2022 2021

Yearend rate €1.128 €1.191

Investment properties and trading properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value, being market value
determined by professionally qualified external valuers, and changes
infairvalue are included in the consolidated income statement. Accordingly,
no depreciation is provided.

Expenditure incurred oninvestment properties is capitalised where it is
probable that the future economic benefits associated with the investment
property will flow to the entity, and the cost can be reliably measured. This
includes the recognition of capitalised tenant incentives, less amortisation
and impairment, capitalised interest and other capital expenditure.

Investment properties held for future sale are transferred to Trading
properties within current assets at the fair value at the date of transferand
subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Interestsin leasehold properties

The Group owns anumber of properties on long leaseholds under operating
leases from freeholders or superior leaseholders which are depreciated
overthe lease term. At the commencement of a lease, the Group recognises
lease liabilities for the buildings element of the leasehold, disclosed as
obligations under head leases, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments to be made over the term of the lease. Payments to the freeholder
orsuperior leaseholder are apportioned between afinance chargeand a
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each
period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Contingent rents and variable rents payable which are not dependentonan
index, such as rent reviews or those related to rental income, are expensed
inthe period to which they relate. Where at inception or at some point during
the course of the lease, rents are fixed, or are in substance fixed, a right-of-
use asset is created and a corresponding liability for the present value of the
minimum future lease payments recognised on the balance sheet.

Right-of-use assets

The Group has leases for each of its offices. Leased assets are capitalised
oninception of the lease as right-of-use assets and depreciated over the
shorter of the non-cancellable lease period and any extension options that
are considered reasonably certain to be taken or the useful life of the asset.

A corresponding lease liability, representing the present value of the lease
paymentsis also recognised. The discounted lease liability is calculated
where possible using the interest rate implicit in the lease or where this is
not attainable the incremental borrowing rate is utilised. The incremental
borrowing rate is the rate the Group would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain a similarasset under similar conditions. The Group
calculates the incremental borrowing rate using the risk free rate of the
country where the asset is held, adjusted for length of the lease and

arisk premium.

Lease payments are allocated against the principal and finance cost.
Finance costs, representing the unwinding of the discount on the lease
liability are expensed to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining liability.

Cloud software license agreements and intangible assets

When the Group incurs configuration and customisation costs as part of
acloud-based software-as-a-service (SaaS) agreement, and where this
does not result in the creation of an asset which the Group has control over,
such costs are expensed. Licence agreements to use cloud software are
treated as service contracts and expensed, unless the Group has both a
contractual right to take possession of the software at any time without
significant penalty, and the ability to run the software independently of the
host vendor. In such cases the licence agreement is capitalised as software
withinintangible assets.
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Software and licenses which are capitalised include costs incurred to
acquire the assets as well as any internal infrastructure and design costs
incurred in the development of software in order to bring the assets into
use. Capitalised software costs include external direct costs of goods and
services, as well as directly attributable internal payroll related costs for
employees who are associated with the project. Computer software under
developmentis held at cost less any recognised impairment loss.

Software is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and, where

appropriate, provision forimpairment in value or estimated loss on disposal.

Amortisation is provided to write off the cost of assets on a straight line basis
between three and six years, and is recorded in administration expenses.

Plant and equipment

Such assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and, where
appropriate, provision forimpairmentin value. Depreciation is charged
tothe consolidated income statement on a straight line basis over the
estimated useful life, generally between three and five years.

Other investments

Otherinvestments areinitially recognised at fair value and
subsequently remeasured, with changes recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Disposals, discontinued operations and assets held for sale
Disposals

Properties are treated as disposed when control transfers to the buyer
which typically occurs on completion.

Gains or losses on the sale of properties are calculated by reference to
the carrying value at the end of the previous year, adjusted for subsequent
capital expenditure, unless reclassified to assets held for sale prior to
disposal. Where a corporate entity, whose primary asset is a property,

is disposed, the associated gains or losses on the sale of the entity are
disclosed as profit or loss on sale of properties.

Discontinued operations and assets held for sale

Adiscontinued operation is acomponent of the Group which represents
asignificant separate line of business, either through its activity or
geographical area of operation, which has been sold, is held for sale or
has been closed.

Where at the balance sheet date the sale of a component of the Group,
which caninclude a property, is considered highly probable and is available
forimmediate sale inits present condition as well as taking into account
other required accounting criteria, it is classified as held for sale. Such
classification assumes the expectation that the sale will complete within
one year from the date of classification. Assets and liabilities held for sale
are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs
tosell.

Ifaninvestmentinajoint venture or associate is reclassified to assets held
for sale, equity accounting ceases on the date of reclassification and any
subsequent movements in the fair value are recognised as impairment
gains or losses, however, the Group includes earnings generated after
reclassification to assets held for sale as part of its Adjusted earnings as
described in note 10A.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially measured at fair value,
subsequently measured at amortised cost and, where the effect is material,
discounted to reflect the time value of money. Trade and other receivables
are shown net of any loss allowance provision. In order to calculate any loss
allowance, the Group applies the simplified approach under IFRS 9 to
determine the Expected Credit Loss (ECL).

In addition the Group makes provisions against receivables in the current
period in respect of income not yet recognised in the income statement,
butinstead deferred on the balance sheet to be released to the income
statement inafuture period, to match the period to which the income relates.

Otherreceivablesinclude loans receivable which are financial assets and
are initially measured at fair value, plus acquisition costs, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, less any impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted monetary assets
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short term bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less which are
readily accessible.

Restricted monetary assets relate to cash balances which legally belong to
the Group but which the Group cannot readily access owing to restrictions
imposed by law or legislation and include cash and monies held in escrow
accounts fora specified purpose. These do not meet the definition of cash
and cash equivalents and consequently are presented separately in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are those which involve a contractual obligation to deliver
cash to external parties at a future date.

Loans

Loans are recognised initially at fair value, after taking account of any
discount onissue and attributable transaction costs. Subsequently, loans
are held atamortised cost, such that discounts and costs are charged as
finance costs to the consolidated income statement over the term of the
borrowing at a constant return on the carryingamount of the liability.

Trade and other payables
Trade payables (excluding derivative financial liabilities) are non-interest
bearing and are stated at cost which equates to their fair value.

Derivative financialinstruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to economically hedge its
exposure toforeign currency movements and interest rate risks. Hedge
accounting is applied in respect of netinvestments in foreign operations and
of debt raised in non-functional currencies. Derivative financial instruments
are recognised initially at fair value, which equates to cost and subsequently
remeasured at fair value, with changes in fair value being included in the
consolidated income statement, except where hedge accounting is applied.

Derivative financialinstruments are presented as current assets or liabilities
if they are expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period, otherwise they are held as non-current assets or liabilities.

Thefairvalue gain or loss on remeasurement of derivative financial
instruments and the exchange differences on non-derivative financial
instruments that are designated in a net investment hedge are recognised
inthe netinvestment hedge reserve in total comprehensive income, to the
extent they are effective, and the ineffective portion is recognised in the
consolidated income statement within net finance costs. Amounts are
reclassified from the net investment hedge reserve to the consolidated
income statement when the associated hedged item is disposed of.
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E.PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Derivative financial instruments continued

The fairvalue gain or loss on re-measurement of derivative financial
instruments that are designated in a cash flow hedge are recognised in the
cash flow hedge reserve in total comprehensive income, to the extent they
are effective, and the ineffective portionis recognised in the consolidated
income statement within net finance costs. Amounts are reclassified

from the cash flow hedge reserve to the consolidated income statement
when the associated hedged transaction affects the consolidated

income statement.

In line with the Group’s definition of Borrowings which includes
currency swaps, disclosures in the cash flow statement are consistent
with this definition.

F. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements requires management to

make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the application
of its accounting policies which affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual amounts and results may differ
fromthose estimates.

Judgements and estimates are evaluated regularly and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
eventsthat are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Any revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimateis revised.

Significant judgements

Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

2022

There were no assets qualifying as held for sale nor discontinued operations.

2021

On 14 December 2021, the Group exchanged contracts for the sale of all of
its 50% investment in Silverburn whereby completion occurred in March
2022. Atthe date of exchange, it was concluded that all of the accounting
criteriawere met to classify this investment as an asset held for sale.
Following this reclassification, equity accounting ceased and the asset was
subsequently re-measured to £71.4m at 31 December 2021, being the
lower of the carryingamount and fair value less costs of disposal.

In Februaryand May 2021, the Group sold several UK retail parks forming
substantially all of anidentifiable segment of the business. As a result of this,
the UK retail parks were disclosed as discontinued operations. Residual
retained UK retail parks, reclassified as ‘Developments and other’, formed
only avery small proportion of the segment and consequently their
retention did notimpact the conclusion on the treatment as discontinued.

Impairment of non-financial assets and liabilities

Most of the Group’s non-financial assets are investment properties and

are already carried at their fair value under IAS 40. Investments in joint
ventures and associates fall within the scope of IAS 28 and are therefore
only assessed forimpairment where one or more events cause an indicator
ofimpairment versus the original investment.

Joint ventures and associates are accounted for under the equity method,
which equates to the Group’s share of the entity’s Net Asset Value (NAV).
NAV is based on the fair value of the assets and liabilities where the principal
asset, the investment property, is already carried at fair value being the
higher of value in use and fair value less cost of disposal and as such, NAV is
areasonable approximation for the recoverable amount of the investment.
There are noindicators falling outside of NAV which are considered to be
grounds for furtherimpairment review.

Significant estimates

Property valuations

Backdrop

The valuation of the Group’s portfolio of properties is the most material area
of estimation due toits inherent subjectivity, reliance on assumptions and
sensitivity to market fluctuations. The property portfoliois valued by
externalvaluers in accordance with RICS Valuation — Global Standards

and during the year all Covid-19 related assumptions from the valuations
were removed.

The 31 December 2022 reports include a general commentary on wider
issues including uncertainty caused by the war in Ukraine and associated
cost, supply chain, rising interest rates and inflationary pressures. Key areas
of estimate highlighted included:

— Estimation of market rents based onanincreased level of activity
— Consideration of appropriate levels of void costs and rent-free period
— Theimpact of shortening lease lengths

— The basis of yield assumptions recognising the selective return of investor
appetite towards the retail sector

Methodology

Investment properties, excluding properties held for development, are
valued by adopting the ‘investment method’ of valuation. This approach
involves applying capitalisation yields to estimated future rental income
streams reflecting contracted income reverting to ERV with appropriate
adjustments forincome voids arising from vacancies, lease expiries or
rent-free periods. These capitalisation yields and future income streams
are derived from comparable property and leasing transactions and are
considered to be the key inputs to the valuations. Where comparable
evidence of yield movement is lacking, valuers are reliant on sentiment or
the movement of less comparable assets. Factors that have been taken into
accountinclude, but are not limited to, the location and physical attributes
of the property, tenure, tenancy details, lease expiry profile, rent collection,
local taxes, structuraland environmental conditions. With regards to the
latter factor, the valuers currently make limited explicit adjustment to their
valuations in respect of ESG matters. However, both the Group and the
valuers anticipate that ESG will have a greater influence on valuations in the
future as investment markets place a greater emphasis on this topic and
valuers comply with the RICS Guidance Note Sustainability and ESGin
Commercial Property Valuation, which took effect from 31 January 2022.

Atailored approach is taken to the valuation of the Group’s development
properties due to their unique nature. In the case of on site developments,
the approach applied is the ‘residual method’ of valuation, which is the
investment method of valuation as described above with a deduction for
all costs necessary to complete the development, together with afurther
allowance for remaining risk and developers’ profit. Properties held for
future development are valued using the highest and best use method,

by adopting the higher of the residual method of valuation allowing for
allassociated risks, and the investment method of valuation for the
existing asset.
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